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Who we are

London Stock Exchange Group is a global markets
nfrastructure business. We provide vatuable :
services for a wide range of customers, focusing
on Intellectual Property, Risk and Balance Sheét
Management and Capital Formation.

The Group plays a vitat economic and social
role in enabling companies to access funds
for growth and development.

Our vision
To be the most trusted expert
in global financial markets.

Our purpose

We provide international access
to capital. We help customers to
optimise thelr capital resources
and inform thelr investrment
decisions. We promote trusted
and transparent envirormments
and services for investment.

We do this so that businesses
and economies can thrive.
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Uil wwwlseg.com
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The figures in the graphs below are for the Group on a conhinuing basis,
so exclude businesses classthed as discontinued dunng the periods shown
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The Nroup changed e inancial teparting referenc o date 1 2014 hence the qraphs show full 12 month hgues anveither a March or December year-end basts
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=trate .o Afp 1t Highlights

Group Total Income by segment
£&m 5 6

The Group continues to execute on its
strategy dehwering best-n-class capabiities
diving giobal growth and developing our
partnership approach Key headlines are
provided below
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FURTHER INFORMATION
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Chairman’s statement

Overview

Dunng 2017 London Steck Exchange Group contimued
to make good progress executing its growth strategqy
delvering anothel year of strong performance The
Group has also addressed several strateqic corporate
macroeconcmic and poliitical events

In the early part of the year the Group navigated the
terrmination of its attempted merger with Deutsche
Barse foliowing the European Commission's
prombihion decision we worked hard to find the
appropt iate solutions to the CoMpetition review
LSEG has alwayjs been committed to mantaming
excellent relationshps with all of its stakeholders
ncluding the regulators ints signihcant markets
and taking into account all of the relevant factors
the Beard concluded that it could not meet the late
stage tequest from the EU Comrmsston for
dwestment of a key Italun business

Threughout the merger discussions, the executve
management remained focused on the perforrmance
of ow business disions through orgaric and
inorgamc growth, as was evident from the acquisition
of The vield Book and Citt Fixed Income Indices
business The transaction whnch completed at the
end of August, enhances and complerments the
Group's information Services data and analytics
offering and will allow FTSE Russell to capitaiise
further om key industry trends

Following the LK s dectsion to leave the FL the Group
continues to ensure that ou businesses are well
prepared for any eventual outcome As a systermically
wmiportant financal marketsnfrastructure husiness
the Group has a responsibiity to ensure the orderly

funcooning of markets and to ensure continuity of
service for the benefit of our customers, shareholders
and other stakeholders with a strong global feotprint
and significant infrastructure in a number of
geographies across the UK Eurozone, Us and Asia
the Group 1s extraorchnanly well placed to adapt to
the consequences of the eventual exit tetrns On
behalf of all our stakeholders and partners the

Group continues to argue strongly for a defined
implernentation penod and the mimmisation of the
fragmertation of systems and processes designed to
make the financal markets more efficient, stable and
safe we also firrnly belleve that enhanced regulatory
supervision and regulation on 4 global scale will far
outwetgh any shart term polincal benehts of locstion
based policies for finanoal rnarkets infrastucture

Throughout the year a keu focus for the Group was
planning Lo ensure that our systerms and processes
were ready for the major chianges resulting from
the wnplementaton of MiF 1D 1L which took effect
wnimediately after thie year end Al venues wernt lve
n January 2012 10 ane of the most extensive
technalogy roll-outs the Group has ever undertaken
David Warren discusses the oppartumties that
MIFID 11 presents for the Group as the only inancial
markets infrastructure business operating on

an Open Access basis elsewhere in this Report

Governance

The final quarter of the year saw the announcernent
of a process for succession of the Chief Executive

In early October the Board and the Chief Executive
Xawer Rolet confirmed an agreement that he would
leave the Group by the end of 2018 to ensuie a
smooth transimon Sharehalders will recall that xawver

“The Group remains
well positioned for

the opportunities
ahead and remans
confident of delivering
further success and
value for shareholders.”

Donald Brydon CBE

Chairmian
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Full year dividend

Final dvidend of 37 2 pence per share to be paid on 30 May 2018' (2016 31 2 pence per share)

2017
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Ralet had offered to step downin order to smooth the
path for the planned merger As atesult following
the end of the merger process with Deutsche Borse

n March 2017 1t was clear to the Board that the Group
needed clarity over succession Unfortunately one
shareholder requisitioned a General Meeting to seek
to undo the agreed plan The Chief Executive s
departure was, as a consequence accelorated and a
motion to temove your £ hatrman poposed by the
sharehalder was mmly defeated Regrettably this
process distupted the o1gdmised SUCCRSSION Process
and caused considerable diversion of time and
energly The process of appointing the new Chief

[xec utive 15 now advanced with & stiong field of tugh
quanty cancidates when the new Chief Executive 15
dannounced and appropnately integrated into the
Group L will step down at the AGM 0 2019,

tu allow a new team Lo Lake the business forward

The Board fitrmly beheves that it followed appropriate
govelnance prnciples considering sharebolders and
other stakeholdors interests at all times but it 1s
important that our actions are reviewed and
romstderanon s give nte ang lessons to be learned
Anexternal reeiew 1s being condur ted by Simoen
Colling a former UK Chairmarn anvl Senor Partner of
KPRAG who has the doep espenence and techmeal
cxpertise to undettake this work The Boarrd will share
the summiary of ket conclusicons with shareholders
1Al o

Ac | saud at the General Meeting in Decembir Boards
rowtst tekee e account all reles ant infenmiglion
making then decisions 11wl never be possihle tonall
of that farmation to be in the puble doman mueh
Qs STe AL wtshit b he Theat s one teasorashiy

shareholder s delegate dectsions to a Board The
returns that result from these decisions are not
actneved nsk free Boards are not committees but are
teal nisk taking bodies provding oversight of executive
managen enl did guiding the strateque directian

of the company | share mwy further thoughts on
corporate governance later in this report an page 56

The events of the last quartes of 2017 challenged the
Board to think deeplyy about ts role the culture of the
Cormpany and the actions 1t takes m the best interests
of ail stakeholders collec tively 1am enormausly
grateful for all the ime and effort expended by the
Board members duning ths petiod The UK Corprrate
Governarice Lode demnands that attendance at the
Board and its cammittees are logged [naddiion to
Board and L omimittee meetings the Non Executwe
Dueclors of LSFG attended many more meetings
during both the possible merget with Dewtsche Borae
and the process of preparation of the notice of the
December Goneral Meeting than aterecarded in nut
Governance report

At the end of the year the Bodrd was jained by val
pahmaniwhose strong technology and bosiness
backgrovnd will provide valuable expertise as we
continue Lo grow our global busmess As noted n
Movermher Xavier Rolet stepped down trom tus tole as
aDhre tor anel CLO My colleagues and | arknowledage
the imimense contnhution he made 10 the
developrment of your Comipany Theto fave bogn o
other ¢ hareges tathe Boad < compostonn 201

As delaled in the Governance Report onpage >0
the Boatd emams comrmitted to further estonng
the gender dwersity of the Board a process that
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Strategic Report Chairman’s statement

was inten upted by restructuring ahead of the
possible merger with Deutsche Borse The Group

15 also d signatoty 1o the UK s HM Treasury women
1IN Finance Charter to umprove gender diversity within
semor leadership teams and we have set ourselves

a stratching target of 40% female representation

n seriorn roles by the end of 2020 We are cutrently
at 33%

Corporate Social Responsibility

The Group s in a privileged position at the heart

of the financial markets and we are pleased to
sUpport corporates 1ssuers and investors ntegrate
sustamabiity and diversity as a care part of then
camtal raising and mvesiment decisions we
contmue thwork closely with global and regional
chianties in the communties i which we operate
The selected chantes focus on helping young
people to develop vital fe skills and we encourage
employees to become actively wvolved in then work
thraugh peid volunteenng days In 2017 the Groups
Foundabion donated £1 & million Lo vanows chanties

Financial Performance

The Group has continued to deliver a strong Ainancial
pertarmance aurnss its husiness divisions Total
ncome grew (o £1955 million up 18- Adjusted
operating proft was 812 milhon while adjusted
FPSwas 1487 pence anncrease of 194,

Consistent with the Group s capital allocation
framework we rondurted an on-market share
puyback of £200 milhon an amount hroadly
equivalent tothe 1etur n we would have made had the
metgetl with Deutsche Borse proceeded as planned

Reflecting the Group s strong perforrmance and our
commitrment to sustainable progressive dividends
the Board s proposing a hnal duvidend of 372 pence
pet share tesulting md 194 year-on goar Increase
i the total dvidend to 51 6 pence pet share The final
dridend will be paid on 30 May 2018 to shareholders
on thetegister as at 4 May 2018

Conclusion

Lwould ke tathank Board mermbers and all of our
excollent emnplayees for anolhet successiul yearm
the development of this great cornpany The Group
remnains well positioned for the opportunities ahoead
and remains confident of delvering further success
and alue for shareholders

rwatd Boagetorm

Donald Brydon
Chanman
S March Ale



Executing our Strategy

London Stock £ xchange Group dehvered another
strong performance 1n 2017 we continue to
successfully execute our strategy to grow and
diversify the Group operating on an Open Access
basis m partnership with our customers We have
seen growth acrass all of our core business pillars —
Intellectual Property Risk and Balance sheet
management and Capital Farmation — and have
continued tonvestin new Imniatives and acquisiions
to drive further expansion and efficiencies The Group
i strategically operationally and financially well
positioned to capitalise on a range of opportunities
ahead and to enhance sharehclder returns
Confidence 1nour cutlook led us to set inancial
targets at an Investor Update event in June which
will deliver growth in Group EBITDA marginio ¢ 55 &
by 2019

As a leading financal markets infrastructure group
we have continued to grow our global footprint
mncluding strengthemng our presence in As1a and
inthe United States we have also made selective
acquisttions that develop our chent offering, while
meeting our strict strategic and finanaial critena

This mcluded increasing our majenty shareholding
N LCH, the acguisition of Mergent and the acquisdion
of The Yield Book and (it Fixed Income Indices,
winch provides opportunities to significantiy enhance
FTSE Russell's fixed income analybics and index
bustness These acguisitions alse help to expand
LSEG 5 presence in the United States and our global
dhstnbution capabilities

‘rm

I

MIFID I1 Opportunities

The implementation of MIF1ID 11 which took place
on 3 January 2018 was a key focus for a number
of our businesses and the transition tothe new
regulatory requme has n overall terrms been very
srmooth for LSEG | would like to thank everyone
involved 1 the programme whichwas a iy
collaborative effort across the Group and provides
us with further apportumities to differentiate
ourselves with our customers

Importantly MiIFID 1 embeds and recogmses Open
Access as a key principle in financial markets, and s
one we have been operating under for a number of
years The new rules will introduce greater compention
n financial markels, promoting transpaiency and
nnovation while helping to reduce costs and leading
to better nisk management Our Open Access
phinsaphy positions us well ds we have a praven
track record of operating businessesin partnershp
with our custamers As we stated in our Investor
Update in June a nurnber of these businesses,

such as LCH CurveGlobal Turguonse and MTS are
already beginning to benefit from the new MIFID 1]
enviTonment and we expect that they will be able

to further grow ther custorner offerings

Intellectual Property

Inour Nformation Services Business, £ T5E Russell
continued to perform strongly delivering double-digit
revenue growth up by more than 30 o Thisis

a consohidating sector where FTSE Russell has
successfully differennated self through its global
reach and breadth of offering With the acquisition

“We continue to
successfully execute
our strategy to grow
and diversify the
Croup, operating on
an Open Access basis
in partnership with
our customers”

David Warren
Intenim Group Chief Executive Office)

of The Yield Buok FTSE Russel! 15 the most diverse
ndex buginess glabally in product terms and 15

well posihoned to seek to benefit from the strong
undetlying industry trends including the demand
for broader mult asset capabriities Asaresult F1SE
Rugsell has further enhanced its posttion as a leadng
globalndex prowider with approximately US$15
trilhon of assets benchmarkad to1ts midexes

Indexes are firmly embedded across the investment
process and FTSE Russell has the abiliy to provide
cusiomers with a comprehensive product range and
a deeper data and analytics offening Institutional
chents rerman the core client base for FTSE Russell
The decisions made by these clients around index
selection nwestment products and strategies have
a great influence on the entire investiment sector
creating a demand for products and services to

exec ute the strategies for example £7F5 and
stiuctured products tracking the indexes they use
Currently over US$600 hilhon of ETF assets under
management track FTSE Russell indexes FISE
Russell 15 also well positioned in emerging markets
with a strang track record of developing country
focused benchmarks A nurmber of indexes and
partnerships wete launched over the year including
in Malaysia, China Taiwan and Saud Arabla

The comination of client refationstups and product
capabihties also drves innovation, often in
partnership with our custormers inareas such as
emaronmental social and governance (ESGy For
example FTSE Russell announced that the world's
largest pension fund The Government Pension
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Strategic Report Chief Executive's statement

Investment Fund of Japan IGPIF) selected the new
FTSE Blossomn Japan Index as 4 core ESG benchmartk
The index uses FTSE Russell's mnavative FSG Ratings
data model and highlights a growing trend among
asset owners to integrate E5G considerahions into
ther nvestment strategies

Also within Information Services Unavista the Group's
platform for all matching validation and reconciiation
needs continues 1o Nelp © 6000 chents from around
the world to meet ther requlatory reparting including
additional reguirernents under MiFID 11

Risk and Balance Sheet Management

inour Past Trade business | CH Group actieved
another strong performance with record volumes
actoss multyple cleanng services i 2017 drven by
new business as well as additional flaw from existing
custormers SwapClear cleared over Us$870 tnillien of
notional driven by sigmficant on bearding of new
chents af ross Eutope the Aanenicas and A<z Pacihe
The SwapClear service now has more than 100
rnembers and over 200 dealers clearing n 55 countries
and rernains the leading OTC rates hguidity pool in the
world Compression valumes also continued toTise
with over Ls$600 tnllion compressed up 594, on 2016
afurther example of how the cycle of trading clearing
and cormpressing ts becormng Increasingly rounne
The OTC clearing services delivered good double-digit
revenue growth i the year

LCH 15 well-placed 1o address camital and margin
challenges prevaiing in the vast F X market. which
trades around US$S tnllion o day The mbuduction
of new ilateral margin rules has been a catatyst for
members tostart centrally cleannyg with over U5$11
trthon in notional cleared through ForexClear n 2017
compared to 15%3 2 trillon in the previous year The
wearch for greater efficiencies s alsa drving growth
N LCH s repo and CD% clearing services which both
cuntinued to expand then product offerings LCH
Swaphgent a new service for the non cleated
dervatives market processed s first frades and
alsu extended the ethriencies and infrastructure

of tleanng to the non cledred Cross-Currency Basis
Swap narket

The Group s post trade setvices 0 Ttaly also recorded
a good performand ¢ with Monte Titol delivermg the
benefits of 725 tos members

Capital Formation

L5EG s range of debt and equity matkers pros des
firmis across the globe with acress ta deep and hgud
paals of caputal Our markets m condon ane Jtaly

hie Iped Cormparnies rarse over Sac tullhon in new and
further 1ssues wel oming ©omparies suckas Prell
2llexd In1sh Beink and Fedie Stohart London Stock

Exchange was the largest turopean exchange with
108 TPCs 0 2017 and second globally by money
raised The angoing success of London s Al market
which saw a near 45% increase 1 new capital raised
15 also being replicated on AIM italia with 24 new
adrmissions 10 2017

Jur commitment to support growth SKME companies
was also demonstiated through FLITE which has
continued to expand globally, with partnerships
secured in'west Africa Brazil China and Saud
Arabia 1n 2017 We also confimed the launch of

the first ELLTL Basket Bond which s made up of

10 innovative ltahan ELITE compames Over 700
compames frm across 27 countries are now patt

of the ELITE c orimunity and we expect this number
to continue 1o gross cver the LotTing year

In May welaunched our new liternational Secunnies
Market HISKOn L ondon an additional market for the
Issuance of pnimary debt targeted at institutional
and professional investors with 4 healthy pipeline

of 1ssters Londan Stock Fxchange also continues

to be at torefront of innavative green finance wath

the nurmber of green bonds 1ssued double that of

the pnor yedr

CurveGlobal the new interest rate denvatives
platform has bilt a firm foundation since launch
reflecting a growing appetite for mere capital-
officient and open alter natives o existing detvatives
trading services CurveGlobal s proving wself 1o be a
hghly ethoent differentiator inthe exchange traded
denvatves space offering yenuine choire and
hgquidity to the market Productive partnerships with
nter-dealer brokers and technology providers arc
also helping ta increase How to the platform
sigrificantly i the context of Best Exerunon rides
anider MiF 1D 11 CurveGlobal products histed oniLSE
Dervatives Market {LSEDMI continue to be best price
o tied the majonity of the ime

Our pan-Luropean trading platform Turquonse s
working with customers as they adjust then trading
strategies mresponse to MIFITHT Turgueorse Plato
Block Mscovery for example set new tecords in
2017 wath total value traded in the year uf, H0

1o £54 5 lhon

LSEG Technology

The mam to us of Technology 15 te underpu and
suppart the developrment of m house solutions for ou
capital markets cleartng and information husinesees
o technoloyy «ombined with o deep expertise n
fnanctal iarkets infrastructure enablew us to delior
mathet-leading senv s that put s at the forefront

of nies produe tideas and inncvation In 2017 we
annaune ed that we would better posation oo
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technology offening by bhinging several products and
businesses together under a new LSEG Technology
brand As part of the 1e-orgamsation we dwested

2 vmail technology assets as we focus on the hey
development opportunities ahead

We have continued Lo wark on the application

of a range of emergqing technologies including
distnibuted ledger technolegy cloud-enabled
computing maching learmng and g data LSEG
takes an active investiment’ approach where we
seek 1o combine the best of ol domain expertise

in hinancial markets infrastructure and techinology
with the best of the partner companes we choose
towork with For example we are coliaborating with
1BM to create a distnbuted shared registry tontaining
arecord of all shareholder transactions and helping
Lo open up new opportunties for tading and investing
for European Shks

Summary

LSEG operates in a dynamic global industry and
there will continue to be both new challenges and
opporturties ahead LSEG continues to perfom
strongly i1 an evohang macreeconomic reguldtony
and pohtical environment including Brexit with the
Uk et to leave the ELUNn March nest year LSEG has a
responsibility to ensure the arderly functioning of our
markets and (o contribute to the financial stabihty of
the globat econormy as a whole 15FG cutrently serves
chentsin a number of geographies acruss the United
kingdorm Eutope Umited States and Asia and as such
we have plans and options for continuing to provide a
seamless service Cur partnerstup appraach with our
customers continues 1o enable us to understand their
needs against a changmg regulatery and market
backdrop and te develop ow products and senaces
Lo help our clients with the ¢ hallenges they face

[nsummary our strategic amiatien remains the
same —to delver best in class capabiliies drive
global growth and develop our custormer partnerstup
approach Our highly capable and experient e
rmanagernent leam rermnains forused on the
opportunties ahead to delver the finanmial targets
we have set for the next 2 years while at the sarme
ume conbinuing toinvest and expand  The Lroupis
woll positioned for further successful development
and growth

Worat L

David warren
Interim Group € hef Lrecutive
S March 200s



What we do — our business model

London Stock Exchange Group (LSEG) is a
global financial markets infrastructure
provider which operates in muttiple regions
in order to meet our customers’ needs
Headquartered in London and with significant
operations elsewhere across the world in
North America, Italy, France and Sri Lanka,
the Group employs approximately 4,900
people Global presence is also reflected in
the geographical distribution of our income,
with 40% in Sterling, 32% m Euro, 26% in
US Dollar and 2% in other currencies

The Group plays a vital economic and soctal

role within the global economuy throughits
rterconnected businesses, enabling compames

to access funding for growth and development

make intormed investment dectsions and manage
financial nsks inturn on a bioader macro-econormic
Basts this provides greater efhiciency in accessing
and managing capital helmng to fund innavation
genetate wealth and create jobs

How we add value

Our businesses are formed of interconnected
business areas 1y Intellectual Property 2) Risk

and Balance Sheet Management and 3 Captal
Formation Our presence across the financial rmarkets
mfrastructure value chan allows us to provide a
platform for seving Customers at each and every
point and meehing a wide 1ange of therr needs

The model below shows our businesses and the

key connections between them

Intellectual Property

— Our Information Services division provides customers
with an extensive tange of valuable information and
data products that informinvestrnent decisions and
capital aliocanon including indexes data on pricing
trading and valuaticons

Rask and Balance Sheet Management

— The Group offers a full range of central
counterparty ICCP) clearing setvices and collateral
managerment solutions which provide strong risk
management and capital efhciency benefits These
allow our buy-side and sell side customersto
operate more effectively enabhng increased
trading and mvestment activities

Capital Formation

— Our Pnimary Markets provide chowce and
connections between a wide range of 1ssuers and
nvestors, enalihing doemesiic and inter natwonal
companes Lo 1ase capital effectively

— Our Secondary Markets provide hguid and
deep access 10 finanaial secunties to enable
improved price formation transparency and
trading efficiency

Group Technology

Subports the 3 busingss segments It delivers finannial
markets infrastructure [T to vanous businesses wit b
the Group This 1T compnises resiient. secure Nigh
performance trading platforrms post trade platforims
teal time market data hosting and othet infrastiucture
products and services It also provides these services
o third parties around the world

Qur activities across the financial markets value chain

Data and analytics

TRIMARY MERKITS ChRP
Our central function s tc bring tugether
companmes seeking caprra’ with investors
fromm around the warld

SECONDET Y MARKETS TRADINC

Our markets anc sustems provide all market
participarte with efficent hguid and deen
access tu fnanmal securnies ror the putpcse
of capital allecation and nsk transfer

d CAPITAL FORMATION
—

TAL RAISING

iy Lo
Stock Exchange

@& Turquoise

=£= Borsa ltallanc

CURVECLOBAL

mas

Trading
data

toinform

trading and Listed

investment o 4 RISK & BALANCE SHEET NAGEMENT L company

decisions ) and trading
data

Services

trading decisions

GROUP TECHNOLOGY

Central counteroarty (CCF cleanng semvic es
Custody and settlement
Ccliateral management and asset setvices

we orovide customers with an extensive range
¢! valuable and rehable infermanizn and data
praducts that inform the r investment and

The Group sffers a ful ranae of post trade services
providing risk and balance sheet nanagement
soluttons 1o 3 1ange of custamers

INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY

LCH CCaG
Produrct
Monte Titoli cleaning
data

=

* The Yield Bock

o MERGENT

Real Time Data

All of our susinestes depend on technnlegy that 15 secure s'abe and performs to high
levals of accuracy and throagnpat MillenmumiT develops flexible .ow-cost high performance
trading maket survediance ana post trage systems as wiell as netw.ark connectivity

LSEGTechnology
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Strategic Report What we do — our business model

what makes us different — our competitive advantages
10 addition to providing businesses of scale across the value chain our business model incorporates 2 key
approaches that differentiate us from competitors in the global financial markels infrastructure industry

Open Access
- Open Access s the pnnciple which ies at the heart
of free and fam markets and1s enshyined in MIF1D 1

- Wwe helieve custorners should have the choce
of where they plare thewrr husiness I particular
we SURPOrt ot discrimimatery access to frading
and cleaning infrastructures as we believe this
provides gredter market efficiencies by reducing
fragmentatinn and barners to servive uptake

— We provide access to all of our markets and products
for awide range of users ncluding thase that offer
COMpPEting services o parts of the Group Access
1o our setvires s not condinonal on taking a suite
o1 bundie of different services This open access
approachis i contrast 1o most other exchanges
and capital markets mhastructure providers

Examples

LH pros i des lea g set (et s nambe at
noN-Greup oo ned gl ties aethol s lni fieed

N ATTE TTARD L el Sl Foas Nes G Burares*

ang Choe Zurope Cguities

uther

¢« harge operarare sach as crdbmthe US and thie
2 japore Stuck Ex Manae enablina thiem t st and
tradc dervate »s miadacts based on o mdexes

FTSE Russell als hoene es it inresss 1

Customer Partnership

— We believe that algming our strategu, services
and products to the needs and interests of our
customers s central to supporting long-term
value creation enabling nnovation w products
which ¢an be rapidly adopted

In some businesses, we are Joint ow ners with our
rustomers which helps ensure continued relevance
and uptake of the business within the operating
landscape and targeted development qoals

Examples

U neTatnG s ImpaneT sachan. b

Sevetel
Turga tse udr edwbaland M S are aenez ata
aa.cned i partrership wath s st rmiers whc
MAve AN 3 min g shats el mteree mes
THrse L asamens plal amar e T e n shapimatne

sorvices ffered pu tieae huainesse o for the benef
of all users

NEED HELP?

Like anyndustry global inancual markets
infrastructure has its cwn umgue languadge
Far Llhat 1eason we have included a glossary
an pages 152-165

What we need to operate our businesses and deliver value
There are a number of factors that combine to give us competitve advantages

Intellectual property

our praprstary data and the resultuig analysrs
generated ac1oss ou businesses delwer value-add
products and services that strengthen out
Lustomers ability to make informed rsk

frading and imvestment dectsions

Risk management

The managerment of risk i« fundamental to
mainLairing our 1ole gs a dversihed global finand ial
markets infrastiucture provider wn order to mantam
stakeholder ronhidence in our businesses

Technology

Secure and stabte high performing technnlogy s
entieak 1o the operation of the Group s busimesses
We continue to mvest ot technologyin mden fo
mantatn ard enhance the guahty reste mee and
cthicienoy of o platformis wlile also creating
1T ALISO L seloe ol 4 Ustarmels

Regulatory expertise

Man) of the markets we operate are ighly regulated
and subyect (o ongang requiatory change We have
ST oven cxpeTtise 0 aperating transparent efficient
and well gover ned market infrastructire in requiated
marksts globaliy providing services that are trusted
ndependent and resihent

Customer trust

Our network of customers and then angoing mput
1o and support for our busmesses are vital 1o

uur abihiy to provide ethuient finanaal markets
infrastiuc ture across the value c hain and underpin
CUstOMIeTs success

People

Our people are at the heart of what we do we are
committed to attraching developing and retaning
eecoptinnal talent and capabilties morder 1o detver
anour strategy

Annual Report December 2017

CAPITAL ALLOCATION FRAMEWORK

we ise an established internal capual allocation
framework to help us determine the most effective
use of rapital to support growth im the business
ncluding mvestment in new products and services
and also acawsitions to further enhane ¢ Group
Capabiities The returns from such mnvestments are
benchmarkad agawst alter native uses of capital
inclucing distnbution of cash to shareholders



Overview of Group activities

This page shows our business areas and
activities across Intellectual Property,
Risk and Balance Sheet Management and
Capital Formation. The tables describe who
are our customers, the revenue drivers and
key performance indicators.

INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY RISK AND BALANCE SHEET MANAGEMENT

INFORMATION POST TRADE SERVICES
SERVICES LCH

Provides a wide range of information and data
products including indexes and benchmarks, real p is rultip
time pricing data. product identification and trade e clearing members and
reporting and reconclliation services, nwith trading
Group total income: 38% v globally.

Group total income: 29%

TOTAL INCOME CONTRIBUTION TOTAL INCOME CONTRIBUTION

SUB-SEGMENT SUB-SEGMENT
(1S Russell & 010 Teanng
Indexes Mo OTC
Real T ieanny and
m gz:ar m othel revenas
; 'e un Net treasuny
b That Incorne and

2016 £595m 2016 £447mM

ofhene an

CUSTOMER PROFILE

Clearing services

— A wirldwide base of banks brokers and fund
manager firms for OTC derwvatives and listed
eqguities exchange fraded denvatives, fixed
incarme and commaodihes

CUSTOMER PROFILE

FTSE Russell Indexes
— Asset owners and managers active and passtve
buy side firms and trading venues

Real Time Data

— Drrect ta trading frms and via service providers
such as Bloomberg and Thomson Reuters that
incorporate our data with other information

Other Information
— Qur customers vary based on the senace provided,
they include banks brokers and fund managers

MAIN TYPES OF REVENUE

Clearing and related services

— Fees based on trades or contracts clearad
and CCP services provided

— Fees for SwapClear interest rate swap service
and gther OTC dervative clearing primarnly
based on membership fees or chient trades

MAIN T¥PES OF REVENUE

FTSE Russell Indexes

— Subscription fees for data and analytic serces

— Assat linked fees for passve funds and denwvatives
tracking ndexes

Real Time Data
— Fees primanly based on number of terminals
taking our real time price and trading data

Other Information
— Fees vary based on the nature of service provided
mostly subseriptions and hcence fees

— Fees for managing non-cash collateral and
COMPIassion Services

Net Treasury Income
— Net interest on cash held for margin and
default funds

Clearing services

HIGHLIGHTS

- SwapClear continues to grow with récord cleanng
and compression volumes

- FarexClear saw 5 new Memibers Join the service
alomgside record cleaning

- LCH Swapagent, a new service for non-cleared
derwvatives saw its first trades in Septermber 2017

KPIs

SwapClear notional cleared 2017 US$874tn

(2016 Us$666IN)

Swap(lear nothicnal compressed 2017 US$609tn

{2016 US$384tn:

SwapClear Chient trades cleared 2017 1,227,000

(2016 852 000

Repollear noticnal cleared 2017 €87.5tn

{2016 €70 8tm)

Average cash collateral held 2017 €84.5bn

(2016 €670bn)

FTSE Russell Indexes

HIGHLIGHTS

~ The Yield Bagk and Citi Fixed Income Indices leading
providers of analytics and fixed incorme indeves
globally and Mergent acquured

~ Worldwide assets benchmarked to FTSE Russelt

iIndexes ngreased 10 US$15tn

KPIs

- ETF assets benchmarked ta FTSE Russell indexes

2017 USS$624bn (2016 US$452bn,

Real Time Data
WPis

— Number of professional terminals taking
Group data 2017 180,600 (2016 200 0001

Other Information
HIGHLIGHTS

— Unavista and LEI have both seen good growth
as firmns prepared for MIFID 1L
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RISK AND BALANCE SHEET MANAGEMENT

POST TRADE SERVICES
CC&G AND MONTE TITOLI

Offers efficient clearing, settlement and custedy
setvices for cash equity, derivative, commodity
and fixed incorme markets, rostly in Italy.

Group total income: 3%

TOTAL INCOME CONTRIBUTION

SUB-SEGMENT

@ kanng a6l

Sertlerrs nt
U ' ustady
m & other
]_ ]_ dunte Titehn
Rt Tledsiny
2016 £147m T

CUSTOMER PROFILE

CC&G
- 149 members maimnly banks and brokers
of whieh 50% are based out=ide ltaly

Monte Titoli

- Wide range of ltalian and international banks
and brakers far both on market and OTC trades
Issuers of equity and fixed income products
11talian and mternatiorals

MAIN TYPES OF REVENUE
. Clearing - CC&G
f - Fecs based on trades or contracts cleared and Central
Counterparty (CCP) services provided

— Netanterast on cash and secutilies held for maram
and default funds

Settlemnent and Custody — Monte Titoli

- Revenue mostly from the settlement of equity and
fixed income trades

- Custody fees are charged un the issuance of an equity
of fied meome instrument when dividend and mterest
payments are made and on any cor porate actien

CCaG

HIGHLIGHTS

— CC&G signed contracts to pravide CCP hosted solutions
to CCR A Austnia Casablanca Stock Excnanne has also
selected CCEG for a CCP development project in 2018

KPls
Nurnber of equity and detivative contracts cleared 2017
108.3m (2016 129 6m

Average imtal margin hed 2017 €11.1bn
12016 €12 1bm

Monte Titoli
HIGHLIGHTS

- Settiernent rate of 97% of trades

KPIs

Settlement tistructions handled 2017 &44.6m
(2016 43 3

Monte Titol s assets under custody 2017 €3.27¢n
12016 €317tn

CAPITAL FORMATION INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY

CAPITAL GROUP
MARKETS TECHNOLOGY

Provides access to capitat for domestic and Our businesses and customers depend on our secure
international businesses and efficient electronic technology that performs to high levels of availability
platforms for secondary market trading of equities, and throughput.

bonds and derivatives.

Group total income: 20% Group total income: 5%

TOTAL INCOME CONTRIBUTION TOTAL INCOME CONTRIBUTION

SUB-SEGMENT

® purmay & Technulogy

Sovendany -
_— Sk —_—————
Y g S=gndany m
gr j \"} i fredn - £9 ]_
2016 £368m At 2016 £88M

CUSTOMER PROFILE

Primary Markets

— Companies fram more than 60 countnies around
the world have come to oLt markets to ralse money
for growth together withissuers of bonds ETFs ana
other instruments

Secondary Markets
— Sell-side banks and brakers and buy side investor:

worldwede trading on the Group s equities denvatives
and fixed income trading platforms

CUSTOMER PROFILE

LSEG Technology

- condor $*ock Exchange Group divisions cther
exchange groups and capital market clients

— Banks tradmg firms and depositonies in Europe
North Amer ca Africa ard Asia Pacific region

MAIN TYPES OF REVENUE

Primary Markets
~ Adrmssion fees for imtial hsting or rasing
further camtal

— Annuat tees tor secunties traded on our markets

secondary Markets
~ Fees based onvalue t-aded 1UK equimiess or number

of trades or contracts (Italian equities retail bonds and
dervatves!

MAIN TYPES OF REVENUE

LSEG Technology

- Sales of capital markets software including tradmg,
market survelllance and post trade systems

— Feas for network connectians server Mosting and

systerms supplied by Group businesses

LSEG Technology
HIGHLIGHTS

- An extensive programme of change for

the implemertation of MIFID 11 was completed

— Integrancr underway of Mergent and The Yield Book
technolagies
KPIs
Avauablity of UK equity market dunng the year 2017
100% uptire (2016 10070

Primary Markets
HIGHLIGHTS

— 194 new companies [omed our markets in the year
12016 134}
KPIs
Number of compares on our markets 2037 2,588
12016 2 5801

Capital raised by new and further equity 1ssues 2017
£44.2bm (20,6 €25 Ebm

Secondary Markets
HIGHLIGHTS
— UK cash equrty average daily valuc traded

meteased by 4%

Borsa ltahana cash equity, average davy number

of trades decreased a%
- Turquose Piate Block Discovery vatue traded increased
to €54 5En 2014 €7 b
KPIs
Averaqe order book equity value traced pet dagin
London 201/ £5.3bn 2016 €5 1bn1
Average namiber of equity order book trades per day m
Italy 2017 276,000 (2015 25% 00
MTS Bepo notional value traded €72.7¢n {2010 €34 4n
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Through its 3 core business activities-
Intellectual Property, Risk and Balance Sheet
Management, and Capital Formation, the
Group suppaorts global economic growth by
providing financial markets infrastructure

to facilitate safe, effective and transparent
global capital allocation, trading and
mvestment decisions, and associated

risk and capital management

our customers are global and range from the world s
largest imancial institutions to retail Investors

and SMEs all participants share exposuie to the
dynarmdcally evolving financal markets landscape
which shapes customers needs and influences the
products and services that the Group provides

WwWe observe a number of high level trends that
continue to impact the industry and shape our
strategy and plans

1 Globalisatian arid growing global wealth
2 Changing investment behaviours

3 Customer balance sheet and operational/capital
CoNsiramts

4 Innovative and consohidating cormpetitive
landscape

S Regulatory change

T A taw alth MGt DER kot BT A g
Fapuaieatial {hongs P g
Global wealtb Repeorn b oyl s, o 0
IRAT e el e pp e Fagtl sk N wb sy ol el
Sustamable Groearbe Shont Teorbeo e o Tee e blleriepe
A0 bl kRock alebalb T3 L seds se Big ¥heob o
iR natr fd e PR Rk DS e T Lo ot
12

Market trends and our response

1. Globalisation and growing global wealth
Global wealth continues (o grow, with total AU
expected to almast double from US$84 9 tnlian in
201610 US$145 4 trithon by 2025 The distribution

of wealth has also continued to evolve through 2017
baoth regionally and across market participant types
Developing markets continue toncrease thew share
of the world's assets —betweeri 2000 and 2417 then
share of global wealth increased from 114 1o 19%.
and by 2022 this is expected to reacti 2249 The pace
of growth in these economies s expected 1o cantinue
1o outpace that of developed markets indcating the
importance of mantairing a giobal presence as
custorners themselves become more global and
selve a gengraphically wider range of clents

Implications for LSEG

The Group is d global fimans el matkets nhastructure
provdel and contiues (o expand 115 presence and
establish parinerstipen stratege ally mpartant
Tequns to serve customers Df particular focus are
the US and Asia a+ emphassed by the acquisiiioms
of Mergent and The yield Book and numerous
stlategi partnerships withon Ctana and India which
faclitate accews 1, emetama markets thinugh

out hubs

We are budding ¢ glnbal mter connectedielatrnship
Mandgement apiraact with commaonality aorons
brsinesses and customer segments Thic s reflected
n hoth our upetations with offices in (9 counines
and the distnibuton of nuy mcome bu currency
awhich 1s mctedsmaly diversthiecd

Credit Suisse Global Wealth
feports 2013-2017
Total wealth by region US$ tn

280
s 250 2

A, S 2017
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2. Changing investment behaviours

while the mmarket 15 starting to observe an uptick n
global econormic growth  there remains elevated
geopohtical uncertainty and low volatility
Accordingly, investor needs and services required
frominfrastructure providers are evolving Investors
are uhilising produdts that facilitate low cost
investment driving the abserved trends i movement
of AU from active to passive managerment through
tracking vehicles such as £TPs The global ETP market
has seen a five-fold nise 1 AUM over the last decade
i 1s expected Lo continue Lo increase through 2018
with portfelio managers seeing the potential for
a55ets m passive management 1o almost double from
the curtent level of 224 Theimportance of data
technology and the innovations and efficiencies that
can be provided with new tocls 1s ncreasmngly
understood by customers who are requinng new
servicing and commerctal models to maximise the
opportumties presented

Alongside this the Envilonmental Soaial and

Governance (E5G) space has receved sigmficant

attention Teflectmg bothinvestor appetite to !
ncot porate aspects of Sustainable Investrment into
strategies and pohtical support from legislation and
nitiatives such as the UN Principles for Responsible
lnvestment and 2015 Paris Agreerment

Implications for LSEG

[ SEG 1= well positianed for the anticipated furthet

growth m assets within passive mvestment through

WUt FTSE Risselt business < Lo tost scdtable

model aswell asits globat presend e and sales

Our acquesitions of Mergent arud The vield Bouk

expanded out ability 10 provide customer solutions,

m additional asset classes with The vield Book

ncreasing the AUK benchimarked Lo our mdexes !
tor USS15 trilhon

Additionally the Group: Sustamable nvestment
models have helped numetous customers launch
£50 products and raise capital thiough Green Bonds
aproduct whose pohle continues to inrtease

Global ETP Flows by Asset Class
2013 through 2017
Us$ bn

633
10
131 351 378
237 . - 1} 467
m —— — T
-
Az Al 201, AL 2017
& Cquity Fized Ircorie @ Other
Sotpe Blackbe kdGlebal b andse ape tanthlysngg fo

Toombwn Ay LlarkPock s
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3. Customer balance sheet and operational/
capital constraints

Recent regulatton such as MIFID 1 Fundamental
Review of the Trading Book (FRTB) and EMIF has
teratively developed and now captures a wider
anverse of entities these custormers are facing
signihcant requlatory change creating cost capital
sk and conduct challenges alongside difficult
market conditions Costs and aperational challenges
are increasing as a result, and customers ate evolving
thewr operating models and seeking methods of
reducing inefficiencies in processes

Implications for LSEG

The Crodp understands that effrencg 1nkey 10
Lastomers for hoth aperationas proocesses and
capitar <Henoy sothat ther efforte canbe
Trected b alue Teatine actaties thiaug! gioe
mvestTent e sons and mtelliaent use of Lapna
Roddeed o amenitatiom ang s onsolid atrd

stan dande—d intomation reatly help cu st mmiere
and tie Lraupes becsed on provedimg saatien: that
salve e sdes suthias LA Swgphgent LOH
Sptdet 3 Targaise < hlock tading functinnality

W paTtnE s Anpinach aves us wel positioned
W Pidy a leaaimvg 1ode in addre -sing tustomer

~hallen 3o actoss the inddstry and sarios set ues
N e Gronp are solely froouseg on assisiing
Jsgnmete anareas ahanedwathregulateon While

L trading olumes maw advorsely atect our Copital
Parkets husimesses thers s potential fon mcre avea
sermans for nisk management and capial etfioen oy
SOl ITIME A LSS Cuntinue £ seek semvires
hel manane capital and sperativag com trarms
Piere Qe opportunines fo collabaorative and

e atn salutions and for LSE ot be contragre
e futirs shape - S finanaal market. infrastructune

Strateglc Repart Market trends and our response

Coalition Index revenues by business
Uss bn

1t Tt -

1t
i - 150

) )
o [

o 2017

e e Bl

Zat =

"l [ T I T A AP -
Note IR T L N L | TR I D BT TR TN it et

e b gl bl

4. Inmovative and consolidating
competitive landscape

Regulation remiains a key driver of chent needs
and service proviston while developrments in new
tochnologies are facilitating a reardering of
tradrtional industry boundanes Combined with

the increasing client need far integrated access
poInts to vanous fragmented services these trends
arewidermng the defition of the inancial markets
infrastructure industry and thereby drving
tansolidation of providers within the competitive
landscape and encouraging new enitiants

Throughout 2017 there have beeti ongoing
acquesitions and partnerships across trading
information services post trade and techinology
services as the industry evolves We expect this
tocontinue throegh 2018 0 particular wirhim
the high-growth areas of data analytics and nisk
rmanagement with mncvation and collaboratien
driving the development of new solunons and
delivening henefits to customers

Implications for LSEG
LSEG has been as e wathir the industryar 2017
ACHNG Jpon o stratage pillors throagh
partiershipe and margame SppoTtLmitie s siv g -
the avgusitors of The Yield Book and Mo aent
ToEMPan ¢ U pOSIIoNInGg as g glabal fmang
matketsartrastio ture prooder A0 oo product
dneersitu and geographic presence hasimoreasw-a
a0 s oun capabie for understandimag thent necae
autoss the value cham and ow abuhity tar=spana
tothem Fanrstanss s e hides facilitated ar e tn
ar expanded sot of asnet Jlasses sipputten S
apital-rasing thiough cw ELITE prodramme 3na
prowoacded senve - tofurthe Jlent segments, auh

A H o Sronsoted Tieanna muodet Thoooah 20t
she Group expe s 1 Contnue todentify aese s
N e ser e ot Jame andainnrgare Spperiamtie ©
that enhiance our ereshina Busmees ar 21 ate now

Apportumibies n T Tnplementay areas
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5. Regulatory change

During 2017, sigrificant regulatory intlatives that the
Lioup has fughhighted iy previons teports impacting
varous businesses continued (o take shape Othel
regulatory intiatives increased in prominence durng
the past year and are now a sigmhcant focus for us
n particular cyher secunty rules and standards, the
evolution of sustamable investment rules and
products and requlatory scruting of emerging
finanaial technology Al these imtiatives evolvean
the contest of the uncertainty caused by the UK
referencdurn decision 1o leave the European Linon
1Brexit) and the potential for sigmfcant changesin
L% pobie y On the follaw ing nages we provide our
assessment of kel regulatory changes and ther
rnpacts on the Group

Brexit update

In December 2017 the European Commmission (EC)
recornmended to the European Coundl that 1t begin
discussions on the next phase of orderly withdrawal
of the LK fromithe EU Thes followed the joint report
publication by the EL and Uk on the kel 1ssues relating
tothewithdrawal Agreement 1t was made clear that
the mstitution s posttion on - transitionat arrangements
was that they must be time imited and congist of the
prolangation of the whole LU acguis Uncertainty
continues and could impact market sentirment and
levels of actraty incluchng 1POs

Implications for LSEG

Sl of & stiuctutes Brest programme formedd
Bl the Grolp vt En9agImg with Lk onu b
Bt sl Leddls U aduse o mnan. gl market
e At T o et es e
mamtairn 1 ondon < positian as o obal frmanaal
tab proodmg continutg of s honden inanc,
SR el gt L e Ui dgainst polices which may

nfrestry tun

resullin fragmentation of Ainanoiat markets Both
g Uk astinnties hawe approag hed | SEC and
rerlestad ting e g plans fon Ceueral busimessen

SUMMARY OF REGULATORY CHANGE
Key legislation (EMIR 21 and 2 21

LCP Reconentyand Resolution

Markets o Financidl netruments Direchve:
Regulation tiFIT 11

Luropean Superasont] Authonties i 5AFRevew

Lapital Markats Union iCMUL Green b inance

LU Benchmark Requlations and [05C0 Prnciples
- Tethnolooy

- Herth Ametuca
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Key legislation

European Market Infrastructure

Regulation {EMIR) 2.1 (REFIT)

The FC has proposed a review of EMIR fransachion-level
requiremenis Inparticular, s ntroducing thiesholds
for the applicaton of the ctearing obligation to
hnanoal counterparties extending the exemphion

for pension scheme arrangements and introducing

an obligation for clearing memnbers to provide

tleanng services under Far Reasonable And Nen
Discrrmnatory (FRAND) commercial termys It has also
proposed streamiintng trade repositones reporting
requirernents The {omrmission Proposal still needs to
be discussed with the other co leguslators (Caunctt and
Patharnientj before final adaption

EMIR 2 2 - EU and third country CCP supervision
The EC 15 proposing to review the supervisory
framework apphicable to EU and thud country CCPs
Concernming EU CCPs 1t will providde ESMA with new
competences allowing t to review natwonal competent
authonties decisions and potentially amend or reject
thern Srmiar powers are attributed to EU central
banks of issue Concernmng third country CCPs the
text proposes to distinguish non systermc CCPs (Ter
1} that can be recognised according to the curtent £
regime from systermically important CCPs that have
to directly comply with EMIR and are subject to direct
superviston of ESMA In addition, CCPs considered
substantially too important te be 1ecognised would
thesefore need 1o be established in the EU to be able
Lo provide sefvices 1o EU customers LSEG has
respanded to the Lommssion Praposal which still
needs to be discussed with the other co-lequslators
{Councul and Parliamenti before final adoption

Implications for LSEG

LSEG and (ts customers have 1aised concerns

that the mechanism allows the Comrmission to
potentially denu the recognriion of thud coumtty
CCPs of substantial systermic importance which
wondd penalise EU rnatket participard s through less
chonce of services and face fngher nsks and sty

m ine with our key ubjedtives to provide continutty
of trose-border inancial services and protect
agamst polves which may result m iagmentatior
at tmanc.al markets we considet that o set of
alternative reqgunements would provide £U
authorities with the tools to appropriately monttor
the nisks third country CCPs manage in the EU
market without having recourse tu denal of
recogninan L SEGas engaging with the ndustry and
palicy makers 1o ensure the Tight cahbration of £WIR
Tequirements as well as a simoath and efficiert
supetyision uf hoth EU and thrd country CCPsS
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CCP Recovery and Resolution

Authorities in Europe North America and other major
risdicions as well as International Standard
Setters are working on frameworks for the recovery
and resolution of CCPs In the unlikely scenano where
(CPs face sevare distress of fature this framework
will ensure that the critical functions of CCPs are
preserved while mantaimng financal stabifity At
the international level CPRI-IOSCO 15 leading a wark
stream on CCR restiency and recovery while the
Financial Stabity Board (FSB) 15 conducting the
analysts on CCPresplution Final gundance from these
work streams was pubhshed inJuly 2017 Inthe Eu
the EC published on 28 November 2016 its legislative
praposal for COP recovery and resolution This
proposal 1s currently being reviewed and discussed
by the European Pariament and the Counal of the
Eu Inthe LS there continues to be increased focus
by lawmakers and regulators on the systerme
importance of CCPs and requlation of CCPresiliency
recavery and resolution

Implications for LSEG

Harmoresatign of the requirerment = far UCP-

e overy plans and the inhieduction of resolution
plans prepated bu the autton ties 1esponsable for
tesul M CLPS 11 resoutior, authorties should
it ovade danty on the impatt or ©0 Ps and idennfy
the ot al fumctions they must mamtan m the
unbikely event of then talure LSEG will rontmue
t assist the authomities and provide input for the
developrment of thie framewntk

Markets in Financial Instruments Directive/
Regulation (MIFID 1)

MIFID L1115 the widest ranaing of the EU legislative
Imhatives 1 terms of its impact on the Group and

1t customers Scope inrelation ta LSEG includes
rules relating to market transparency and trading
structlres rnarket data provision and publication
trading market microstructure, transaction reparing
the new SME Growth Market requme Open Arress
provisions clearing houses and benchmark providers

Implications for LSEG

Sinre dFTD L entered mte torce m January 201
the Group belieye s that the long termimpacts have
been broadiy erther neutial o positive im the Capital
Markets husmenszes with Open Access potentially
pEon1ding Gpportuntties ali0ss all Grouy, seqrent &
wwoe sechon tollow ing on Open Accesst Inolr
Intormation Seryices seament Lnavista shouold
start 1o heneht from inctedsed (amsacton reporting
opportumties whitie proy isions relating 1o
distribution of snmereal time data may lead to
some change m out business and revenue modol in
due course The eatra-tentitonal mpact ot WMIF1D 1
un Buan members of | SEG tiading venues 15 lkely
1o b ame Qearer m 2018

Open Access

Open Access underpns provistions within MiFLD I
that change the way some cleaning houses trading
venues and Index/benchmark providers will need

to provide theu products The changes, which will
apply when MiFID 1 comes wito effect require
access tabe provided 1o all patential users of frading
clearing and indexes, on a non discriminatosy basis

Implications for LSEG

upen A resstemains o key prinaiple that underpins
oul strateay ana business model and (s fully agned
wath the way we cuttently operate Our deams
services alieady o< ept trades tot clearing that
anginate from venue s sutside o the Group some
of aur trading venues abready provide choree of
Aearing threugh alternative COPe autsude the
Group and FTSE Russell provides mdex icences

10 & nuarmber of exchange busmesses that are
LOmpenton s by our trading venues

Thoem AZcess MeTeanes ComMPetition acrtoss &
tange of services tothe benefit of nvestors and
muarket partvapants and putentially provides the
(roup © relevant busines,es with appottunities 1o
fatmnch niew products dnd attiacf aew tradong and
earing floas

European Supervisory Authorities

(ESA) Review

The EC has made proposals to sigtheantly transform
ESa principally by empowenng ESMA 10 be the
centra) supenasor for a range of new inancial
entties ncluding thnd country CCPs thud country
henchmark admnistrators and data service
reporting providers and also the approval authority
for certain types of prospectus ESMA would also

be able to levy fees dwectly on financial instituhions
even where they are nat directhy supervised However
the prospects for hnal poltical agreernent on the
proposal are ghly uncertan as there are strong
objections acrpss the EU member states

Implications for LSEG

franstarmatonal change 10 the supervisimy

At hiter fure in the EU presents fewor uncertanties
for LSEG than uther mternational iinancial
nsttuteony As g global inancial market
mirastructure provider LSEG s expenenced at
servimg cLstomers around the world and wortking
closely with multiple tequlator s across borders

We therefore see much potential for mtroducing
eftcrencies and a more @ el faying held for
regulatary mplementatir actoss the Single Market
through the ESA TR AT the same time LSEG wilt
need Lo reman engaged i the policy debate n
arder to ensure that decsion makers are properly
informed of market structures and ympadts and that
the design of the new reaulatory systemn s
calbrated 1o ac busve an appropriate balance
Letween pan Curopear and national supervision
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Capital Markets Union (CMU) / Green Finance
CMU s aplanby the EC that aims Lo create deeper
and morentegrated European capital markets The
CMU Acton Blan sets out work streams designed 1o
unlock investment from the FU and the rest of the
world tmprove financing for EU compames and
investment projects make the financial system more
stable deepen market integration and enhance
competition LSEG 15 ciosely following development
of the EU Prospiec tus Requlation level 1 reviews on
the functioning of the corporate bond matket as well
as the Commuission s propesal for a prudential iequme
for nvestrment firms including market makers for a
pan Furopean Personal Pension and fon miflatwes fo
support SMFE growth markets The Commission aims,
townplement measures resulting fram all Achion Plan
initiatves by 7619

The Comrmission also arms to ncrease retail
partiopatien incaptal markets through CMU
ritatives toternove bartiers to retat investmient

Regarding gqreen hinance and ESG reporting LsLG
and FTSE Russell continue o actively contnbyte
to this global debate 1n particular thtough the

EL High Level Expert Group and the LK Greer,
Finance Taskforce

Implications for LSEG

Thest mtiative” Mdd N TEAsE AT g wom ks

out Primar L and Serandaty barke's ane mag
lead 1o mire acti, i in ol post trade busimesees
Addinonally qree™ mane e maAl L es essn®
onnanced Coramie gt ppoTart e P TR
Russell FSG msfexer

Benchmarks

The EU Benc hmarks Regulation was propased to help
resloie confidence n the integrity of benchmarks in
the aftermath of the LIBOR scandal and came into
effect January 2016 Building on the principles
agreed by 105CA the regulation will 1mpact
benchmark users contnibutors and adnwmstyators
Apart from mterest rate bendhrarks o also covers all
benchmarks used to1eference financal instruments
admitted to trading or fraded on a requlated venue
such as energy and cuirency dervatives those that
are used mfmancial contracts such as mortgages
and those that are used to measure the performance
of investiment funds The regudanion enstinnes the
10570 Principles and weoviess the new rule set
prsttivelly as it raises standards across the ndustry

Implications for LSEG
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Strategic Report Market trends and our response

Techmology

The EC proposed a requlation on a framework for

the free tow of non-personal data in the EU and a
regulation on Luropean Union Agen | for Network
and Information Security and Information and
Communication Technologly cybersecurity
cortification LSEG has responded 10 the Commissiun
Propasals which still need to be discussed with the
other co legislators (Council and Parhament in view
of final adoption

For the financial services industry regulaters in
major unscichons are ciosely rmomtonng and
considering regulatort) frameworks on emerging
financial technology (FinTechn in parncular the
potential uses of dhstnbuted ledger technology
rloud cormputing and aruhoalinteligence

Implications For LSEG

“ybersecunty, data prote twnand fle an s
emerginG techmology tetat=d r= qulat ot ammate < 5
apply nsanus degrees 0 alorap funotions
Cither a5 compliance chliganone o oomstitn nts ot
e setvices tha! we pro de 1o o custumers we
~ontinue tomvest to ensure cybe 1esthieroy and
comphan: fwithregulations nadsditien t
comphging with current cyber ang dats protes 1on
tedquiements LSEC - omphiee wath <ianificant dats
and cuber speratienal comtrols and standards
teduned dander financal serv e~ e otslatnon
Regardmd the propesal orthe free flow of

nor peisimal data tete mdy e potente Jenefite
‘U the Ghodp hurammang sata e alsatior
requnerments and fac titatinge ata partanility

L3EG e omtinues te mmonitor ard fngaae aitk
requlators and leadma indnstry workme qronp
on these sues tur the developrmen? of regulatie
framewurkes

North America

United States

Certan financual services reforrms put in place
under the Dodd Frank wall Street Reform and
Consurner Protection Act of 20 10hwall continue

1o be reviewed by Congress and the relevant

Federal agencies There are several legisiative
proposals that if passed, could impact our bustnest
operations in the US parmcularly our post

tiade and capital markets businesses

we rormain ciesely engaged with the CF TCs own
tative to review thy agenc y tules and regrlatwns to
inprove the effoc tiveness of ther apphcation Atelatecd
CFTC iepartwith vecomrmendations s expecieed the
year The Us Treasuryrepornt entitled A Finant ial
Sustem That Credtes Leonomie Opporturaties Capual
tarkets publishedar o tobor 2017 provides

Annual Report December 2017

recommendations for Congress and relevant finanaal
services agencles to beginimplermenting some of the
1S Treasury s recornmendations n ine with the
Adrenistration s goals

Implications for LSEG

slihzugh the timmes and sabstantine provisiom-
rermatn n development 1t 15 espected that fingt
pren esians cnuld molve areas that dier tly or
mdrectly mmpact oo post trade inforanon

sopy i es and captal markets businssses aswell

as particpants m our markets we donot antiapate
iny ma)nt e o ts tarestncd the mandates fom
“entral dleanng of < ertam <wap-

Canada

The Camtal Markets Stability Act 1054 a parkage
of reforms 1o address systerme nisks inthe financial
system including benchmarks and CCPs remaims
under review 1y the Partharment At the regulatory
level the Canadian Securthies Adrmmistrators
implemented a mandate Lo clear certain classes

of interest rate swaps n 2017 Although the iminal
Impat t has not substantiatly iIncreased cleared
votumes from Canada we are closely fotlowing

the review of these provisions

Implications for LSEG

2lthcuah the trmimg and substantive ovisemes
CHthe TS wiv nct cettam farthe deselapment
and passade of 1hese pronasions could dnectly m
indwes tly mmpart o post tade andintormatios
Luasmessen g, well as parhis pants e markets

FURTHER INFORMATION

More detail 15 provided in the tabile at the back

of this report Ipages 166 1671 that shows 41ange
of regulatory developrnents by business area
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Strategy in action

VISION

To be the most trusted expert in global
financial markets.

STRATECGY

To achieve this, we continue to strengthen
our performance as an innovative,
customer-focused and collaborative
organisation, delivering high value
products and services across the
financial markets value chain.

Open Access, partnership approach, customer service and operational excellence remain
key foundations for the Group's growth and cur activities are aigned to these principles
Delwery of our strategy ts emmbodiied within our 3 strategic pulars drving global growth.
developing our customer partnership approach and delivering best in class capabilities

FURTHER INFORMATION

For further information, mcluding
video and audio of the presentations,
please visit Investor Events at
www.lseg.comfnvestor-relations/
investor-avents

STRATEGY

Driving global growth

As a customer-focused organisatian, we
henefit from deep and broad relationships
with market participants globally This
drives product and service innovation

and, cornbined with our ability to respond
effectively to secular trends, creates growth
opportuntties across the financial markets
value chamn

Progress — Selected Examples

- LSEG completed the acquisitions of both of The
vield Book and Mergent a leading provider of
company information and analysis enhancing
aut data «and analytics offering dcruss asset
rlasses and sectors

— Our S yedr revenue run rate synergy target for
the Russell Indexes transachion was achieved
maore than 2 years ahead of target

- LCH launched new products to facihtate clediing
for buy side market participants such as
Sponsored Cleanng in the Repollear service and
Custodial Segregated account structures working
with Euroclear

L SEG's Primarny Markets saw a aood year for 1P0s
the leader for numbet of IPOS 1 ELrope, we were
chasen for 2 of the top 3 1ssuances by size
worldwide and we placed frst in Eurgpe for
further 1ssuance

FTSE Russell created numerous praducts for
sustainable and emerging matkets investment
with launches includimg the FT5E Global (hmate
Index Senes and the FTSE ESG Index Senes and
indexes for China A-shares

- ELITE continued global expansion through
agreements with China and Brazil and agreement
was leached to iaunch the prograrmme actoss 9
Countries in West Afnca

FTSE Russell s Blossomn Japan index was selected
by the Government Penston Investment Fund of
Japan, the world s largest pension fund with over
9% 3trihomin assets, as s cote ESG benchmark
through s Ragshap fund

i Annual Report December 2017




STRATEGY

Developing our
customer partnership
approach

STRATEGY

Dclivering best in
class capabilities

LSEC 15 set apart in the Financial Markets
Infrastructure sector through our open
access philosophy and collaborative
approach This gives us maximum
fleximity to develop commercial and
corporate opportunities amidst ongoing
industry and regulatory change

Progress — Selected Examples

— LSEG strepygthened 1ts holding in LCH Group to
659 reflecting the stratequc npartance of
this assel o the Group

- CurveGlobal success continued suppo ted
by sharetiolder banks with aver 2 million lots
traded and reaching a record level of open
interest since launch

LCH SwapAgent lanncherhin partnership with
major dealers 1o sumphfy the processing
margining and settlerment of non-cleared
rates derwatives

— FT5F Russell renewed 1ts partnership with CRaE
tulaunch futures and options on the Russell
2000 Index

Tutonesl and LEH 5 A agteed to extend then
co-aperation on dervatives and commodities
cleanng services for the next decade

Unavista has welcomed 50 firms toits Partner
Programmie amineg tongrease efficiency and
1educe nisk for clients

Turguonse expanded 11s universe to make
FTS0 AINE GG otk available for Liading,
oflecting incredsing customer demand for
small and mid-caps

ForexClear grews membership by Ju- m 2077
and launc hed new products ncleding G140
cuntendy pars

ELITE welromed new strategic imvestors Lo
suppot international expansiun acrnss Europe
anel Al

We constantly seek to imprave our
execubon capabilities custermer servicing
and expertise in financial markets
infrastructure We utilise technology, our
global scale and the skills of our people

to nnovate, manage risks and operate in
the most efficient and responsive way

Progress — Selected Examples
LSEG secured a leading role in engagement
with governments regulators and customers
on implicahions of Brexit kFID 1T and EU
berichmarking requiattors

- Investment continued in emerging technology
with cloud strateqy wnplermnented enterprise
architecture programmes and Al and
Blockehain R&ED

- Borsa ltaliana collaborating with [BM to develop
a blockeham solutian for European SMEs

LSEG assisted clients with Teadiness for MIFIT 11
through solutions such as Turguotse Lit Auctions
and Unavista

— BSL ow shated services campany now delvers,
corparate services to LCH and the Group has
developed new locations acquired in Asia and
the US to deliver increased capabilities at lower
urt cost

- LSEG Technology was formed combamng oor
software comparyes of Millennuumi T and Gatelab
we have also completed the divestments of
tllenmumlI T ESF and Eactpro (post year emd)
10 fucus on high value technology businesses
which support our cote custorner base

- LSLG imiplermented a range of talent developrent
mutiatwes including exprdansion of graduate
recruitment for technolody introdac tion of
anearly cateers programme and multiple
management deve loprment pragrarmanies

— loformation security was strengthened through
technology solutions traimng for all staff and
Investment 1 people and processey

Lronp Annual Report December 2017
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Executive management team

The Executive Commuttee manages the
bustness on a day-to-day basis The team
meets regularly to review a wide range

of business matters, including financial
performance, development of strategu,
setting and monitoring performance
targets, reviewing projects and other
mitiatives. Profiles of the Executive tearn
are provided as at January 2018 (for
further information on David Warren and
Raffaele Jerusalmi, who are also members
of the Board of Directors, see therr
biographies on pages 54-55)

Chris Corrado

Group Ctuef Gperating gfficer and Cef
Infarmation Officer

lewnedd thie oo Novemiber 201 -

Sl pened b A0 D wbien Do wasogsponsible ton wchngloon
1A ST G Ak prodidanine Mandc mend. He has ouer o
years af glotul e e nence womanaarg te hinedngy pahationrm s
anc transtormational Giatge nothe fienoal e oo nenestig
Hie b alseowraked 3o bugly cnmgt e hrasdoe g conpaate

e Lo ding eliay ATzl Wargless and Asntion

‘Paniel Maguire
Chef Executive Officer of LCK Group
lenniecl EEH 0 ptemibes 200g

Dt has wade £ xpenicrs e nisk monagenient regualon)
stratedny produ bioananement and Jevebopswnt proagramime
debsern and seles anc o el ion s I e it Ve wa

e sl Glohal ) lead of swaps lear and alsaFong s ey 3
Listed 1 ate s at e 1 and oL scenthg LOH Do 0o,
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David Warren
internim Group Chief Executive Offwcer
and Group Chief Financial Officer

Diane Coté
Grougp Chaef Risk Officen
Iowend he oo a2 e

Thate wa Drovt sl Atva 12 s © el Biiance dpeiatwon Offi e
ertothn she bebg the peatenr oF A s Ulised Jadit Othcer
e s maanigear expeteta = holding e eionpe-ibion

stk 1A i A ster i oropnssteosns vieled g stasdar!
Life Aot

Mark Makepeace

Group Durector of Information Services and
Chuef Executive Officer of FTSE Russell

W afonndia Dnectow of FTS0m 1

anel jored the ooy it

Witk Ty oven 200 ars expoiteoe of deoedapang sueee s ful
ot ven e s b fevged alhary ewathetn b oex Nange
AL s A e T oSt gnps

Raffaele Jerusalmi
Chief Executwve Officer of Borsa Hahana S p A
and Dhrector of Capital Markets

Catherine Johnson
Group General Counsal
Innend the Grocgn 1991

cathenie aduises e Boandand somoeezeo e on ke lega
raatters Al stiat g mbiaave - Lradditon e el a G
Lernerd' ounsel She wes previendsly aise Heasd of e o -
Feegulatrrng Stretege deari wat e tine vaahbod s alaange ot
Hehert Sttbrn s

Nikhil Rathi

Chief Executive Dfficer of London Stock Exchange
pic and Birector of [nternational Development
Joed the Group n 2014

Mkl jonned Fromthe UK Tredenng whens te heleda nonsber of
st osabions g luehing e tor of the Finarcial e s
fanup repypsentimg thw DR e rsent < fian 18, spre
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Strategic Repoit Segmental review

12 months to
31 December

12 monthsto
31 December

2017 2016
im £m
@ Information Services
1 FTSE Russell Indexe- 546 409
7 RealTune Data G4 =]
i Grher Informaticn B } 96 95
736 5GE
® Post Trade Services LCH
4 Clear.ng 432 EL
5 Ne'Treasury Inccme and cthar 130 ER
562 4L7
AaE e PR RS
v {learmgICCac 39 42
r Settlemnent Castady and other
iborte T toln 70 Ll
= Ner irterest -ic e A 42 Al
151 147
® Capital Markets
c Primary Markess 110 9
1 Seconzary Markes - Zquities 163 _6a
1 Secsndary Marke - —r1agc Noore
detivgtives And other 118 210
391 I
® Technology Services
12 Tecnntaogy 91 5
IFogmmer __ 24 2
Total Continuing Income 1,955 1657

Total Income

12 13

11
1
10
9
8

7 2
6
3
5
A

1/ mnnthe to
31 Do ernber 2017
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Information Services

Revenue

¢/36m

2016 £555m

13%

@ [ I5E Russell Indexes
rReal Time Data
Other Information

Key Summary

— Revenues for the year increased by 247 104/36
millon 2016 £555 mithont and up 134 on an
organic constant currency basis driven by strong
growihin FTSE Russell

- FTSE Russell revenue for the year mcreased by
33 to £546 rmithon V2016 409 milliont and
up 15% on an argamc constant currency basts

= LSEG acquired The Yield Book and Citi Fixed Incorme
Inchices for total cash consideration of US$679
milllon (€525 rmilhion)

~ L5FG completed the acquisttion of Mergent for tatal
consideration of Us$147 rmillion (£119 rlion

The world™s largest pension fund, the Governrment
Pension Investment Fund (GPIF of Japan selected
FTSE Blossom Japan Index as a core ESG benchmark

— Unavista and LEL have both seert good growth as
firms prepared for MiIf 1D 11

20

Introduction

The Information Services Dwvision U5D) provides
financial market participants with tirnely relable
and accurate market information 150 offers awide
range of services including global indexes 1eal trme
pricing data product identihcation, reporting and
reconcihation setvices Information Services saw gnod
organic growth in 2017 executed on and integrated
acgusitions and continued to expand geographically
nto new areas for future product launches with the
acquisiton of The Yield Book and Citi Fixed Income:
Indices TT15E Russell became the largest glabal
benchmark providet and leading multi-asset index
company as measured by assets benchmarked

InJanuary 2017 the Group acquired Mergent

a leachng global provider of business and financal
nformation on public and privale companies

for US$147 midlion (£119 rmulhony This supports
the growth of FTSE Russell s coreindes offering
supplying underlying data and analytic s for the
creation of a wide range of indexes

In August 2017 LSEG cormpleted the acquisition of
The Yield Book o fixed income analytics platform
and (it Fixed Income Indices an index business
compnising a family of fixed income indexes which
ncludes the world Government Bond Index (WGBH,
from Citigroup for US$679 milion {1525 million)

FURTHER INFORMATION

Market trends and our response for [Information
Services can be found on pages 12-15 Profitabibity of
each segment can be found in the hinancual Review
onpages 36—41 Anoverview of the requlatory
landscape can be found on pages 166-167 A
glossary of terms can be found on pages 162-165

Both acquisitiuns have heen integrating well within
the Group and allowing FTSE Russell to capitalise
further on strong growth in multi-asset solutiens and
passive investment strategies realising revenue and
cost synergies and extending the Group s global
distribution capabilities The data obtaned trom
these acquisitions will supporl all areas of the Group
and reduce usayé of third parties for market data

In particular we will benefit from the growing chent
dernand for ETFs smart beta or factar based indexes
and fixed income indexes

L5FG completed the sale of the 1taly based

Information Service Professional Solutions business
i February 2017
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Strate-que kerin T Information Services

FTSE Russell Indexes

f 1SE Russedl1s a global index leader that provides
nnovative benchmarking covenng 984 of the
wwestable market with approximately Us$1% trilhon
assets benchmarked (2016 US$12 5 tridlion) £ TSF
Russell 1s embedded in the entire investment process
and calculates hundreds of thousands of ndexes far
nvestors to benchmark markets across different
asset classes styles and stiategies 1t has built global
relationships and 15 used by the majonty of the
world s top financial nstitutions and ther chents
ncluding the top 10 investment banks 97 oyt of the
top 100 asset managers and 48 out of the 30 lasgest
LIS plan sponsors

ETF assets under management
benchmarked to FTSE Russell indexes
Us$ bn iyear end)

624

3bty ”

teb

Ao Jale L sl 2017

In June 2017 FTSF Russell presented at a Craup
Investor Update where sentar managers frorm
ndiidual business areds discussed the benchmarks,
and analytics landscape denthed future giwth
drivers and set out our rmid-termoutlook [N FTSE
Russell we see double-digit growth continuing o
2019 and sustainable and attractive margns gver the
same penod The event presentation and videos are
avallable on our website https://www tseg.com/
mvestor-relations/investor-events

Us$15

FTSE Russell's sales and service teams are fully
integrated to form one glcbal teamn that 15 closely
aligned and mghly engaged with our clients we
suppoit cients around investiment strategy asset
allocation and risk management challenges to
meet theu investment oljectives

FTSE Russell earns approximately 60 of 1Ls revenue
fromindex data subsenptions comprising lcences
data services and analytics with igh retention rates
The remamng 40 15 earned friom asset hased fees,
with revenues based an benchmarked assets under
managernent IAUM) for ETFs passive funds and
contracts traded for index dervatives

in 2017 1evenues (ncleased by 33« to £546 milhon
(2016 £409 nlhony up 15% onan orgame constant
currenc 4 basis due to continued strong demand for
vut benchmarks including data and analytics and
strong growth in the ETF market Upon the
integration of | TSF and Russell Indexes after the
acquisition of Frank Russell Companiy i 2014 we et
a3 year run rate ¢ost synergy target of US$78 rmilhion
and a 5 year unrate revenue synergy target of
Usdas milion These targets wete both delvered
ahead of schedulen 2017 with the acquisitions
during the year of Mergent and The vield Book and
(it Fixed Income Indices the fecus guing forward
will be integrating both businesses nto FTSE Russell

FTSE Russell s a leading provider of indexes for the
ETF market withJ5%624 billion benchmarked 12016
US$L52 bulliony This s one of the fastest growing
nvestrnent tlasses with a 6 year CACR of 21% This
year ¥ compantesissued then fust ETFs against FTSE
Russell henchmiarks ncluding Fidelity and Franklin
Ternpleton FTSF Russell 1s dlso aleading innovator
and provider of smart beta ar factor based index
solutions ETF assets benchmarked Lo FTSE Russell
smart beta indexesin 2017 increased by 207 to
L5390 tllion 12016 15151 tallhont

2017 alse saw a number of other sigmificant
achievernents with the geographical expatision
of FTSE Russell < services and increased selection
of [ 15F Russell incleves for t TF< Far examiple in
July 2017 the world s laigest penson fund the
Government Pernsion Investment Fund 1GPIE ) of
Tapan selected ol new FTSE Blossorn Japan [ndex
dsa ce FSG hend hrmark The mcreased uptake
benchmerkinig of LSG indexes domonstrates the
nsreased demand tor aned <hifl to FSG factorsin
estment criterid
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Inthe US futures and optiors are traded on FTSE
Russell tndexes, Cboe trades aptions whade i 2017
futures onthe Russell 2000 Index began trading on
["ME & Giobex platform demonsitating the Groups
open access approach

In China the fust mawland Chna ETF tacking
the F TSE China A50 index, 15sued by Harvest
Fund Management was listed on the Shangha
stock Lxchange

In 201/ welaunched the FI1SE ltaha PIR hhd Cap
Total Retuin Index a benchmark thal mieasures
the petformance of ltallan companies matchng
the requirernent s of the new personal savings plan
IPIR} Law mtroduced in Naly

1n the hMiddle East the f TSE Saud: Atabia Inclusion
Index Seres was launched with global requonal and
countiy-level indexes designed to support domestic
and mternational vwvesiors in response to regqienal
growth and the apeming of the Saurh Aratna capital
market 1o Qualified Foreign Investors

FTSE Russell mdexes are licensed globally for
derwvatives trading in across Europe Notth America
and Awia Dunng the year 210 milhon contracts
benchmarked to FTSE Russell mdexes wete traded
g lower than the previous year with increased
Activity i the US offset by lower volumes in Curope

The European Regulation on Indices used as
Benchmarks in Financal Instruments and binancial
Contracts (the European Benchimark Reguiation;
apphed from 1 January 2018 FTSE International
Lirrnted submitted an application at the end of 2017
tothe FCA to be authonsed as an B4 based
adrmrnstraten of benichrmarks

US$624bn

Flg e g
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Real Time Data

Our Real Time Data service provides primary teference
data for UK and ltahan markets 1ts tick-by-tick data s
used by traders brokers and fund managers giobally

Professional terminal usage across the Group declined
10 180 000 frorm 200 000 1 2016, with LSE at 63 000
2016 72 000 and ltaly at 111 000 (2016 128 000
with the reduction largely in lower yield terminals

These dechnes have been offset by focusing on
enterphise lcensing and the use of non-display
apphcations including algonthmic/black box trading
and hading producls such as contracts for difference
and swaps that are pegged to LSE trachng prices

LSE and Borsa Italiana terminals
thousands {(year end)
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® LSt terrnnals
Borsa ltabana terrinals

other Information

UnaVista

Unavista 1s LSEG s regulatory reporting plaiform for

all matchang vahidation 2nd reconcihation needs 1t
provides business solutions designed to help hrims
ncrease efhciency and 1educe opetational and
regulatory risk across all asset classes In 2017 the
user base of Unawista continued to grow with 100 000
users and ¢ 6,000 ¢ ontracted chents from around the
world using the platform (2016 1,500)

22

Unavista s MiF1D 11 Approved Reporting Mechamsm
{ARM) became a MIFIR-approved ARM i Septernber
2017 and was live for the implemnentation of MIFLD |1
Unavista extended its commitment fo pattnership
open access and moduct innovation launcting a
Partngn Programme to cormnbine member fims
expernse ahead of the introduction of MiIFID 1T
Across the year the prograrmime grew 1o 50 pantners
and was extended to ncorporate other global
regulations including Market Abuse Regulation (MAR)

Reference Data

SEDOL 1s our global multt-asset class numbernng
system providing referend e data and unigue
dentihcation codes for global equity, dervatives and
fixed income secunties The SEDOL Masterfile Serwce
database provides clients with access to reference data
on 16 mllon ive serunties London Slock Exchange
LE! Limited1s a fully accredited Local Operatng Urit
110k for the global alloc alion of Legal Entity 1dentifiers
ILED These codes umquely dentify every legal entity
of Structure 1 any junsairtion whchas pany 1o a
financial transaction An Lk 15 mandatery for a
nurrher of global regulations and Unavnistas
technology 15 being used to allocate and mantatn the
cades Sthce the launchin 20173 we have become a
leading LOU and have allocated almost 150,000 Lt 1s
acioss & continents (2016 44 000) with therecent
upsurge n allocation due to MIFID L transaction
reporting chiigatons

Regulatory News Service

Regulatany News Service (RMST 1s the leading
specialist pravider of regulatory disclosure distribution
services 1o UK isted and AIM cormpanes During 2017,
over 310 000 announcerments were procassed by RNS
12006 321000}, covening the majonty of UK company
announcernents KNS opetates as a Primary
Information Provider and s regulated by the FCA

50 Partners

Sore o dthe Beaabe Toarlnd b oogra e

150,000

(S RN IV e | e S S TRY |
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Poét Trad_é_" Services

LCH

Stratedqic Report Post Trade Services

Income

£562m

2016 £447m

23%

® OTC Cleaning
Mon-0TC Cleanng
and other revenug
Net Tieasury Income
and othey iIncome

36%

[ T TR TV W L A T N | I T T RSN O e

Key Summary
- LLH s income for 2017 was 562 milhon up 26
andincreased by 21 anda constant cunency basts

- Swapllear cleared US$8/4 (nllon notional up 31°
with chent trades cleared up by 294 to 1 2 mullon
and compression up by 594 10 US$60G thilhan

- ForexClear non deliverable forwatds clearing
increased by 252 10 US$1L 2 nihon Membership
mcreased to 30 12016 25)

= Fied e ome claar ing increased to €87 5 tnllion
In nominat value cleared

= Cash equity clearnmg volusmes nicteased by 15"
to 805 3 milhion trades

- [CH Swaphgent a new service for non-cleared
denwatives saw ity fust trades in September 2017

- LSEC ncreased b majonity stake 1n [ CH Group
oGS 12010 3744

41%

Introduction

LCH 15 a leading mvltinational clearing house with
clearing operations in the UK Eurszone Usand an
expanding presence in the Asia-Pacific region LOH
provides services to mitigate counten party sk across
multiple asset classes for cleanng members and then
chents operating thiough an open acress model that
clears for the Group s markets and other major
exchanges and platforms as well as a range of

OTC markers

LOH sits mthe rriddle of & trade as the buyer 1o everyy
seller and the selier to everyy buyer It cither party
detaults on the trade LM ownis the defautter s nsk and
becormnes arcountable for its labiities Fundarnental to
LCH s Fskoprocess 15 ds collection of guality collateral
from clearing members and chients as rsuranc e o
recover of replac e defaulted nsk Dunng the ife of a
trade or that of a portfolic of trades, LOH procosses all
rash flows and niarks the trade or boek 10 market
alling vanation and mihal matgin i relatinn to
prevailing 1isk of the overall partfole
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FURTHER INFORMATION

Market trends and our response for Past Trade
Services LOH can be found on pages 12--15
Profitabihiy of each segrment can be faund in the
Financial Review on pages 36—41 An Ovorsiow

of the requlatory landsc ape ¢ an be found on pages
166-167 & glossary of terms can be found on
pages 162-165

| CH earns its tevenue n the OTC denvatives markets
by charging members either an annual fee for all
cleaning o1 a lower annual fee with vanahle fees
based onvolume Additional fees are levied fo
SOTVICES sUCh ds compression Clients pay a fee based
on OTC volume cleared In non-0OTC markets alt users
pay a tee based onvolurnes or value cleared Nel
Treasury Income s earned on cash and secunties
held for margin and default funds

Lunng the year we ncreased our magoniy stake n
LCH Group from 578 to 65 9% following the sale by
certain rnotity holders and as a result of Euronext
swapping their holding from { CH Group to LCH S A

InJune 2017 LOH presented at a Group nvestor
Update whers senior managers from ndividual
husiness areds dist ussed the post trarde landscape
wdentified future growtt drivers and set out ow
mid-term outinok 1IN OTC cledaring we see revenues
rontimuing togrow at a double-digit rate to 2019 watt
LBITRA marqgin approaching 0. by 20192016

15 6Lk The event presentation and videos are
Asalable onour website https:www.lseg com/
investor-relations/investor-events
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LCH

2017 saw LCH beneht from various regulatory
requrements incentvising cleaning, such as
mandatory swap clearnng in Eurgpe and a full year

of the Uncleared Margtr Rules (UMR) alongside the
developrment of existing and new services Examples
of these include the intraduction of clearing for 5 610
curtency pawrs at ForexClear, LCH s foreign exchange
cleanng service, and the launch of LCH SwapAgent

a rew service to simplify the processung margimng
and settlemnent ot non-cleared dermatives

LCH won 11 awards i 2017 including Risk Magaznes
Cleaning House of the vear for the fifth conzecutive
year and Futures and Option World s (FOW)
International Awards Clearing House of the Year

for Europe and Asia

In 2018 LCH plans to extend its portfolio margimng
salution LOH Spuder, to allow Long Term interest Rate
futures to be offset with ehigible swaps and short
Term Interest Rate futures

Total \ncome in canstant currency terrms increased
by 1. as aresult of Increased Net Treasury Income
volumes in OTC client clearmg and strong growth n
RepoClear Insterhing terms, incomie increased by
26 to £562 mulhon (2016 £447 milhony

OTC denwatives cleanng revenue was up 2 1% at 231
milion an inciease of 1797 0N a constant currency
basis (2016 £191 million) Theincreasen OTC
cleanng revenue came largely from the growth

in SwapClear client cleaning

OTC clearing has benefitted frorn the implementation
of the Uncleared Margin Rules in the US from
Septernber 2016 and Europe 1n February 2017
Thresholds for users with gross notional amount of
uncleared OTC dervatives imtially set at €3 trilhon /
1542 trillion are expected to reduce each year and
by Septernber 2020 almost all the market will be
covered with thresholds set at €8 bilhon £ US$E bilhon

Non-0TC cleanng revenue was £133 mihon up
7% on aconstant currency basis, driven by strang
growth i fixed income volurmes cleared Other
revenue which ncludes compression services and
fees for managing non-cash collateral, increased
by 37% to £68 milhon (2016 £45 rmllion)
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Post Trade Services

OTC Clearing

SwapClear

SwanClean s a global market leader i OTC interest
rate swap (1RS) dearing, offerng buy and sell-side
clients access to unparalleled liquaity provided by
105 members capital efficiencies fram compression
services and a systermn of ngotous risk management

2017 was another strong year for SwapClear with
total notwonal cleared increasing 314 to a record
LS$574 trilion {2016 US$E66 trillion Chent deanng
ncreased 46% to a record Us$203 tridlion {2015
US$139 trthiont and client trades up 29%. toa record
12270002016 852,000}

Factors diving growth have included regulatory
rhanges such as mandated EU chient clearnng and
uncleared Margin Rules, ncreased activity amongst
existing members and clients the onboarding of new
clients and incteased use of COMpPression services
Interest rate changes i the US and UK were also
favaurable to volumes 1n 2018 LCH wall furthes
expand 1ts SwapClear product offening with plans
tontroduce Non Dehverable Interest Rate Swaps

m Chinese Yuan Korean won and Indwn Rupee
subject torequiatory approval

SwapClear — Client: no. of cleared trades
thousands

1,227

G2

afrs

20 Jal A0t 2017

SwapClear — Total notional cleared
us tn

874

14, Fafgt

Aars

EIErN A SO 2017

SwapClear s compression services alicw mermbers,
and chents to reduce the number of trades in thewr
porttalios This simplifies the managerment of ther
pasitons and frees up valuable capral that would
otherwise be held as margin 2017 saw notional
comnpressed INcrease by 53% to a record Us$H09
erthon (2016 US$384 tridliony as the services
continue to deliver sigrihicant value to s users
SwapClear s proprietary Compression $etvices grew
and demonstrating our open access approdch the
services of Quantile Technologies and Capitalab were
added as, Approved Compression Service Prowiders
IACSPI alongside the existing ACSP TnOptima AB

SwapClear - Compression volumes

Us$ tn
I
r'z"l
e 292
h .
31 100 Notwmal Matunng Notional - 31 Dec
ol hearedd tnades compreessend 2017

Intlation swap cleanng launched in 2015 saw
volumes cleared increase almost 200 % with a
total of Us$3 2 trilion in notional cleared in 2017
{2016 US%Y 1 trdon)

LCH SwapAgent 1s a new service ta sunphfy the
processing margining and settlement of non-cleared
derwatives it executed its frst trades in 2017, a Swiss
Franc denominated intetest rate swap and Eure-
denorminated nflation swap and has now extended
its service to Crass-Currency Basis Swaps In 2018

its service will extend further to include swaptions

US$874tn

Pl ey ey 1at s

SRTANE Y]
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ForexClear

ForexClearis LCH s service cleaniny foregn exchange
{FX) non-delverable forwards (NDF) for 12 Emerging
Markel currencies and launched in November 2617
5G10 currencies 201/ also started fo see regular
fHlonws from Chent cleanng {orexClear membership
increased to 30 members (2016 25) while notional
cleared increased strongly by 2524 to US$11 2
trlhon (2016 US%3 2 trilon

In 2018 ForexClearistolaunch a cleanng service

far deliverable OTC FX options i partnership with
settlement provider (1S subect taregulatory
approval In 2018 and beyond new phases of UMR are
expected tolead toncreased use of central cleanng
and other services such as LOMPression services

CDSClear

CDsClear clears the broadest 1ange of European

and US credit default swaps (CDS) products allowing
yreater opportuniies for capital efhoency through
marginoffsets 108 index senes and dose 1o 30N single
name DS contracts are elqible for ceanng CDSUear
15 registered as a COPin Europe under EMIR and as a
Derwatve Clearing Orgamzation (DCCH wath the CFTC
and a Clearing Agency with the SEC 0 the LS

Membership has increased m 2017 following the
ntroduction of the new Select Membership tier
bunging the total number of members to 13 12016
121 Intdarch 2017 (DSClear onboarded its Airst
buyside chent CDSClear also extended its platform
toinclude the clearning of credit index options an
industry first In 2018 additional members are
expected tomn the service adding haudity

Total notional cleared increased to €549 2 billion
V2006 €448 7 bilony suppaor ted by new rounds of
the Uncleared targin Rules and introduction of the
European clearing mandate for indes (05

US$11.21r

Stiateqe Repot Post Trade Services

ForexClear - notional cleared
Us$ bn

[ =21
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Non-0TC Clearing

RepoClear

Clearing in repo and cash bond markets increased to
£875 trilhonn 2017 12016 €70 8 trilhent LOH fixed
INCOME Service clears across 13 ginernment hond
markets including the Group s TS bond markets
and third party venues

In 2017 RepoClear launched Sponsored (learing &
service offering buy side firms drert access to LOH
enabling them toreduce therr nsk and maxrmse
balance sheet efficiencies This year RepoClear has
also extended i< service N LLH S A ta offer cleanng
tor cash and repo trades on German Bunds and
Belgian Government bonds allowing members to
benefit from settlement netting and nsk offsets

In Ewro-based repos through 125

Listed Denvatives and Cash Equities

The Listed Dervatives vendes cleared by LCH include
London Stock xchange Dervatives Mdrket (LSEDW)
ard Furonext Denwatives Mdrkets Contracts cleared
In 2017 incteased by 114 to 146 9 muthon 12016

131 9 rmlhon In 2017 LOHS A signed a 10-year
long term agreerment with Euronext Ny for the
cantimued provision of clearing setvices for hsted
financial and commorhty dernvatives

InErpnties LCH one of Furope s largest eguities (0P
by volurme cleared offers the broadesl venue coverage
of any Eutapean equities CCF clearing for 24 trading
venues The number of tiades leared i 2017
ngreasec by 150 to 80N milhon (2016 697 mdlion:
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2,096 3,27

2,434 2,413

01 Q2 Q3 Q4
2017

Net Treasury Income

Net Treasury Income s the restilt of interest earned
on cash assets todged with the cleanng house on
margin and default funds tsers of LCH post cash and
receive an ovet raght Interest rate less a spread The
level of funds held s prirnanly driven by market f1sh
under managerment volumes cleared and market
volatility Incorne s also diiven by short-terrrinterest
tates predommantly in the US Dollar Euro and UK
Sterling money markets Focus onnsk dispersion and
efficiency means we have increased the number of
counter parties used for investment with mare nse of
central hanks and a number of pension funds The
type of investrnent has also expanded 1o mrluded
flnating rate notes and reverse repos

Average cash collaleral held increased 26 % (o €84 5
buhan (2016 €670 billiony Total Net Treasury Incorne
far LCH for 2017 increased by a6% 1o £ 120 mudlion
12016 £82 milliont As collateral collected inboth
rash and non-cash continues to grow alongside
Increased usage of LOH'S services ths leads to higher
levels of Net Treasury Incorme LCH may also benefit
froms changes ininterest rates suctras the recent
Increases made by the 1S Federal Resetve and the
Bank of England with short-term interest rates 30
ur 6l days being igher than the overnight rate

Cash collateral held - daily average
€bn

84.5

2017
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Post Trade Services
CC&G and Monte Titoli

Income

£151m

5 v14
2016 £147m 289

® Cleanngil(&0G)
Settlement Custody and
other (Monte Titoln
Nel Tieasury Income

- Income for the year incteased by 34 Lo
£151 muthonn sterhing terms but decreased
by &% ona constant currency basis

- Net Treasury Income decreased by 3% to
£42 midlion in sterling terms and by 9%
N constant currency terms

—Lontracts cleared by ( C&G down 16% 10
108 3 mithon

— CCAG signed contracts 1o provide CCP hosted
solutions to CCP A Austna Casablanca Stock
£xchange has alse seierted CCEG for a COP
developrmerit project i 2018

- Monte Titol assets held under custody of
€327 tnhon up 3%

- Monte Titol applied for a European licence to
aperate under the (S0 Regutation (CSUR} which 15
expected to be granted n the second half of 7018

26

26%

46%

Introduction

Past Trade Services in Mtaly ave crucial to the
securities trading mdustry Our post trade
businesses Maonte Titoh and CC&G provide Lthe
mmarkets with settlement depositary custady, Hisk
and collateral managemnent cleaning and central
counterparty {CCPI services i Order Lo mutigate nisk
and ensute the etiicient runming of capital markets

The post trade regulatory landscape saw the
complehon of one of the largest infrastructure
projects launched by the Eurosystem to date 125
a pan-European platform for securities settiement
Lt rernoved barmers and ehminated differences
between domestic and cross-border settlement

LL&EG clearing earns revenue by charging a fee per
trade or dertvate cantract cleared, and Net Treasury
Income 15 earned on cash and secunities held for
marqin and defaull funds Monte Titol settierment
revenue s earned by charging a fee per trade settled
and lodged for registration into the buyger's name s
custody fees are paid by companies based on miarket
capttaiisation and 1ssuance, with fees pand by
intermechanes including banks and CCPs based on
halance of assats held in custody

FURTHER INFORMATION

Market tiends and cur response for Post Trade
Services CC&G and Monte Titch can be found on
pages 12-15 Prchtability of each segment can be
found in the Finangial Review on pages 36--41 An
overview of the regulatory landscape can be found
onpages 166-167 A glossary of terms can be found
on pages 162-165

Clearing (CC&G)

CLEG 15 the Group s Italan-based provider of risk
managermenl open access clearing and CCP services
to 13 markets including Borsa ltaliana s markets
MNEX Group § BrokerTec and Hi-MTF CC&G elirminates
counter party nisk by sitting n the muddle of a trade
as the buyer to every seller and the seller 1o every
buyer CC&G provides services acToss a diverse range
of asset classes ncluding equnties ETFs denvatives
rlose-end funds and fixed income CCaG hasan
nteroperabiity agreement with LCH S A o
Eutopeanbond and Repo markets

Cleanng revenuses on a constant currency basis fell
by 14% and in Sterling terms decreased by 84 to
£39 milhon (2016 £43 mulkon] largely due to lower
volumes on platforms served by CC&G Equity and
dernvatives contract volumes cleared decteased by
16 10 108 3 mullion (2016 129 6 milhon)
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CC&G - Trades and contracts cleared
m
126

Lein]
T 108.3

nl sola St ALt 2017

LC&G has 149 cleanng members of which 50t are
nternational CCaG has signed contracts to provide
LCP hosted solutions 1o COP A Ausina Casabianca
Stock Exchange has also selected CC&G fora CCP
developrment projectin 2018 demonstrating our
mternational reach

CC&G - Initial margin held
£ bn (average daily)

1 ) 11

E 21e AT RUIEH 2017

CCaG generates Net Treasuty Income by investing
the cash marginit holds Average daily irihal margin
declined by 9" tu €11 1 hillwon for the year (2016
€12 1 bilon) Nef Treasury Income decreased by

3 to 242 tllon 12016 C43 millionk down @ ona
corstant currency basis largely as a result of lower
fixed inrome volurmes and lower yelds recened

€11.Ibn

. H i
. . A

Settlement, Custody and other (Monte Titoli)
tAonte Titoll LSEG s Ltalian-based €50 15 a leading
provider of efficient and secure settlement custody
asset servicng collateral managerment and 1ssuer
somvices 1o a domestic and international chent base
of 184 users and 2 44b 1550613

settlerment custody and related revenues icreased
by &% ona constant eurrency basis and in sterling
terrns, increased by 14 to €70 mullion (2016

f61 milhiont

Monte Titoli - Settlement instructions
m

[T

44.6

Sl Al Ml S 2017

Monte Titolh manages o wide range of hnancal
nstrurnents with assels under custody amounting
to €3 27 trillion (2016 €3 17 thilhony in 2017 s
settlernent service processed 44 6 milion
nstructions up 3+ on the previous year (2016 43 3
rullion; Monte Titolr continued to provide an efhcent
settlerment system with a year-end settlerment rate
of approximately 97« of settled ransacthions

(2016 year end 97)

Monte Titoli - Assets under custody
€ tn (annual average)

iy o . O 3.27

1] 2ol e 2017
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1n September 2017 Monte Titol applied far a
Europeanlicence to operate under the CSDR
following 2 years of preparation Granting of the
new licence under CSDR1s expected in the second
half of 2018

Monte Titol 1s 1ncreasing s international focus
through 1ts 125 Gateway setvice Lo provide
customers with settlement. asset servicing and fiscdl
setvices A number of intermational and dormestic
chents connected with Monte Titeliin 2017 including
Banco Posta and ABN Ao wha transferred client <!
portfolios to accounts mamntained with Monte Titoh

A new imnos atve fiscal and 1ssuance service was
launched in 2017 which supperts Itahan issuers
placing fixed income secuntes n the Us market
IRUWe 1444 comphanc el This played a key role n
the success of Unicredit and wind Tie issuance

X-UOM Monte Titoh s Thparty Collateral Managerment
service gudranteed Dy (COG saw a stiong indrease
N transacted assets by 1914 10 €5 7 hillion

=€3.27tn
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Capital Markets

Revenues

£391m

2016 £368m
30%

® Prnmaiy Markets
Secendary Markets — equities
Secondary Markels — fixed income
denwvatives and other~

UMb el DR ERbar e B ber by b

Koy Summary

- Revenues increased by 64, 1o £391 milhion (2016
£ 368 milor) and by 3% onanorgame constant
currencybasis

— Prumary hMarkets saw 194 new companies admitted
1o our markets (2016 1341 of which 80 j0med AlM
[2016 64) total money tdised actoss our equity
markets was up /34 at C44 2 billion

— Insecendary Markets UK cash equity average
danly value traded mereased by 4% average daily
number of equity trades in taly det reased by 5%
and average daily value traded overall on Turquoise
decreased 284 Turquoise Plato dark value ttaded
increased by 15%

— Infixed Income MTS Cash and Bondvision value
traded declined by 6% while MTS Repo reduced
by 8 %

— CurveGlabal a joint venture with leading dealer
banks and Cboe butlt onits launch in 2016 and
has since seen ovel 2 rillion contracts traded on
its platform

28

28%

42%

Introduction

Our posttion at the heart of the global financial
cormmunity1s one of the reasons whiy a wide range of
domestic and international companies chogse ta)mn
our markets in London and Milan Many of the world's
leading nvestment houses and financial nstitutions
are based in London with protessional investors
known for then outwaid-looking approach offering
rompanies from around the world access to a deep
and wide pool of long term nvestment capital LSEG
offers leading Wt and darh trading platforms in well
requlated rnarkets

Cur range of primary markets provides choice for
ssuers and investors enabling companies o raise
capital efheently and also increase thew visibihty
with a wide group of customers and investors Our
secondary markels create a deep pool of hquichty
and allow actve and efficient trading of equity and
fixed income products through our high performance
trading platforms

Issuers adrmiled to owr pnmarny markets are charged
admussion fees and annual fees based o the maiket
value of the secunties hsted

FURTHER INFORMATION

Market trends and our response for Capital Markets

can be found on pages 12-15 Prohtability of each

segment can be found in the Financial Review on '
pages 3641 Anoverview of the regulatory landscape

can be found on pages 166-167 A glossary of terms

can be found on pages 162-16% LSEG1s aminanty

shareholder of CurveGlobal the results of CurveGlobal

are not consohdated by the Group

In secondary Markets a fee 1s charged based on value
vaded far UK equities Turquotse and MTS fixed
income markets On ather markets Italian eguities
dervatives markets and retail fixed ncome afeeis
charged per trade or contract traded

Primary Markets Surnmary

1rt 2017 194 new companies were admitted to our
markets (2016 134) with the total money raised
through mew equity at £14 4 bitlion (2016 £59
btliton) In London 83 new companes hsted on our
Man Market and 80 were admitted to AIM London
saw over 100 new 1s5uUes across the year, anincrease
of 544 compared to 2016 and more than anywhere
else In Europe In ltaly 31 companies joined our
markets, including 24 adrmtted to AlM [taha

2017 saw a number of international compames list
London with 9 out of 10 of the top new tssues by size
coming from outside of the UK undertining its
position as the leading global hsting venue for
international comparues These included 12
Acquisition aUs investment firm rawsing £9040
rmlhan and T Fluid Systems @ manufacturer of
autornotive fluid systerns that taised £400 mithon
Europe s largest IPOn 2017, Allied Insh Bank chose
tor dual bist in London, raisng £ 3 billion
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LSE attracts a growing number of innovative
international fund managers who have adrmitted

an increasingly diversified range of funds investing

1N SMES Teal estate social housing the privaterented
sector student property aswell as hfe science debt
secunties These all demonstrate LSF siole m funding
alt sectors ol the economy New 1ssues in 2017
included Pershing Square Hotdings a close-ended
mvestrment company which successfully hsted its

£7 g bilentung transfernng 1ts existing trading

line from Armsterdam BioPharma Credit & specialist
Iite sciences industiy fund and PRS REIT the

fust ksted fund to salely focus on Private Rented
Sector Properties

i ltaly Borsa ltahana s MTA mam market welcomed
the largest continental European IPO1n 201 Prell
rasing €2 3 bilhon Inaddinen & other compames
listed on the MTA man market in 231, Borsa ltallana
established the ltahan Listed Brands showcase
promoting many ltahan luxury brands which are
recogrised worldwide 2017 saw atecord number

of comparnies admitted and amount of money

raised on AL [tald smce its launchm 2009

At d Group level, LSEG was placed inthe top 3 globally
for money ratsed in IPDs and further offenings The
total capntal 1arsed across our equity markets through
new and further 1ssues mcreased /3% 1o £44 2 billen
12016 €25 6 billinny At gear end thire were A total of
2 588 companies an our markets (2016 2 590

Equity money raised — Group
£ bn

L4

" C L e 2017

Exchange Traded Products

Our Exchange Traded Funds 1ETF p and Exchange
Traded Products €T markets are leading histing
venues with o posttive pipeline of ssuers and products
ahead 133 new ETFS 12016 1241and 44 new L1Ps
12016 50) were hsted 1nLondon in 2017 across awide
range of asset classes mcluding equity fixed income
and commodities actoss vanous trading currencies
Ire Italy the ETFplus market hsted 114 new FTFs and
33newETPs (2016 132 ETFs and 4 ETPy The total
number of ETFs and other ETPs isted anour markets
rose to 2 482 12016 2 347)

We welcomed 5 new ETP 1ssuers, GF International
Fidelity Frankhn Templeton 1P Margan and Leverage
Shares toour Londonmarket hringung the total
number of 1ssuers to £2 across the Group

Exchange Traded Products — Group
number histed at year end
2,482
2 b

1At o=l

A N 2017
AlM

AlM 15 the world s leading international growth market
pioviding smiall and mediim sized businesses with
access to a deep pool of capital Sice ncephion ovet
3700 compantes have been adnitted and £105 bilhon
rarsed On 3 Janudry 2018 both AIM and AIM Italia
were recognsed as SME Growth Markets fallowing the
wntroduction of the designation in MIFID 11

AlM s success contimted in 2017 B0 compdmes weié
adrmitted to AIM ratsaing over £1 5 bilhon 2016 64
comparnes taised £1 1 blhon and L4 8 bilhon was
rased on Alvan tollow on fundraising by existing
wssuers upy 31y compared to the £36 tlhon rarsed
n 2010 Approximately 6 . of all the money ever
ratsed on AIM hds been through secondany 1usuen
demonstraung Lhe Iong terrm relationships that exest
betwesn Compantes and investors on Alkd
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Atyearend the total number of compames on the
market was 96012016 9821 with a total market value
of L1069 bilhion (2016 £80 8 bdhon)

ALK Italia saw 24 new compares Join 12016 13)

A total of 33 cormpanies were admttted to the
market at year end (2016 77) with a market value
of €5 & hillor almast double the 2016 year end
market value of £2 9 liion

ELITE

FLITE Growths a programme with a track record of
helping SMEs prepare and structure fur growth The
ELITE global cormnmunity has grow n ta over 700
companies across 27 countnies and 35 sectors (2016
SO0 compantes across 25 countries) 13 ELITE
cornpames have now joined publc markets with 11
[tallan ELITE compares progressing to an IPG and 2
UK FLITE comparies admitted 1o AIM ELITE Growth
has alse been launc hed inwiest Afnca Brazil Chuna
and saudh Aratna n agresments with local exchanges

ELITE Club Deal a private placerment platform that
streamlines the capital raising process for ELITF
Lomparmes has marked s first closed financial
transactionwith an ELITE Basket Bond The €122
milhon 10 year bonds made up of 10 tahan ELTTE
companmes bonds grouped together as one
asset-backed secunty

£44bn

ket
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Capital Markets

Fixed Income

LSE cemented s position as a leading global venue
for international debt fundraising with Chinese RMB
Inchan Rupee and Indonesian Rupiah bonds raising
US5%3 9 bahionin 2017 Intotat almost 2 000 bonds
ratsed over Us$415 hithon 68 % of which was rarsed
by international 1ssuer s incorpeorated outside the UK

In 2017 LSE launched the International Secunties
Market {1SM) a new exchange-regulated multlateral

trading faciity (MTF) for the issuance of primary debt,

targeted at insttutwonal and professional investors,
Owvel the year there were 10 1ssuances onta 15M

L SE continued to attract green bond 1ssuances with
28 new green bondsissued dunng the year The total
number of green bonds now Listed on our markets s
6% and these have rased US$21 2 bilon (2016 40
green bonds raising US$10 5 bilhond From March
2017 Borsa italiana offered institutional and retail
investors the option of Identifying a list of
mstrurments on MOT whase proceeds would go to
financing envinonmental (green bondst and/or social
projects (secial bondsi

Our dechcated green bond segments were awarded
a Ceruficate of Recogrition at the Chimate Bonds
Imtiative Green Bond Awards in March 2017 for
pushing green finance forward and developing

the market

Secondary Markets

Equity Trading

Inthe UK 2017 saw the highest annual value taded
since 2008 with £1 34 tnllion traded (2016 £] 78
trillieni while the average daly value traded was up
29010 £5 3 bilhon (2016 £51 lony In ltaly, the
average daily number of trades decreased by 64 to
276000 (2016 295000} LSE  share of bt trading
Increased to 69 7% (2016 61 3%} i part due to a new
sales and marketing programme which helped to
narrow spreads and increase igurdity on exchange
There has also heen a move towards closing auctions
anincumbent exchanges by passive nvestors looking
to re-wewght ther portfolios to the end of day pnices
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[n Decernber 2017 at the 9th UK China Economic

and Financial Dialogue the UK and Chinese
governments agreed to accelerate the final
preparations to launch the London-Shangha Stock
C(onnect The 2 governments have welcomed the
proposals by the Stianghar Stock Exchiange and
London Stock Exchange to realise the Connectby
listing depositary receipts on each other s markets

In 2018, the exchanges central ceanng and depositary
nshihions and requlators aim 1o fnahse the rules and
required market preparations ta enable governmerits
tolaunch the Connect when conditions permat it

LSE — average daily value traded
£bn

53

! -1

s S sl MG 2017
TRADEChO a suite of trade repot ling services
reachung across all Mk ID 11 asset classes increased
its breadth of chients duning 2017 N anticipation

of the new MIFLD (1 regulations which began on

3 January 2018 TRADEcho 1s hosted and operated
by London Stock Lxchange i pastnership with
Simphtium and complemented by the Group s
Unavista transaction reporting service

Borsa [taliana - average daily numbey
of trades
thousands

Atdy

K
g 7 276

det

PHIE 2l Folt 2017
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Turquoise

Turquolse 1$ our majonty-owned pan-turopean

MTF in partnershup wath the uset commurty With
asingle connection to LSE sell-side or buy-side
chents can trade ELropean shares including AlM
wternational depositary recepts, E7fs and Eurapean
Rights Lssues of 19 European countries with an open
access approach Users have a choice of 3 cleanng
options including LCH Turquotse opeates 2 order
books Turquosse Integrated L1t and Turquosse Plato
non-displayed:

Turquoise — total value traded
€bn

TR

[

i 993

AU Al 2 STt 2017
Total value traded for the year on Turquoise was down
28410 €993 bilhon (2016 €1 353 billom following a
record prioT year Turquorse Plato s dark order book
saw value traded merease by 19 to record value
traded since the launch of Turquaorse promoting it to
the largest dark order book for UK secunties by value
traded and second largest overall dark cnder book in
Europe n 2017 H2 Turquaoise added FTSE Ak 50 to
its stock unverse successfully enabling Turquoise
Plato mudpomnt tracing and thus offering the same
suite of execution channels for FTSE AIM 50 as for
FTSE 100 blue chip stocks Turguoise won The
TRADE's Leaders i Trading 2017 Award for Block
Trading venue

Turquorse Plate Block Discovery our multi-award
winmng and MFID 11 comphant mechanism for
executing large anonymaus block orders saw strang
growth i the gear with €54 5 bilhon value traded
12016 €8 bilony Average trade size was €283 000
compared to more tymcally around €4 000 Inthe

I order book
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Exchange Traded Products

The Group has maintamed its position in FTF and
ofher ETP tracing in Europe by value traded foliowing
arecord year In 2016 Total ETF value taded across
our markets fell by 44 to £178 billon 12016 £186
billlony ETF trading accounts for around 7% of equity
trading on LSE and 13w of trading on Borsa [tahana
FTFs trade on our platformsan & currencies including
Chinese Renrminbi

Pre-hiF 1D 11 it was estimated that approamately
0% of ETF and ETP trading i kurope takes place
over the counter (OTC) MIFID 1L subjected these
produc ts to pre and post trade transparency
requirements where previously there wete none n
2017 we launched Request for Quote (RFOI for o
tondon market following its launchin ltaly in 2016
This s @ MIFID 1 compiiant facility for the execution
of laiger trades on exchdnge (mummum trade size
£1 milhon under MIFID 11 with autornated reporting
and cleanng

Exchange Traded Products —
total value traded
£bn
Tet 178
-n
17 i

JT s sl RNITE 2017

Derivatives

Dernwvatives volumes on our markets fell in 2017 with
243 8 rdhon contracts traded 12016 539 malhony
IDEM the Group s Itahan derivatives market saw
ttading volurmes fall by 30% to 34 1 milhon cortracts
12016 450 rmulhont | ondon Stock Exchange
Denvatives Market [LSEDMI saw increased vollimies
with & 6 rilon 12016 4 9 million) contracts traded
as volumes ncreased in International Jrder Book
Depositary Receipts optinns and futures

CurveGlobal

CurveGlobal annterest rate derwatves venture
between L ondon Stock Exchange Group Cboe and
anumber of leading dealer banks has seen over

2 mullion 1ots trade on the platform and reach a
record level of Open Interest 162 000 contracts in
mostly Short Term Interest Rate futures (STIRs) since
launching in September 2016 Cleanng 15 offered by
LCH allowing trading participants access fo a single
default fund across OTC and histed rates dervatives
and portfolio margin through LOH Spder In 2018
LCH Spder ] walllaunch Long Terrm Interest Rate
futures ILTIR% enabling the affset of ETIRS STIRs
and OTC posinians to reduce the nskomn participants
portfolies and increase margin efficency As LSEG 1S
armnaity shareholder of CurveGlobal the results of
CunveGlobal are not consolidated biy the Group

Fixed Income

MTS 18 a leading 1egulated electronic trading platfor m
for Furapean wholesale Goverrment Bonds and other
types of fixed income securites 1In 2017 the value
traded on MTS Repo which offers lquidity across all
the Eurozone repo markets fellby 8% to €7/ 7 ilon
12016 €34 « tnllwn: MTS Cash and Bondvisian s value
traded fell by 670 to €3 702 billwon (2016 € 394 £ bithor

In 2017 MTS launched its new dealer-to-chent (D244
Global Collateral Management {GOM] segment for the
repo market on MTS Bondvison with LOH Ltd signing
45 the first buy-side trading chent GCM introduces
new funchonality to enable direct electrome D2C
trading for bilateral repo contracts and centraliy
cleared repo contracts via LOH s sponsored Cleanng
rmcedel for the buy-side

TS BondsPri a web-based US requstered corpuatate
bond trading plattorm achieved recotd buy-side
participation n 201, making up 18% of the total
executed on BondsPro12016 &' MTS continued

to engage with chients to enhance ther trading
capablities by extending av atlatality of the platform
beyond LS trading haurs

Ourtetal bond mdrkets ingluding FurcTL X the K
Ordier Boak for Retall Bonds [(ORBI and kO aly
the most hqund and heavily traded retail ixed incame
platforenn Ewrope continued to provice guid rmarkets
despite a dithcult low interest rate environment Total
tractes were 5 milhion 12016 6 Limlhony with value
traded at €767 bilon 12016 €285 tillion:
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Té?hn&cigj Services

Revenue

£91m

2016 £88m

Key Summary

— Technology revenues increased by 3t to £91
milhon (2016 £88 rmllion) and were unchanged
onan orgame Lonstant currency basis

— LSEG Technologu was launched are-branding
and re-engineening of our technology businesses
we introduced a new Leadership Tearn created
a more nimble and preduct-drnven delivery
capability and wnproved our collaboration with
innovation teams all with the aim of bettel
serving existing and new customers

L SEG Business Services Limited, our shared
services company, has broadened into services
for corporate functions

- Integration underway of Mergent and The Yield
Book technologies into the broader Group

32

Introduction

Technology Services provides the Group and its
customers ncluding banks speciahst trading firms
and other capital market venues with resiient
fngh-speed low latency trading platforms post trade
platforms 1eal time rmarket data and survellance
products and services

Exchange Technology

Our rash equity and retal band markets run on the
latest versian of the Millenmurm Fxchange trading
platform This technology hasreduced our rost base
and increased the opportunities for customers 1o
benefit from enhanced tune tronality and the further
expansion of our co-location services This has
allowed us to meet the needs of our Lustomers
quickly and cost effectively

LSEG completed an extensive programme of change
n order to ensure s readiness for the implementation
of MIFID 11 on 3 January 2018 The programme
nvelved a comprehensive assessment across LSEG
markets to identity the wnpact of the new requlation
and imptement the necessary changes to technology
rules and business processes All technological
upgrades were completed and tested with customers
ahead of MiF 1D 11 go live

t ollowing the completed acquisihions of Mergent and
The Yield Book and Citi Fixed Income Indices 1 2017
then technologies are being integrated with the
Group s 1o utihise new data and analytic capabihities
nternally as well as tor our customers

FURTHER INFORMATION

Market trends and our respanse far Technology
Services can be found on pages 12-15 Profitability
of each segment can be found inthe Financial
Review an pages 36—41 Anoverview of the
requlatory landscape can be found on pages
166167 A glossary of terms can be found on
pages 162-165

Thicughout the yeal we also cornpleted the rigration
of the Bolsa ¥ Mercados Argentinos to the Millenniim
Exchange platform and Oslo Bors launched LSE s new
Turquorse Lit Auctions functionahty on its Millennuurm
txchange trading system

The Group contmues to assess opportumties that
east i Finanowl Techrnology (hmlechy such as
distnbuted ledger / blockchain machine learmning
big data and cloud-computing LSEG through Borsa
Itaiana announced in July a collaboration with 1BM
to develop a blockchain solution to digitise the
1ssuance of secunties for unlisted SMEs mEdrope
This aims 1o replace paper trading certificates
commonly 1ssued by private compames with
amore streamlined and transpaient process

LSEG Bustniess Services Limited {BSL) owr shared
services company provides a range of resthent and
efficient technology services Group-wide as well as
reducing costs by leveraging low cost centres via
centralised technology operanons and back office
The BSL shared services model 15 scalable and as such
has been extended to cor porate functions i 2017

Through our Millenmurn Exchange technology
our UK cash equity Continues to exhimt excellent
techrcal performance with the trading systems
avallable for 100% uptime dunng the year (2016
100%) The average daily volume of transactions
for 2017 was S3muthon
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LSEG Techmology

LSEG Technology 1s the new name for our technology
businesses which includes Millenmumll and Gatelab
2onew Leadership Tearn has been ntroduced and our
development appraach 1s changing to help us further
productise the business Qur procducts will be
erihanced tateflect an ermphasts oninnovannm in the
areas of emerqing technologies such as artificial
Inteiligence (Al large scale data analytics Blockchain
and distnbuted ledger fechnology

MillenniumIT

Kullenmiurml T was acquied by Lhe Group in 2009
Millenmiuml T prosades advanced market leading
vaptal markets software and has rmplemented
solutions for over 40 argamsations and exchanges
worldwide

Awide range of software solutions are offered by
Willenmiaml T willennurn Exchange the flagship
mulh-asset tracina platform thiough which all of
the Group s cash equity and retail bond markets run
Millenmiurm Market Data the real tme data and index
ralculation platform ullenmium Survetllance winch
detet ts abnormal trading behavicur and among
athers Millenmium PostTrade whic b offers real tme
cleanng settlerment Tisk management and

CSD solutions

In Decernber 2017 LSC6 dannounced that Lanka
Centuy Investrments ILCT1 had acquired full
ownershp of sillenmiumi L ESP a global [T enterprise
solutions provider part of the Mulenmurm[T business
LSEG retained MillenmiumIT Software the trading
technology and software developrment comparnent
of the buainess

Gatelab

Gatelab owr Italy and UK-based technology
company ts a provider of tully MIFID [I-complhant
trachng and post trade solutions ta the global
financial commumty The products and services
Gatelab offers to buy-side sell-side and hedge fund
partners include multt asset cross-market electrome
trading platforms ultra-low latency pre-trade rnisk
market adapters smart order routing for equities
and bonds and post trade deal capture and

Cross asset margung

This year Gatelab becarme an approved pravider of
sk gateway) services for third party chents accessing
the Bombay Stock Exchange [BSED This enables
users to send aders to the BSE currencyy dervatives
segrent provided all pre-trade nisk chechs are met

Exactpro

In January Z018 Exactpro Systems was divested
flom [ SEG LSEG will rernain a sigrific ant customer
of Exactpto which will provade amindependent
sattware quality assessrment of LSEG s core programs
through a multi-year services agreement between
the 2 companies
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our wider respdhsibilitg

The Group fulfils vital economic and social roles i enabling
companies to access funds for growth and development As
such, integrity and trust remain at the core of what we do

Below, we summarise our approach to Corporate Sustainability (CS}),
including non-financial reporting disclosures, and highlight some of
the developments over the past year We have also produced a separate,
detailed 2017 €S report, which can be viewed at www.lseg.com/
about-london-stock-exchange-group/corporate-responsibility.

Our Approach
Our €5 strateqy underhes our business strategy, and has 2 core objectives
— To play an essential role in enabling sustainable global econormic growth and

- To ensure our C5 behaviour and actions are consistent with good practice while
generating long-term value creation

Our (5 strategy 15 executed thiough 4 piliars our markets our services, our
people, and our communities using 6 impact areas that duect the Group s
focusin all CS actwities and imtiatives Executive Committee members lead
warking groups composed of cross Group colleagues focused on developing
specific targets and action plans in each of the 4 mllars As part of amatenahty
assessment, we have applied this framewaork to diect our €5 appreach toadentify
the most relevant and impaortant ssues for the Group

We have seen good progress inour €S performance with our external CSratings
rernaining in the top quartile when ranked against peers As aur business expands
and dwersifies we contimue to1eview our approach to sustamabity Our
objectwes for each of our 6impact areas ate set out 11 the Looking Ahead section
of our €& Report

CS Impact Framework
Pillars

Qur Markets Our Services

Enabling informed investment
decisions and transparent
rarkets operations

Supperting the sustainable growth
of companies for lang-term

Impact Areas

Our People Our Communities

Recrutting and developing
diversified talent to futhl
their potential

Empowenng peaple
enriching communities

Grow Disclose

Convene

We will provide
nvestors with
informaton and tools
to assess the ESG
performance of
companies to enable
incarparation inte
engagement and
mvestment

we will help small
and medum-sized
enterprises (SMEs)
raise capital and fund
investments to create
employment
worldwide

We leverage our
position at the centre
of caprital markets to
facihtate dialogue
and catalyse action
towards the
development of
sustainable inance

Environment

As a Group we tecogmse that we must use resources 1In ways that deliver the
long-terrm sustainality and profitability of the bustiness and have a positive
impact on the environment we are taking such factors into account in developing
products and services that support these ains through companies listed on our
markets The Group s primary greenhouse gas (GHG) ermissions anse from energy
waste and water m our offices and data centres around the worid from staff travel
and indwectly from our supply chain

Dunrig the rteporting penod we achieved & 31'% reduction 1in our absolute carbon
emiss10ns and a 42% redud tion in carbon emitssions per Full Time Employee (FTE)
accelerating our progress from previous years This sigmificant 1eduction s
primatily attributed to our move 1o over 64 1 of the Group's electiicity now being
provided by 100% natural renewable enerqyy

We take an active appreach to emissions management with our global
Environmental Management Group measuring GHG tmpacts across our property
portfolio including managed offices where possible We report beyond the
mandatory guidelines to include Scope 3 emussions Petformance (s reperted
quarterly via our Intranet, and we annually disclose to the CDP Dow Jones
Sustainabihty Inchces (DISI) FTSE4Good and on out website www.lseg.com

InJune 2017 the Financial stability Board s Task Force on Chimate-related
Financial Disclosres (TCFD) released its reporting recommendations The Group
signed the TCFD staterment of support affirrming its cormmitment to support the
tecommendanons and sees them as an impaortant step in driving unproved global
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Transition Develop Sustain

we will help the

less advantaged

N communities
worldwide to develop
business skills and
to support the
environment

we work with 1ssuers
and investors to
provide solutiens that
accelerate and
manage the transition
to a low carbon and
sustatnable economy

we will employ and
mnvest in the
development of 2
highly diverse
global warkforce

to delwer on our
sustainable vision

consistency nvoluntary global teporting standards As the Group and FT5E
Russell n particulan, intends to play a cntical role 1n enabling the flow of
information envisioned by the TCFD the recommiendations wete incorpot ated
nto FTSE Russell s chmate-related indicators and in the Group ESG Reporting
Gudance Gong forward the Group will continue to review the recommendations

Global 2017 GHG Emissions

tCO.e - Tonnes of carbon

dioxide equivalent 2017 2016" % Change
Total Groap Carbor Foctprint 21802 3. 5Hal 13000
—perm 023€ ~ C3%l
- perfFTE 3949 661
per £r1 Revenue 1323 151
SCOpE . 191y 1,582 21z
Scope 2 11749 21738 el
Seope 3 71320 £572 114
Sccpe 3 IElect noity Trancmission
and Districuticn: 915 179¢ 1450
T 20 bgones 3o beeonpdated ool b annaal e s g b g lan e e g lual
P Ak supp lare
AL np beralaand = g breal D w0 e ragthet based s e 2om st a1
Carabar i vt el an e bonod S thlies o apeles HAtg 1l e CECR I N EIPRR TINY )
Lra st an dFlesy vetn e
a  butchae d=l=ctnotg g the b £t b e Tas b puoncha o b al

woe i
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Inaddihon to monitoring our environmental mpact we have set environmental
targets for the next inandial year including energy watel waste and travel as
well as long term science-based taigets out 1o 2630 More information on these
aswell as full detanls of cmissions and reparting methodology can be found in
our CSreport

Social

People

Attracting, developing and retaming the skills we need fo deliver onown strategy
15 vital for the Group We are umifying our growing company through a number
of processes and we are dedicated to supporting oun employees development
M an environment built on cote values of partnership integrity nnavation

and excellence

Lmpioyee engagement 1s of high importance to the continued growth of the
Group dand in 2017 thes was reflected in our response to the findings of the prior
year s colleague engagemnent survey 3 key areas on which our employees

felt we could improve were commurication around change carcer satistac ion
and cross-Group collaboration To address these we invested 1na Group Change
Frarmework designed to help us dnive greater consistency and transparenciyn
how we rmanage change Inaddibon we developed the Group Career Framework
tor launchin 2015 enabling colleagues to explore oppartunibies 1n 2017 we
launched a focus onwellbelng n the UK covering 5 areas physical mental
social purpose finanadl and work-ife balance The Mentor Exchange s also
fostening collaboration and career developmernt by uriting mentors and
mentees from deross the Group we plan 1o hast nur next Group wide
employes engagement survelyin 2018

Dwversity/Equal Opportumties

we value diversity as a driver for development and innovation Our opelations span
the globe with offices 1 Austialid Canada france Hong Kong india [taly Japan
Malaysia Mexico Tawan China SnLanka UAE the UK andthe US We have
ermplogees of 72 different nationahties 1eflectimg bath the international scale

of our business and the dversity of owr customer base In 2017 we provided
urcorsoous bias tratming to all calleagues and dwversity awareness warkshops 1o
line managers We are working to increase dversity and inclusion sach as flexible
working and the disahility confident employer scherne By 2020 we arn Lo achieve
astretch target of 400 fermale represent aton for semol management and our
overall staff numbers

Gender Diversity
Female Male
z ]
Lacw 9 absicery boatd: S AL
Exet Lt Srmmitter ard Lzagoship Tramis 1at 302
Al cther smaf 15 T
T tal 1 P _3ns
ottt gl FER MR} i et
f I IR TR T1 LT S B R TR IR { YR T TR
Tho sl oo P e s itb ol frea o [ LTI |
[ O T R I N N L R T O R | TR TR X R RO L R TR S TTR ol
[ B 1 T B B T TR S|
Note i Tana o Lo b

Areport nngender pay gap wes pubished nMarch 2018 The report can be found
her www.lseq.com/about-london-stock-exchange-group/corporate-
responsibility

Human Rights

As part ol our approact to socal tesponsibilty we adhere to the HH Guiding
Principles on Business and Haman Flghts together with the International

L aboar Organization © onve ntions and Re-carnmiendations withm our workng
L TNMent N eadh otation wherewe operale: The Groups strongly snpports
these tomentore, which anm 1o pramote fresndorm of assaciannn and eguality
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Strategic Report Our wider responsibility

and abalish forced labour and child labour Huran nights considerations
are also included 1nour Supphier Code of Conduct and Group Corporate
Responsibility Policy

The Group has a zero-tolerand & approach to modern slavery Ow Slavery and
Human traffickang staterment (published on oun websiter describes the steps
taken during 2017 1o wnprove ow supply cham management and procurement
processes and procedures Suppliers that make up the top 75 ¢ of spend have
been reviewed for modern slavery nisks

Community

We work to ensute Lhat our activities benefit the communities where we
are present We have an active engagement programme with governrnents
nter governmental agencies and regulators to promote £5G disclosue and
sustatnable practices Wework to suppurt Incal commumties and the
ervironment whete we have a sigmfcant presence

London Stock Fxchange Group Foundation set upin 2000 prowvides a prmary
channel for the Group s chantable anang and a focal pownt for staff engagement,
with lncal chanties In 2017 the Group donated €1 122 000 ta the Foundation

and £107 000 directly to a number of chanties The Foundation s approach and
positiomng 1s ahgned wath the overall Group C5 strategy while recogrsing the
glohal reach of LSEG s business iodel UNICEF remains a global charity partner
and we continue 1o suppart the community mvestment programme A new UK
charity partner school Home support was chosen i 2017 The chanty provides
access to education and life skills for young peaple with the aim of enabling them
to live secure adult lives

Governance

The Group1s comimitted to the ighest standards of corporate governance and
business Integrity and in the past year we have again comphed with all of the UK
Corporate Governance Code's provisions The Board will continue to ensure that

it provides effective leadership and promotes uncompromising standards For
further infatrmatinn an governance see pages b2—63

we face a wide and evolving universe of risks Gur presence in post trade seraces
provides expasure to financal market volatlity In addimon we face technology
nsks such as cyber threats systemns restience and technolugical imovanon

and politieal regulatory and macrg-econamic risks which include the impact

of our competitors actions Achieving on our growth strategy m thes dynanmc
svironmMent regquires strong nsk management Our governdanc e and nsk
managerment structures continue to devetop to rmeet this need 1see pages

<7 and 56 for further detals]

Anti-bribery and corruption

Wi have assessed the vanous risks that the Group faces with regards to employee
canuct and behaviour A range of pohcies are m place tailored to the needs of the
Group and regularly teviewed and approved by the Board wicluding anti-bribeny
and corruption and conflict of mterest polites as patLof our wider conduct
INitatives New jonets aiong with existing staff have throughout the ¢ ourse of
2017 undertaken mandatory comphance testing on these subpects with 100!
successtul completion across the Groups operations The televance and spt of
these policiey alnng with then communicanon Lo statt 15 regularly reviewed to
ensure confidenc e mmeeting expectations and ensunig understanding

Capital Market Days

we are supporhing thermplementation of our £5G reporting grdance through
E5G foacused Capntal Markel Days The guidanc e was published i Februang 2007
and wets out tecommendations for FSGareporting The fust Sustamabbity Tay
angarised by Borsa ltaland wes bolel i italy and w=ltormied over 2=0ealtendes
anel 3 b sGorwestors LCsustainatility Day hosted by LSE mepected to take
plaren 2018
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Financial review

The financial review covers the financial year ended 31 December 2017

Commentary on performance Uses vanances on a continuing orgare and
constant currency basis unless otherwise stated Constant cumency 15 calculated
by rebasing 2016 at 2017 fareign exchange rates Sub segrmentation of revenues
are unaudited and are shown to assist the understanding of performance

Cost of sales manly compnse data and heence fees data teed costs expenses
incurred inyespect of share of surplus amangements that are directly attributable to
the construction and dehvery of customers’ goods of services, and any other costs
linked and dwectly incurred to generate revenues and provide services to customers

David Warren

Highlights
— Total ncorne of £1 955 millien (2016 £1 657 millon) increased by 18 o and total
revenue of £1768 milhon 12016 £1 515 milhon) incteased by 17

- Adsted EBITDA of £915 millon (2016 €771 millian) increased by 19%
- Adjusted operating profit of €812 mulhon (2016 £686 rillon; Increased by 18%
- Operating profit of £626 rmillion (2016 £427 milon) increased by 47+

adjusted basic sarmngs per share' of 1487 pence 12016 124 7 pence)
increased by 19 %

- Basic earnings per share of 153 6 pence (2016 63 8 pence) mereased by 141%

Vooban loansto ke Be habion uioup s b e sl Dt hanmd i e e s
[F TN IV P P TR R LTS I SR TR
A wdwall A oo oredoalyme at-m
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Group Chief Financial Officer

A koynne abimdnoar da th=Town Thediea e Hi
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Including discontinued operations

— Totalncome of £1955 million (2016 £2 048 milhioni decreased by 5™ and total
revenue of £1768 million (2016 £1 905 millon) decreased by 7w Adjusted
operating expenses of £919 milion (2016 £955 milkory decreased by 4 «

Adjusted EBITDA of £515 rulhon (2016 £798 million ncreased by 15%.
- hAdjusted operating proht of €812 million 2016 £713 million) increased by 147
- Operating profit of £603 malhon (2016 £530 railhon) increasad by 1449

— Adiusted basic earnings per share of 148 7 pence (2016 1297 pence}
ncreased by 154

— Cash generated fiom operations of £852 million 2016 £618 rullion;
ncreased 38

- year end operating net debt to pro forrma adjusted FBITDA at 17 times
(2016 11 times) wathin the Group's normal target range of 1-7 times

Fottor s Dot the omderlipreg pre v wane = e Losar = de o piear
s anpble 1wl o
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12 months ended Dec 2017

12 months ended Dec 2016

Yarance at
orgame and

vanance constant
Continuing  Discontinued Total Contmuing  Discontinued Total  {Comtmuing) currency?
Revenue B Em  Im _Em £m_ £m _Em % %
Intore atior Semvires 736 - 736 L3t - Erla 24 13
st Trade Sery ces — LOH 432 - 432 356 - 356 | 17
Post Trade Servie- - 7757 and Monte Titza 109 - 109 104 - 104 s 12
Lapita Mdat<e ¢ 191 - 391 164 454 £ 2
fechnc oy 52rvices 91 - 91 i) - b 3 -
Rassell [mvestmert Mandgenent - - - 482 Jan - -
Jher N 9 - 9 4 24 - -
Total revenue 1,768 - 1,768 1515 0. P i7 1
Net Treasu e e Throuo 1O F Dusimesi g 162 - 162 5 - 1I8 4l .
Uraern e L 25 - 25 o 7 1 1% 45 23
Total income o 1,955 - 1,955 1f: 2Cay 1z '
- (215} - (2150 7t 375 i B
Gross profit 1,740 - 1,740 R -t LETD T L
Cperating eapences oefore depre st on
amurti-aticr ard impairmient (816) - (816) el 1€ B B £
v1ame of le-s abter fax of ascooates (9} ) - © 1 - 5 et o
Adjusted earnings before interest, tax,
depreciation, amortisation and imparment? 15 - 915 N T3y e le
Deprec afizn a™iort «anan
and imparrment (03 - (103) 2 - 125 o Ee 7
Adjusted operating profit’ __ 812 _ - 812 het e BE 1% )
Speratirg orobtd Liss - 626 (23 603 [ I £ 47 4
Adjusted basic earmings per share' 148.7p - - 148.7p 14 1y 50 L25 T 1 -
Basic earnings per share 153 6p (7.2p)_ 146.4p (Zap (2030 IARTE sl
ToBeta= b sabione b vt Dioeng b g ot ane e Dl png 1=m
Ciegarn ey The =baat e o 0 tharee o e B e DT el o b band sohde s rgent Saapddar bonel beoes bl
Note i v altab e g s late Thoas o i o e
ommentary on th ments 1s done on a continuing basis unless stat herwt .
. y Ie SEJImEnts 15 do 0 q s staled otherwise Information Services
T - - T Vanance at
Total Income (Continuing Operations) 12 months 12 months orgamc and
£m ended ended constant
Dec 2017 Dec 2016 vanance currency'
4o 1955 Revenue _E£m £m % %
L » FTSE 2 el Indexe- 546 a1 23 i
30 - e Fea Tire Dats 94 2l 3 i
04 17z — A e E
1657 ek Dthe mformat ¢
: R Sy iy 96 a5 1 15
. Total revenue - 736 £o5 A K
ct o adie- - (62) o A o
Gross profit 674 Sd. oS 1%
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FTSE Russell s tevenue was £546 million (2016 £403 millony tncluding first time
contributions from Mergent and The Yield Book FTSE Russell revenue increased by
15% with performance in hng with the Group's announced double-digit growth
target for F TSE Russell revenug This performance was drnven by ncreases in AU
levels in benchmarked ETFs and other nvestable products aswell as strong
subscnption renewal rates and data sales Following the 2014 acquisttion of Frank
Russell Company targets weare set for both cost and revenue synergies and m 2041/
we achieved the 3 year target of US$78 milhon for cost synergies on time and met
the S year target for tevenue synergies of UsS$48 mullion more than 2 years early

Real Time Data revenue incteased by '« year on year due to a focus on enterprise
hcensing while the number of terrminals decreased by 10% Lo 180G:000 (2016
200 000 with the reduction largely in lower yield terminals

Other Information services revenues increased by 15%, marly as a result of
growth inboth Unavista driven by conninued user base expansion for regulatory
reporting trade confurnations and reconciliations especially i anticipation of
MIFID [implemerttationin 2018, and SEDOL from continued heence growth

Cost of sales 1ose by 4% mamly as a result of increased data charges and
partnership costs both related ta growth in FTSE Russell revenues Gross proht
margin expanded as a result of 1evenue growth across the division

Operatng expenses of £291 rmithon (2016 £204 mullion ingreased by 437 driven
by the £32 rmilion net impact of Mergent and The vield Book dc quisitions and
15PS disposal and foreign exchange movernents due to the weakernng of Sterling
relative to the US Dollar Cost increases were parhally offset by the synergy
achievement fram the Russell Index acquisition

Opetating proht rose by 14 4 10 £383 million (2016 €337 rmullory diven largely by
FT5E Russell tevenue growth and contnibutian from the arquisttions of Mergent
and The Yield Book

Post Trade Services — LCH

12 months Vanance at

12 months
ended ended constant
TDec 2017 Dec 2016 Vanance currency
Revenue _ Em £m % %
T T 191 a1 17
Nnn-0OTC 133 116 14 7
Otrer ) » 68 45 37 38
Total revenue L w32 3¢ a
Net TreasurL Income 120 82 4 15
Jdther ncome 10 El 14 s
Total income :_ _ 562 447 20 21
Cost of sales (89 158 e i 47
Gross profit o 74 301 21 17
Cperating expenses 280) 26w A -
Operating profit! 194 123 58 -
Iop 'rmn\}:,pr}: .;‘im \npwl»ﬂ\lvf['; fit mem jur e nibaep 1< -\wiwrrw ahepedte bl
Pttt e an tanl e ne g ba st Vomane e b e ke nlgme ne onne an ke

o hange effet

Post Trade Services — LCH comprises the Group s majonty owned giobal cleanng
business Total income was £962 million (2016 €447 rrullon)

38

COTC clearing revenue increased by 17%, diven by SwapClear predommantly in
client clearingwith trade volume mcrteasing by 294 to 1,22/ 00012016 952 000)
LCH SwapAgent executed its first trades in 201/, having launched i 2016, to
sumplify the processing rargining and settlernent of non-cleared denvatives
2017 perfarmance 1510 ine with the Group s announced double-digit growth
target for O1C cleanng

Non-0TC clearing revenue ncreased by 7' reflecting strong growthin Fixed
Income volumes cleared Clearing in repo and cash bond markets incieased to
€875 mihon (2016 €/0 8 tnllion) 1n 2017 RepoClear launched Sponsored Cleaning
a service offening buy side furns direct access to LLH enabling irms to reduce
therr nisk and maximise balance sheet efficiencies

Other revenue which includes non-cash collateral management fees and
COMPIESSION SEIvICes grew by 38

Net Treasury Income increased by 39% to £120 rmihon wath a 26% increase in
average cash collateral held to £84 5 billion due toincrease in OTC and RepoClear
volumes (2016 €67 0 tilhon)

Cost of sales ncreased 47 v manly due to growth in SwapCleal and the associated
nicrease 0 share of surplus Gross profit increased by 17 4 1o L4724 rmillion

Operating expenses iIncreased by «% with foreign exchange movements due to the
weakening in Stething relatve Lo the Euro and ligher depreciation from mvestment

to support growth partially offset by the impact of cost saving nitiatives

LCH EBITDA margm increased by spp to 444 (2016 36 moving fowards the
announced target of ¢ 50% by 2019

Operatng profiit ncreased by Sk 1o 0194 mlbion (2016 £123 milhony

Post Trade Services — CC&G and Monte Titoti

12 mn‘nths 12 months varance at
ended endad constant
Dec 2017 Dec 2016 Vanance cutrency
Revenue Em £m % %
Clear ng{T&HG 39 43 181 1
Settlement Custedy
and Other iMT. 70 61 4 ¢
Inter-seqmental
revenue ~ 1 - - =
Total revenue 110 104 7 121
NeT “reasury .neoeme
WCEG 42 a3 13 fie]
Total income o 152 147 3 "
Cost of sales 17 113 30 2t
Gross profit 135 134 1 171 '
Operatmg expenses 64) 121 21 - '
Operating p(g_flt_’_ _ } 71 53 34 -
Vooaperalin e ac=nnes an b pendnneg e it vt e ettt e o sheabien arepar -G b il
Peotclatvar adart e ncgbas vanae b lode nn b alipng oeerment and taaornn

ER IR I

Post ade Services provides clearing (CC&G) settlement and custody achivities
{both Monte Titoly Total income {excluding inter-segmental Income) was £151
mullion {2016 £147 milion)

Annual Report December 2017



Strategic Report Financial review

&G cleaning revenues decreased by 14" influenced by a fall in dervatives
clearing volumes mirroring trading performance on the Italan [DEM rmarket
Monte Titoll tevenues increased by 6% due Lo growth of custody revenues from
domestic and international chents who nansferred ther partfalios to Monte Titol
accounts and the benefit of a full year of a new domestic pricing structure
introduced from May 2016

CCat generates Net Treasury Incommie by mvesting the cash margin held 1etaiming
any surplus after members are paid a retwn on theur cash collateral contnbutians
Met Treasury Income decreased by 9% rmanly due to unfavourable spreads and
lower cashheld w2017 1he average dady initial margin at £11 1 bullon s down

G (2016 €12 1 lhonm due to lower volatibty and valumes from alian fied
nceme markets

Cost of sales rose by 26 - largely as a result of the discount phase out of the
settlement dcquisition cost from TeS i Movernber 20160

Operating experises decreased by 210 dnven by the absence of 2016 globeSettie
imparment costs of £8 million

Operating proft increased by 32510 €/ million 12016 £93 milliom

Capital Markets
Vanance at
12 months 12 months arganic and
ended ended constant
Dec 2017 Dec 2016 vanance currency’
Revenue B £m Em % %
Frimdry h'arket: 110 21 C1 e
Secondary Marwets
Fupntien 163 M i 131
Secondary Marwste —
mued MeTe
Der vatives and Other St N O ° 121
Total revenue 391 e £ E
Coet oo sales (16) ol 1251 EEY
Gross profit 375 Auf [ o5
Cperating expen e (195) L5 S -
Operating profit? 180 o z -
T e powther albalare e Dol 0 o g b aa o b oo e
P A e b s aptal
I LRI Lt T N (T B IR B R [N L N I (R I TR SRR TR S B PP N T
[ T I R I KRR PR TR IR ST il b e bhewe e e eoan b v
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Capital Markets comprises Primaryy and Secondary tMarket actiaities Revenue was
2391 rmthon 12016 £ 308 rmidhon

Revenue increased by 3« largely diven by Ponmsary Markets performance with
revenLencreasing by 19 as UK equity issnance tebounded strongly i the Man
Market after prion gear uneertarnty following the UK referendur to leave the
Europedn Urnon

The total amount of capital raised across aur markets both through new arnd
further ssues increased by /30010 Taq 2 Bllon (2016 7256 Billion: Thete was
a45 " ncease with 194 new 155064 A0S AU matkets (291600 134) The pipelne
of rompames leoking to o our miarkets s ontinues to look promising
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In Secondary tarkets 1n the UR average order book daily value traded 1ose by 4'«
at £5 3 billion 2016 €51 lhon Itahan equity tading volumes decreased by 6
due tolower market volatilty al 276,000 trades per day (2016 255 000) Trading on
Turquolse our pan-European equities platforrm decreased by 24 1n average dafy
equity value traded against a strong 2016 performance to €3 9 bilhon (2016 €5 4
bubont with some offset from arowthn the ligher margun Block Discovery trading

bixed Income Denvatives and Other ievenue decreased by 2% The result reflects
a v decrease involumes on the [talian [DERM market Fixed Income decreased
with a dechne of &7 10 MTS Cash and Bondvision notional value and an 8
dechne in MTS Repo

Cost of sales decreased by 30 reflecting lower Turquotse ht book revenues with
grossprofitupby 5,

Operating expenses increased by 15" to £195 mullion 12016 §16% milhani with the
main driver being forelgn exchange movement s due to the weakening in Sterling
relative to the Euro

Operating profitincreased by 2 to 180 mutlion 12016 £177 mibon

Technology Services

12 months 12 months Vanance at
ended Dec ended Dec canstant
2017 2016 Yanance currency
£m £m %
Revenue a1 b . -
Irter-segmental
T erue 20 £ -
Total revenue o1 10 E
Cootof sale: B {29) A
Gross profit . 82 He & E
DUerat ng expenses (84} 164 51 —
Operating {loss)/profit’ {2) ic mn -
| oAt e T B T B [ LT IS TR I B B | ele ot Py ol
[ T A T BT L R P R | | T S s P S CRU A I N A VR P R [ B I T O ]
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Technelogy Services provides hosting solutions chent connectiity and software
products for the Group and third parties Third party revenue was £91 rmilhon
{2016 £8b rmlhony

Operating expenses increased by 31 .10 €84 milllon 12016 €62 milliant driven
by continued Group technology investiment centralisaton of costs and torcign
exchange movements due Lo the weakening in Sterling relative to the Lo and
S Dellar

The Technolegy segment made a loss of £2 millon 2016 L1 rmillon profit
The Group disposed nf 2 Terhnology busimesses khlienmumiT E5P was sald
o 28 December 2017 and Exactprowdas sold on 17 January 207 pnst year end

These businesses genetated a tutal of &40 mulhon revenue 172 milion of  ost
Sf sales and L8 rulhon oparating cost tn 2017

39



Financial review

Operating Expenses (Continuing Operations)

On a conlinuing basis Group operating expenses before amortisation of
purchased intangible assets and non-underlying wems were £919 mmullion
17016 €791 rmillion)

Operating Expenses (Continuing Operations)
£m
o
32

1 mths i vl Pl [Sa BT
LRI T o [N U]
! e
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Operating expenses increased by 64 The Group cost base was adversely affected
by £43 million of forelgn exchange movements ansing as a result of translating
and revaluing 1ts foreign currencyy costs assets and habilities into LSEG s teporting
currency of Stering The man drivers of the constant currency cost base ncrease
were vanable staff costs and depreciation Depreciation amortisation and
imparrment increased by 344 to £103 mullon (2016 £77 mullion excluding £&
midhion glebeSettle imparment) duting the year A simlar inctease 1s expected in
2018 as the Group continues to invest In core technology react to regulatory
change and deliver new products In 2017 the Group achieved the previously
dnnounced runTate synergy targets for Frank Russell Company and LCH-related
cost savings Offsetting this was a £ 32 millon net impact of iIngrgame 1terms  being
businesses owned for less than 12 months in either period, pnncipally 15PS
Mergent and The Yield Book The Group continues to exercise strong cost ¢ontrot
and invest N new praducts to support growth 2018 will see the effect of a full year
of The vield Book costs and recent Technalogy disposats

Share of Loss after Tax of Associates

The £9 rmillion loss reflects an increase in the Group s share of the aperating loss
of CurveGlobal to 43 384% (2016 26%j following further investment and a £4
rmillion recagnition of histonc losses due to increased ownership share Despite
client focus on MIFLD LLimplementanon dunng 2017 CurveGlobal volumes
continued to grow and open interest at the end of 2017 was 162 000 contracts
(2016 39 000 contracts)

Non-Underlying Items and Purchased Intangible Assets
Amartisation of purchased intangible assets decieased by ££ milhion to £153
million (2016 £157 milhon} Additional charges included £25 million of
transaction-relatled costs £7 milhon of restructuring costs and £8 million of
ntegration costs These were partally offset by a profit after taxof £7 milhon
relating to the disposal of 1ISPS and MillenmumiT ESP businesses

40

Finance Income and Expense and Taxation
Met finance costs were €62 mulon, down £1 milion on the prior year on a
continuing basis

The effective taxrate (ETR) for the year inespect of continuing underlying
operations and ncluding the effect of prior year adjustments 15 22 4% (2016

22 5% Thisteflects redurtions in both the UK and Itahan tax rates the mix of
profits in the Group and finalisation of prior year tax returns The underliing ETR
for 2017 excluding ene-off tems was 23 4, and 1s expected to be swmlarnin 2018

The contnbution of continued underlying operations in the US towards the ETR
was stable n the pertod US tax reform was signed into law in Decemnber 2017 with
effect from 2018 However we do not expect the lower Federal tax rate 1o have a
matenal impact on the Group s combined underlying effective tax rate Inpart this
15 due to the manner in which the US acquisitions have beert inanced and the
nrroduction of a new base erosion anti-abuse tax (the BEAT) which will apply to
ntercompany transactions with the wider Group

Cash Flow and Balance Sheet
The Grouprs business continued to be strongly cash generative dunng the year with
cash generated from continuing actvibies of £852 rdlon (2016 £618 rrilhon;

At 31 December 2017 the Group had net assets of £3 752 milhon 12016 £3 614
million) The central counterparty cleanng business assets and habilities within
LCH and CCaG largely offset each other but are shown gross on the balance sheet
as the amounts recewable and payable are with different counterpaities

Net debt

B " 2017 2016
Year ended 31 December o gm £m
Gress botrowinas 1,952 1166
Cash and (est cgunalents (1,381) 11150
Net genivative fnanoial llabilit es . 25 i 19
Net aeb o 597 34
Regqlatorg and operationa tdash e 1,042 ndb
Operating net debt ____1e39 BY

AL 31 December 2017 the Group had operating net debt of £1 639 rmullion after
setting aside £1042 milion of cash and cash equivalents held ta support regulatory
and operational requirernent s, including regulated cash and cash equivalents at LCH
Group and amounts covenng requirernents at other LSEG companies Regulatory
and operational cash increased by £154 rinllion dunng the perod 10 31 December
2017 as aresult of over £100 milhon surplus cash held in LOH, due to be distributed
o LSEG 1N HI 2018, with the balance cormprising cash retained at kMonte Titab (to
suppart its C5DR obhgationsy and other regulatory and operational requarerments

The Group s grass barrowings ncreased by £787 milhon duning the penod to
31 Derember 2017 primartly due to the acquisitions of The Yield Book and
Mergent aswell as the completion of a £200 rmillion share buy back programme

The Group retainec total committed bank facilities of £1 200 rmillion durning the
financial year A new facility of £600 rmillion was armanged on improved terms
whilst an existing facility, also of £600 rmuillion was extended for a further year
1o November 2022 The new facility1s a 5 year comrmitment with 2 one-year
extension options avallable to the Group subject to lender approval

In Septernber 2017, the Group tock advantage of favourable debt caprtal market
conditions and extended its debt matunty profile by ssuing £1 bilion of bands

n 2 €500 milon tranches unde 1ts updared £2 billen euro madun term notes
programme The bonds are unsecured and the tranches are due for repagment in
Septamber 2024 and Septernber 2029 The caupons are ixed at O B75'% per annum
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and 175, per annum respectively However €700 milhon of the proceeds of

the bonds have been swapped into USD as part of the Group s objective to match
eaTmIngs 1N carrency and protect key ratios resuliing in an eftective hlended rate
of interest of 2 8- per annum averall The Group redeemed infull LLH Graup s € 200
milhon Preferted Securities at the first [ssuer Call date in May 2017 it also putin
place a £1 bithon euto commetcial papet programme laterin 2017 which at the
end of the year remained unutilised

with over £650 million of undraw n commmitted bank lines avalable together with
strong cash generahon the Group continues to be well positioned to fund future
growth wath scope for further refinancing in 201819 to underpurts longer term
debt captal pasttionng

Debt maturity profile
£rm
32
L
443 441
249 298
1 _ N
Jndraan @ Trawr

The Group s intetest cover the coverage of net finance cxpense by EBITDA
iconsolidated carmings before net finance charges taxation impairment
depreciation and amortisatien forelgn exchange gams or lusses and non-
underlpng tems) increased to 15 5 times 12016 13 0 mesy inthe 12 months to
31 Decemnber 2017 This was driven primanily by earmings growth with imterest
costs remairing 1in ing with 2016 The Group s orgarmc cash generation remaned
strong but sigrificant inorganic expansion increased leverage ioperating net debt
to LELTDA updated to account for the EBITDA of acquisttions of disposals
undertaken in the periodi ta 17 times at 31 Decenber 2017 (31 Decenber 2016
11 times) Leverage temains well within the targeted range of 1-2 times

The Group s long-term credit ratings were rawsed on the back of strong growth and
prudent leverage managerment Moody s and S&P ncreased ther ratings of | SFG
to A3 and A respectively and changed therr cutlooks to stable LOH Group
withdiew its rating upon 1iedemption of its Preferred Secunties but ithated new
long term ratings with S&P at LOH Ltd and LCH S A to support business ines with
bott ratings set at A« with a stable outionk

Foreign exchange

2017 2016
Speeovfetates 21 Lecomber 1.12 117
Seot S st Tate dt T Ueo e bl 1.35 e
Fwelooe Ve fate "0 e Led” ) 114 122
2 aacr £ s famthouelt 129 [N
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The Group s pnncipal foreign exchange exposure anses as a result ot translating
its foreign currency earmings assets and hamlities into LSEG s reporting currency
of sterling For the 12 months to 31 December 2017 for continuing cperations the
man exposures for the Group were its Luropean-based Furo reporting businesses
andits US based operations prinapally FTSE Russell Mergent and The Yield Book
A 10 Euro cent mavernent 1 the average £/ 1ate for the year and a 10 cent
movernent in the average £/U5$ rate for the year would have changed the Group s
continuing operating profit for the year betore amortisation of purchased
ntangible assets and non-underlying iterms by approximately £23 milhon and
£24 million respectively

The Group continues to manage (ts translation nsk expostire by matching the
currency of its debt to the currency of ity earmngs where possible 1o ensure1ts
key Ainancial ratios are protected from matenal foreign exchange rate volatility

Eamnings per share

The Groupecorded an adiusted basic earmngs per share which excludes
amortisation of purchased intangible assets and non underlyimg iterms of
148 7 pence 12016 129 7 pencel Basl earnings pel share were 146 4 pence
12016 435 pencer

Dividend

The Board s proposing a final duadend of 37 2 pence per share which tagether
with the ntenm dradend of 14 4 penice per share paid to shareholders in
Septernber 7017 1esults na 19 wancrease 1N the total dvidend to 51 6 pence
per share The final drvadend will be pad on 30 May 2016 to shareholders on
the reqister as al 4 May 2016

Financial Targets
At the 12 Jure Investor Update eventin 2017 the Group set out financial targets as
below and continues to progress against the taigets as reterenced earlier in the text

Financial Targets to 2019

FTSE Double-digit growth to continue
Russf“ _Sustainable and attractive margins over the sarme period
LCH Double-chgit OTC revenue growth to continue
B _ Accelerating EBITDA margin growth - appiaaching 504 by 2019
LSEG

Operating expenses held at ¢.4% p a mcrease while the Group
continues to deliver revente grow th and improved margins

Next phase cost saves CH50mpa Dy ext 2019

EBITDA margin of ¢.55%
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Risk management oversight

The management of risk 1s fundamental to the successful execution
of our Strategic Plan and to the resilience of our operations The Group
adopts a proactive approach to risk management During 2017 the
Group has successfully adapted its systems, processes and controls
to meet several significant changes in the requlatory environment
including MiFID II and the introduction of the EU Benchmark
Regulations. Our approach to both regulatory and other changes has
allowed the Group to continue to support and setvice its key markets
and clients and maintain the Group's standards for delivering stable
and resilient services that meet our clients needs

L2

LSEG's Risk Culture

while our formal nsk framework rodifies the objectives and practices that govern
OUr processes our Tisk culture determines the manner Inwhich we manage risks
avery day

Our management culture embeds nsk awareness transparency and
acrountabhity & strong emnphasis 1s placed on the timely identification

and reporting of 11sk exposures and n the stiategic analysis of prevailing or
anticipated nsks The responsiibty for dentfying and managung nsks rests

with management and with the Executive Committee, with independent
wvetsight framour Group Risk Management fsarm and from the Graup Board Risk
Comernttee Our nisk culture 15 one of our most fundamental tools for effective nsh
rmanagement 0w behaviour framewark feeds inta the cnitena that we use to
assess the ettec tiveness of our sk culture and the cormmurmeation esc alation
and use of nisk analysis 10 make strategic deqisions

Strategic Risk Objectives
L SEG s Stratequ Risk Objectives derve from the strategy of the Group which 1s
defined annually by the Board The nisk objec bives of the Group are as follows

- Maintaining a strong rsk culture throughout the Group the Rish Management
Framewaork 15 embedded within dwvisions and functions

nMaintaiming stakenolder confidence the Group s stakeholders have confidence
1ty abibty to deliver its strategic objectives with 1abust and effective
governance and operational controls

— Mantaining stable eatmings growth the strategic growth of the businessis
delivered 1n a controlled manner with long-term value enhancement and low
volatihiy ot underlying prohtabibity

mMatntaning capital teguiremnents the Glaup has sufficient capital resources to
meet regulatory requirements {o cover unexpected losses and (o meet the
Graup s strategic ammtions

Maimtaimng hguidity the Group retains or has adequate access ta funding o
meet 1ts obligations taking mto account the availability of funds

— mMomitoring and managing credit risk exposure 1 conjund tion with prevailing
macroeconomic and geopolitical factors to enstre Group Thresholds mits are
always adhered to

- Ensuning prudent levels of margin, default funds and Wquadity arrangermentsin
the Group's CCPs

- Maintaimng operational stability by factitating orderly market eperations
the Group s operations are deliveied ina secure and efficient manner
without distuption

— Actneving operational excellence consistent with the Group s aspuation to be
operationally ‘best in class

= Mawntaimng physical and [T secunity Lo protect the Group s assets our people
infrastructwre, data and other assets

- Adhenng toregulatory requirement s the Group conducts activities at all times
e full comphance with its requlatory obligatrons
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Current Risk Focus
Current risks onwhich we continue 1o focusielate to

- Geopolitical Uncertainty Whilst more intormation with regard to the timing
progress and outcome of the negohation process of the UK s future relahonship
with the LU)S starting to emerge uncertainty s expected to contmue in 20118 as
the UK government moves 1nto Lhe second phase of negohations

- Regulatory Change Regulatory change affects the operations of the Group as well
asthose of our users and castomed s and increases requlatory risk through
nceased requlatory comphance sk Fallowing the reguirements of MiF1D 1 and
MIFIR coming mnto effect on 3 January 2018 further changes will continuen 2013

— Transformation Recent acquisitions increase the fransformation nisk whilst
delivering oppartunities fo compete globally

- Liquchty The repo market has been adversely affected by bankes contracting
their balance sheets inresponse 1o leverage restrictions This continues 1o impact
CCPs who use secured investments such as reverse repos as mandated under
EMIR to mantan suthcient ongong hguadity and immediate access to funds

- Secunty and Resience The secunty and iesihience of systems represents a key
glabal emerging nsk acress the whole finanoal seraces industry

The Group has anongomg programme of development and enhanc erment of its
trterprise-wide Risk Management Framiework {ERMF 1 The ERMF metrics and
indicators nclude stress testing used to maomitar nsks against risk appetite to
1espond (¢ emerging of unexpected 1ske

Gong forward we will continde to stiengthen aw Risk Management by buillding
on the framewaorks we have put in place Accardingly we beheve the Gloup 1 well
positioned to seek new opportumties in the yeat ahead

LSEG Risk Appetite Components

Culture

STRATEGIC RISKS

Stakeholder Confidence

Earnings

FINANCIAL OPERATIONAL

Operational Stability

Group Liguidity Operational Excellence

Counterparty Concentration

CCP Financial Resources
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Group Risk Appetite

LSEG 5 Risk Appetite 15 defined as the level of nsk that the Group will accept in
pursutt of its stiateqie objectives The Group Risk Appetite Statement proposed
by the Executive Commttee 1s approved by the Board at least annually and s
deterrmuned in conunchion with the Greup s strategy and aliqned to the Strategic
Risk Objectives The components of Risk Appetite that relate to Central
Countetparty Cleanng Houses (CCPst and Cential Secunies Depositones (CSTs)
are also approved by the tespective Boards withan the Group incomphance with
EMIR CS0R and other applicable regulations

The Group Risk Appetite 1s cascaded down to each business unit Regular
reporting at both Group and Business Uit levels uses Risk Appetite as a
bernchmeark that can then be incorporated into the Group Risk Palicy Frarmework

Frsks Lhat are outside Risk Appetite are es dlated to Executne Committee members
and to the appropriate Risk Commttee The Risk Appotite status s also reported
1o 1he Board Risk Committee and tothe Baard for all aggreqated Group nsks

Three Lines of Defence
LSEGw risk control stracture 1s based onthe 3 knes of defence model

- The First ing Isanagements 1< responsible and accourtable foridentifying
assessing and managing Tisk

— The Second line [Rish Managernent and Compliance 1s resporstble for defimng
the Risk Managernent pracess and polcy framewaork providing challenge to the
first line on Risk Managerment activities assessing nsks and repat ing to the
Group Board Commuitees an sk exposure

— The Thud ineInternal Audd provides independent assurance to the Board
and other key stakeholders over the effectiveness of the systems of controls
and the CRMF

Overall Risk Assessment

Key sk categones include strategic aperananal and financial nisks Qperational
nisk includes 1T risk as well as nsk associated with aperational processes with
financial rek including credit cleanng and market nisks We recognise that each
of thase rsks o not propetly managed and/or mitgated could have animpact
on the Group and onats subsidiaries reputation Indications of the 1elative sizes
of these nsk types are shown overleaf

Risk Management Approach

Qur approac h to managing rsks ncludes a bottom upr and a tep down approach
Key external and nternal factors are stress lested acToss our Group operations to
assess the potertial umpact onthe hnancial results strategi pidans and
operational resiience

The sk functionns centrahsed at the Group level with the exception of the CCPs
where ear b Cleanng house Has te own nisk tearnirn compliance with the EMIR
reciuirements and CSTs which will be required to have ther ownmsk Leams under
the forthroming provisons of € STR - The furction s main role v to maimntan a ar for
pUrpose Gruup ERIE and recammend to the Risk Comimittec and to the Board 1isk
Appetite statemerits 1t also reviews and mmomtors the nisk profile of the Group and of
1t subeachanes and ensures it rermains within Risk Appetite The function supports
the sk Committec miermbers by providing reperts on the Group s nek profile and
timely esealahion of exceptings 1 also monitors s omphance withnes and
egulations and deselops and maintains tamework s i facilitate the dentihe ation
assessment reporting and miortenng ot allthe pone gpal niske that could matenally
Irmipatthe vepntation finandiat posiion or operations of the Group
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Rigkmanagement oversight

Risk Management Cycle

The Group < Risk Management process s set out 1n the Risk Management Cycle
The keyto the cyclers that it both begins wath and feeds back to the Business
strategy —whichis ultimately determined by both internal and external drivers
This ensures that the managerment and assessment of nisk 7ernains a
fundarmental component of the Group s strategic deCi1sion making process

LSEG Risk Management Cycle

Business
Strategy

Risk management
activity supports the
husiness strategy

Risk
Monitoring

Risk
Appetite

The level of risk
that LSEG is willing
to accept in pursuit
of our strategy

Monitor and report
on our risks

Risk
Policies

Risk
Capture
Minimum
standards for our
people and maenitor
compliance

ldentify all key
risk exposures

Economic Capital

The development of an econormic capital model, consisting of 4 nisk components
{credit, market operational and business) will enable the Group to consistently
assess nsk and the economic effects of nisk-takung actvities The relative
contnbution of each component to the Group's total econormic capital 15 shawn in
the chart below Operationat sk represents the largest companent of the Group s
econormac capital this mphes that operational sk s the man soutce of nisk for the
Group which s expected given that the Group 15 a market nfrastructure business

LSEG Economic Capital Components

@ Credit Risk
warket Risk

& Operational Risk

& Business Risk

bQh

Stress Testing Capabilities and Viability Statement

The Group < viabiltiy statement 15 Lunderpmned by the Group s stress testing
process Under this pracess a set of severe but plausible scenarios appropiate
to the business of the Group and reflecting our principal nisks are defined by
Management and the financial impact of each on the Group 1s guantified

The stress test stcenanos are re-assessed annually and may be updated etther
during this review process or at other times during the year where the external
EnvIONMENt changes

A 3 year horizon1s used for LSEG s inancial viability statement consistent with
the Group s strategic planning cycle The scenano mpacts were evaluated

on the Group s key hnancial metnes hguidity headroom leverage nterest cover
and regulatory capital headroom

naddition a set of compounded stiesses was evaluated to provide further
confidence on the angoing financial viabity of the Group even under very highly
stressed environments The process and final output of the stress tests was
reviewed by management and by the Board and Audit Commuttee They also
reviewed and discussed reverse strass testing which was perfoimed Lo assess
what would be teguued to breach the Group s covenants

The Directons financial viabilty staterment is contained n the Directors Report
on page 938

CCP Risk Management and Oversight

Each of the Group s CCPs comphes with the appropnate regulatony 1equoements
Consequently they each manage ther nsk under the governance of therr Board of
Drectors and of their internal sk management structure The Group monitors the
CCF s aggregdted nisks posiions by using tools that measure the overall exposure
to counterparty nisk credit sk (including latent market nsk where a default can
result in a CCP having the market nsk nherent in the defadllter ¢ portfolio) and
iquichty nisk it uses a bottom-up approach Tor the monttoring of operational 11sks

The Group s LCPs are managed in accordance with our ERMF which includes
a CCP Financial Risk Pohey specifuing romumum nisk standards for margin
confidence level default fund cover hgudity counterparty concentrations,
new member assessment reporting and collateral This promotes consistency
n the oversight of our cleaning nisks while protecting the independence of the
CCPs risk management processes as required by relevant regulation

CCP Risk Management and Operations

The Graup's LCPs intet pose thernsalves between 2 courterparties in a trade
and assume the legal counter party nsk for eiigible transactions that are cleared
through their markets 1f either party defaults on the trade the CCP becomes
accountabile for the defautter's nisk and associated hatsiibies,

Fundamenital 1o a CCP's nsk process 15 (s collection of igh quality and ghly
higud collateral from clearmg members and clients as secunty for potential
defaulier 1isk The CCPs have in place a vanety of margin models actoss asset
classes, to calculate the collateral requirernents appropnate to each member s Tisk
position Cleanng members are also tequired to pledge collateral to the default
fundis), the averall size of winch for each clearing service 15 computed 1o at least
the Covar 2'level - large enough to caver the 2 members that would create the
largest hability given a simultaneous default under extrerme but plausible market
conditions — and allocated across the members of the cleaning service

The adequacy of the CCP « Financial Resources (Margins and Default Fund

contributions cotlected fram its members) 15 assessed on at least a daily basis and
repotted tegularly in accordance with the CCP Financial sk Policy using Group
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Risk Appetite as a benchmark The Piinciples (o1 Financial Market Infrastructures
(PFMI) produced by CPMI-IOSCO and FMIR provide the mimumum Risk
Management standards that a CCP should apply, however [ SEG CCPs apply
maore stringent margin ¢onfdence [evels inmost cases

If a cleanng member fals the collateral collected s used by a (OF to complete the
trades and fulfil the faled organisation s obligatians Ths ensures that the party
on the other side of the Irade 1s not negatively wnpacted by the default The
marginis calculated to cover market moves up 1o a rertain conhidence level

If losses oxe eed the defaulter s inanoial resowrces then under EMIK Regulation
the CCP 15 required to utihse o specihied proportion of its own caprital skin-in-the-
garne beforeat can utiise the assets of non-defaulters The skinqin-the-game
represents a proportion of the CCP s owncapital that s sufficient to act as an
ncentive for C0Ps Lo mimimise the operational sk related to default management
and to adopt robust risk management processes Once the skin im the-game has
been exhausted further losses are allncated to the non-defaulting members via
funded member contributions to a mutuahsed default fund for each asset class

ot group thereof followed by further cash calls known as assessments and then

a loss distnibution water fall set out in the CCP Tulebook COP operational nskos
managed ustng a battorn-up appreach and1s ahgned with the Sroup s operational
nisk management approach

Further information on the Group s dearmy related nskos contatned in the
Principal Risks and Uncertainties on pages 49-5u

Strategic Report Risk management oversight

LSEG Risk Governance Stvucture
The Risk Gover nance of the Group is as follows and presented dhagrammatically
below

1he Board 1s responsible for deterrmmng the Group Risk Appetite The Board s
Risk and Audit Comimittess recewe reqular reports presenting the aggregate
nsks of the whole Group measured against the Appetite

— The CRAME defines rales and responsibiities for risk management oversight
and artvinies including for the Board the Exet utive Commuttee and sub-
Committees thereof

The Executive Financial and Opesatienal Risk Cornrmittecs montar andreport
on the nek profile of the Group review and challenge the appheation of the
Group sk framework recommiend Risk Appetite Statements Lo the Execubive
Carmmittee and maonttor comphance wath the relevant risk polioies

- The Group has a Business Continuily Management tramewotk in place which
15 managed and mamtamed through a fuliy established Business Continty
Programme The Business Lontimuity Programme 15 overseen by the Business
Contimuly Board a subr commuittes of the Operational Risk Committee The
Business Continuity Board recetyes the self certification iesults of all the Group s
Business areas

The New Product iMarket Commuttee reviews and recommends business cases
1o Lhe Executive Cormimittee ensuring product inmovation and new market risks
are appropriately dentiiied and assessed

Each Group-level risk 1s owned by a member of the Fxecutive Commitlee who
15 responsible for managing of mingaing the risk n order to remain watiun Risk
Appetite The Board and the Risk Committee recetve presentations on marenal
nisks and related mitigants as appropnate

The Reports of the Audit and of the Risk Lomrmittees on pages 65- 71 provide
details on the work carmied out to assist the Board in fulfiling its aversight
responsibilities for nsk managerment and systemns of internal conoal

LSEG Risk Governance

FIRST LINE

SECOND LINE THIRD LINE

LSEG Board

Executive Committee

Audit
Committee

Risk

Committee

Operational Risk
Committee

Financial
Risk Committee

New Product/Market
Committee

Business
Continuity Board

Treasury
Committee
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Principal risks and uncertainties

LSEG Risk Governance

OVERVIEW OF PRINCIPAL RISKS:

Financial Risks

Strategic Risks

Global econarny Credit nsk
Regulatory change and comphance Market Tisk
Competition Liguidity Tisk
Transformation Capital misk

Operational Risks
Technoiogy

Model nisk

Security threats — Physicat
Security threats — Cyber

Reputaton/Brand

KEY.
A Risk Level INCTeasing  wmme RISK Level Static W Risk Level Decreasing

STRATEGIC RISKS

Change managament
Settlement and custodal nsks
Employees

Risks related to aur strateqy nnctudmg the mmplementatian of strateqee imtatives and external threats to the achevernent of our stiategqy) The category also wncludes

nsks assonated with reputation or brand values

RISK DESCRIPTION

Global economy

As adwersified markets infrastiucture business we operate 1n a broad ranqe of
equity fixed mcome and dervatve Markets servicing clients who increasingly seek
global products and solutions 1 the globai economy underperforns lowsr activity
Inour markets may lead to lower revenue

The UK Brexit negotiations with the LU have added uncentainty into global markets
Discussions between the UK and EU continued through 2017 and the European
Council finally accepted i Decernber that Progress in the fist phase of negotiations
was sufficient to move on and indicated that a transition penod should not continue
beyond the end of 2020

Stronger econormic data and inflation concerns have dorminated central bank official
rate actions The Federal Open Market Commtiee (FOMCHincreased the f ed Funds
target rate 3 tunes during the course of 2017 1n Novernber the Bank of England (BoE)
increased the Bank Rate by 25bp Meanwhile the European Central Bank (ECBI has
left 1ates unchanged though commenced a reduction 1 its quantitative edsing
programime The expected econorme growth could fanl to materiahse and fugher
rates could lead to a slowdown

Ongong geopolitical tensions continue 1o add uncertainty in the markets This
together with the cantinuing potential for political change through nahonal elections
(for nstance the upcormng Itahan elechions in March 20181 imay impact conhdence
and actwity levels Ths will be momitoyed closely

MITIGATION ‘ 7 RISK LEVEL
The footprint of the Group has continued to broaden further —
improving the geographical diversification of the Group s incorme

stteams The Graup mitigares the faregn exchiange transtation

exposure created by ownership of overseas businesses by

matching 1o the extent possible, the currency of its debt to the

currency of wsincome streams This1s supplernented as required

by a hedging programme using market standard derwative

nstruments Matenal foreign curiency transactions relate manly

to mergets and acquisitions (M& &) and dwidend related receipts

are hedged as requited by Group Treasury Policy

The Graup performs regular analysis Lo monitor the markets and
the potental impacts of market price movements on the business
Actities include Key Risk Indicator tracking stress testing and
hedqing we continue to actively momtor the ongoiny
developrnents following the result of the UK referendum on leaving
the FUJ Comrmittees have been established to assess and address
areas of impact on our operatons and the Group has formulated
rontingency plans with the objectives of continuity of market
function and customer service 1n the event of a hard Brexit

The Financial Risk Commuttee closely monitors and analyses
rmultiple arket stress scenartos, and action plans i order

ta MINImIse any mpacts stemnmng flom a potental deterioration
of the macroeconomic envirenment The stiess scenanos are
regularly reviewed and updated in response to changes n
macroeconamic canditions Additional ad hac analysis such as
special credit reviews of counterparties are presented to the
Financial Risk Commuittee for consideration where events dictate

For mare information see Market trends and our response onpages 12-15 and Note 2 to the accounts, Financial Risk Management on pages 120-124
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RISK DESCRIFPTION

Regulatory change and compliance

The Group and its exchanges other trading venues, CCPs, (ndex admimstrarars,
cenitral secunties deposttones trade repositenies and other regulated entities
operate m areas that dare fughly regulated by governmmental competition and
ather regulatory bodies

There1s a nsk that the UK s exit from the EU may lead to considerable regulatory
change There1s ardange of EU and UK meastres whichumpact o business directly
or indrectly ncluding EU Benchmiark Regulation, Secunties Financing Transaction
Regulation (SFTR) and Markets i Financial [nstruments Dwective (MIFID 11 Together
with MIFLR 115 accompanuing regulation MIFID I came into forc e on 3 January
20138 LSEG has delvered a senes of ket technological and procedural changes te
prepare for the implementation of these new tegulations

naddition several regulatory uitiatives are ongoing somie of which directly attect
LSEG activities especially inthe context of the departure of the UK frorm the EU
15 15 the case wath ongomg CC P 1egulatory intatives mainly EMIR Review and
CCP Recovery and Resolution [n hay and June 2017, the Furopean Commuission
proposed to review EMIR transaction-level requirements, and the supervisory
frarmework apphcable to EU and thid courtiy CCPs These reviews andn particular
the proposal to introduce the option to Mpose enhanced supervision o lacation
requiements on third country COPs that dre of systernic importance for the LU
could have mphcations for the Group s CCPs The Group monitor s these requiatory
developments in oider to help the rmarket addiess the changing regutatory
enviranment through its multiple locahons The European Commission made
proposats to sigrhicantly Lransform the European Superasory Autharifies principally
by ermpowering ESMA to he the central supervisor for arange of new fnancial
entities including systermically important third country CCPs third ~ountry
benchmark adrmumistrators data setvice reporting provicers and as the approval
authonty for certan types of prospectuses However the nature of final political
agreement on the proposal 1s lighly uncertain The European Commission made
proposals tontroduce a prudential regime for investment firms which may affect
the ability of proprietary trading irms to provide hiuidity on LSEG markets

In Decernber 2017 the Baset Committee on Banking Supervision published final
recormmendations on the Basel 111 Framework which as currently drafted could
adversely ympact CCP clearing volurmes with imphcations for the Group s revenues
However 1n Movernber 2016 the European Comrmssion pubhished proposed changes
to the EU Capitat Reguirements Regulatwn which largely neutralise the effects for
European chents and are currentty being disc ussed with the other co-lequiators

The changes would allow CCP clearing members to reduce ther exposure measuies
by the amount of inthal margn recewed from chents for CCP cleared derwatives This
wolld reduc e leverage ratios: thus removing a iinancial barnier for clearng mermbers
to offer chient clearing

The FU Benchmarks Requlation came nto effect on 1 January 2018 and FTSE Russell
will need te apply for authonsation as a regulated benchrmark admunistratar by 2020

inmany of out key junisdichions thete 15 an inc1easing leqeslatve and regulatory
farus on ryber secunty data flow and protection and emerging technology LSEG
supports the tegulatory etforts on these 1ssues: as they mcrease the standards for
chents vendors and other third parties with whom we interacl Regulators are
monitonng and considering reguiatony frarmeworks aiound the develnpment of
nnovative finanaial servic es technologies which are mpartant for mamtaimng the
resiienc i the market

Negotiahions also continue on a possible Financal Transachion Tax (FTT1 Dunng
2017 itthe pingress was made however a FTT could adversely nnpact volurmes n
finand lal markets

Inthe LS there s a considerable and comprehensve review of the finanoal services
regulatory flamework incluching i areas impacting ol capital markets post trace
nformanion setvces and tec hnology divisions we rermaim closely engaged with the
relevant polic ymakers on these potential ¢ hanges winch e ikely to see progiecs
mdila

There s aTisk that ane o more of the Group s entities mian fad to comply with the
tawes and requlatony requinemments tuwlnc it or becormes subject Inths event
the entity in guestnn mdy be subgect tecensures fines and othet iegualatony ol
leggal prew b

MITIGATION

Changes 1n the regulatory ermvronment form a key nput into ow
strategic planning ncluding the political wpact on our growth
strategies bath organic and morgamc We momtor 1egulatory
developments continually and engage dectly with regulatony
and governmental authorities at national EU and international
levels The Group has develaped contingency plans to addiess
the UK s exat from the LU and monitars developments closely

we cortinue to develop our relaticnships with the key political
stakeholders in the EL) Morth Amenca and Asia Potential impacts
from requlatory change are assessed and depending on the
mpact opportunities are developed and mitigating strategies
and dactions are planned

As the vanous regulatory nihatves progress therewill be greater
certanty with regard to ther hkely final form The Group continues
to forus onemaining well positicned to respond to requlatory
developments and further opportunities extst for the Groupto
delver solutions to halp the market address the changing
requilatory environment Including those inked with the departure
of the UK from the EU

The Group continues to maintam systems and controls to rmbigate
comphance nsk Compliance policies and procedures are reguarly
reviewed to ensure that Group entities and staff are compliant
with applicable laws and regulations and uphold our corporate
standards Al staff across the Group are subject Lo mandatory
Cormpliance traimng

For are mfonmation eniegulatony changes see Matket trends and our response onpages, 1Te-1%
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Principal risks and uncertainties

RISK DESCRIPTION
Competition
The: Group operates in o highly competitive and global tndustey Contraued

consolidaiion has fuelled cormpetition ncluding between peers and senace providers

i different geographica! areas

Inour Capital Markets operations there s a nsk that competitars wilb improve thew

customer service products, pricing and technology in a way that erodes our

businesses There s strong competition for primary listings and capital rases from
other global exchanges and reguonal centres We mantan a dedicated international
tearn who promote the benefits of hsting on our markets ta nternational 1ssuers the
glabal advisory commumty and other stakeholders Options for both debt and equity
funding are also ncreasing as private equity, venture capual and new options such as
crowd-funding and crypto-currencies are ncreasingly betng considered  The Group
will need to continue strong and collaborative dialeque with customers to ensure it

1ernans responsve 1o thew changing requirements

In Post Trade Services competinon will continue 1o intensify as we see 3 shuft
towards open access and interoperabulity of CCPs and legislative requirements

for mandatory clearing of certain OTC dervatve products while this may create
new business opportunities for the Group competitors may tespond more quickly

10 changing market conditions or develop products that are prefened by customers

The Group s track record of working with custamers and other financal market
nfrastrue ture providers including the user forused rmedel in LCH wall help us
Lo continue to delver mnovative new products and services o meet evolving
custormner needs

The Group s Information Services business faces competihion from a vanety of

sourees notably from ather venues that offer market data relating to secunties that
die traded on the Group s equity markets aswell as from index providers wimeh offer

indexes and other benchmarking tools whnch compete with those offered by the

Group Asthe Information Services offering diversihies and seeks to meel customer

needs for new data segments and asset classes s facing a broader range of

compentors Furthermore i the Group s share of equity trading were to come under

further pressure the Group s market data offening nught be seer) by current and

prospective cuslomers as being less valuable, which may adversely affect the Groups

business financal condition and operating tesults If competuors are quicker to
access technelogy innovations such as artheal intelligence they may achieve a

valuable advantage which may impact the Group s relative profitamlity and ability to
develop new services in a similar waly Our integrated and business-led approach to
technclogy research and developrnent (R&D) will helpr us to manage this sk and Lthe

Group 15 well advanced mnvestigating and applymg numetous new technology
nnovations including m Information Services

In Technology Setvices there s infense cormpenhion arrass all actrabies and there
are strong meumbents in some of our growth areas New entrants are increasing

frorm bioth within and nutside of our traditional competition base Start-ups which
nay be sponsored by existing LSEG cormipetitors or customners, are introducing new
technology and commercial models to our customer base which we need to respond

to with new products and services of our awn Qur continual client daloque and

nvestment 1h produrt managernent and planning are cnitical to undersianding and

managing the impact of changing custormer requirements i our techneology and
other business hnes

Transformation
Gven the current levels of change and aligniment activity 1aking place across the

Group The Group is exposed to transformation nisks sk of loss or fallure resulting

frorm changertransformanont This derves from internal (orgamet change and
change required by the integration of acquisitions  As part of the alignment
processes the Gioup targets specific synergy delweries

A fallure to successfully abgn the businesses of the Group may lead to an increased

cost base without a commensurate ncrease m revenue a fallure to capture future
product and market opportunies and nsks in respect of rapital reguirement s
regulatory Telationshnps and management tme

The additional wark related to Ma A and alignment actwvities could have an adverse
umipact on the Group s day-to-day perfarmance and/or key strategic wmtiatves which

could damage the Group s 1eputation

The size and cornplexity of the recent ac quisiions have ine reased the Group s change

management and transformation nisks However i has also ncreased its
opportunties to compete on a global scale

48

MITIGATION :RISK LEVEL

Competitive markets are, by ther very nature dynamic, and the —
effects of competitor activity can naver be fully imuuigated Sernor
management and a broad range of custormar facing staffinall

busmess areas are actively engaged with chents to understand

ther evolving needs and motations we have established a

Group Relationship Programme to co-ordinate this across Group

businesses globally

The Group undertakes constant market monitoring and pncing
TeVILION to mitigate rsks and ensure we are competiive
Cormrmercial mtiatives are aigned with our chients and thss
complemented by an ongaing focus on technology operations
research and development

The LSFG ERMF ensures appiopnate Pisk Managemeént actoss the ~
Group and the governance of the Group following a rerger or

acquisttion 1s aligned and strengthened as appropriate The Group

performs teguiar reporting of change pertormance mcluding

ongoing alignment activity

Each major intiative 1s gverseen by a steenng committee whach
monitars the assocated nsks closely and 15 1ypic aliy chaired by the
Chief Financial Ofhcer and includes Executive Comimittee
rmembers Regular 1eports are submitted to the Executive
Committee, the Board Risk Comrittee and the Board

The Group has an effective track rec oid of ntegrating acguisiions
and delivering tangible synergies 1his 1= supported by robust
QOVernance dnd programme Management structuies
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Strategic Report Principal risks and uncertainties

RISK DESCRIPTION

Reputation/Brand

Anumber of the Group s businesses have 1conw national brands that are well-
recogmised at international as well as at natonal levels The strang reputanion of
the Group s businesses and therr valuable brand names are a key selling point
Ang events ar actions that damage the reputation o brands of the Group eould
adwersely affect its business financial condiion and operating results

Falure to protect the Group s inteliectual property nghts adequately coudd resultin
costs for the Group, negatively impact the Group s reputation and affect the ability

of the Group to compete effectively Further defending or enforcmg thie Gloups
ntellectual property nghts could result in the expenditure of significant inancial and
managenal resources which could adversely affect the Group s business iinancial
condition and aperating results

FINANCIAL RISKS

MITIGATION

LSEG has policies and procedues n place which are designed to
ensure the appropnate use of the Group s brands and to maintawr
the integrity of the Groups reputation

LSEG actwvely ronttors the use of s brands and other
intellectual property in order to prevent identify and addiess
any infringements

The Group protects its intellectual property by relying upon a
combanation of trademark laws copynight laws patent laws
rade secrat protection confidentiality agreenients and other
contractual arrangernents withits affthates clients customers
supphers strateqie partners and others

RISK LEVEL

The nsk of Ainancal fatiwre reputational loss 1oss of earnings andvor capital as aresult of wvestment actiaty lack of hquidity funding or capatal and-or the inappropriate
recarding reparting and disclosure of financtal results taxation or regulatory nformation

RISK DESCRIPTION
Credit risk
Cleanng

CCPs N the Group are exposed to credit rsk as aresult of ther cleanng actiahes A
default by a CCP cleating member that could not be managed within the resources
of the defaulted clearing member could adversely affect that COP < rovenues andats
rustormers goochwill { CPs authorsed i the EU areteguired to make a propostion of
then requlatory capital avallable to coner dofault losses after the defaulter s tesources
hawe heen exhausted and priot 1o allocation of 1osses to non defaulters and s in
exttemme cucumstances a default could lead te a call on the Group CCPs awn camtal
skar in-the-game CCPs may alse be exposed to credit exposute to providers of
infrastructure services such as Cential Securities Depositaries 1CSDst and commeraial
banks providing investment and operational services Inaddition certamn CCPswithin
the Group have interoperability margqin arrangements with ather CCPs requinng
collateral to be exchanged n proportion to the value of the underlying transactions

The relevant cleaning provider entities withnn the Goup are therefore exposed to the
nsk of a default of other CCPs under such arrangements

Non-Cleanng

LCPs and other parts of LSEG Group are also exposed to credit tisk as & resull of
placing meney with investrment counterparties on hoth a secured and unsecured
hasis | osses may occur due to the default of either Lthe investment counterparty or
of the 1ssuer of bonds bought owtnght or receved as collaterdl

MITIGATION _

Cleanng

As CCPmembers ¢ ontinue 10 work towards strengtheming of ther
halance sheets the risk to LSEG LCPs of a member default reduces
although continuing geupolitical uncertainty continues and the
banking sectors of some countnes teman stressed  The finanaual
nisks associated with cleanng operations are further nitigated by

= strict CCP membership rules including supetvisary captal
financial strength and operational capahty

- The maintenance of prudent levels of margin and default funds
Lo ¢ over exposures o parhripants Members deposit margin
romputed at feast daly tocover the expected costs which the
cleanng service woulld mour in closing out open postons I d
volatile rmarket 1n the ewent of the mermber s default A default
fund s1zed to cover the default of the 2 members with the largest
exposures 1 each service using a suite of extreme but plausible
stress tests mutudhses tosses 1n excess of margin amoengst the
cleanny mermbers

— Regular Fre Drills are caned oul o test the operatiwnal
soundness of the COPs default management processes

= Infrastructure providers are requiarly assessed i line
with policy

Non-Clearing

Palicies are in place to ensure that mvestment counterparties
are of good credit quality and at least 95" of CCP commercial
bank deposits ate secwed COP and non (R countet party
concentraton nsk s consolidated and momtored daiy at the
Group level and reported to the Executive Comrmttee and to
the Board lisk Cormnmuttee ncluchng lirnis and status rating

1ot mote mformiation on this nsk see the Post Trade Senaces section of the Segrental Realew on pages 23—27 and Nafe 2 o the accounts

financial Rish Managernont on pages 145 124
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Principal risks and uncertainties

BLSK 'DESCRIPilON

Market risk

Clearing

The Group s CCPs assume the counterparty nisk for all bansactions that are cleared
through theu markets In the event of default of thew cleaning mernbers therefore
credit nisk will manifest itself as market nigk As this matket nsk s only present in the
event of default this 1 1eferred to as latent market 11sk The latent market sk
ncludes interest rate 1k foreign exchange nisk, equity nsk and commaoduy price
risk as well as country nisk wsuer nsk and concentrabion 1isk This sk 1s greater of
rmatket conditions are unfavourable at the e of the detault

Non-Clearing

The Group s exposed Lo foreign exchange risk as a result of its broademng
geographical footpnnt There are however afso benehts of global dversification
ncluding reduced exposure to local events such as the UK Brexit vote

The Group 1s exposed to nterest rate 1isk through its bor rowing activities and
treasuny investments Further increases ininterest rates in 2018 may increase the
Group s exposure to these niskes

MITIGATION

Cleanng

The margins and default funds referted to previously are sized to
protect against latert market sk The adequacy of these resources
15 evaluated daty by subjerhing member and customer positions
to extreme but plausible stress scenarnos encapsulating not only
histoncal orises, bur theoretical forward locking scenanos and
deconrelation events Al our CUPs are comphant with the
appropnate requlatory requirement s regarding rmargin caleulations
capital and defauli rules, 1 atent market nisk 1s monitored and
managed on a day-te-day basis by the nsk teams within the
clearing services Committees overseaing market risks meet on
aregular basis

Non-Cleanng

Foresgn exchange (FX1 niskas monitored closely and translation nsk
15 managed by matching the currency of the Group s debt to s
earnings {o protect key ranos and partally hedge cunency net
assets Toensure this s effective, and also to manage any local

X transacnon nsks, Fx denvatives ncluding cross- curency
swans are used - under a control framework governed iy | SEG
Board approved policy)

The split between floating and fixed debt s managed to
support the Group's target of aintaining an interest coverage
ratio that underpins a good investment grade credit 1ating
Authonised derwatives can be used to supplernent a rmix of
floatmg 1ate loan borrowings and fixed 1ate bond debt to
achieve the Group's Policy objective

For more information on this sk see Note 2 to the accounts, Financial Risk Managernent on pages 120 124

Liquidity risk

Clearing

There are 2 distinct types of nsk to which the Group s CCPs are exposed to that are
commonly referred to as liqudity nsk - market hquidity risk and funding lguidity
fisk The former s the nisk that t may be difficult of expensive to hqundate a large of
concentrated position and s addressed under market nisk Thelatter 15 the nsk that
the {CP may not have enaugh cash to pay vanation margun to non detaulters or to
physically settle secunties delivered by a non-defaulter that cannot be on-sold to a
defaulter and this 15 the subject of this section

The Group ¢ CCPs collect cleaning members margin and/or default furds
contribiutions n cash and/on n tighly hiquid secunties To mantam sufficient
ongoing hquidity and rmmediate access to funds the Group s LCPs deposit the
cash received n highty tiquid and secure investments, stich as sovereign bonds and
Teverse 1epos as mandated under EMIR secunties deposited by cleanng members
are therefore held in dedwated accounts with C50s and/or [(nternational Central
Secunties Depositanes (1IC5Ds) The Group's CCPs also hold a small proportion of
thet nvestments in unsecured bank and money miarket deposits subject Lo the
himitatiens mposed by EMIR The successful operation of these investment actnties
15 confingent on genetal market canditlons and there s no guarantee that such
ihvestrnents may be exempt from market losses

Non-Cleanng
Liguichity niskn a non cleanng context s the nsk that the fum may be unable to
rake payments as they fall due

Cleanng

The Group s CCPs have put in place regulatory comphant
higuidity plans for day-to day hquidity management including
cuntingencies for stiessed conditions The Groups CCPs have
multiple layers of defence against hquidity shortfalls including
ntraday margmn calls rmmmum cash bdlances acress 1o
contingent lguidity arrangemients and for certain COPs access
ta central bank hguidity

Under the ERME CCPrvestrnents must be made n compliance
with the Group CCP Finanial Risk Policy (as well as the policies of
the CCPy themnselves) These policies stipulate o number of Fish
Management standards including investment limits (secured and
unsecured) and hquidity coverage ratios Committass overseeing
CCPnvestment 1isk meet reqularly

Each CCP monitors its iguidity needs daily under stressed and
unstressed assumplions and reports to the Group Firancial Risk
Committee each month

Non-Clearing

Requirements for hgumdity including headroom tequirermnents are
set outnthe Group Treasury Policy The Group maintams haundity
faciihes and momtorsits tequirernent s on an ongoing basts
Stressed faciity headroom s assessed using plausible downside
business projections

Group Treasury nisk is monitored datly and s managed within the
constraints of a Board approved policy by the Group Treasury
teamn and s overseen by the Treasury Committee (a sub-
Cornmittee of the Fmancial Risk Committee chaired by the CFQ)
An update on Group Treasury nsks and actions s provded
ronthly to the Financial Risk Cornrmttee and to each meeting

of the Board Risk Cornmittee

For mare information on thisnisk, see Note 2 to the accounts Financial Risk Management on pages [20—-124
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RISK DESCRIPTION

Capital risk
Principal risks to imanaging the Group s capuial are

— Inrespect of regulated entines, capital adequacy comphance nsk (the nisk that
regulated entittes do not maintain and report sufficient qualifying capital to meet
regulatony requirernentst and capital reparting comphance rsk ithe risk that
regulated entities fail to comply with capital reporting and regulatory oblgations)
If arequlated entity in the Group fails to ensure that sufficient capital resources are
mantained to meet requlatory reguirements, this could lead to loss of regulatory
approvats and/or financial sanctions

- Intespect of requlated and unrequlated entities commercial capital adequacy and
guahty risk ithe nsk that Group and soio entities do not maintain both suficient
gquantity and gualty of canpital to meet commercial requirernentsy and invest ment
returnmisk (the nsk that captal s held in subsichanes o wvested in prajects that
genelate areturn that 15 below the Group s cost of capital)

- Availabiitty of detit or equity capital iwhether specific to the Group o diven by
general financial market conditions,

MITIGATION RISK LEVEL

The Group s Capitdl Management Policy provides a framework —
to ensure the Group maintans sutable capital fevels (both at

Group and sola entiy levelst, and effertr.ely manages the nsks

thereof The Gloup s Treasury Pohcy recognises the need to

observe regutatory requiremients in the management of the

GToup s resources

The Risk Appetite approved by the Board includes component s
related to the Group s leverage ratios and capital risks Key Risk
Indicators are momtored regularly The Group miairtains an
ongoing 1eview of the capttal positions of its reguilated enhities te
ensure that they operate within capital imts which are overseen
buy the Financial Risk Committee the Executive Comnittee and
the Board The Groupr can manage ts capital structure by varying
returns to shareholders 1ssuing nesw shares or increasting of
reducing barrowings The Board reviews dmidend policy and
fundinig cdpacity on & reguiar basts and the Group maintamns
comfortable levels of debit Facihty headroom

The Group regularly assesses debr and equity markets (o mantain
access Lo new capital at reasonable cost The Group s nundful of
potential rnpacts on s key memes when considermg changes to
s camptal structure

For miore nformation on this risk see Note 2 to the accounts Financia Risk Management un pages 125-124

OPERATIONAL RISKS

Thensk of loss o other adverse comsequences fo the bustness resulting from inadequate of falled internal processes people and systems or flom external évents

RISK DESCRIPTION

Technology

Secure and stable technology performing 1o high levels of availabiity continues 1o be
citical to the support of the Group s businesses. Technology failures may impact our
chents potentially leading tu a luss of tradng or clearng velumes or impactmg oL
lnfOP malion services a(‘TlVlﬂF\‘S

The Group cantinues te consolidate s 1T development and opet atons irnits shared
services cormpany — 1 5EG Business senvices Lid - and in the MillenmumniT
infrastructure 1o provide areater control and efficiency

Theres a nsk that as the Group continues to consolidate its IT developrment and
operations it creates single paints of faillure for ruttiple Group businesses systerrs
arkd services

The focus of activity in Millennumi T means there 1s also a risk of 1esource
over-stretch to meet both the requirerment s of the Group and those of third
partes Continued mnovation and investment in new tradinganlarmaton
systerns can lead to further resaurce stretch in coping with increased volummes
and new product developrment

The Group also has dependencies on a number of thind parties for the pravision
of hardware software communication and networks for elements of its trading
clearing settlement ddta and other systerns

MITIGATION ~ RISK LEVEL

The performance and avalability of the Group s systems are
constantly reviewed and monmitored to prevent prablems ansing
whera possible and ensure 4 pompt Yesponse to any potential
sefvice mtertuption 155ues

The Group continues actvely (o dentify manage and rmhigate
nisks assnriated with the consolidation of 11 development and
operations Regular nigorous business impact and operational nisk
seanane analysts are pertormed in conunction with the Group
Risk and Group Business Contmuity and Cnists tManagement
functinns toadermfy assess and romedy potential systerm and
governance vulnerabtifies

The Group s technology tedims mitigate the risk of esource

ower streteh by ensuning prionihsation of key develaprment and
operations activities and resource uitlisation and alloc atwon are
kept under constant review The MillenmurniT systems are
decigned to be fault tolerant and alternative standhiy cormputer
facihties are mantamed to minimise the nsk of systern distuptions

The Lroup actvely manages 1elahionstips with key strateqie

I T suppliers to avond aniy breakdowr in serace proviston which
could adversely affect the Group s busing sses wWhete possible
the Group has dentihied alternative supphers that coukd be
engaged 1 the event of a thod party falina to delver onats
contractual commfments The Group actively momitors new
techrnologicdl develnpmients and opportunties such as
blockehamn and Arnihcoal Intelligenge 1AL

Fur more informiation, see the Tec hnology Seraces sectivm of the Segmental Review onpages 32 34

Model risk

Thie Graup chefines madel Tisk as the risk (hat @ model marng not capture the
essence of the events heng mndelied on na caracie s i the underbing caleulaiion
prtentially resulhing i adverse consequences resulling fram decisions based
vrancarect orrmmsed model outpts,
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Subsequent to the acquistion dunng the year of The vield Book
arialytics plathormriarn Citagranp i the Groaps Bas emibiarhed o
aproqammie of Compiete teview of model pohcies and procedures
t0 dst ertdin whether enhancements, are 1equtred 1o address
CHanges [ the husiness The Finang el Risk Coonmitiee oo s
results of rmodat validations carmied out
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Principal risks and uncertainties

RISK DESCRIPTION -
Security threats — Physical
The Group s rehant upon secure premises to protect s employees and physical
assels as well as appropnate safeguatds to ensure umnterrupted eperation of 1its
11 systems and inflastructure

Terrorst attacks and sirmilar actities divected aganst ow offices operations
computer systerns or networks could disrupt our markets harm staft tenants and
visitors and severely disrupt our Business operations Cil or political unrest coutd
impact companmes within the Group Long-term unavalability of key prermises could
iead Lo the [oss of chent confidence and reputational darmages

Security threats — Cyber

The thieat of cyber crume requues & high level of scruting as it has the potential to
have an adversermpact onour business Additianally new emerging technologies
such as cloud computing will change our cyber securtty risk

The Group s technolagy and operational support providers could suffet a secunty
breach resulting 1n the loss or comprammse of sensitive information (both internal
and external) or 10ss of service A major information secunty breach could have a
significant negative Imipact an our reputation financial costs tor remedation iines
and requiatory impacts and on the confidence of our clients

Change management

The considerable change agenda is dinven by both internal and external factors
Internat factors include the diversthcation strateay of the Group and its drive for
technology mnavation and conschdation External factors include the changing
reguiatory landscape and regurrernents which necessitate changes to our systems
and processes

Ihere are a signicant number of major complex projects and stratequ actions
underway concurrently, that 1f not delvered to sufficiently tagh standards and
within agreed timescales could have an adverse mpact on the operation of core
services, and revenue growth, as well as damaging the Group's reputation The
volurme of simultaneous change could also lead to a toss of client qoodwili if the
exprution g nol managed appropiately Synergies and cost benefits may net be
delvered to anticipated levels

MITIGATION 7 7 7 7 RISK LEVEL
Secunty threats are treated very serously The Group has robust

physical secunty arrangements

The Group 1s supparted by the Centre for the Protection of National
intrastructure (CPNL) 10 the UK wath security teams monitoring
witelligence and haising clasely with police and globat gaverament
agencies ACToss majar hubs covering the UK, ELtope the
Americas and Asia the Group martains clase monioring of
geopaolttical threats through a third party secunty monitonng
service Where events are detecled retained response support
<ervices are mobiised nternatwnally The Gioup has well
estabiished and regularly testad busmess continutty and cnsis
management procedures The Group Tisk function assesses 1ts
dependencies oncritical suppliers and ensures robust contingency
measures are in place

Fxtensive 1T measures aligned to the National Inshitute of
standards and Terhnology INIST) cortro! framework ate w place to
both mitigate and momtor cyber secunty Tisks such as systerm
vulnerabilities and access control Information Security tearms
monitor intelligence and hiaise closely with police and global
Guverniment agences as well as industry forurns and regutators

The Group continaes o nvest inand enhanice 1ts informaton
security control enviionment cyber defences and operational
process as 1t delivers tots Board approved Cyber Security Strategy

The semor management team s focused onihe rmplementation A
of the Group's sttategy and the praject pipeling n view of ther

impartance to the Gloup s future sugcess Each major project s

managed via a dedicated Programme Board overseen by

members of the L xecutive Committee

sottware design methodologies 1esting regimes and
test environments are conhinucusly being strengthened
to minmise iImplernentation 1isk

For more mformation see the Chawrrnan s statement on pages 4—5 and the Chiet Executive s statement on pages 6—7

Settlement and custodial risks

The Group s CCPs are exposed to operatiohal nsks assocated with clearing
transactions and the management of collateral, particularly where there are manual
processes and controls While the Group s CCPs have n place procedures and controls
to prevent falures of these processes and to mitigate thempact of any such falures
any operational errar could have a matenal adverse effect on the Group's rteputation
business financial conditwon and operating results

Inaddtion the Group provides routing netting and settlement services through
tis CSDs to ensute that cash and securtties are axchianged i a timely and secure
mannet for a multitude of praducts There are operational nisks associated with
such services, paiticularly where processes are not fuliy autormated

A falure loteceve funds from participants may result in a debiting of the Group s
cash accounts which could have a matenal adverse effect onthe Groups business
financial condihion and operating 1esults

52

Operational nsks mirmised via hughly automated processes
reducing admimstrative acliities while formalising procedures
for all services

The C5D mutigates 1T nisks by providing for redundancy of systermns
daily backup of data tully updated remote recoveny sites and SLAs
with autsourcers Liguidity for CSD operations 1s provided by
Eurgpean National Centrat Banks
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Strategic Report Principal risks and uncertainties

RISK DESCRIPTION
Employees
The caltbre and performance of our leaders and colleagues 1s entical Lo the suceess
of the Group

The Group s ability to attract and retain key personnel 1s dependent on a number
of factors Thes includes (but not excluselyl crganisational culture and reputation
prevaling market conditions compensation packages offered by competing
comparies, and any requlatory mmpact thereon These factors also encompass the
Group s abilty to continue to have appropriate vanable rermuneration and retention
arrangements in place which help drve strong business perforrmance and algnment
10 long-term shareholder value and returns mpact the size of the local labour force
with elevant experience and the number of businesses competing for such talent
whilst the Group focuses very carefulli) on the artraction and retention of talent 1f
unsuccessiul it mayy adversely affect the Group's ability to conduct its business
through aninability to execute business operations and strategies effectively

MITIGATION

We tocus ona number of siralegic enablers L ensure we atfract
and retain the nght cahbyre of talent for our business, and continue
e facibtate a culture of figh petformance

We have angorous In house recruitment and selection process,
to ensure that we are bringing the best possible talent mto the
olganisation wnterms of ther skalls techmical capabilities cultural
fit and potential

We aim tejemove barriers to oul colleagues overalt sense of
engagement proactively measuring how satished they are with
thew working experience at Lo£G and the extent towhich they
would recommend it as a place to work We measure this
sentiment when they join the organisation via our b annual
engagement survey 'Have Your Say  and via an exit survey for
those who choose to move an We use that feedback to inform

our plans for improvernent. and to identify and 1esolve any barners
toperformance and engagement

W Tecognise that the overall wellbeing of our colleagues 14 vital
for our continued performance and have introduced a proactive
approach towellbeing in the UK whch we are inthe process

of 1alling out globally This loaks to impiose wellbeing across

5 chimensions physical mental fimnancial sooal purpose and
wark-life halance

Lareer development temains a key enatler for success and we
have a carefully managed learming budget which enables us
totake a conrdinated approach and focus investment tn the
development of colleagues we provde calleagues with atange
of courses matenals and tools 1o support therm in mwming then
development and will be launching a Career Framework in 2018
to further support people (i navigating the opportunites that dre
available for them at LSEG we alse offer additional investrment o
wdentified key talent and executives torinstance by prowding
coaches for key seniar successors

In terms, of talent management we always look to promete
nlernally where possible We undertake a comprehensive
annual review of criiical roles and ensure we have succession
plans in place to minmise the mpact of losing critical key
personnel we monitor the attriion i each dwision and country
0 addition to any critical staff turmover <o that mimgation can
be taken where needed

Performance managerment plays a key role i mitigating
retention and performance rsk at LSEG and the Group operates
a 1obust performance managerment and appraisal process for

all colieagues whichhinks tn how we utilise incentives and
rompensation to drive argdmsational performance This awsesses
performant e against Ananoial chjectives strategic deliverables
and the extent ta winch colleagues 1ole madel the Group s values
and bebwours

I terms of ether teward approaches critical lgh performers aie
nffered 1 ong Term Incentive Plans aligned with the fulfilment of
the Group < strateqic goals and InCreases i shareholder value
we alsoregularly henchmark our reward and imcentive systenis
toensue they ate rompelitve

Fon more Infirmiation: see Gur wadet tesponsitihty nn pages 3z - 35 and Remune atinn Peport on pages /2 94
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Board of Directors

COMMITTEE MEMBERSHIP KEY

£ rodn B Nonwaaon

B wecrin raton R Rk

3 Grang Dreran B oot e

Raffaele Jerusalmi

Exacutive Director CEQ of Borsa ltahana Sp A
and Director of Capital Markets {age 56)
Apparited o the Gooar Lo Jarie 2o 6]

Key areas of expenence ' 74l market -
Seer wic i eguity e 1wt es ta g

wturale e
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Other cutrent appointments None
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Donald Brydon CBE

Lhairman of the Group and the Nomunahion
Committee (age 72)

Apnonte e Bogee me Tune 201 and
Sithes ent g € e e e Jol 200 [N (R |
Key areas of experience ludnstantd hinanee o wi iy
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Professor Lex Hoogduin
Non-Executive Director {age 61}
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Board structure as at 31 December 2017
The Board comprised:
— Charman who was independent on appomtrnent.

— 1 %emor Independent Dnector

- & other Independent Non-Executve Directors
and 1 Non-Fxecutive Directar

2 Executive Duectors

David Nish
Independent Noni-Executive Directot (age 571
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Mary Schapire
Independent Non-Executive Director (age 62)
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Director Changes During The Year

- Xavier Rolet stepped down from the Board
on 29 Novernber 2017 and CFO David warten
was appointed as Intenm CEO

val Rahmami was appointed as an [ndependent
Non Executive Drectol on 26 December 2017

Stephen O'Connor
Independent Non-Executive Director (age 56)
Appoanted te The Boarmon Jane 2114
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Independent Non-Executive Director lage 53
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Charman

Dear Shareholders,

The Board of the Group s comimitted to ensurng that it provides effective
leadership and promotes uncompromising ethical standards One of the ways in
which the Board achieves this 1s by reguinng that good governance pninaples and
practices are adhered to throughout the Company The Boatd has determmmed
that the following 15 a helpful surrary of its vole

Good governance 1s about helmng to ensute the Companyg 15 well tun 1t involves
being satished that an effective mternal framework of systems and contiols is put
n place which clearly dehnes authonty and accountability and promotes success
whie permitting the management of risk to appropriate ievefs

1t also nwalves the exercise of judgement as o the dehrmtians of success for the
Group the levels of nsk we a1e willing to take 1o achieve that success and the levels
of delegation to the executive The exercise of this judgernent 15 the responsibikty
of the Board and inwolves consideratiun of processes and assumptions as well

as outcomes,

It also nvolves the crealion of a sensitive inlerface for the wiews of sharshalders
and other stakeholders to be given appropnate consideration when reaching
these judgements

The Exerutive Tearn s required 10 provide such informabion to the Board as the
Board needs to enable 1t to exercise its judgement over these matters 1t must also
evidence appropriate pracess Thereis a very fine distinction between the approval
of processes and thew definition Only exceptionally would the Board intervene to
whate or define

The Board also sets Lhe tone for the Group The way inwhich it conducts itself its
attitude to ethical matters its defimtion of success and the assessment of
appropriate risk all define the atmosphere and culrure within which the Fxecutve
Team and all employees wark

Donald Brydon CBE

"Good governance is about helping to ensure the
Company is well run”

Good corporate govel nance 1s not about adhenng to codes of practice (@ithough
adherence may constitute 3 part of the evidence of qood governancei but rather
about the exercise of a mind set to do what 1s night One of the chalienges facing
any Board s the way i which the Non Executve and the Execuiive Directors
interact 1t1s clear that they each have the same leqgal responsibility but it 1s
generally unrealistic to expect Executive Directors Lo speak indwidually wath the
same freedom as the Non-Executve Drectors Equally Executive Drectors who
Just “toe the executive ine” N contradieNon to thels ow views May not be
effectively contributing 1o good governance A well-functioning Board needs to
find the night balance between healng the collective executive view beng aware
of the niatural internal tensions n an executve team and allowng ndependent
nput from the Non-Executive Drectors

One of the consequences of both increasing the watchdog role of the Board and
fncing this balance between indniduality and tearn behiaviour & drving maore
and more Boards to have feweat and fewer Executive Directors Inow
crcumstances the consequent Board construction works effectively and an
appropnate balance 15 stuck

Notwithstanding the tensions created by many exter nal expectations which may
be wholly orn part unrealistic a successful Board should 1deally be composed of

a diverse group of respected experlenced and competent peaple who coalesce
alound the common purpose of promoting the long-term success of the Company
provide a unified vision of the definitions of success and appropniate nsk. endeavour
to support managernent e honestly cnncrse at tmes but encourage all the time)
and create conhdence i all stakeholders in the integrity of the business

Dot Koegitirm

Donald Brydon
Chawman
2 March 2018

Compliance with the UK Corporate Governance Code 2016 (the Code}
and 1ts statement requirements

Throughout the inancial year ended 31 Decernber 2017 and to the date of this
report London Stock Exchange Group ple has comphed with the provisions of the
Code The Code s publicly available at the website of the UK Financial Reporting
Councll at wwwfre.org.uk This corporate governance section of the Armual
Report and Accounts descnibes how we have appied the principles of the Code

56

This report1s intended to guve shareholders a clear and comprehensive picture of
the Group s gavernance arrangernents and how they operated dunng the year

Pages 56—61 sel out detalls of the areas of our forus dunng the year, followed by

the Committee Reports Descriptions of how we complied with the main pnnciples
of the Code are sel out on pages 62—63
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Board and Committee meetings 2017

The Board held 16 Board ieetings of which 6 wore s heduled maetings and 10 addiional meetings principally relating to the prioposed merger with Deutsche Borse
and the Sharehelder requisitioned General Meeting A table of Board and Committee meeting attendance 1s set out below

Table shows the number of meetings attended against the number of meetings each Director was eligible to attend

D.;maid Biujg’w CBE
la. ques Algra
Paul Heiden

Lex Hougdam
Raffaele Jeratalm
Dawvid Mish
Siteiwet Slorns
va Rar‘.mafﬂ:

Wary schapirs
Andred Sutm o
DAL Weter ~
Directors who left during the géari
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Attendance at Board Meetings

when Directors have not been able to attend meetings they recewed and
reviewed the televant meehing papers Whete they had comments o concerns on
the matters to be discussed they provided these to the Chairman of the Board or
Commutiee in Ardvance of the meeting The Chairman of the Board engages with
Directors between Board meetings to discuss business and stiategic 1ssues

When ananging meetings at short notice every attempt (s made to
arcommaodate Directors diaries however nevitably not all Drectars are able 10
attend all such meetings The majonity of ineetings where Directors have been
uniable to attend were the 10 addimional meetings

As part of its ongoing development the Board visits the Group s overseas sites ancd
2014 iwisited the Group s businesses and met with staff inMilan

Onanumbet of occasions throughout the gear the Charman met Non Executive
Directors without Exec utive Directons present 10 partic dldr 1o discuss suce ession
planmng inelaton to the Chiet Frecutive Officer and actions ansing inrelahon to
the requisiticn of a General Meeting by a shareholder The Board also el without
the presence of the Chanman Thioughout the yedr the Chanman alse met with
Non-Lxecudne Directors ndividually 1o discuss other business retated rmatters
ncluding succession planmng and1efreshment of the Beard and ity composition
comprehensive Board and comnuttes papers (OMpIsINg an agenda and formal
reports and bnefing papers are sent to Diectors in advance ol each formal
meeting Directors are continually updated with wintten and verbal 1eports from
<enor executives and external advisors

Matters considered by the Board

La hof the regulal meetngs indludes a wade rangmgeport from the Cmet
Fxecutive and a report from the Chief Financial Sffwer on the Group< finarnidl
pertormarnce Reports from the Consmittes Chanmen updates on meagor proects
and 18T Lan administ At e matters are also reported at each Board meeling

uran annual baors the Board undertakes reviews of the follnwang Health and

safety the [hree year Busingss Plan and Annual Burdget Board effec tivenes:,
Restew nf independence of Directors pursuant to hes ode eview ol key
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governance and corporate pohces Approval of the Group Risk Register and Rish
Appetite Non-Executive Directors Fees and Approval of Annual and [nterim
Idends and the Annual Report and Accounts

2011 has proven an extrernely busy year for the Group and duning the year the
Board considered the following matters the recommended all share metger
hetween the Company and Deutsche Borse AG the <ale of LCHS A the General
Meeting requisiticned by a shareholder and the subsequent Circular the
acquisttion of The ¥ield Book businesses the divestrments of the Millenmium!T ESP
and Exactpro businesses the Company s share buyback programme  the
acquisibion of additwnal shares in L CH Group Holdings Limitec the nisks and
opportumties presented by Broxit the onguing managernent of Cyber Risk and
Information Security the Group s Tax Strategy the Modern Slavery Act and related
Group policies the new General Data Protection Regulation (LDPR) the Group s
Inswrance policies Group stategy nciuding Group corperate responsiility
strateqy Group Debt Refnancing Investor Relatons reports the review of
quattetly hnancial forecasts and funding of acquisttions the review and approval
of full year and intenrm results and guarterly intenm Management Staterments
and Exec utive and Non Exee ubive succession planning inchuding the
romimencement of the search far a new Chief Execufive Dthcer and the
appotntrnent of a new Mon Execunve Director

Other Board Committees

Rsreported 10 Last year s Annual leport a fransad Liun commitiee was appointed
N 2016 to consdel the proposed mergen with Deutsche Borse: Lts members were
Donald Brydon £ harmant Jacques Aqran Paul Howden and Davd Nish
Following the end of the merger Disctissions i tAarch 2010 the Transac hon
Comrirmittes was dishanded

£ hoard cormimittee cansisting of Paul HevlonSenaor Independent Dueg tor aned
T hatt of the Committeey Les Hongdwn Jasgues Algran and Daved warrenwas
appomted belween Dotober 2017 - December 207 1o assist the Board in
proparation of @ Cnculat nrespect of the sharehiolden iequisinoned General
Meeting beld on 19 Oecember 201 Detads of the number meetings beld to
chacuss these rmatters ate outhnedan the takle abioe:
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BOARD EFFECTIVENESS AND LEADERSHIP

2017 Effectwveness Review

Since 2005t has been the Board's policy to conduct an effectiveness 1eview onan
annual basis and, where appropnate to act onthe results of the review The Code
recomimends that an externally faclitated evaluation should take place at least
every 3 years

Duning the Penod. the Board engaged Professor Rob Goffee (Ementus Professor
London Business Schoal) to faclitate an exter nal teview of ts effectiveness
Professar Goffee was apponted tollowing a review of providers in the market
and s not currently engaged in any other wark on behalf of the Cormpany

In the Circular dated 30 Novermber 2017 the Board said it would review the steps
whic h ultimately led to the General Meeting to establish the appropnate lessons
to be drawn The Board engaged Stmaon Collins a forrmer Uk Chamman and Semor
Partner of KPMG LLP to carry out areview of the events leading to the General
Meeting The Board will share 4 summiary of key conclusions with sharehaolders in
due course

Evaluation Process

The events leading up ta the General Meeting requisitinned by a shareholder
brought Governane e including the propet operation of the Board (and its
Cormnmatiees) witofocus

When desigmng the 2017 Effectivensss Reviow the Board and Professor Goftes
felt it appropnate to acknowledge the impact of those events but 1o focus on how
the Buard has operated throughout the ygar

The process was in-depth and involved one to-one interviews with Board
members conducted by Professor Goffee and the completion of a very detailed
questiennaire tu provide insight to how the Board functions covenng the
following areas associated with the effectiveness of the Board

1 Strateqy & Planmng

2 Governance Risk & Control

3 Performance Management & montoring
4 Board composition & succession planmng
5 Board & Committee working/efficiencies

The Review also included review of indwidual deector petfarmance based on
approptiate critetia

As part of the Review Professor Goffee reviewed papets and dorurmentation

provided tothe Board the anonymity of all feedback from board members
recelved was ensured throughout the process
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Presentation of findings

rrofessor Goffee prepared a report setting out the findings including comparison
agamst awider set of other Boards Separaie reviews of the Board s assessment of
each indmdual director were also prepared for the Charman to discuss wiih
directors indwidually and inthe case of the Chanman with the 510

Professor Goftees report was shared with the Board and a session scheduled for
Board diectors ta discuss the findings with Prefessor Goffee and agiee next steps

Results

The results suggest that Board members are broadly content with vanious aspects
of governance and functioning Addmonally the Board sets tself abyectives which
were reviewed during the process and at the end ol the year the Board judged
had made good pragress in meeting those ohiectves

The Review identified a number of positive attnibutes ncluding managerment of
Board meetings shaping of agendas functiening of the Audit Committee and
Chauman s leadership of the Board to ensure forus and good practice

Next Steps
The Board recognised that greatet focus needs 10 be given to the following areas
dunng 2015

— Engagement — greater engagement with the business outside of board meetings
tornprove understanding of business actvity and depth of executve talent

— Inductign and training — inducticn and trarmng to be strengthened
- Board composition and interaction:

+ Review of Board membetship and balance to ensuret 15 equipped to meet the
shifting competitive landscape and tec hnological changes faced by the Group

- further stiengthenelationships between duectors
- Structural fine tuning —1mprove impact of the Regulatory Advisory Group and

Technology Advisory Group

The Board will agree actions to address these matters dunmg 2018 and report
agannst them in next year s Annual Report and Accounts

Annual Report December 2017
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2016 Effectiveness Review

The 2016 Effectiveness Review (which was conducted internally
by the Group Company Secretary) identified a number of 1ssues
These are summarised below, together with the resulting actions

ISSUE

ACTION

- Baard members attended dinners company évents
and also held discussians sutside formal Board
meelngs as a group and on animdwidual 0ases

Board Directors tc
have mcreased
contact autside
the Board room

Increased discusscn
of succession planmng
at Board level

— CEQ succession was a wey drea ut focus for the
Norimation Committee and Board n 2017

— Refreshing Board compositior continued to be
a key foous during the year

- Each Nen-Executive Director identified areas of
business interest and the Company Secretary 1
facilitating contatt with that area of the business

— Furtherin depth “teachmn sessions
have been he.d zuts'de of Board meehings

Identify further
development
needs foe duectors

Relations with shareholders

The Group's Investar Retations i1R1 function reporting Lo the Chuef Financial
Ofhrer manages an angoing shareholder engagement programme throughout
the year Executwe management and the IR tearm engage with investars through
meetings and presentations 10 discuss strategy performance and other matters
The Charman Semior Independent Duector and Chairman of the Rermuneration
Comrrittee are alsa avalable to meet majon investors tymeally to discuss
rorporate governance matters

In 2017 Board mermnbers semor executive management and the IR tearm held over

500 meetings and calls with instituticnal equity and debt investors including the
Board s engagernent with sharsholders 1o discuss CEQ suCcession
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In the lead up to a shareholder-reguisitioned General Meeting the Charman
and Semar independent Diertar held 35 shareholder meetings or calls and
discussions were also held with investor trade organtsations and shareholder
proxy acdvisers a< part of the wider shareholder communications around the
topic As part of the external review undertaken by Srmon Coling shareholder
wviews will be incorporated in the repart s Andings

The Board recewves arepott on [R matters at cach of 1Ls scheduled meetings
including market expectanons of finanaal performance updates on share tegister
composition and feedback frominvestars Sell side analyst research notes are
cwculated to the Board following publication The Group s cotparate biokers and a
specialist IR advisery firm also provide the Board with adwice on market sentiment
input onmarket communications and shareregister analyss In June 2017 the
Group hosted a markel update event with senior management from the core
business divisions mesenting on growth and deveiopment opportuniies Ths
resulted in the Group setting public iinancial targets ias descnibed on page 41y

In additwon to information on financial and operational performance the Group
engages with shareholders and relevant shareholder advisory agencies on
envionmental social and governance (FSGrmatters The Group produces an
annual ¢ orporate Sustainability report that details its approach to E5G matters
www.lseg.com/about-london-stock-exchange-group/corporate-
responsibility

The Group s AGM provides the opportunity for all shareholders to meet and to
put guestions e the Board Diectors Procedures for the AGM fand any General
Keelingr are comphant with the Code with voning by way of a poll ro ensure all
shareholders views are taken mto account

The [R section of the Group s website iwww.lseg.com/investor-relationst 1s a
phmary source of regularly updated information about the Group Al inancial
reports and statements news reledses presertations and other documents
including regulatory news service disciosures are avalable on the webaite together
with a hist of analysts producimg 1esearch on the Company and a surmmary of
aralysts forecasts of performance Recardings of preliminary and interim results
calls are accessible 1o all sharehoider s via the Group website
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Corporate governance

Conflicts of interest

The Company's Articles of Association allow the Board 1o authonse conflicts of
interest that may anse and to impose such mits of conditions as 1t thinks it

The Group has established procedures whereby actual and potental conflicts of
nterest are 1egularly reviewed, appropriate authorisation 1s sought prior to the
appointment of any new Director and new conflicts are addressed appropniately
The decision to authonse a confhict of mterest ran only be rmade by non-confleted
Dwectors and in making such decisiens the Director s must act In a way they
consader 0 good faith would be most likely to promaote the Company s success

Lex Hoogduiris Chawrman of LOH Group Holdings Limited LCH Group Holdings
Lumited 15 a non-wholly owned subsidiary of the Company and Mr Hoogduin
rocewes a separate fee tor that role Any potential confhicts of interest ansing as @
result of M1 Hoogduin s appointment to the Board have been governed by the
terms of a conflicts memorandum of under standing between LCH Group Holdings
Limited and the Corngany

Indemnities

Directors have the benefr of mdemimty arrangerments from the Company in
respect of labilihes incurred as a resull of thew office and execution of ther
powers, duties and responsibiities The Company mantained a Directors and
Officers hability insurance policy throughout the year This policy covers the
Durectors for any such iamhties inrespect of which they are not indermmified by
the Company and to the extent to which it has indermnified the Dwectors also
covers the Company This insurance cover has beer renewed Neither the
Company s indernnity nor insurance provides cover for a tirector 1 the event that
the Director ts proved to have acted fraudulently o dishonestly
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Risk Management and Internal Control

The Board 1= responstble for the Group's 1isk management framewark and
rmaintaining an appropriate system of internal controls A Board approved
Enterprise wide Risk Management Framework and Group Risk Appetite Statermeant
are central to the Group s Risk Management process The Risk Managernent
Framework 1s updated on an ongoing basis In response to changes n the Group s
business and associated 11sks The Group Risk Appetite staternent 15 approved
annually as part of the Group ¢ strateqic planning process

The Audit Committee and Risk Committee assist the Board in discharging its
responsibilities by reviewing and assessing the Group s Risk Management
framework system of mtesnal cont10ls and nsk management pracess on a reqular
basis Refer o the reports of the Audi Commmities on pages 65—63 and the Risk
Commuttee on pages 70-71 for further detarl on ther oversight activities dunng
the year

The system of nternal contrgls 1< designed to facilitate the managernent of the
Group and (ks businesses within the Board s 1isk appetite rather than eluminate the
risk of faure to acheve the Group s ohectives, and can only provide reasonable
but not absolute assurance against matertal rmsstatement or loss fraud o
breaches of laws and regulations

Exerutive management 1s accountable for nisk identiheation evaluation mitigation
monitonng and reporting n accordance with the framework. A dwisional ntermal
control and Risk Management seif certification process ts dtso performed
sermi-anniuglly Fach busingss umt 1s requied to confirm that it 15 comphance
with the Groups policies and governance procedures and managing its Tisk within
appetite exceptions areteported to the Audit Committes and Risk Committes

FURTHER INFORMATION

turther detal on the Group s Risk Management
oversight can be found on pages 42—45 An Overview
of the Principal Risks and Uncertanhies of the Group
1s provided on pages 46-53
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Governance Corporate governance

Internal Controls

Management structure

The Group operates a rnatix structure designed to optimise tesource allocation
and argamsational capacityy The day to-day runmng of the Group 1s managed by
an Executive Commuttee whiuch s chared by the Interirn Chiet Exec utive Gthicer
and Group Chief Financial Officer Lach Executive Cornimittee member 15
responsible for one of the Grour s operating divisions or a major area of strategic
wmportance The Fyecutive Committee meets teqularly to review business and
financial performance nsk exposure and to approve key decisions Lachlegal
entity 1s responsible for engaging withits local regulators and mormitonng and
ensunng regulatony comphance

Policies and Procedures

A framewaork of Group wide policies establish the pninciples rmmum standards
and 1nsk management activities LSEG requires the Group s businesses and
functions to follow to manage ther business within sk appetite All Group level
policies are appraved by the Executive Committee and may also require approval
o1 ratification from the dudit Commmittee the Risk Committee and the Board The
Group tuns & rathng programme of mandatory online traning courses for ali
employees covering rnatters including ethical conduct 1isk and tontrol
management tequlatory requirements and the group policies

Financial Control

The Group has a robust system of financial control w hich has beenenhanced
dunng 2017 by the continued 1oll-out and implementation of the Group wide
financial system inTesponse to the increased size and footprint of the group
an appropnate fiamework of delegated authorties 15in place

Comprehensive finangial planning reporting and review procedures ale in place
with an annual budget and 3 year business plan approved by the Board Hinancial
and key petformance indicators are reviewed against opetational budgets ona
monthly basis at agroup dvisional and business unit level The Chief Finanoal
Dfficer's managerment reports are shared with the Board and any key 1ssues are
1eviewsd at each Board meeting

The Executive Investment Commuttee monitors capital expenditures actoss the
Groupy and helps the Execulive Committes approve and pnoritise projects

The Executive Financial Risk Committee oversees 1isha related to captal
vestments tax counterparnes and through s Ireasury Commutiee the
activities of the Group s Treasury function The Treasury Comimittee operales
within Board approved poticy and meets regularly to1eview the managemernt
ot the Group s credit market and hquidiy risks Matenal group counterpany
exposures are assessed regularly including through a Group-wide centralised
counterparty sk Yaiue al Risk model further details on finandal sk
rmanagement are provded in Mots 2 tathe acccunts
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Internal Audit

The [nterpal Audit function provides independent assurance to the Board and
other key stakeholdars over the adequary and effectveness of the Group s
systern of internal controts: the governance model and the Enterprise wide Risk
Management Framework The function s the third line of defence inthe Groups
nisk cantral structure and has no operatianal responsibihities over the entities ar
processes which ¢ reviews

The independent e of the Intetnal Audit function from Executive Management 1s
ensured through the following measures

- The Graup Head of Internal Audit reports diectly to the Chairman of the Audit
Carmimuttee and has direct access to the Chaurnan of the Board For
administrative matters the Group Head of Internal Audit has a secondary
reporting ine 1o the Chef Finanoial Officer

The Chawrmar of the Aucdit Comrittee and Chief Financial Officer jontly assess
the performance of the Group Head of Internal Auadi

1he audit Cammittee approwves the Internal Audit annual budget

Further detarls on the Intetnal Audit frenction can be- found in the internal audst
charter which 15 reviewed annually and aalable from the Group Cormpany
Secretary or the Giowp s website at wwwlseg.com/about-london-stock-
exchange-group/corporate-responsibility/ethics-and-governance

Conclusion

The Boaid comfirms that through the Audit Commuttes and the Risk Commtlee

1t has reviewed the operalion and effectneness of the Group's system of internal
controls throughout 2017 and up Lo the date of approval of this annual Report and
Accounts The Board has satished itself thar a robust assessment of the principal
sk faring the Comparny mcluding those that would thieaten its business model
future performance and hquidity have been carned out during the year Necessaly
arnons have heen or are being taken to remedy any signhcant failings or
weaknesses identified during these 1eviews 1he Board 15 satishied that the Risk
Managernent process and systemn of internal controls conform wath the FRC 5 2014
Hisk managernent internat control and related finanoial and business reporting
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Comagmg with aeprovisibns of the Code

The Group is committed to the highest standards of corporate
governance and business mtegrity in all of its activities Throughout
the year, the Company has complied with all principies of the Code
The Code sets out guidance in the form of main principles and more
specific provisions for good governance in relation to Board leadership,
effectiveness, accountability, remuneration and relations with
shareholders. Further information on the Code, its applicability, the
principles and ther provisions can be found on the Financial Reporting
Council’'s website, at www.fre.org.uk This table forms part of the
Corporate Governance Statement on page 95 of the Directors’ Report

A Leadership

A 1 Role of the Board

The Board s the piincipal decision-makang forum for the Gioup and s responsible
to shareholders for achweving the Group s strateqic obyectives and delivering
sustainable growthin shareholder value Directors act in a way they) consider wll
promaote the long-term success of the Company by constructely challengmg
and supporiing the development of the Group s strategy for the beneht of
shareholders as a whole with regard to the interests of the Group s emnployees the
mpact of the business on the community and environment and the interests of
other stakeholders The Boald manages the overali control of the Group s affars
with reference to the formal schedule of matters reserved far the Board This
schedule 1s available on the Company « website at www.lseg.com/about-
london-stock-exchange-group/corporate-responsibility/ethics-and-
governance The Board views the brands and reputations of its subsidhanies as
important assets of the Group Accordingly, protection of the brand and reputanon
of the Group ncluding ensuning that subsidianes continue to meet locatk legal
requirements 15 also a key part of the Board s10le The matters considered by

the Boaid in 2017 are summarnsed on page 57

Board Commmittees

The Company ensures that all committees are provided with sufficient 1esources
to undertake then duties All committess have whitten termis of reference which
are avallable from the corporate responsibility section on the Campany s website
at www 1seg.com/about-london-stock-exchange-groupicorporate-
responsibility or onrequest from the Group Company Secretary The matters
considered by the Remunetation Audit Risk and Normimation Cornmttees are
summarsed inthe reports of those commuttees

A 2 Division of Responsibilities

The roles of Chairman and Chief Executive are distinct and separate with a

clear dwision of responsibilities The Charman ts respensible for the running

and leadershup of the Board and ensunng it s effectiveness The Chief Fxecutive
has delegated authority from and 1s responsible to the Board for manaqing the
Group s business with the nower for further delegation inrespect of matters which
are necessary for the effective runming and management of the business The
current key respensibiities of both the Chan man and Chief Cxecutives are set

out on this page
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Chief Executive
— formulates the stratequc direction of the Group and perodhcally agrees this with
the Board

— ensures proper financial and business contral 1s exerased within the Group
— charwrs the Group Execufive Commitiee

—ensures there s a clear management structure with appropniately delegated
responsibiities staffed by suitably expenenced and qualified staff

— ensures appropnate reporting and communication systerns are established
across the Group

—ensures key performance obectives are set for all operational departments
action plans and budgetary ¢ontrols are estabhshed and where necessary
corrective action 15 taken 1o maximise the performance of the Group

- ensures the Graup s strategy and values are effectively understood and apphied
by management and staff

- ensures an appropriate Risk Management framework 15 in operation

A 3 Chairman
- chaus the Board of the Lormpany

- forges an effective Board based on expenence deraity, skills and competencies

—ensures coliaborationwith the Cheef Executive that the Board conaiders the
stratege 155uss facing the Group in a timely manner and is presented with sound
wiformanaon and analysis appropriate Lo the decisions that it s asked 1o make

— acts as asounding board for the Ctuef Executive and pravides general advice
relating to the management and development of the Gloup s busingss

= supports the commercial activities of the Group by inter alia maintaining
contact with the Group s key stakeholders and other industry participants

A & Non-Executwe Directors

Non-Executive Dnectors are urged tu challenge constructively and heip develop
proposdls on strategy scrutinise the performanc e of management i meeting
agreed goals and objectives and monital the reporting of performance They
should sabisfy thermselves on the integity of financial inforrmation and that
financial controls and systems of 11sk management are 1obust and defensible
Mon-Execuftve Directars are responsible for deterrmining appropnate levels of
remunieration for executive directors and have a principal role tn appointing and
where necessary removing executive drectors and in succession planmng The
Board should appoint one of the Independent Non-Executve Directots 1o be the
Seror Independent Director 1M1 Paul Hewden 15 the Seniol Independent Director;
The responsibihties of (he Senior Independent Drector melude meeting major
shareholders as an alternative contact to the Charman Chief Executive or Chief
Financial Officer

B. Effectiveness

B 1 The Composition of the Board

There 15 a sttang rion-execative element an the Board and the Non-Executive
Directans provide deep corporate expenience and knowledge which they apply

to ther understanding of the Group andits strateqy The Board bas 7 Independent
Non-Executive Durectorns

In assessing each Dwrector s ndependence the Board considered whether there
are relationships or circurmstances which are ikely to affect or could appear to
affect the Director s Judgement [n evaluating Direc tors independence the Board
has taken into consideration the quidance provided by the Code The expenence
and other appointments of director s 1s set out on page 54-35
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Governance Complying with the provisions of the Code

B 2 Appointments to the Board

The Board has a formal ngarous and Lansparent procedure for the appaintrment
nt new Duectors to the Board The Board has established a Nomnation Committee
which leads the process for Board apperrtments and makes recommendations to
the Board The Report from the Normination Commnttee on page €4 outhnes the
changes ta the Board that took place duning the year The Beard notnally uses an
external search consultancy for appamtments

B 3 Commitment

The other sigificant commuitinents of the Charrman and the Boatd are set out at
pages 54 55 1he Board is satished that these do not conflict with their duhes and
hme commmtmments as Dwrectols of the Company

B 4 Development

Directors ate encowaged to continiglly update then skills and knowledge of the
husiness and brisAngs are reqularly gwen at Board meetings on particular parts
of the business The Board also continued s practice af undertaking formal visits
to 1ts overseds businesses so that the Diertors can experience key aspects of the
Gloup s operanions fust hand

Each new Duector jomang the Board 15 offered an induction programme covering
the key business areas of the Group and including meetings with members of the
Executwe Commmittee other semior managers and external advisers Diectors are
enrouraged 1o eet with executives un an ongoing hasts to better understand
each of Lthe business areas together with the Group s governance financial and
legal framework A set out on page 58 Board training and engagement wath the
business nutside of mestings1: an area of focus for the Boardin 2018

B 5 Information and Support

The Diectors have full access to the advice and services of the Group Company
Secretany whostesponsible for advising the Board on corporate gover nance
matters Direclons also have access toindependent professional adwice if they
1udge it necessary to fulfll thew responsibilines as Directors

B 6 Evaluation

The Board condu ts an annual evaluation of its ettectiveness and acts on Lhe 1esults
of the t1eview Dunng the year the Board carned cut an externally faciitated 1eview
of its own effectiveness and that of ws Committees and Directors toget er with
actions taken fallowing the 2016 sffoctiveness review and the results of that review
are detailed on page 59 of the Corpurate Governance Report

B 7 Re-Election
Each Duecton1s sutyect to election at the first AGM following thew appointiment
[ntine with the Code all Duectars are subjedt to annual re-election

C. Accountability

C 1 Financial and Business Reporting

Astaterment of the Lirectors' responsibiinies 1egaicing the hnaneial statements
nclueding the status of the Group and { ormpany as a going concern s set out on
page 99 Anoxplanation »f the Gioup 5 shiateqy and business mode! togethen
with relevant nsks and performance nsks and performance metnes are set out
on pages 8-15 Aturther statemen s provided onpage 99 canfirrming that the
Brard ronsiders that the Annual Repart and Accounts taken as a whole 1s farr
hatarn ed and understandable and prsades the information necessary for
shareholders Lo assess the Groupand Company < position petformance
business madel and strateagy
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C 2 Risk Management and Internal Control

The Board has overali responsibility for the spornsorship of a strong nisk cuiture
across the Group and for deterrnireng the nature and extent of the principal rnsks it
15 willting to take machueving 1ts strateqic oectines 1t approves the Risk Appetite
each year as part of the strategic business objectives and ensuves there 1s an
ongoing process for identifying evaluating and managing the principal nsks
faced by the Company The Board has delegated a numbes of responsibihities to
the Risk Commttee including oversight of internal Risk Management processes
The report llom the Risk ( omnuttee can be found on pages 70-71 In accordance
with paragraph C 2 2 of the Code an explanation of how the Drectors have
assessed the prospects of the Company s included in the section headed
Financial viability staternent on paqge 98

C 3 Audit Committee and Auditors

The Audit Committee Report on pages 65-69 sets out details of the compasition

of the Commuttee including the expertise of mernbers, and outhnes how the
Commmttes has discharged s 1esponsibililies dunng 2017 The Board has delegated
a number of responsibilines to the Audit Commuittee including aversight of the
Group s inancial Toporiing processes and managernent of the external auditor

D. Remuneration

D 1 The Level and Components of Remuneration

The Drectors Remuneration Report on padges 72- 94 outlines the activities

of the Remuneration Cormmittee during 217 and the implementation of the
Rermuneralion Pahcy dunng 2017 (ncluding salaty bonus and share awards and
payments for loss of office paid to Drectors) The Rernuneration Policy was subject
1o a binding shareholder vote at the 201 AGM and was passed with over 98+
support 1t ss avalable on the Group s webstte at www lseg.com/investor-
relations/shareholder-services/agm-information There have been no
changes to Lhe policy durnng the tinancial year Under Schedule 8 of The Large
and Medwm sized Cormpanes and Groups tAccounts and Report sl vAmendment,
Requlations 2013 the Remuneration Policy Repott must be approved by a binding
shareholder vote at least once every 3 years

D 2 Procedute
The Board has delegated 1esponsibiities ta the Remuneration Committee
including the temuneration of the Chairman and Executive Direc tory

E. Relations with Shareholders

E 1 Mhalogue with Shareholders

The Companty mairtdains an active shareholder engagéement, programime
managed through the Group s IR func tion The IR programme prosides regular
npportunity for contact with existing and potential shareholders as well a<
seli-side analysts thatl produce investment researchirelating to the Group IR
actwities nclude nisetings «alis presentabions and informanon refeases on a
regular bass throughout the year based aroand the: Group's imancial veporting
ralendar and following rgon corporate events and news flow For mure detail on
the Group s IR actnaties please see page ©0 of the Corporate Governance Repaort

[ 2 Constructive Use of General Meetings

The Group s AGH provides the opportunity for all shareholders 1o meet the
Drectors and to pul guestions to the Board Procedures for the AGM 1and any
reneral Meeting) are cornphant with the Code wathewennirg by wag of o pall to
crnute all shareheddors, views are takennto acount
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Report of the Nomination Committee

Donald Brydon
CBE

Charman of the
Nomnahon Cormmttee

The Nomination Committee members as at 31 December 2017 were
Donald Brydon (Chairman), Paul Heiden, Stephen O’Connor and Mary
Schapiro. The Company Secretary 15 the Secretary to the Commttee
and attends all meetings The Head of Human Resources, CEQ and
appropriate external advisers attend as required The Comrmittee's
role is to review the size, structure and skills of the Board, consider
succession planming and make recormmendations to the Board on
potential candidates for Board membership

In 2017 the Committee tocused on
1 Succession planring for the CEQ and Non-Fxecutive Dineclors

2 Refreshing Board composition

As the Baard set out in the Circular to shareholders dated 30 Noverber 201/ one
af the most important roles vested 1 Non-Executive Directors under the Code
through the proper operation of the Nomination Committes tand the Board itselfi
15 Board and CEO succession planning

CEO Succession Planning

In 2017 the Board undertook succession planning for the CEG The intention of
the Board and Momination Cormnmmttee was to actneve an orderly, consensual
succession plan for the CEO 1 the best interests of LSEG

Duning 2016 and into the frst part of 2017 Xavier Rolet had indicated he would step
down as CEQ to srmooth the path for the planned merger with Deutsche Borse

Following the end of the proposed merger the Nomination Committee reviewed
the Board's composihon again and agreed to focus on thencieased nead for
succession planmng for the CEQ This ultimately led to the announcerment on

19 October 2017 conhrrmng Xavier Rolet s agreed departure fiom the Group by the
end of 2018 and both parties comentment to an orderly transition Fallowtng the
reguisition of a General Meeting by a shareholder Xavier Rolet agieed to step down
from the Board on 29 Novermber 2017 The Board agreed that the Chief Financial
Officer David Warren would be appointed as Intenim CEG

The Comrmittee engaged Egon Zehnder 1o assist with compiling a CLO role prohle
and carrying out a global search against the agreed profile

Non-Executive Directors

As part of the Committes s onigoming focus an Board composition the Commmttee
supported the Board s sedrch for another Non-Executive Director Lo further extend
the Baard s knowledge and expenence i technology and techncal risk Egon
Zehnder was engaged to conduct the search aganst an agreed role profile and
the successful candidate val Rahrman joimed the Board on 20 December 2017
Inteaching s decision te appoint Val to the Board the Committee and other
Non-Fxecutive Duectors considered a long hist of candidates and then {as with
previous Board appointments) narrowed the selection hist to a shott st of candidates
forinterviews The Commmittee and the Board considered that val s considerable
technology knowledge and expertise will be of sigruficant beneft as the Group
bullds on1ts pesition as a global financial markets infrastructure provider
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Chairman succession

As announced in Novernber 201/ foliowing the requisition of the General Meeting
I'sawd Twould net stand for re electionin 2019 a5 1 and the Board beheve that at
that point it will be 1n shareholders best interests to have a new team at the helm
Lo steer the future progress of the Company The Norination Committee which |
will not chan for these purposes will initiate the process to identify a successor
later in 2018

Diversity
The Board rernams commutted to dwersity i the Board reom and throughout
the Group

The Board s diversity policy states that the Board will seek to make appointments
onment agamst objectiee cntena with due regard for the benefits of diversity
ncluding gender and the Cormnmttee can confirm that the policy was adhered to
dutng the year The Board afso recognises the benefit in having access to the
dwersity of input from people with a wide 1ange of backgrounds skills expenence
and natinndalities This 15 eflected in the composition of the Board

The Board rematns aligred with the proposals of the Hampton Alesander Review

1o ensure talented wornen at the top of business and indeed thwoughout the Group
asawhaler are recogmsed promated and rewarded and the value in mvestingina
pipetine of talent by encouraging a broad range of semor individuals withn the
business 1o take on addinonal roles

Implementation

The Board 1s committed to bulding on existing prograrmmes including WIN and the
Group wide mentonng scheme to develop strong talent across the business LSEG 15
a signatory to the UK Treasury Women in Finance Charter signalling the Group s
ongong cormmtment 1o equality n the workplace and to actvely ¢hallenge both
ourselves and others in the finanaal sector to keep addiessing these 1ssues The
Group contmnues 1o Make plogress against the stretch target it set nself in 2016 of
4(0'x fernale representation for semor management and our overall population by
2020 See page 35 for further detatl

The Board has inc1eased its gendér diversity duning Lhe yeat by the appointment
of an addinonal female duector val Rahman The Board recognises it has more to
do and remas commutted to further restonng the gender diver sity of the Board
a process that was paused ahead of the possible merger with Deutsche Borse and
the dhsruption dunng the last quarter of 2017 At Board level this will mclude
continuing to request head hunters to ensure that as far as practicabie a
sigmficant propartion of long lists of candidates are fernale and aniy using firms
that have signed up to the voluntary code of conduct for Executive Search firims

Further details of the Company s approach to diver sity and the LSEG Board s
dwersity policy can be found at www.lseqg.com/about-london-stock-exchange-
group/corporate-responsibilitu/ethics-and-governance

Norminaton Commattee pnonties for 2018 are to

- Identify a new CEC for recommendation to the Board

- Commenc e Char man succession planning

— Review succession plans for the Executive tearmn and Board

YN AN

Donald Brydon
Chaiman
2 March 2018
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_Report of the Audit Committee

Gavernance Report to the Audit Committee

Paul Heiden
Chatrman of the
Audit Committes

The Audit Committee membaers as at 31 December 2017 were Paul
Heiden (Senior Independent Director), Jacques Aigrain. David Nish
and Stephen O'Connor.

This report 15 intended to give an overview of the role of the Audit
Committee in assisting the Board to fulfil its oversight responsibihities
relating to the monitoring of the system of internal control, the
independence of the extermal auditor and the integrity of the Group's
financial statements It details the actwities, discussions and
decisions that enabled the Audit Commttee to fulfil its objectives
effectively during 2017

During the year as part of its key prionties the Commttee

- Monttored the tax and accounting iImphications of the acguesition of tMergent Inc
and The Yeld Book and Cll Fixed Income Indices divisions ot Cingroup The
Comrmittee satished itself that the Executives in charge were manaqing all the
aspects of the transactions effectively

— Recewed and discussed the external audit management fetter from Fimst &
Young LLP (EY) The letter highighted a number of arcas for mprovermenit
n particular regarding the forrmalisation and better documentation of some
contral actiibies These were noted by the Commruttee for follow-up

- Reviewed the effectiveness of the extetnal auditor based on then quahhecations
expertise resouices level of independence execution of ther audit plan and the
quahty of then canclusiens and recormmendaticns On the basis of theu own
interachion with EY and that of managernent the Audit Commuttee conhirmed
that the services provided by €Y were appropnate and in compliance with
relevant auditor independence and integnity 1ules

- Reviewed and discussed the financial disclosures and assurance work to support
the prospectus disclosures inrelation to the proposed matger with Deutsche
Borse AG the rmerger was terrminated alter the European Comimission s
prohibition decisiorin March 2017

- Recewved and discussed 1ieports from Executives on the key infrastructure
initiatives of the Group including 17 operations the project managerment
framework and the cyhersecunty programme

Discussed the internal processes and controls to ensure that the &ioup e
comphant with the new UK legislation oncthe failare 1o provent the crimimal
factitation of tax evasion whch became effective on 1 Septermber 2017

— Discussed the Gioup finandng proposal rom Corporate Treasury for
recornmendation te the Board Thisncluded the replacerment of Lhe
§ 600 mulhon revoly ing credit facility and the estableshrment of a § 1 tilhon
FUIN COMMEIC1al PARer progTamme
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- Discussed & letter fromthe tinancial Reporting Council IFRC) following i< review
of the annual report and arcounts for Decernber 2016 The Audit Comimittee
agreed to update certain discioswres nthe 2017 Annual Report disclosures to
address the comments from the FRC 1 particular the change of defimtion from
non recurning 1tems to non undetlying tems

— Discussed a number of internal audit reports during the year and satished wselt
that ranagement achion plans were i place to address the recommended
improvernents within reasonable deadlines

Approved the 2018 internal audit universe internal audtt plan and resources for
the Internal Audit funchion The Commttee also approved the updated internal
audt charter

- Continued to monitor the alignment of the control envitonment of recent
acquisitions with the Group intetnal control framework It satished wself that
these ac quisttions were being integrated ac cording to plan and were meeting
the financial ohjectves of the Group Where gaps were identified the Commuittee
requested remediation plans to be put m place

- Continued to mamtor the status of the mplementation of the new Group-wide
hinancial systern throughout the year and satished iself that the project v
delivering a more robust process for financial reporting

— nscussed the implicatons of the rmplementation of the new accounting
standards [FFS 15 anrevenue tec ogrition and IFRS 9 an the tecogmion and
impairnient of financial assets (FRS 15 and 1FRS 9 becarmne effectve starting
1lanuary 26181

— Reviewed the whistleblowing arrangements of the Group and its own Terms,
of Reference
Prionties in the forthcoming year will nclude

- Recenving assurance that the control environment remains rabust ta support
the continued giowth and diversiication of the Group s actvities including all
major projects as well as key processes such as business continuity planmrgy
and disaster recovery

— KMonitor ing the progress of the integration of newly acquired busmesses

- Monitoring the progress of management achons recommended withur
the exlernal audit rnanagement letter from ey

- Recewing early and continuous understanding of the impact of the Group s
aequisitions and dwestitures on financial and tax accouniing

- Continuing to assess theampact of [FRS 15 1FRS 9 and other developments in
accounting standards particularly on the Group s revenue recagnition policies
and the related implernentation by Finance

— Continuing to moritat progress on the key 1T and mfrastructine projects
of the Group

p =

Paul Heiden
Charmian of the Audit Comimittee
2 March 2018
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Eea_port of the Audit Committee

Role and responsibilities of the Audit Committee Composition and meetings

1. Financial reporting The Cormimittee meets the requuements of the Code Itis comprsed of 4

The Cormnmittee recommends the financial statements of the Group to the Board, Independent Non Executive Drectors who all bring recent and relevant financial
including the annual and half-yearly reports prelimmnary results announcements expenence 1115 chared by Paul Herden who 1= a qualified chartered arcountant
and any other formal announcement relating to its financial performance with a career ind vanety of senior finance roles The skills and experience of each
revigwing the sigmficant financal reporting judgements that they contain Committee member are provided m the Board of Directot s section on pages 54-55
2. Internal controls and Risk Management systems The Chief Fimancial Officer, Group Finannial Controlier Group Head of Inter nal Audit
The Comnittee keeps under review the effectiveness of the Group s system Group Chief Risk Officer and the external auditor are standing invitees to all Audit
of Internal Comiral and Risk Management The Audit Commitiee makes Commttes meetings In addihon varous other members of management are
recormmendalions 1o the Beard regarding the effectiveness of the Group s internal invited from time to time to present specific matters relevant to the Comrmttee <
control and Risk Management systerms and recommends to the Board the rermit The Chairman of the Board alse attends the Committee on arequiar basis

slaterments to be included in the Annual Report concermng imternat controls and
Risk Management (i collaberation with the Risk Cornmmittee) The Committee also  Further details on the functions and responsibiines of the Audit Comrmttee can

monitors and reviews the effectiveness of the Group s Internal Audit function be found in the Commuttee s Terms of Reference which are reviewed annually and
ensunng that it has adequate resources and approprate access to information awatiable frorm the Group Company Secretary of 11 the corporate governance
to performits funchon independently from Executive Management secton of the Group » websile at www lseg.com/about-london-stock-

exchange-group/corperate-responstbility/ethics-and-governance
3. External auditor
The Committee oversees the relationship with the external auditor The Committee Activities in 2017

Teviews and approves the annual audit plan ensures that 111s conststent with the The Committee met 5 times duning the year The Committee maintans a forrmal
Committes s view of the scope of the audit engagement and reviews the indings agenda which ensures that all matters for which the Commuittee 1< responsible

of the audit with the externai auditor The Cormmittee monitors and reviews the are considered at the appropnate meeting The agenda for each mesting was
obectivity and independence of the external audiors wcluding the non audit deterrmuined by the key events of the annual financial reporting cycle the rnisks
activities performed by the auditors for the Gloup (see the exterral auditors fees wdentified by the Commuittee and the standing items under its Terms of Reference
sechon below for more details) The Committee ensures that the external audit The fallowang provides details on how the Comimittee discharged its

SeTVICEs cONtTact (s put out to tendet on a penadic basis nine with existing best responsibilities during the year as set out in1ts Terms of Reference

practies (the current external auditor was appotnted in 2014 following a tender
process overseen by the Audit Comimittee) The Comrmittee oversees the selection Fiancial matters
process for new auditors and it an auditor 1esigns the Comrmittee investigates the with regards to inancal matters the Committee reviewed discussed and

155ues leading to this and decides whether any action s required approved the half year and full-year financial results [t reviewed discussed and
approved key accounting judgements the annual review for goodwill imparment
4, Other matters and assessment of ndicators of impan ment on purchased intangible assets
Treasury management s view of commitments and contingencies and the adequacy of the
The Comrmttee approves the taking of any actions winch fall outside the Group proposed disclosures For more details on the main discusstons and decisions
Tieasury Pohcy and considers matenal financing and treasury transactions reached by the Committee on financial matters see the section below entitled
treserved for the Board ahead of review by the Board ‘Significant rmatiers impacting the financial statements and Othet topie= of

discussion in respect Lo the financial statements
Whistleblowing and fraud
The Committee reviews the Group's arrangerments for 1ts employees toaise
concerns in confidence about possible wrongdong 1n financial reporting or other
matters The Committee enswes that these arfangements allow propor tionate
and independent investigation of such matters and appropnate follow up action
The Committee also reviews the Group s procedures for detecting fraud and for the
prevention of bribery
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Internal controls:

The Committes continued to exercise disaiphned oversight of the effec tiveness of
the Group s internat controls thraughout the year It fulhlled its responsibilities by
reviewing and discussing regulan reports from the external auditor the Internal
Audit and Risk Management functions as well as from external experts including

— Reports on comphance with the Code —internal controls (tncluding
whistleblowingr at half year and year end

- Quarterly updates oninternal audit plans including mntet nat control 15sues rased
and managerment dactiuns Lo remedy the deficiencies

- Annual report on the performance of the Internal Audit functien

The Carmnmittee obtained additional ¢ ornfort by meeting with the Group
Head of Internal Audit at each Audit Committee meeting without Executive
Management present

The activties of the Commuttee related tomter nal controls enabled it to satisfy
itself that the Internal Audit funchion isindependent objective and adequately
staffed to perform s duties inaddiion the Committes assessed the effectiveness
of the Internal Aucht function threughout the year using nualitative and
quantitatve mdicators including

- Completeness af the audit universe and the audid plan

— Quality of the methodology (updated at least once a yean
- Quality of the audil teports and the issues raised

- Consistency of the audit 1ssues raised and then ratings

— Feedback from Executive Management on specihc audits

- Key performanc e indicators such as percentage of the audit plan completed
duration of audits distnibution of audit ratings percentaae of past due actions
and percentage of self identihed 1ssties

The Comnuttee refied on the assurance process throughout the year to
recommend 1o the full Board that 1t could report to sharehokders on the
effectiveness of the Croup s internal control system The Board staterment
tan be found on page 99

Oversight of the external auditor

The Commuttee assessed the effectiveness of the external audit process

nc luchng the independence and quality of the Group s external auditar (EY
throughout the year The Committee rehed on its own judgment supportedd
pu the following evidence

- Thi Comrmittee tecenved arepart fram management on their own evaluation
uf the effertrveness of the extermal auditor

= ltrecowed reports from Ly on the status of ther 2017 plan and the results of ther
work The exlernal auditon s teports wete distussed atl eac L omimittee meeting
and thei wiews and optens used to challendge deqsions hy Group Finance
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— Fwuidence of matters 1eferred for speialist teview techmcal teview second
partner review and quatity control

- The Committee also held separate meetings with LY at each Commmttee
meeting without management being present

Based on all endence presented the Audit Committee satished itself that the
external audit has been conducted independently and effectvely with the
appropniate ngor and level of testing

The Commuttee approved the EY audit plan, the methadology used the scope of the
audit by location the nsks and areas of fouus as well as the materiahty threshold for
the Group and the threshold for reporting unadjusted audit differences

The Committes has complied with the relevant parts of the Competition and
Markets Authority Final Order on the statutory audit market for the year ended
31 December 2017

Ihelead audit partner & required to rotate every 5 years and other hey audit
partners are required to1otate every 7 years David Canming Jones took over as
lead audit partnier 0 2012 Having considered the performance of EY for the past
Jyears the Audit Commmttee recornmended to the Board that aresolution for
the teappomitment of Ly as the Company s external auditor for the year ending
31 Decernber 2014 be proposed to shareholders at the AGMn Apnil 2018

Report on external auditor's fees and safeguards on non-audtit services
The Comrmttee has a formial policy governing the engagement of the auditors to
provide non-audit services which 1s reviewed on an annual basts

This pelicy profibits certain actvinies from being undertaken by the auditors such
as accounting/bookkeeping services 1nternal auditing, tax and payroll seTvices
executive recrlitment and remuneralion services and more generally any work
where a mutuahty of nterest could compromse the independence of the audilors
The poliey also places restnictions on the enployment of former ermployees of the
auditors Recogmsing however £hat the auditors are best placed to undertake certain
work of @ non-audit nature the policy permits the proviston of audit-related services
and perrmtted non-audit services with the prior approval of the Commitiee

A breakdown of audit and non audit service fees paid and payable to the external
audttor for the year ended 41 December 2017 and priar year 1s provided below and
11 Note 35 to the inanaal staterments

Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
2017 2016
£m £m
Audit services B
Aad s fparert e o namL ar J oo Hlatec
Arat dal - oatements 1 1
Aal sttt o ecmpar ies 2
Non-gudit cevaer 1 -
Total 4
Note T vl volnen ol [ LR [REETN |
veor ot o 1h LT R I O S O VT A B RIS BRI
[T e dlern e e i DN L P
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The Comimttee reviewed each of these individual appointments on ther ments
Prior to FY being engaged the review process involved considenng management &
assessment of

— the thiears to independence and objectivity resuiting from the provision
of such services

—which accounting firms had the appropnate expenence and expertise
to undertake the work

—whether there were any conflicts of interest for EY

—whether the conflicts of interest that existed for other potential firms who were
either advising other parties to the transachions or were auditors of the other
company could be appropnately managed

- the quantum of non-audit fees in the context of the overall audn fee and relatve
sigmhicance to EY inthe context of s total chient fees

Ineachcase the Audit Commmttee concluded onthe balance of nsks that the
appointment of EY 1o perform certain non-audit services represented the miost
effective secure and efficient way of shtaiming the necessary advice and services
gwven ther knowledge of out business and the Group s structwre and accountmg
and tax atfars together with then wider knowledge of our ndustry sector

The policy on audit and non-audit services supphed by the auditors of the Group and
of its subsidiaties 1s available from the Gioup Company Secretary or in the corporate
governance section of the Group s website at wwwilseg.com/about-london-
stock-exchange-group/corporate-respansibility/ethics-and-governance
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Other matters

The annual Board Eftectiveriess Review included 4 review of the Committes
Thete were no major modifications L the functiomng of the Commuittee resuiting

from this

Significant matters impacting the financial statements

Significant matters
for January -
December 2017

Revenue recognition
and inks to
mandgement'’s
ncentives

Acquisition of
Mergent Inc and
The Yield Book
and Qi1 Fixed
Income Indices

Goodwill and
acguired intangibles

impatrment assessment

Implementation
of the new
finance systern

How the Committee reviewed
these matters and what
decisions were taken

The Audit Committee teviewed the external auditors’
comments on the recogmtion of revenues 1n the
secandary capital markets trading area fees or
revenue share clearing arrangements and information
services revenue accruals isee EY audit opinion on
pages 100~1081 The Audit Committee was satisfied
that sufficient analysis had been performed m this
area to demonstrate that there was no evidence that
any mampulation of revenues had taken place

In 2017 the Group completed the acquisition of Mergent Ing
foratota) consideration of US$147 million and The Vield
Book and Cit1 Fixed Income Indices from Citigroup for
Us$679 rmilhon The activities of the businesses are being
ncarporated Into the Information Services segrment ([SDi
The Audit Committee reviewed the methodology and the
prelrminary conclusions for the purchase pnece allocation

to idertify the appropnate imtangible assets created as part
of the acquisitions and far value the acquisition balance
sheets See Note 30 1o the financial statements

The Audit Commuttee considered the approach and
methodology applied 1o performing the detailed annual
goodwill imparrment assessmeant as well as the assessment
for inchcators of impairment of other purchased intangible
assets as required under 1AS 36 including the key
assumptions for short and long-term growth rates ¢ash flow
expectations and the discount rates used for the Group's cost
of capital The impairment review was also an area of focus
for the external auditors who reported ther findings to the
Commttee Details of the impairment review can be found
n Note 1 totne financial statements on pages 115-119

The Audit Committee reviewed reports from the
Finance function on the progress of the on-going
mmplementation of the new Group-wide finance system
throughout 2017 The Cormmttee satished irself that
the implementation of the new hnance system has
delvered a mare 1obust process for financial reporting
and has not impared data integrity or the accounting
of finanaial reporting i any way
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Other topics of discussion in respect to the financial statements:
Disposal of non controlling interest in {CH 5.A

LCH Group Holdings Ltd has completed 4 transac tion with Euronext NV involing
ashare swap tiansacien LCH Group Holdings [ td has repurchased Euronext s
? 3 holding in LCH Group mexchange fora 111+ holdingin ICHS A The
Audit Cornimittee reviewed the accounting entries to satisfyitself that with

the exception of the reallocation of profit between equity shareholders and nen
contreling intetests there s no umpact to the Group s ncome statement other
than the chaiges from the advisor and contractar associated with negotiating
the agreement The movement in the respective shareholdings cccurs in the
equity account as there is ra  Hange mcontrul See Consolidated staterment

of changes in equity 1n the financial staterments

Commitments and contingencies

The Audit Committee considered the facts and crcumstances surrounding
commitments and contingencies for the Group The Commitiee agreed Lhat
na provision & nesded tobe recorded in the finannial statements See Note 25
tothe financial staterments on page 151

Non-underlying tems

the Committee discussed and agreed on the dassification of non-underlying
1terms 10 the inancid! statements for the year These are presented in Note 7
to the finanaial statements 6n pages 125-129

M&A related 1nsurance

The Group often enters Into certain msurance policies when executing on M&A
opportunites The pagments for such pohices are often made up front but are
thenreLognised as a prepayment and released over the penod of the pohicy

As these (osts are dnectly lmked to & ane-off event and 1nsure against breaches
of representation pre-dating our ownershup the Cormmittee has agreed that they
should be recogrsed as non-underlying items in the income staterment

Financial viability statement

In order to rmeet the requirernents of the Code the Board needs to explain how ot
has assessed the praspects of the Group taking INlo account the current positon
and prncipal nsks and ovet what penad they have done so dlong with why they
consides that pennd to be appropnate

The Audit Committee discUsserd the key efements requued to make the
statement 1e
- Deniding on the appropnate penod to cover

Identifying and descnibing rhe relevant evidenc e and assurmplions and ensunng
that the vanous planmng scerarnos wete realistic taking into account the
business ndustry and macia-econorme factons

Making an assessment that s apprapnate to the Company s circumstances

= Applying appropoate siieks teshing and teverse shess testing
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The Audit Cormmittee satisfied itself that the Board of Directors was in a position
to make the staternent using the Group Stress testing rnethodology

The Financial viabihty staterment can be found within the Duectors Report on
page 98

Fair, balanced and understandable Annual Report

The Audit Comrmittee satished itself that the Arinual Repar Lis far balanced and
understandable and has presentedats conclusions to the Board Inorder to reach
s conclusions the Committee examined the following critena

— Far

- The Annual Report does not omitimportant or sensitive elements necessary
to understand the stralegy performance and business model of the Group

= segmental teparting accurately des: nhes the vanious actianes of the Groug.
and ther relative contibutions ta the strateqy performance and business
model of the Groun

+ The messages inthe Strategic Repart and the CF0 and Chatrran s 1eparts are
conststent with the hnanaal reporting section

Balanced

There 15 an appreprate balanc & hetween the Tequired sfatutorny accounting
metrics and Group specific adjusted measures

The rressages in all sections approprately balarice the favourable arnid less
favourable evenits and trends affecting the strategy and petformance of
the Group

The pnincipal nisks presented in the Strategic Repart on pages 46-53
accurately reflect the rish reqisters which are used 10 set the 1ish appetie
and the strategu of the Group including those nsks which would threaten
its business model tuture performance solvency and hquidity

— Understandable

- There s a clear and comprenensive framewaork for the Annual Report

The key messages are adequately highlighted in simple language avonchng
speciahsed terms and acronyris w hetever possible

= There s a giossary of terhmcal tesms and acronyims used frequently across
the report

- Therelevant mformation for sharehalders 15 easy to find and appropniately
cress-eferenced where noc essary wathout additionat clutter ithe 2017 Annual
Report comprises 170 pages rompared to the 176 pages of the 2016 report

Thes vanous sechions taken tegether prosent g consistent and Fasy o
it nmprehend overvtew af the strategy performance and business mode
of the Group
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The Risk Commnittee members as at 31 December 2017 were Stephen
O'Connor, Paul Hexden, David Nish, val Rahmani and Andrea Sironi
Stuart Lewis (Chief Risk Officer, Deutsche Bank AG) acts as a special
adviser to the Committee and is a standing invitee to meetings of the
Risk Committee

This report is intended to give an overview of the role of the Risk
Committee in assisting the Board to fulfil its oversight responsibihities
relating to nsk management and the adequacy of the systems of
internal controls in place to mitigate key risks

Duning the year ended 31 Decernber 2017 the Comrittee met 4 tmes In addinon
10 1ts regulal reviews of the Group s nisk map nisk appetite and emerging nisks the
Cornmittee focused on the Integration of the newly acquired Mergent and Yield
Book businesses and review of the 1isk profile of specihic dwisions as part of its
regulat programime —in 2017 the Committes reviewed the risk profile for the
inforrnation Services Diviston The Commitlee also momtored specific geopohtical
events and the programmes in place to mplernent MIFID L requirernent s across all
subsidianes subject to the leqislation as well as the framework in place to manage
the Group s cyber secunty nisks including the approval of the Group s cyber
security strategy and related pohcies
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The Commuittes clasely momtared the continued strengthernng of the Group Risk
Framework during the year including enhancerments made to the cyber security
framework and the development of an Economic Capital measure to allow far a
better quantihcation of s operational risks The monitoring of the Group s sk
culture which represents the foundation of the strong risk management
capahihtios within the Group s considered at each meeting

In order to avaid potential duplication of coverage and more importantly, 1o
reduce the patential for non coverage of important risk matters by edher the
Audit or the Risk Cormmitiees there 15 a cross membership of both charmen
of the Audit and of the Risk Commuitiees

Prionties n the forthcoming year will mvolve the continued momtoring of
geopolitical risks and the monitoning of the Group s Brexit contingency plans
preparedness and potential rollout as the UK s negatiations with the EU enter
1ts second phase

The Commuttee will continue to review on arotational hasis the nek profile and
execution nsks of gach of the Group s main limes of business and key subsichanies

The Commuttee will alsa continue to oversee the evolution of the Group s risk

culture across the Group and its subsidianes to ensure the Board maintains
effactive risk management oversight and control

Stephen O'Conmor

Chaurman of the Risk Comimittee
2 March 201y
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Governance Report of the Risk Committee

Composition and responsibilities

The Cormrittee s chared by Stephen G Connat who provides recent and refevant
hnancial and nsk management expenehce developed duning a career in a vanety
of serior executive ules n the inancial services mdustry Inaddition the Board
15 satisfied that each mernber of the Comrmittee has the skills and expenence
necessary Lo enable the Committee to discharge 1ts responsibilies effectvely
The narmes skill and expenenre of the members of the Risk Comrmittes are
provided on pages 54—5%

The Lhief tinanoal Officer the Chief Risk Officer and the Gioup Head of Internal
Andtt are standing invitees to all sk Committee meetings The Committee s
termns of reference which are approved by the Board and reviewed on an ongoing
hasts are available from the Group Company Secretary o i the corpotate
governance section of the Group s website at www.lseg.comyabout-london-
stock-exchange-group/corporate-responsiblity/ethics-and-govemance.

The Cormmittes mamntains non-executive responsibility for igh level risk related
matters and risk governance As part of its mandate the {ormrmttee revews the
nsk profile of the Groug on a regular basis and comments on the adeguacy of the

processes m place todentify and report on key nsks It also reviews the nsk profle

of the major Group subsidianes/divigens on aninduadual basts 1t advises the
Board on the Company s overall nsk appetite toletance and strategy and keeps
under review the adequacy of the Enterprise-wide Risk Managerment Framewark
and tts use in the decision making process which includes the review of
parameters used in the models and methodology adopted 1t sets the standards
for the arcurate and mely reporting of key risks and risks of Lntwal wnportance
such as risks 1elating te technology cuber secunty business cantinuty and
isaster recovery CCP operations, counterparty and reputational nsks It also
receives reports on complance with relevant 1egulatory requirements far each
regulated entity of the Group

Activities

The Committee matntains a formal agenda which ensures that all matters for
which the Commuittee 15 responsible are conuidered al the appropriate meeting
Dunng the year the Commutlee discharaed its responsitaliies as set out i its
lerms of teference by

- Providing robust reviews of principal reis
- Reviewing 11sk exposures of the Company and emerging nisks

- Reviewmng and reconmmending to the Board the Group Risk Appetite including
stress tests and challenging the scenario results

- Approval of a new Econorie Capital model for rumming in parallet thioughout
the year to monitor stabiity consult further and refine model nputs

rdonitoring the rollout of the MIFID T cormphance progranmime acrose all
out relevant husinesses

- tortonng of the cyber security framework and enhancement programnies
and approval of 1elated policies

Konitenng of geapoliic al risks including Lthe Group s Spamsh oxposure
tellrwing the referendum in Cataloma

- Monitorng the delivery of acltons te manage 1oks wathin nsk appente

- Monttonng the bergent and fhe Yield Boak husimess mitegration wathmn
the Indormaiion Serdices Division
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— Reviewing regulatory compliance reports and the actions in place 1o ensure
ongong comphance

Peviewing the adequacy and effectivencss of the systerms of the internal
rontrols 1N place to manage key nsks including the review of management s
assessment of nfonmation securnty financial coime cyber crime and data
management risks as well as management s rmitigating actnns

Lnsuring the effectiveness of the Gioup s Enterprise-wide Risk Management
Framework and of the Risk funton

- Reviewing an assessment of the credit risk of the pension plan buy n provider

- Overseeing adequacy of the counterparty imits and ad hoc counterparty
credit 11sh analysis perfarmed as requned

keviewing detailed reports of the sk profiles of the Group s matenal businesses
ncluding the Information Services Division and LCH

- Momtonng compliance with the Group nsk management procedures as
descnibed i the section oninternal controls on page 60

Reviewng the adequacy of the Group s Business Continuty Management
plans and inanagerment programrme

Approving and recommencdny for approval key pohcies relating to sk and
the terrms of reference for the Risk Commttea

Momtoring the Executive performance report on nisk cultwe lawartengss
transparency and accountabilityr whichis also shared with the Remuneration
Comimittee

— Monitorng the 1oll put of the mandatony traiming programime on ethics rsks
controls and compliance

Risk Management function

The Pisk Management function s headed by Lhe Chiet Risk Officet who oversees
all aspects of nsk management in the Gioup She repoits 1o the Interym € hief
txecutive Officer and for independence purposes to the Charmanof the Risk,
Comruttee The Comnmittee approves the remit of the Risk Management function
and ensures it has adequate independence to performits duty The Commmuittee
must be consulted on the appointment or the disrmissal of the Chiet Risk Officer
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Directors’ Remuneration Report

Staterment by the Chairman of the Remuneration Committee

Jacques Aigrain
Charrman of the
Remuneration
Cammittee

On behalf of the Board, I am pleased to present the Dwectors’
Remuneration Report for the financial year ended 31 December 2017
The report includes our Remuneration Policy Report and the Annual
Report on Remuneration

Context

At our Apnl 2017 AGM shareholders voted 98 &7 10 favour of owr Remuneraton
Policy As a result of ouwr proposed merger with Deutsche Borse we did not make
any amendments ta our policy n 2017 and apprecated sharehoider suppart for
aur approach

We rmade 3 commitment to review aur pohcy in the evertt that the merger did not
proceed and as such the following enhancements dre being incorporated into our
policy for operation in 2018 to further align to shareholder expectations and
corporate gover nance best practice

- The mandatory deferral of 30%. of bonus will be into shares only

— & 2 year halding pernad will be added ta the current 3 year performance period
of the L ong Term Incentive Plan (LTIP) resulting in a total S year penod from the
date of grant and

- The Mintmurm Shareholding Requirement iMSR 1 will be increased from 2000 1o
3004%. of base salary

we are gratetul for shareholder feedback In helpig to <hape and develop our revised
poley The Remuneranon Comimuttee (the Committes) beheves that these
enhancements ensure that our Rermuneration Policy continues to algn executive
remuneration and shareholders' [ong-term interests
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As the additional elements provide strong markel ahgnment 1t 1s not aur intenton
to present a new polcy for approval we will continue to engage with shareholders
and momitor goad practice developments ahead of our AGM I 2620 where s |
antcipated that a revised Remuneration Policy will be presented for approval i

Performance in the year

The Comrmittee continues to place great importance on ensunng that there s a
clear ink between pay and performance ncluding adherence ta the Group s nisk
tramework and that out remuneraton outcomes are reflective of thws wider context

The Group has contmued to execute on o strategy and achweved 8 strong
financial and operational perfarmance with growth across out core businesses
delivering on a numnber of new imtiatives and develoning our custome
partnership approach Total mcome from contmuing opetations rose to £1.955
milhon up 184 AOPINcTeased by 18" (£126 million) to £812 million and
operating profitincreased 27 4 (o £626 mithon

This strong performance reflects double digit growth in our FTSE Russell and LCH
OTC cleanng businesses supparted by a robust capital markets performance
aganst chalienging market conditions

- Gur Inforrmation Services Dnision s tevenue for FY2017 was £736 million (2016
£555 millicn) within which FTSE Russell has continued to perform strongly with
a 3ancrease inrevenue 1o £546 mullion (2016 €409 milhony within this
performance the US$&£8 millon tun 1ate 5 year acquisition revenue synergies of
the Russell Indexes busingss acquired in 2014 have been achieved InJanuaty
2017 we acquired Mergent Ine and in August we acquired The Yield Book and
Citi Fuced Income Indices businesses which will both suppott the growth of | TSE
Russell s core index offering

- LLH s income for FY2617 ncreased 26 v to £562 million (2016 €447 mmillion)
SwapClear saw a 214, ncrease in rlearing volumes cleanng a total UsS$E74
trilon 12016 Us$666 milonl for its members and therr chients The LOH
Swaphagent service for uncleared products went hve in May 2017

— Inaur capital markets business, levenues ncreased 6k to £391 mfllon (2016
£368 milion and 194 new cormparies were admitted 1o our marketsn the year
up 45% on 2016 with § out of 10 of the top IPOs by size cormng from outside of
the UK, underlining tts position as the leading global hsting venue for
nternahonal companes

— Income for Post Trade services in ltaly increased 3 +110 £151 million (2016
£147 nmlhon)

— kY2017 revenue for the technology division was £91 millien (2016 £a4 rrallony
At the end of 2017 andin eaily 2018 we confumed the disposal of Z nen-rore
technology businesses MllenmumIT FSP and Exactpro
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The Group has delvered anather strong financial performance with growth across all
ote business areas Although the proposed merger with Deutsche Borse failed for
£x0geNoUs Teasons If nvelved iImmense mandagerment efforl Despite Lhe sigmificant
1esources and focus tequired to progress the merger discussions the business
continued to outperform on financial targets dunng and after the process

Bonus outcomes for Executive Directors

As a tesult of the Group s performance and indmidual performance the
Comrmittee deterrined that the Executive Duectors will be awarded bonuses
uf hetween 79+ and 82" of thew maxirmum opportunity

Share plan vesting

905 of the LTIP awards made 1 2014 vested duning 2017 AFPS mcreased from
94 6p (Fv¥ to end March 20141 to 129 7p over the period to the end of Decernber
2016 resulting i 81 % of the ALPS elemient vesting TSR incieased by 1207 over
the penod to August 2017 resulting 10 100 of the TSR elerment vesting

As shown tnour Single total igure ot terunerahon table the AEPS element of
the LI LP awards made n 2015 will vestin full Based on performance te date 1t s
furecast that the TSR etement will also vestin full howewer this will be confirmed
following the end of the performance penod in aprd 2018 and will be disclosed in
our FY2018 DRR The achileverment of stretching targets year on year has delivered
ugmficant value These vesting outcomiss reflect ALPS growth of 14 6+ year on
year and 1294 compound annuat groseth rate (CAGRI over the 3 year
performance petiod and annuahsed TSR performance to date for these 2015
grantsis 19+ pa ncorporating share pnce growth of 290 2017

During 2017 a sigrificant riwrnber of our ernployees benefited frum the matenty
of cur 2 Sharesave schermes launchad i 2014 The 2017 Sharesave frvitation
extended the expanded Group s patticipation overall to 52" of eligible employees
ncorporatmg colleagues in Malaysia and those joimng from Mergent [ne and The
Yield Book husinesses

Salary review for Executive Directors
During the gear the Comrmattee conducted s annaal 1eview of the base salary
levels of our Frecutive Direciors

Aw was announced an 29 Novermnber 2017 10 connechion with bis appointment as
ntenm CEG David Warten was granted a step-up allowance of £217 000 to he pawd
inaddition to s current base salary of C4xs 008 for the duration of his appaintrment
as ntenm CEG provading ¢ new mntenm salaty of ©/00 000
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The Commuittee has decided Lo increase Mr Warren s base salary for tis role as
Coef Financial Ofhcer to £500 000 whichis m hne with average employee salary
increases of 2 5% Further detanls of My Warren s remuneration arrangements as
intenim CEQ are provided 1n the Remuneration arrangerrients for the interim Chaef
Executive Officer section enthe following page

The Committes has decided toncrease the salary of Raffaele Jerusalm Chief
Executive Officer of Borsa Italiana and Directorn of Capital Markets to €525 000
recognising the value of s role as an Lxecutive Directal The ncrease of 19115
below average employee salary increases of 2 3

LTIP awards to be made in 2018
LTIP awards to be granted in 2018 will be granted under aur 2014 sharehalder-
approved plan

David Warren will be granted a LTIP award of 300 and Raffagle Jetusalmuwill be
granted a LTIP award of 275" of salayy n 2014 reflecting thew criticality and
providing strong alignment to the perfarmance of the Group

Operation of 2018 annual bonus
The operatian of the 2008 annual bonus will continue to be incused on finanaal
targets strateqic imitiatives and personal contnibution

Share plan rules and approvals

wie will seek shateholder approval for 4 share plans at our forthroming AGM
reflecting routine course of business and our continued commitment 1o
dhynirment with shareholder interests through employee share ownersiip
The plans are summarised below and delaled on page 86

- Renewal of our approved international Sharesave Plan which reachies the end
of 1ts 10 year hfespan in July 2018

- approval of o Restiicted Share Award Plan which rearhes the end of its 10
year hfespan in May 2014 The plan will Lontinue to be used primaniy for key
new hites tn replicate deferred ¢ ompensdtion forferted from prior employment
reflec ting the increased prevalence of deferred compensation structures in
the markets inwhich we aperate) and for the retention of key talent during
at gquisitiens The plan will not be wsed on a normal basts for Exedutive Dinectos
andwill not form part of ang of ther normal bong termancentive and

- Theintraduchion of a UK tax favoured all-employee Share Incentive Plan {SIP)
and aneguwalent international arrangement
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Statement by the Chairman of the Remuneration Committee

Summary of key executive remuneration decisions

Ru_le

Nare

Frevious salary

wwith effect from 1 Apn, 20170

Annual salary

with effect from 1 Apnl 2015

Banus for iinancial year ending 4 <f salary
31 Decemnber 2027

Intenm Chief Executwve Officer/
___ Chef Financial Ofhcer

David Warren

T488 000

¢« 212000 step-up’ allowance
E500 000 2 D

< €200 000 <ter up alowance
1645 ot salary

Executive Dyyector, CEQ of Barsa
ftaliana & Dwector of Capital
. Markets

Raftaele Jerusalm

€520 000

E525 OO0 1+ 1%
16U ¥ of salary

“of maxiamam g2 B
€ tetal amount gac7ain £E30 200
Gt which = deferred 1413500 €415000
Wax bhunus opportamty
1 of salary. 200" 200,
Steving equivdlent of 275, of
LYIF awarc sumect Salar, €1 425 7500 at pravaling
ro perfarmance 0 ¢ Salary €1 500 200 rate at trne of grant
1AL b uttee Dnre 4w f b RSk by o datond 200 portareeae o | g w ke bl bbb e 0 e ot it s T v b b
Erwpdet irabinde b ol e b Boa it g latee dabe cne mtnrue e e ponfer e e et oimarwallbe crstalate B poesomn b
It ror dlang T o oo oo T 4tk dune e b b apeoiniornt o a.
Feer ke oF Sl spmay salarap e By st e amges g Y ror Byl y s voncb o ey el by mbad s oeocc ot al o,
[ T T UL S S T | et Wl e ap allsean
Boorws st foet ammp e 11 wnthe @tk 00t

Departure artangements for the Chief Executive Officer

Departing Chief Executiwve Officer
[stepped down on 29 November
2017)

Xawver Rulet

£80C 004

nia

177% of salary
7%
£1300000
£650 000

2254,

vt bl ot gk

As announced on 29 Novernber 2017 Xaner Rolet agreed to step down from hustole as Chef Lxecutive Officer and Director of LSEG ple with immediate effect

The financial terrms assocaied with tis departure were agreed with b1 Rolet at the time of the CEQ succession announc ement on 19 Dcotober 2017 We are honouring
Lhese agreed contractual commutments all of which are in accordance with the shareholder-approved Remunetation Policy and ate detalled on pages 76-80

Remuneration arrangements for the interim Chief Executive Officer

As announced on 2¢ Novermber 2017 in connection with the departure arrangements for Mr Rolet Dand warren was apponted as interm CEO with immediate effect
As part of this appowntment changes were made to his tetms until @ permanent CEQ successor 15 appointed

W warren was granted a step-up allowance of £212.000 inaddion to his current base salary of £488,000 for the duration of fis appontiment as intenm CEQ prowding 3
new intetim salary of £700 000 As stated 10 the salary review for Exec utive Directors section above the Committee has decided 1oncrease his base salary n relation to
hisrole as Ctnef Financial Officer by 2 54 to £500,000 His step up allowance will be reduced by £12 000 to £200000 mrowviding an unchanged witenm salary of €700 000
for the durahon of tis appointment as interim CEO

Full detatls of Mr Warren's remuneration airangements are detalled on page 87

Concluding remarks

The Committee continues to ensute the Group s approach to rernuneration takes into account best practice and market trends 1n the financial services sector and wider
rmarket while conhinuing to support the commearcial needs of the Group the interests of sharehalders and of all other stakeholders we are grateful for shareholder
feedback 1n helping to shape our enhanced policy and we look forward to your support for these proposals at the forthcoming AGM

LA

Jacques Aigrain
Chawrman of the Rermuneration Comrmittee
2 March 2018
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Introduction

This report has been prepared in accordance with Schedule 8 to
The Large and Medium-sized Compames and Groups {(Accounts and
Reports) Regulations 2008 {as amended}. and the relevant sections
of the Listing Rules

This year s disclosure has been sphit into 2 serhions

Remuneration Policy Report Summanry (pages 76-80)}

The Rermuneration Policy Report was subject to a tinding shareholder vote at the
2017 AGM and was passed with 98 bh. support As explained in the Chairrman s
statement we have incorporaterd a number of enhancements to our pohcy to
algn with good rmatket practice As Lhe enhancements are deermed preferential
to shareholders we are not seeking approval for a new pohcy

A summary of the Policy Repart including these enhancements 15 set out
onpages 76 to 80 The full Rernuneration Policy Report 1 set out in the 2016
Durectafs Pemuneration Report as part of our 2016 Annual Report

Anmuai Report on Remuneration (pages 81-94)

This section sets out hnw remuneration arrangements have been aperated
dunng the past inancial year 112 months from January te December 2017, and
alsaprovides details on how we intend to operate our policy duning the corming
year Fr2018 Thisreport will be put to an advisory vote at the 2015 AGhI

The Annual Report on Rernuneration includes detail on both the departure
terms for the Chief Executive Officer and the ermployment terms apphcable to
the interim € hiet Executive Officer (see further detail onpage 87+ all of which
are inaccordance with the existing sharcholder approved Remuneration Pohicy

The Annual Report on Remuneration also includes detal on 4 share plans
for which we will seek shareholder approval at our torthcoming AGM [page s6i

Annual Report December 2017
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Remuneration Policy Report

Our Remwuneration Policy Report was subject to a binding sharehelder vote at the

2G17 AGM and was approved with 98 5% of the votes Accordingly 1t had a binding ELEMENT salary

effect on the Group from that date However as stated inthe Chairman s statement, — e - — - -
we have incorporated a number of enhancements to our policy to align with good PURPOSE AND Provides a core element of remunerationwhich reflects
market practice A summary of the Policy Report, including these enhancernents LINK TO the respansiihities of the rcle

1% 58t QUL on pages 76 to 80 The full Rernuneration Policy Report 1s set aut tithe STRATEGY Enables the recruitment and retention of individuals of

2016 Duectors Remuneration Report as part of our 2016 Annual Report the calibre required 16 execute the Group's strategy

OPERATION Base salanies are normally reviewed annually by taking

Current policy table for Executive Directors Into account a range o factors wcluding

A summary of the key elements of remuneration for Executive DIrectors 1 shavw n

nthe following table and includes the following enbancements to our policy for
aperation from Fy2018

ENHANCEMENTS TO POLICY FOR 2018

- The mandatory deferral of 50% of bonus will be into shares anly

- A 2 year holding period will be added to the current 3 year
performance period of the LTIP, resulting in a total 5 year period
from the date of grant; and

— The Minimurn Shareholding Requirement (MSR} will be increased
from 200% to 300% of base salary

The abeve enhancements are highlighted in the summarised Policy
Report, for ease of reference.

The Remuneration Policy 1S designed to support the long tevminterests of the
Group The Groups committed to pauying for performance rewarding the semor
management team orly when 1ts goals are achieved Each year the remuneration
framework and the packages of the Executive Directors and members of the
Executive Commuttee are reviewed by the Commuttee to ensure thal they continue
o achieve this objective The Commuttee takes into account multiple reference
points when setting pay including cormpares in the FTSE 100 the broader
Financial Senaces sector and other internatonal exchange groups

The Commuittee has taken the following areas into account inestablisting the
Group Remuneration Policy
— afocus on shareholder vaiue

the continued global expansion of the Group

- the need ta attract and retain semor managernent from the mternational
finance and technologu sectars

- the Group s nitent to be mindful of best practice as expressed by institutional
sharetiolders and thewr representative bodies and

— the umique pasition of the Group at the heart of capital markets

FURTHER INFORMATION

The full Remuneration Policy Report is set out n

the 2016 Dueclors Remuneration Report as part of
our 2016 Annual Report which can be found on our
website https.#fiwww.lseg.com/investor-relations/
presentations-and-webcasts/annual-reports.
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- size and scope of the role
— skills and experience of the indwdual

— market competitiveness/relative pesiticning
performance of the Group and of the individual
wider market and economic conditions and

- level of iIncreases being made across the Group

Any changes are normally effective from 1 April each year

There ¢ no defined maximum salary

increases are determined based on the factors descnbed
11 the Operation row

The Comrmttee's normal appraachis to mitially consider
ncreases within the range awarded to other employees
More sigmficant mcreases may be awarded in certain
cwcumstances such as where there 15 g significant change
nthe scale scope or tesponsibility of a role development
within a role and/or significant market movernent

The annual base salanés yn FY2017 and for FY2018 for
each Exerutive Director are set out 1n the Annual Report
on Remuneration

n/a
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ELEMENT

PURPOSE AND
LINKTO
STRATEGY

OPERATION

MAXIMUM
OPPORTUNITY

PERFORMANCE
MEASURES

Benefits

Provide loca: markel cormpetitive benefits and support the welibeinin
of employees

& flexible benefits plan 15 offered 1n which individuals have certain core
benefits (such as private medical 1fe assurance income protection and
additionatly 0 ltaly enly disability acodent car fuel allowance and
luncheon vouchers: together with (in the UK] a taxable cash allowance
which can be spert on e'ective benetits tsuch as addinonal medical Ufe
of dental coven

Car transportation may alsg be provided for Executive Directars where
appropnate

Dueto the igh profile of the Group the Committee reserves the
right to pravide our Executives with the appropnate level of security
arrangements to dllow them to perform ther duties i the safest
nossible conditions

Benefts are reviewed penodically 2 ensure they remain affordable and
competitive The Committee retains the discretion to provide reascnatle
additional benefits as appropriate — frr example relocation and other
allowances inciuding expatnate assistance housing and schacl fees far
g hmte pencd tax preparation and filing assistanice and fhights back to
the home country for the Executive and s farmly Repatnation costs
are met by the Company f employment s terrminated by the Company
other than for just cause

whete necessary any benefits may be grossed up for taxes

Executivas ave eligible 1o participate (o the Group's HMRC-approved Save
As You Earn Gptior Scheme far international eguivalent| on the same
baslis as other employees

£xecutive Ditectors are covered by the Duectors and Hfficers msurance
and inderrnification

Trhere 15 no definec maxirnurn

Benefits plans are set at twhat are in the Coemrmittee s opinien;
reasonable levels in order to be market competitive for therr local
wnsdichign and are dependent on individual circuamstances

Participation in the Save As You Earm Ophion Scheme (o7
wternational equvalent s capped at the same level as all other
participants which 1s deterrmned by the Company within the
parameters of appicable legislation

Annual Report December 2017

Retirement benefits

Provide Executives witn retirement henafits

Support recruitment and retentian of mgh-calibre peaple

Provision of antual pension allowance invested i the Company s
defined contnibation plan or taken as a cash aliowance

In cartam jursdictions more bespoke pension arrangerments may be
provided [n such circumstances the Comrmittee wall give appropriate
consideranon tolocal employment legislation market practicas ang the
cost of the arrangement

The maximum annual pension contribution/cash allowances 25%
af salary (except where deterrmined by local market prartice)

In Italy MY Jerusalmi accrues mandator, state pension (INPS: benefits
which are calculated on salary benefits and annual bonus Actual
benefit due at retirement 15 et out by the applicable Liahan legislaton
in force fram tme to trme Under the [talan Trattamento i Fine
Rapporto | TRRI he recewves comtributions which are funded by the
Grodp at a rate fed by local law and which are paid to Mr Jerusalmi s
private pension p'an TER & calculated on salaty capred benefits
annual bonus and LTIP

'3
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Remuneration Policy Report

ELEMENT Annual bonus

PURPOSE AND
LINK TO
STRATEGY

Rewards annual performance against challenging
financial, strategic and indwidual targets hnked to
Group strategy

Deferral reinforces retention and enbances
alignment with shareholders by encouraging
longer-term focus and sustainable performance

OPERATION The Group operates a Group-wide bonus pool which
1s funded based on the achievement of financial
and strategic goals of the Group Allocations to
indwvidual Executive Directors are made from this
pool based on the Commuttee’s assessment of their
indmvidual performance, taking into account the
Greup's financiat and strategic performance and
the achievernent of any indwidual objertives
related to their role

Perfarmance targets are reviewed and set
by the Commuttee at the begimning of each
performance year

Awards are determined by the Commmttee after
the year end based upon the actual performance
against these targets

The Comrmttee appltes Judgement wheare necessary
to ensure approved pay-out levels are reflective of
actual overall petformance

— 50% of the annual bonus will be subject to
mandatary deferral normally for a peniod
of 2 years

— Enhancement Bonus deferral wili be 100%
into shares.

— Dividends for equivalents) may be pawd i respect
ot deferred shares on westing

— Deferred awards are subject to malus provisions as
described below Pad bonuses and vested awards
are subject to clawback as described below

MAXIMUM
OPPORTUNITY

Maximum armual bonus epporturity of 225% of
salary for CEQ and 200% of salary for other Executive
Directors for masimum perfarmance

LTIP
{Long Term Incentive Plan) 2014

Incentivises performance over the longer term
through the award of performance related shares

Ahgns reward with long-term, sustainable Group
performance and a focus on sharehalder value

— Lnder the LTIP 2014 which was approved by
sharetiolders at the 2014 AGM, awards of shares
{or equivaient) are granted annually subject to
performance conditions

- Enhancement. Awards normally vest subject to
performance targets assessed aver a performance
penod normally of at least 3 financial years
with an additional holding period of 2 years
The Committee has discretion to set differert
performance penods if tt considers therm to
be appropnate

— The Commuttee shall deterrmine the extent to
which the performance measures have been met
The Commttee may make adjustments to
performance targets if an event occurs that the
Commuttee deterrmines that an adjustment 1s
appropnate The performance targets will be at
least as challenging as the anes onginally set

- Dwidends {or equivalentsl may be pawt on
vesting Unvested awards are subject to a malus
mrovision and vested awards are subject to
clawback as described below

Although there1s a facility far maximum awards of up

to 400% of salary under the plan rules n exceptional
cases 1t1s expected that awards under this pian will
normally be up to 300% of salary

PERFORMANCE
MEASURES

Based on a combunation of financial te g adjusted
operating profit] strategic and indwidual
performance targets Strategic obpectives iiclude
key targets under the strategic pillars of developing
our parthership approach dnving global growth
and delivering best i class capabilities These
strateqic objectves alsewmpact financial results

1 the medwm term

The Commuttee will set the detail and rrwx of
performance measures targets and wewghting
based onthe strateqic chyectives at the start of
each year Atleast 50% of the targets relating ta
the annual bonus pool in any year will be subject
to financial measures

Nag bonuses are paid for below threshald
performance The Commmittee may award
any amount between zero and 100% of the
MaxImum cpportunity

The performance measures are applied in the
performance year only
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The Commuittee determines performance targets
each year to ensure that the targets are stretching
and suppart value creation for sharefiolders while
remaiming motivational ‘o1 rmanagement

vesting of awards 15 subject to acmevernent of total

sharehalder return and financial performance targets

For grants under this LTIP awards are subject to
gbisolute TSR and adjusted EPS meagsures

Measures wilt normally be equally weighted but in

any event any total sharehglder return elernent will

represent at ieast 50% of the award

For each performance element achievernent of the
threshold performance level wall result im no more
than 25% of the maximum award paymg out For
achevernent of the maximum performance level,
100% of the maximurn pays out Normally theres
straight-line vesting between these pomnts

Share ownership

Ensures alignment with
sharehalders’ interests

Enhancement Executive Directors
are expected to buitd up share
ownership over a penad of &

years and maintain holdings

of at least 3x base salary

Annual Report December 2017



Notes to the Policy Table

Malus and clawback provisions

A malus provision applies ta awards granted under the 2014 LTIP and to unvested
awards under the Deferred Borus Plan This would allow the Committoe i its
absolute discretion Lo detetmine at any tirme pnot to the vesting ot an award (o
reduce cancel or impose further condions m certain circumstances including
[hwhere there (s a material misstaterment or restatement of the results of the
Group nits audited accounts () the neghgence fraud or senous misconduct of
the indwidual which results in sigmficant reputational darmage to the Group or
which has a matenal adverse effect un the financial position of the Group or the
husimness opporturties of the Group or twnif the indwidual s a member of a
cornpany 0 the Groupr which suffers sigmificant reputational damage or material
adverse effect onits inancial pasition or on its business opportunities

A clawback provision applies to vested awards granted under the 2014 LTIP vested
awards under the Deferred Bonus Plan and annual banuses pad previously s
would aliow the Commttes inits absolute discretion to claw back from indwiduals
some ar ali of the vested awards o pard bonus in certain crcumstances including
npf there 15 a matenal misstdtoment of restaternent of the resalts of the Group
ks dudited accounts e the negligence fraond or senous miscanduct of the
ndwidual which results i sigmbicant reputational damage to the Group e a
material adverse effect on the financial pesiion of the Group or the husiness
opportunities of the Group or it the indwidual s o member of a company i the
Group which suffers sigrificant repulational damage of matenadl adverse effect on
15 fimancial position o1 on its business opportunities Clawback will normally apply
tor & penad of 3 years follow ing vesting of sharesfdeterred cash bonus andfor
payment of honus unless the Cammittee deterrmnes otherwise

Service contracts and payments for departing Directors

The Group s carent policy 1s that Fxecutive Dinectors service agreements showlkd
have nohire peniods that are ne longer than 12 manths The Group may lerminate
an Executive Duecton s service agreement by makang a payment inhew of nohice
of @ sum equat to 12 months salary pension flesible benefits allowance Life and
medical iInsurance thut exduding bonus and share incentivest plus any actrued
unused holday entitternent. Consideration wilt be qreen to approptiate mtigation
tetms to reduce payments i1 beu of nobice made on terrmnation i the evenit of
the Executive Direclor commencing alternative employment being appointed

as a Nor-Executive Thrector o iroviding services purstant 1o a < ansultdncy
agreement in the e months followang the Executwe Duector s departure

The Group mdy pay an Exec utive Director s reasonatile legal fees for recetving
advice i connectinn with ther ermployment

The lawful Lermiration mechamsms desenbed above ate without prepachoe to the
Group s ability N appropnate circurmstances to terminate in breac h of the notice
porind 1eferred 1o above and thereby to he hable for damiages to the Executive
Diector Dgudated damages (lanses are nol used

{11 the event of termnation by the Gioup each Executive Tirecton rmay Nave an
entitlenent to cormpensdtion in respect of his statutory nghts under employment
protection legislation n the UK and potentially elsewhere Drectors and Officers
labihty nsurance and an mdernoity to the fullast extent peremtted by the law and
1he Group s Brncles of Assoniation are provided to the Exec utive Threctars for the
duration of ther ernplogrent and for ammmum of = gears tollowing tetrmimation

The Commuttee considers that thisas conststent withy cuorent best practice aned thne
approachwill generally be adopted for new appemtments Whets appropnate and
whenrectuiting non-Uk based Doeclore the Committtec may agres different
terme based onlocal Tegal iequirerments of market practice
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Treatment of variable incentives

Indrviduals may be cansidered for an annual borusin

respert of *he pencd pnior o cessation Any awsta would be
at the discretion of the Committee subyect to the Executive
Director s performance and penod of employment

Annual bonus

Deferred Bonus
Plan 2014

For good leavers awards vest at the novmal vestmg date,
although the Committee may determime that awards vest
on cessation of employment The award will usually vest n
full or on & prorated basis at the Committee's discretion
Good leavers are those who cease to be an employee of a
member of the Craup by reason of death imury disablity
ll-health redundanrcy the sale of the mdwidual s
employing business or the transfer of the Company out
«fthe Group crany ather regsor which the Committee
dendes 1nts discretion having regard to a range of
relevant factors ncluding the Executive Director's
petformance length of service and cucumstances

of their departure

where an indiv d.al 15 net considered to te a good leave”
unvestad awards will lapse Where ar individual 15
summanly disrrissed all his awarcs will lapse

Deferred awards ate subject to malus and vested awards
are subject to cawback a< detal'ed above

For good leavers awards will normally vest at the normal
westing date and following the end of the performance
penad Lnless the Corrmttee determines that awards
should vest follow ng cessation of employment Vesting
will be subject to serformance and unless the Committes
determines otherwise 12r that another basis of reduction s
appropnate; prorated for ime in employment Good
leavers are those wha cease to be anemployee of a
member of the Groun hiy reason of death mury, disability
Wl-health redundancy and the sale of the mdundual's
ernplaying business or transfer of the Company out of the
GIoup of any other reason which the Committee deaides 1n
1ts diseretion having regard to a range of relevant factors
ncluding the Executive Director's perfarmance, length of
service and cucurnstances of their departure

Long-Term
Incentive
Plan 2014

Where an indwidual 1s not considered to be 3 good leaver
urwvested awards wil lapse

Lnvested awards are subject te malus and vested awards
are subject t rlawback as detaved abave
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Policy for Non-Executive Directors

Approach to setting fees

The fees for Non-Executive Directors are set at a level
which 1s considered appropnate to attract indiwiduals
with the necessaly expenence and abiity to make an
mportant contmbution to the Group's affaurs

The Chanrman's fee1s deterrmned by the Remuneération
Committee and the Board 1s responsible far
determiring all other Non-Executive Director fees

Fees are reviewed penodwcally to ensure they reman
appropnate The Commuttee retains the flexibility to
increase adjust and make one-off pauments to
Non-Executive Directors based on thetr rermit

Fees are set taking into account the level of
responsibility of each Non-Executive Diractor and fees
at athet companies of a similar size and complexity

The aggregate fees payabie to all Non Executives
combned texcluding the Chatrman and excluding fees
pawd for any appaintments on subsidiary boards) are
capped as set out in the Group s Articles of Assotiation as
they may be amended by a resolution of shareholders
from time to time The current lrmit on the aggregate
fees that are payable1s £1 500 000 per financial year

Details of current fees are set out an page 88 of the
2017 Annual Report

Basis of fees

Non Executive Directors recetve a basic annual fee with
additional fees pagable for committee chairmansip

Certain Non-Executive Threctors are also entitled
to recetve fees from subsidiasy campares

The Non-Executve Chatraan of the Group and Semor
Independent Director recewve an all-inclusive fee for
the role

Fees are netther performance-related nor pensionable

Non-Executive Directors are not eligible to partizipate
11 the annual bonus of LTIP plans and are not entitled
10 any payments on termmation

Other items

Ngn-Executive Directors da not recewve any benefits
or entitlement s other than therr fees and reasonable
expenses

Travel and other appropnate expenses with associated
taxes (including fees incurred i optaining professional
adwice n the furtherance of their duties) incurred in the
course of perfarmmng theu duties are reirnbursed to
Non-Executive Directors

Nan Executive Dyractors are covered by the Directary
and Officers’ tnsurance and indernmfication

Mon Executive Directars have tetters of appaintment with no nohce perod excent for the Group Chairman who has a notice petied of & months unless he 1s not
re-elected by sharehalders in which case his appointment will terrmnate immediately The Non-Executive Duectors appaintments are for an inhial penod of 3
years from the date of appointment and are also subyect to re-election by sharsholders
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This section sets out how remuneration arrangements have operated during the past financial year (FY2017), and also provides details on how
we intend to operate our policy during the coming year (FY2018) This report wall be put to an advisory vote at the 2018 AGM The information
from this page 81 to page 94 has been audited where required under the regulations and 1s indicated as audited where applicable

single total figure of remuneration for Executive Directors (Audited)

Single total figure of

Xawvier Rolet'™
istepped down onh 23 November 2017)

Raf[aelg}erusalmu“ )
FY2016 Y%

% FY2016 %

remuneration David Warren
FY2617 - i % FY2016 - "In- FY2017
_ _ £000 _ oftotal £000  oftotal £000
Fixed pay
Sasar, o sor s T
'Weui)-(-‘ :w;flt; alceanee 25- ) :u _
Benchts A T )
Fensiar | E_l_ i Jll’:ﬁ 295
Juher T T LY
i 776 2% 713 ot 1005
Pag to; performance B T o
Arnua' L ‘:mc N 8727 n S 727_
Long 1erm inzertie - IRETA 73 1548
- S811 % o @ 2278
Total remuneration T oaser 3om 3,280

Notes to the table:
1 Value for Long Term Incentives shown for FY2017 represents estimated value
of share awards granted in 2015 that vest i April 2016 The estmates based

on the conhrmed 100" vesting of the EPS elernent and folecast 1000 vesting

ot the TSR element which wall e r anfirmed in April 2018 The value s hased
on a % month average share price from 1 Sctober 2017 10 31 Decermber 201
bewng §38 07

£ Annudl pensian allowance of 25 of salary
David Warren
% Benefits include the cashalue of private medical incorme protection and lite

assurance plus expatnate allowarices and commuting expenses including
car transportalion where appropnater with associated taxes

436189 Perfurmance shares vesled on 27 August 2017 at £35 50 per share
This rquates Lo £1 475 466
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FYz2017 %
_ of total £000 _ of total _ £000 of totai £000  _of total
o .S 73 e |
T T T
o T 120 o 47
’ e @ T
-- . Co- - L
A e T3 1055 19%  174h 154
T The 11300 el
“asc BEES T L
R VY 4506 bl L&l ge
- 3710 5564 6880

Raffaele Jerusalmi

=)

9

Benefits represent the cashvalue of private medical disability and life
nsurance cover lunehearnsouchers car and fuel beneft

Pension miandatory INPS contnbutions calonlated on salary benehits
and banus for the 12 month peniod

Irattamento di Fine Rapporte mandatory anangement s caleulated on salary
capped benefits bonus and shares and paid wito M1 Jerusalmi s pension plan
for the 12 month penod

Fy2017rate of £1 - €1 14 and Fy20163ate ot £1 - €1 22

53064 Performance shares vested on 27 August 2017 at £39 30 per share
This equates to £2 096 147

Xavier Rolet
10 Datareflects the L1-month penod worked durning 20317 as CEQ Bonus awarded

only for 17 months workedin 2017 all other elements are pro-rata for this 11
month period

Benehts included the cashialue of private medical incame prutection and bife
assufance Save As You Farn SAYE) and commuting expenses<wath dssociated
taxes nncluding car transportation where appropnater The datd dlso
ncorporate s legal feesincurred in agreeng departure artangements in
1eldalion Lo the praposed merger with Deutso e Borse and subsequently with
the departure arrangerments that were agrecd m October 2007 M1 Roket
contnbinted §500 pet month tothe SAvT plann Tanuary and £ 50 per manth
between Fetwuant and Decernber 2017 SAYE has heenvvalued based on the
maonthiy savings armaunt and the discoant provided 120 .

106 111 Performance shares vestod on 27 August 2017 at €33 50 per share
This equates faba 191 45
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Additional notes 1o the Single total figure of remuneration (Audited)
Fixed pay

Base salary

when reviewing Executive Duector salanes and in line with our policy the
Cammttee considers multiple reference points including cormpames i the FTSE
100, the broader Financial Services sector and ogher international exchange groups

Benefits

A flexible benehts planis offered 1n which indwiduals have costain core benefits
such as private medical Iife assurance thcome protection and addinonally n
ltaly only disablity 1iness acaident car fuel allowance and lunchieon vouchets)
together with (in the UK) a taxable cash allowance which can be spent on elec tive
benefits (such as additional medical, Wfe or dental cover

where recewved as a cash supplement, ths allowance s not used to caleutate banus
payments o pension contributions Benehts are reviewed penodically to ensure
theyieman affordable and competitive Executives are eligible 1o participate n
Lhe Group s HMRC approved SAVE Scheme (o7 internanonal eqiivalent)

Xavier Rulet and David Warren1eceve a flexible benefts allowance of €20 000 per
annum which 1s unchanged since last year In addition they recetve benehts in
kind which include private health care permanent healthnsurance and hfe
dssUrance arrangements

As an expainate from the Us 1o UK David Warren 15 also entitled to recewe
the following

- Each year hes entitled to tax preparation and filng assistance in the US and
the Uk

— The Group will meet the costs of tepatnating My warren s effects back to the US
it terminates his erployment other than w cucumstances such as senous
rsconduct which would justify sumrmary terminanon

— An annual allowance of £30,000 net per annum Lo cover ihghts between tondon
and New York for Mr warren and hus family

Raffaele Jerusalm receves benefits in kind that include private medical disability
and life wsurance cover iuncheon vouchers car and fuel He also contnibutes
towards the liahan rnandatory national insurance siystern

There ate no contractual malus of clawback prosasions in place inrelation to benefits

Executive Directors are coveted by the Dvectors and Officers insurance
and indemnification

82

Retirement Benefits
Inthe UK pension provision for our Executive [hrectors takes the form of a
non consohdaled cash allowance

Xavier Rolet and David Warren recenve an alliwance equivalent to 254 of base
salaly as a taxable cash supplement Qnly base salary 15 used to calculare pension
entitlernent and no other pension supplements apply

Raffaele Jerusalmi accrues rmandatory state pension {(INPS) benefits in ltaly
Aclual beneht due at retirement 1s set out by the apphcable [talian legslation in
farce from time to time LUnder the ftahan TFR he recenves conthibutions which are
funded by the Company at arate fixed by local law and which are paid to mr
Jerusalm s private pension plan Both INPS and TFR contributions are included

n the single total iigure of remuneration table on the previous page

Bonus awarded for FY2017

Lxecutive Directars are ehigible 1o 1ecewe an annual bonus based on meeting of
exceading bonus targets that are set at the beginning of the year looking at the
Group s hinanoial petformance strategie deliverables and thet personal contribuation

The Comrmuttee also recewes input from the Risk Committee wath regard to
performance 1elated to nisk cullure i@wareness transparency and accountabihity)
wher assessing rernuneration decisions

The operation of the FY2017 annual bonus 1s as per last year For the fimanoial yea
ending 31 December 2016, the Commuttee determined that the sole annudl
financal target should again be AOP The Committee congiders ADP to be of
particuar sigmificance for the Group and believes 1 should continue 16 be the
ma financial measure for annual bonus plan purposes As per 2016 the
maxumurm bonus oppor tunity 1s 225% of salary for the Chief Fxecutive Officer and
2007, of salary for ether Executive Direclors For 2016 the balance between
financial and stiategic objectives for the Group bonus pool was 60 &0, ncreased
frorm 50 5010 2015, reflecting the nereasing importance of financial per formance
o the Graup This 60 40 balance 1s unchanged for 2017

The txecutve Cuectors awards are furided from the Group bonus paol then

indwdual awards are based on an assessiment of thew conlnbution wesghted
agatrist 55 Group AQP 35 ayatnst strategic deliverabiles and 10 4 delivery
against personal objectives as deterrined by the Board
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Determination of Bonus for Fy2017
The Commmittee deterrmined the oyverall Group bonus pool wilh reference to the 12 month performance penod ending 31 December 2017 The performance measures
and targets are set out below

Performance Maximum Actual
relatve to percentage percentage

. ~_ Actual performance ~_ Target i target of bonus of bonus
FY2017 Group AOP  FY201/ AOP of £801m FY2017 AQP of £/36m Abovetargel 60 574
Group Bonus R
Pool Strateqic Robust management and growth of core business duning and subsequent toproposed  Above targel 40 30

Deliverables  merger with Deutsche Borse Although the proposed merger failed for exogenous
reasuns it mvolved immense management effort Despite the sigmificant resources
and forus required to progress the discussions the business continued to outperforn
on inancal targets duning and after the process

- Successhl and well 1ecewved Investar Day held in June 20617

— Leadership of requlatory engagerment — navigation and execution of Brexit siiategy
and successful preparation tor go live of MIFID 1

- Growth ininternational markets and global reach — through our global brands F 750
Russell and SwapClear in the LS and Asa and strengthemng relationships with hMiddie
East and China

- successhul arguisinons of Mergent Inc and The vield Book fxed income andlyt s
platform and Qi Fixed Income Indices business

- Achievernent of FTSE Russell indéxes itegration 5 year revenue sinsiqiesy
of Us$4d mithon

- Stiateqic increase of shareholding i LCH Group from 584 10 66 and 10 year
dervatives cleanng partnerstip with Euronext Ny
LCH S A launched CDSClear client cleaning and repo cleanng on German defs

— Launch of LCH Swapagent a service designed to simplify the processing marau iy
and settlerment of non-cleared dervatives and other key new products

— 77 billon EMTN strengtfening debt capital structure farihtanng future mestments

- Delvery of BSL nto full operathior in ST tanka and subslantial subseguent
upscahng and

— Forus on core operatiuns through the disposal of non-growth and low marqin
busingsses for example ISPS MillermumlI TSP and Frartpro

Total 100 82%

SOE Tl et e Dy bt b e D e tere o abuet e oo et qain 1o r =

Heea Gl A BT g T o we wtal bt S TE | A R T TR T S A T B T .

Ca 1 the T e e e e ke s 10 e et hee s et The e Bt e e T i b e g1 vt bodlrdan
Group adjusted operating profit performance Strategic deliverables performance
4% of total bonus % of total bonus

R N T O O 1T R O B A TR TR R R IR NI TRTIIT
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Interim Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer

As well as being an exemplary Group CFO David Warren has stepped up as
ntenm CEQ providing wvital continuity and leadesship dunng the penod of
change for the Group

David hasled the focus on all aspects of financial performance doving income
growth by focusing on a successful mix of core product lines supporting new
opporiumties and ensuring successful integraiion of Tecent acquisitions Notable
nteqgration success includes Russell Indexes whete the Group has achieved the

5 year US$48 rmlhon revenue synergies from the arquisition 2 years ahead of
target As the Group s ncome grows David has reinforced continued discpline in
opetating cost levels and fncus on delivening value from our investment s for growth

Dawid has led the Group through several refinancing actoaties in 2017 Rehnancing
of shart dated facihties rebalancing of bank/bond debt mix with £1 bilhon Luro
band and L6006 million 5 year bank faciities plus £1 billion Euro CP Programime
launched strengthening debt capital struc ture matentally reducing boirowng
casts and strengthemng lending appetite that would faciliwate tarther smrialls
mediurm sized investments This activity and the translation of Gioup finanaal
perfarrmance into a strong cashflow Ras seen credut rating upgrades from both
Standard & Poors and Moody s inthe year enhancing lending bank appetite to
provide headioom for further investments

Bavid was central to the Group's M&A activities In the year, which included the
acquisition of Mergent Inc a leading provider of business and inancial data on
public and private cornpanes and The Yield Book fixed income anaigtics platform
and Cit1 Fixed Income Indices anindex business meluding the Warld Government
Bond Index [WGBL In addition our shareholding of LOH Group was increased
from 57 8 to 65 9. and a 10-year dernvatves cleanng partnership was actneved
with Euronext NV

Dawid has also led the fucus on core uperations thiough the disposal of ou non-
growth and low margin businesses including 15PS Exactpro and Millenmum| T ESP

Executive Director, CEO of Borsa Italiana & Director of Capital Markets

In addhtion to hus responsibilities, as an Executive Director for the Group Raffaele
Jerusaim has led our caputal rmarkets and Post Trade dwigions in ltaly Against a
challenging macroeconomic backdrop and low levels of volatility he has continued
to promeote innovation and dnve growth Capital markets had a 6% ncrease in
revenues 10 £391 mdlon (FY2016 €368 rmullions

The Group welcomed 194 comnpames to our markets in the year rasing a
combired total of £44 2 tillion 12016 £25 & biloni i new and further 1ssues
This has been achieved despite significant levels of uncertainty around the
potential cutcomnes of the Brexit negotiations between the EU and UK which
has required signihicant engagerment with key stakeholders

Other notable achievements include preparing our businigss for the launch nf
WIFID 110 January 2018 &1M capital raised since launch reaching £105 bilion
launch of the FLITE Basket Bond and launch of the International Secunties
Karket i London In addition to the new product s launched w-year 2017 has
seen growth in products launched w1 2016 such as CurveGlobal and ELITE Club
Deal as our custorners respond posirvely to ol continued mnovalion

Departing Chief Executive Officer

The Group has delivered another strong financial performance with growth across
all care bustness areas Althaugh the proposed mierger with Deutschie Barse failed
for exagenous reasons twnvohed mmmense management effort and despate the
sigriftcant resources and fucus required ta pragress the merger discussians the
business continued to outperform on financial targets dunng and after the process

Foliowing the strong histone financial performance the Executive Directors
and key mambers, of the of the Group s Leaderstiup Team held a successfuf and
well1ecewved investor Day in June 2017 whereby ow investors were updated on
our medium term performance expectdlions and financial targets

The Group s apenness to innovation was dermonstrated by Lthe (aunch of numerous
new products setvices and imitatives, that expand and leverage our open access
strategy Notable exarmplesinciude International Secunities Market L1 1TE Basket
Bond £112 rmillion 16-year bond 1 CH Swapagent CDSClear chient cleanng MTS
Global Collateral Management and the launch of Russeli 2000 Index futures on
CME s Glabex platform

Despite strong econornic performance aspects of Xavier's operating style and
the unc ertainty surrounding whether or not he was prepared to give s consent
to continue in office if the secondiesalution of the 19 December 2017 General
Meeting was passed negatively impacted relabionships between ham and the
Bodrd As was announced at the trme Xawvier & garden leave was accelorated and
he agreed 1o step down as CED on 29 Novernber 2017, resulting in hum working
11 of 12 months of the year The Committee considered this and deermned it
appopnate to pro-raté his Fy2017 bonus accordingly

Based on the above context and an assessment of ndvidual performance the Remunetation Comnidtee awarded bonuses to each of the Executve Directors as follows

Interim Chuef Executive Officey / Executive Disector, CEQ of Borsa Italiana

Departing Chief Executive Officer

Role . _ . Chef Financial Dfficer & Duector of Capital Markets _ {stepped down on 29 November 2017)
Bonus for FY2017 % of salary 1640 of salary’ 1674 of salary af salary
% of maximum B 8% ) N o o T9%
£ total amount TH27 000 £230000 - _£1300.000
. ~ ) Of which 50% is deferted £414530 €415 000 _ £650 000
Bonus Component Financial Perfarmance
(55%) 0%, of maximum 2o af maximum 86% of raximum
Strategic Deliverables
(35%) i : 79 of maximurn . 75% ot maxmam _75% of maximurn
Personal Objectives
. {10%) 500 of maximurm . 60% of raxirnum 50% of maximum
T Pey erdan cE Bl urar sl cF§ ok St ampn a0 nahe et Carr e s salugdnd 1antteat e S ale e wlany
O wwal e Siocn D 1 The Tl we ke Tas Selp 0]
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Compulsory deferral under existing Remuneration Policy
Executive Drectors must compulsorty defer 50%- of their bonus for a penod of 2 years This provision applies to the bonus amount for the Y2017 honus above and

operates as [ollows
— until the rmrmum sharcholding requirement of 2x base salary 1s reached the percentage of bonus that 1s defered will he deferred 100k 1mo shares and

— Gnice the level of mimmum shareholding has been reached indwaduals are able ta elect to defer undet 3 different approdches 100+ of the deferral amount into
shares 504 into shares and 507 into cash o 100™ intocash

- Drvidend equivalents will be paid n respect of deferted shares onvesting

- Any deferrat into shares will be disclosed at a later date once confirmed

Lomg term incentive plan (LTIP)
Al currently outstanding LTIP awards have been made under the 2014 LTIP

Awards granted in August 2014 with a performance period ended in FY2017

The performance penod for the abselute TSR element of the Performance Share awards ended in August 7017 The awards granted in 2014 were based on absolute TSR
performanc e n the 3 years fromgrant and adjusted FPS performance in the 33-month perfor mance penad to December 2016 Over the penad annudlised absolute TSR
performance inthe 3 years to August 2017 was 30 per annuim and theretore vested at 100« for this element The Companu aso delvered average adjusted EPS
growth of 105 per annum over the per formance peniod and therefore vested at 514 vesting price as at 27 August 2017 was £39 50

Awards granted in April 2015 with a performance period ending in FY2018

The value shown in the single figure table on page 81 for the inanciat year ending December 2017 represents the estimated value of the 2015 awards which will vest i
April 2018 The estimate 15 based on the confirmed 1034 vesting of the EPS elernent and forecast 100 v, vesting of the TSR element which will be confirrmed w Apnl
2018 The estimated value 15 based on a 3 month average share price from 3 October 2017 to 31 December 2017 The hinal vesting outcome (including the actual share
price at vesting! following the end of the performance penod will be disclosed 1in the nevt Annual Report on Rermuneralion covenng Fy2018

The performance cenditions applying (o awards granted n Aprd 2015 are as follows

EP5 element (50%) - avetage adjusted EPS growth TSR element (50%) - absolute TSR growth o Proportion of relevant element which vests
lesttnani L a —ecsthar gV ma o
tpa . B#wopa _ } - _ b
12% pa o-more lak o ormore 1200,

Straight-me pro "aine apphes betweet the.e pint. oo I

Furthes to the inancial year-end change awards made in Fy2015 and onwards returned to being measured over 36 months on acalendar year basis fa FPS
The financial year-end change did nat affect the TSR measurement penod which remained 3 calendar years trom grant vestingremamned at 36 months

LTIP Awards Granted in FY2017 (Audited)

Awards dunng F Y2017 were granted m Apri under the L TIF and were made with & value of 300 % of salary fur David warren 275 of salaiy for Raffaele Jerusainiiat rate
of £1 = €113 and 3004 for Xavier Rolel The same EPS pertormance conditions and vesting schedules described ahove for 2015 awards also apply to these 2017

awards similarly for TSR except that the TSR performance range was set at 6 % 1o 14 - further 1o sharehoider consultabion at that time

Intervm Chief Executive Officer / Executive Ditector CEO of Borsa Departing Cmef Executive Officer
Chief Financial Officer  Italana & Director of Capital Markets (stepped down on 29 November 2017)

201_4 LTIP (Nil-cost performance % of salary a0t of Laldry Iis e ot salang a0 of salary
options) granted on 3 Apnl 2017 - sty

[T

st=rl g L aanT

Face value IR ETANICH Saate forar £2 400000
Share price 2.7, [ ARSI £3171
Number of LTIP
shares granted al1fe dzZzz 75685
(R I I O B ST TURNIPR BRI | B R TTIFS ETRRPRY R I THe b b hapa = d ' s v b NN I TR T | B ot e et
L R T N A R T T TP L N S T N N AT TR R TR S BT LT FRE B IR BN ST I nlen gl [ NI | [ CTRIC ERRTRE el
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Other share plans (SAYE)

Al UK emplayees including Executive Duectors are ehigible o participate n the
Hiv Revenue & Customs approved Save As You farr Scheme (SAYEs Under the
rules of the SAYE, participants can save up to £500 each month for a penod

of 3 years At the end of the saving penod savings pius interest may be used

to acquue shares by exercising the related option

The options mauy be granted at an exercise price which represents a discount of
up to 20% to market value at the date ob invitation No performance conditions
are attached to SAYE options Thete 1s also an International Sharesave Plan 1SP)
which s designed to provide share options to Group employees including
Fxecutive Dwectors whao are not based in the UK an <imilar terms to the aptions
that are available lo UK ermployees thiough the SAYE Employees in France

Hong Keng 1taly Malaysia 5o lanka and the LS participate mthe 15P As a core
campaonent of our emiployee proposition and benefits offering it acts as a modest
reterition taol with aver 504, of ekgible employees partipating globally

Xavier Rolet contnbuted £250 per month nto the 2014—2017 scheme pnor 1o 1ts

matunty date in March 2017 and contributes T 250 per maonth into the 2015-2018
SAVE scheme
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Share plan rules and approvals

We will seek shareholder approval for 4 share plans Tules at our forthcoming AGM
These reflect rautine course of bustness as well a5 aur continued comrmtment to
alignment with shareholder interests through employee share ownerstng

- Renewal of oul approved International Sharesave Plan (15P, whichieaches the
end of 1ts 10 year hfespan wn July 2018 As detalled in the Other shate plans
section above, the plan currently operates in 6 countries and over S0+ of ehgible
employees participate globally

Approval of our Restricted Share Award Plan whcnreaches the end of s 10
year ifespan m May 2018 The plan will continue to be used prmandy for key
new hares to 1eplic ate deferred cormpensation forfetted frorn prior employment
reflecting the increased prevalence of deferted compensation structutes in the
markels i which we aperate) and for the retention of key Lalent duning
acquisitions The plan will not be used on a normal basis for Executive Direclors
and wall not form pait of any of ther normal long term incentive: and

— The introduction of a UK tax-favoured all-employee Share [ncentive Plan 151Py
and an equivalent international arrangement Together with our existing UK
and International Sharesave plans the SIF s intended to preserit an opportunity
for an alt employee offening ncluding those junsdictions where we do not
operate Sharesave as our footpnint extends through acgusition and
increased glebal reach

Should the Restnicted Share Award Plan be utilsed as one cormponent of any
ncoming £xecuttve s deferred cormpensation bugout full consideration would be
gwen to shareholder expectations and the Plan s use and award construct be tully
disclosed Any such award wouid be consistent with the shareholder-approved
Remunerahion Policy
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Remuneration arrangements for the departing Chief Executive Officer:
As has been announced, xavier Rolet stepped down from his role as CEG and
Dwrector of LSEG ple on 29 Novermnber 2017 after almost 9 years of service

The inancial terrs helow were agreed with by Rolet in Octoher 2017

In connection with ms announced departure and all are i e with the
shareholder approved Remuneration Policy 2017 The Company 1s honouting
those ronlractual commuments

The folluwing arrangements wilk apply N tespect of M Rolet < notice penad

— w1 Rolet s 12 month notee penod commenced on 29 Novernber 2617 and
will be spent on garden leave

He may accelerate his termination on 4 weeks notice nnewhich case he will
recene a payment in hieu of notice, Lalculated by reference to base salary and
contractual benefits Such payment would be made ininstalments and subject
toreductionf alter native employment o éngagernent 1< sec Lred

= During hus garden leave Mr Rolet wilt be avalable to be consulted at the
Board s discretion

Gther terms agreed with M Rolet in October 2017 which were the subject
of Lareful consideration by the Comimittee aie as follows

Annual bonus — M Rolet recetved a bonus for the 11 months he worked
as CEOm FY2017 50" of which will be deferred unnl March 2020 Hewill be
not be eligibie for a bonus wrespect of FY2018

- Deferred honus - he will be a guodleaver and awards will vest 10 line with
vesting schedules wntarch 2008 2015 and 2020

- LTIF—he will b a good leaver and awards witl vest on a wait and see hastsn hne
with esting vesting sulirdules and subject ta the normal perfar mance conditions

+ Notime pro rating will apply to his 2015 award as 1t 1s anticipated he wall still
he on notice onits vesting date on 2 Aptil 2014y

- Astt was anticipated that he would have been i employment for the 3
full financial years apphicable tathe 2016 LTIP award the Commnattee
deterrined that ths award would vest in full sutnect ta the achiewernent
of normal performance conditions This was agreed with My Rolet as part
of the legal agreernent reac hed in October 2017 1in connection with his
annopunced departure

Governance Directors’ Remuneration Report

- MY Rolet's 2617 1 TIP will be ime pro rated 1o 31 Decernber 2018 (the date
by which it was ongimally intended that fis employment would cedses
should he elect 1o leave eatlier than the expiry of s 12 month notice penod
unce a sluccessor has been appomnted the time pro-rating will apply to fns
leaving date

« kA1 Rolet will not be granted an LTIF award in 2018

— Mimmum Shateholding Requursrment IMSE! - as k1 Rolet has demonstrated
throughout his tenure he 15 fully aigned to shareholders and has constantly far
excoeded his MSR He will maintain the required MSR until s departure date

The Comrmittes remains of the wview that thns treatment of Mr Rolet s LTIP and
deferted bonus agreed in October 2017 1s appropriate i hght of his sigrificant
contrbution to Lhe Campany s perfanmarnice to date and the fact that he will rernain
avallable 1o he consulted on stiategle and succession 1ssues dunng his garden leave

The tables below set out the relevant number of shares under each of Mr Rolet s
2015 2016-and 2017 1 TIP awards and fus 2016 and 2017 Deferred Bonus Plan
IDBP awards alony with date of vesting Inthe case of thet TIP vesting tand
theratore future value s subject to the achiovernent of stretching performance
reasures which are designed to provide a long-term focus towards enhanced
shareholder value and do not reward for fadure The DBP awards relate to deferred
bonuses alteady earned for previous performance years

Date of vesting

Number of shares {subject to

Award B under award Eerfirmfnce) Time p@-rg}mg%

i T RIS NITENE 0o i

LLIELTIF YR Marzn 2015 e,

o TwEsr Apnledln A

LS T ST S SR [ ) T\\HT{-'\: vt L et *"J_~ B ’ ) o
Number of shares

Award urlder_aw.fd i Date of vesting

1t Dep LT HTL March 2014

01T DBR =N Maroh s

The Companty has made a conttibunan af £25 000 (plus YAT) lowards M Rolet 5
legal fees incurted in connection with the above arrangernents that were agrecd
nOctober 2017

Remuneration arrangements for the interim Chief Executive Officer:
As announced on 29 Novermber 2017 in connection with the departure
artangements for 1A Rolet, David ‘warten was appointed as ntenm CFO with
rnmediate effect As part of s appointment the following changes were made
to s terms until 4 parmnanent CFO sucoessorn s appointed

- & step-up allowance of £212 00N will be paid in addition to s current hase
sdiarty of L4858 u00 fur the duration of fis appontrnent asantenm CLO prosiding
anew internm salary of C700 000

Any bonus pad for 2017 and 201E pertormanc e will be adiusted ona prao rata
basis toreflect s new ntenm salary

arnual Report December 2017

For 2018 hig [ TIP award wll be calculated by reference to bus curtent base salary

ths benefits pension dallewane and all other employment termms will
rermaln unchanged

& statedin the Chan man s staterment the s omniitee has decided toincrease b
base salary inrelaton 1o hes role as Chief hinanoal Ofhcer by 2 54 1o £900 000
His step up alowance will be reduced by ©12 000 to £200 000 therefore M
Wagtrens intenim salang af £700 000 15 unchanged

B?
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Implementation of the Remuneration Policy during 2018 (1 January
2018 to 31 December 2018)

Base salary operation

Dunng the year the Committee conducted its annual review of the base salary
levels of our Execulive Duectors

The Commuttee has deaidad 1o Increase Mr warren's hdse salay for bustole as
Chief Financal Gfficer to L5060 000 which 1s i hine with average employee salaryy
mereases of 2 5% The Committes has decided Lo inerease the salary of Raffaele
Jerusalimi, Ctuef Executive Officer af Borsa faliana and Drrectar of capital rriarkets
by 1% 1o €525.000

Base salanes effective from 1 Apnl 2018 are set out n the table below

With effect from

1 apnl 2017

Y488 000

»step uD alowance of
£212000

520000

reliene pe g ittt e (e BA e b s e b i i 1

Wath effect from

1 Apnl 2018

LODT 00 v S
~'step up allowanrce of
£200 000

£525000 1+ 14%

Annual salary

David warren

Raffaele Jerusalrn

Erate shanigd

Annual bonus operation

—~ For Y2018 the Group bonus pool will be determined based on performance
medsures waighted 60 Graup AOP and 40 strategic delverables ta be
intended to be tested over a 12 month perfarmance penod

~ The bxeculwe Drectors awards are funded from the Group honus pool ther
indivdual awards will be based on an assessment of theu contribution weighted
dagainst 55% Group ADP 357 against strateqic deliverables and 100% delivery
against personal objectives as deterrmined by the Board The Committee
determuined that there should be a greater focus on the development of culture
for the Group and a real emphasis on behaviour as 10 how the Executive
Drrectors achieved their targets As such for FY?018 performance against
strategic and personal deliverables will include an assessment aganst specific
rultural objectives, Including 360 degree teedback as aninput measure

= Any bonus payment will be paid out in March 2019 1n accordance with the
enhancements made ta our polwcy mandatory deferral of 50%. of bonus will
be o shares for a peniod of 7 years

- The rmimirnum shareholding requirernent 1s 3x base salary increased flom
2x base salary n prior years

- Deferred awards are subject to malus provisions Bonuses alieady paid out
under the Deferred Banus Plan and vested awards ate subject to clawback
e g 10 cases of rmatenal misstatement or grass musconductt with judgement
appled by the Cornmittee

For good leavers awards will usually vest at the normal vesting date and in full
unless the Cormmittee determimnes to scale back the awald based on any factors
deermed relevant Where an individual 1s not constdered to be a good leaver
unvested awards will lapse

Long Term Incentive Plan

Awards are mtended to be made m 2018 under the 2014 LTIP as descibed inour
Remuneration Policy Report The 2018 LTIP awards will be granted under our
enhanced Remuneranhon Pohcy and will therefore be subject to a 2 year holding
penad i addihorn to the cunient 3 year performance perod resulting in a total

5 year penod fiom the date of grant

Malus and clawback provisions will apply to these awards allowing the Commuttee
toreduce subsisting awards or request the refund of already patd or vested awards

N ceflain circumstances e g matenal misstaternent or gross misconduct The

88

2018 awards will vest 3 years after the grant date subject to absolute TSR and
adjusted EPS performance measures as tollows 1 @ The same measures as those
that apphed to the 2017 awards)

EPS element (50%) - average
adjusted EPS growth

Lessthan b a
Gwpa .
12 pa 7 more

TSR element {50%) -
absolute TSR growth

Lessthan 6% na on

Proportion of relevant
element which vests

o Wwpe |
W pa ormore
Straght e pro-rating applie: betweer the<e points

Awards to be made during 2018

Based on the context and an assessment of indwidual pertormance the
Remunetatinn Comrmtiee intends to make grants to each of the Executive
Directors under the 2014 LTIP as set out below

Internum Chief Executive Executive Dvrector, CEQ of
Officer / Chief Financial  Borsa itahana & Diector

que Officer of Capital Markets

SOLE LTIP award voofsalary  30rer of annaal salary 275% of saary
subject 1t sterling eguivalent of
perforran. e €1 4437500t prevaling

Arnaun £1 500090 FXrateattime of grants
Tosalmgret b s ang A Abe e Apnl s

CooThe e B nt b b s B Sy b by oo e e b I

Mo gl wm

Non-Executive Directors fees for 2018

Fees were last reviewed and revised with eftect from 1 January 2016 Toreflect
the nureased scope time commmment and cormiplexity of the toles the fees for
the Semar Independent Duector and Non-Executive Tirectar 10les have been
ncteased with effect from 1 January 2018 The fee schedule for 201815
therefore as follows

with effect from  with effect from

Fees 1Jan 2017 1Jan 2018
Graup Chatrman £400 000 L4000
semor Independert Dite:tor £145 000 1165700
NGr-E xec utive Director pase fee L7000 £75003
audit Comruttee Charrman i g0 £33 000
liE_f"lurngdUO_r_T C-’]himlltée Chalrrnan . B 7_‘;30 130000
Risk (orrnittee Charrman B £30000 £35000
Audit Commuitee Risk fomrmitee

or Remuneraiion Comrmittes mempership s B it
NuTTinat an Comm ttee . . ril ml

Annual Report December 2017



Non-Executive Directors’ Remuneration
Mon-Executive Directors remurneration 1s determined biythe Beard and 1s neither performance-related not pensionable The Chanman s fee 1s determined by the
Remuneration Committee The fees for Non-Executive Directors are set at a level which 1s intended to recognise the sigmficant 1esponsibilinies of Drectors and to
attract ndwiduals with the necessary expenience and ability ta make anmpoitant contrbution to the Company s atfars Compansons are made with fees paid at

FISE 100 companies

Governance Directors’ Remuneration Report

Travel and other appropniate expenses with associated taxes (ncluding fees incurred in obtaining protessional advices mcurred in the tourse of performing their duties

are reimbursed to the Chairman and to the Non Executive Directors

The € harrman and the Non-E xecutive Directars do nat participate namy of the Company s annual bonus or LTIP plans and are not entitled to any payments on termination

Certain Non-Executive Direclors are entitled ta rec ewe fees from subsidiary companes detatls of which are set out below

The onginal date of appomtment as Directors of the Company 15 as follows

Date of tetter of Notice Date of LSEG Committee Other subsidiares/
Name _ Date Apponted appointment Time to expiry period resignation _ membership/chawrmansmp committees
Foul Heider e g THIDE T 20612015 NZne 5T Audn Char "SE
N, uratior SEmuneration
— Ris¢
[ KSR ] N e At Rer 3tion Chzir LR Remungrati =
RSV E 052"y L ALd® Nominat o Riex LSE e
ChEIr
Lerald aryoor 13726 "IIE ShdcFATHY L fren by Zroup Crarmian OB plo Chaimrdn
rominaton Char
RAunerahar
haru Schopre areracls Noe Norinatisn Remiuneration Requlatoy Adssory CToup
Tnar
Les Fozgdunm [N (L a1l IR ] Mot Nrne L CEOnarmzn
Jav1l hask IR ) arle 031002008 Ni e Aadit Risk
Andrez Seon 0110 ° S O 0A0GE0T M Pisk Sursa lraliana charman
B CSEGH talia Zhairmar
vz Rahmar 201242217 a7 Noune ~ Risk -
L T L B RN T R L T T I T U T S (N TTTL A N B T CR A
P o ke T th- ke anta b Bok o manattee o b
Non-Executive Directors’ Remuneration Table (Audited)
FY2017 FY2016 FY2016
FY2017 FY2017 FY2017 Taxable FY2017 FY2016  Subsidiary FY2016 Taxable FY2016
LSEG Fees  OtherFees’ Total Fees benehts? Total LSEG Fees Fees Total Fees benefits Total
S ~_£000 £000 £000 _£000 €000 €000 €000 £000 £000 __£000
Fau Heider 140 - 140 19 159 lal o Llau e el
lawsugs Algram 100 5 105 - 6 111 1 N 3 157
stephier O loam 100 - 100 - 100 e - 130 - 103
De nand Srgact 400 - 400 1 401 G - Pl - <O
Schapre 10 25 95 . _68_ 163 # v 47 T 126
cen Hoogdum 43 307 350 37 387 “ s et 3 e
Dizvad phen 70 - 70 n 81 o - T S sC
Ardres siron 70 140 210 13 223 s 127 144 . 145
val Farman 2 - 2 - 2 - - - -
Tota bIm Eser d e D1 tor ten 995 477 1,472 155 1,627 ot Lyr Lo 140 Foact
[T Pl et gt g e ol b T 1t
Coall enont et e ) ey Tip ta oo
Mary b1 e e o] . bone b [ I TR R TY T
el TR A VE | R} o a0 [ N A T R T PURTETTIRT P B RTIRY IS " TP IR ) Lol oy [ '
I ot el 1
At s far bt [E SN I [ I R L R L R A R R B AR I AR
[ R I I IR TR R BT I | [ T T L T L Y B A L L O LR TNV Ol ] ol
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Alignment between pay and performance

Total Shareholder Return (TSR) performance

The fallowing graph shows for the financial period ended 31 Decemnber 2017

and for each of the previcus & hinancial peneds the TSR on a holding of the
Company's ordinary shares of the sarme kind and nurnber as thase by reference
towhich the FTSE 10015 calculated The TSR graph represents the value at

31 Decernber 2017 of £100 invested in London Stock Exchange Group plc on

31 March 2009 cormpared with the value of £100 mvested 10 the FTSE 100 Index
over the same penod Asamember of the FTSE 100 we have chosen the FTSF 100
Index as it 1s currently the most relesant index for benchmarkang our performance
over the § financial penods

TSR chart v FTSE 100 over 9 financial periods

b

1o

AR TITIRTR

Ldust R (] P P Kl O o ' Dec
L \ o . . ' ! ' 2017
— Il ISl
Histanc levels of CEO pay
Long-term
incentive
Annual bonus vesting rates
CEQ Single total  payout against agamst
Perod ended figure of maximum maximum
(t2 months unless remuneration oppottuniy opportunity
atherwise stated) CEQ £000 % %
29 Novemnbert
2017 xavier Rolet 55604 g, 100
31 December
2016 Xavier Rolet =X S1% Ul
31 December
2215 Xavier Rolet 6526 G&fy 94
9 months ended
31 December
2314 o xavier Rolet 4587 H9% 50%
31 March 2014 Kt ter Rolst ~E363 93% 100
31 March 2013 Ray 1er Rolet BLIn 59% oo
31 March 201¢ Xavier Rolet 5745 100% £5%
31 March JCL xavier Roleg R B3 -
31 March 2010 xavier Rolat 13 KRR _
~Qlara Furse o £00 49% 0%
Toowg e R bt ntb pale POFDF om0 BAa Y s app aone detbe ol TR Kan b 2o !
he ctepped by b St b = 2o Late s s et the single betal g fahle vl th=oto
Tepaesent o LT an mith fejure
Clarg Tt wa 1 the tole canETomnnml 2o Ko 000 she e e Hie e beodidon
Loaotuly ™we
s DA Fo e ot ad Tebecembe 1 ods g alenn o
Al d meyenmn
s Mal= showt e Pie ponnad=nded e mlen 30 ope o pasthea Lial s st b TE Ay and
itanterhm o bt Lo e YT A et Ll e f el
oD b T s G et Al AT The sabingte 1o ot FLa e Ty
frte Lhsebe ntoan 00 ass 1000 oenme d the TsRov oot whi bowddl B onferine 1
Aprl 2018
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Percentage change in remuneration of CEO

The table below shows the peicentage year-on-year change in salary benehits and
annual bonus for the CEC compared to the average of the representatwve sample
of UK ermnployess (all LSEG UK emplogees) where appropriate amounts have been
annuahsed to provide a ike for-ike comparison

L Salary Benefits _Annual Bonus

ZED <0 +E% -14%
Average pay of Graup UK emiplogees- +2 5% + 5% 100
I Thedaar footoghe deputin g Loasbowosantheo e Sorth toaentie Db e s Ao

ta heevatinians Tt preud ke B ke anpdnn on

Thogpnr B beor b dn retle Pt sk e st b e b bl

T dattief=~ 1 1 bopartnr e D70 cr bt il an 10 nabl spenae (Hbe tn foe i f o el

Foe pounteT b i T Ut Pt @ e e it g datin b the or e anl et s st

Db hetd s bouleerendiy e depaiine 0 g et Al s e it b el

Relative importance of spend on pay

ihe table Deiow shows the relative Fy 2017 versus Fy 2016 expenditure of the Group
on Didends versus Total Employee Costs These filgures are underpinned by
amounts fram the Notes ta the Financial Statements at the back of this1epart

N Annual
Year-on-year increases {%} . FY2017 FY2016 Increase
Doandends Paie ,n Financial Period gLnem £130m. R
Total Errployse Cnsts Akl CL2Gmr 16,
Relative importance of spend on pay
£m
! -16%

497
429
i
e
' +22%
i3
S 2017 T 2017
Tedterage b v e wdb sl P oo sl
T Thermerea s crtcralernp b 0 100 prn pal gt e el es panea e thic g a am ate
et 0 an g The Vel B ol bt es
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Statement of Directors’ shareholdings and share interests as at 31 December 2017 (Audited)
All Executive Duectors own shares outnght David Warren and Raffaele Jerusalrmt currently own shares at a level exceeding ther revised mimmum requued shareholding
of 3xbase salary based on a share pnce of §37 &4 (being the closing shate price on 29 December 20174 Curntent shareholdings are summansed y the foliowing table

Executwve Directors
Tanic Warren )
Raffaele Jerusalm -
Non-Executive Directors
“aul beller

latguec Agran
Stephen D Connoer

Junald Bryden

hapiro

Lexthagaan

David Nt
Andrea Lo

va kahman

Directors who stood down from the Board during the year-

Xawier Roiet _

Pl b s e

Tos et hal=l e -
e 1 Dol B 1 Blanar 1o ok
Abulat T tyaer eocba e war - e
P T P N PR 1T VR I S P B B PR RO |
[T RN | PV I 3 RSN O U
CE TR TR O R TR ARN (TN L R |

Shares held

Owned

Dutright

(NI

28

[ETIS TR, s

Toonp e -

P Barne M mwal [0 0o

ftotbe Lo

Options held'
o N Shareholding
invested and Unvested and asat
subject to subject Vested 31 December
performance to continued but not Requirement 2017 Requirement
_tonditions employment?’ Eﬁxstclsed (% salary) (% salary) met
e AeRRE Co- WL 456 vas
’ - . 00 Ten T e
- - - = - N7
. - T - - N7A
- _ - - - _NA
LT - - o NA
- - - - _Na
- - - B MAA
- . _ - N'A
.z - _ - Nifs
_ . - i - 7
o8t 083 Lot -7 e vese

Avr g

bl i

Directors’ Interests in Ordinary Shares — Beneficial, Family and any Connected Persons Interests (Audited)

Executive Directors
Day d Waren.

Ratraele levusalmn
Non-Executive Directors
Pau Hzider

Jacques Aigrar
75[6'_‘?'1\:-"7_@ Canns

L.na dBuccn
War) Sohaprs
cEx Hondur
Drav & NIEN
Andres siror
Vil Featimar

Directors who stood down from

the Board during the year

*a

o
i [N IR | B I L A YO A CN Y R T
[BERTRRATT

1s1

e R oTet

EN NI NI o bl 1
aroar !

[l [ TR Y

Iho b o e

o

b

L hes "

[INCI ootk phen
Faloa
booho e

T

oo

o fodhe g the anho
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b

Ordinary
Shares Held

31 December 31 December

2m7 }016

_ s9378 sk
52,130 B sl
©o3m8 3
~ 5000 L
1,065
330,356 .o

T

T
v
T
a bl ' I

[l et

[RUTN
e

t December 2017

Options with
petformance conditions’

31 December 31 December

201_7 _ 2016

_ 142827 1t
_ 116807 1715
251,257 .olkC

[ t

Options without
performance conditions”>

31 December

31 December

Total Interests

31 Decemnber 31 December

2(1]7 2016 __2217_ 29!6

27,323 s 229528 215043
- - 168,937 215013
I - _ame e
i - - 5

- - 1,065 5.

54,220 © 635833 4 Al
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Long Term Incentive Plan table

The 2014 Long Term Incentive Plan has one element apphicable to Executive Drectors a condiional award of Performance shares

The awards are dependent on Absolute TSR performance for 507 of the award with the other 504 dependent on an Adjusted EPS growth target Detads of performance

conditions are set out on page 88

The table below sets out the Executive Ditectors Long Term Incentive Plan awards (inclucing the exercise of vested shares in FY 20171 as at 31 December 2077

Numbet of shates

Price at Price at value at Price at value at
award Award Vested Lapsed vesting vesting exercise 2XETCISE
date Atstavt  durmg  duning  during  Atend date date Exercise date? date
Date of award (£)  of year the year year year of year Vesting date {£) (€) date (£) (£} comment
David Warren 2/08/2014 2036 3508 & 183 33800 - 22082017 3550 1429 4BE 30AH/201Y 3950 1420598 FY20:7 Actual
. Ua042015 2447 BI04 - - - 82104 D34 3807 1.3@3,599 - - FYZDIQ_E_stimate‘
_ i 1HGA2016 2870 44555 - - — SABRE 1832015 - . - -~ ~ -~
03041201 3171 - L0 1EY - 46 10b 03040 ,20 - — - - -
_ _ -30,64k 46 10L 36 18Y 800 lec de? 1429466 - - 1429558 Fys01v Actua
1,983,599 FY2018 Estimate’
Raffaele
Jevusalmi CTHO&‘?G_lu SUss Geeid EERUT - DHLysenly el M09k 147 30Gs 0L 3250 0050 341 _FYEDls Aftual
_ 2042000 D&y AL ESS - - - &l 05 QH0&A s 3807 1547888 .- - - FVZO]-_B Estimate’
. ____17/‘33/301{7 28_7_(1 3/ 860 - - - 37862 18703 2015 - - - o
030442017 1171 - 3388 - 38 28b 0340472020 - — - — —
_ 137157 3¢ 285 S3067 St/ 1GRLY I =LA Ty - o - SUWE 34] FY 2017 Actaal
1,547,888 FY2018 Estimate’
LaviqLRolet . 27/08/2014 2036 117,250 - Welll 11139 - 27/08/2017- 3850 4151385 30/08/2017 3950 4181772 Fy2017 Ac_t_uj\
o 0200412015 2647 91943 - - - 91049 03/04/2018 3807 3500498 - - = FY2018 Estmate!
"1777/03/?0]6 28 70 783 6?}7 B - - -8 623__35i03f2q13 - o - - o _
03/04/2017 3171 — 75685 — 75685 03/04/2020 - — - - —
. . o 292822 5685 106111 11138 251 257 . - T 41913k% - - &l917F2  FY20D Artual
3,500,498 FY2018 Estimate’
TN - ketingl Acerange Shoate e ogpr dhie potoad fooame Dot e 17 T o dnher 07 g wibv e oo b bdt Ty,
we it od sbd e qranle Tenn 2 AUt 2]t faale Nrp e ks
s P arhieed s LA SH
o Al st A shesn e patatehg b DT e pwall e ol el e = Deopes e Aminal T ge it or Retiahetatnt
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Remuneration Committee — Governance

The Remuneration € emimittee 1s appointed by the Board and comprises the Chair and 3 Independent Non-F xecutive Ditectors The Cormrmttees remitincludes the
remurnieration ancluding the awards made under the performance 1elated ncentive schermes where apphicable; of the Chanman of the Group Frecutive Directors the

Governance Directors’ Remuneration Report

Fxecutve Committee as well as other requlated staff Please see page 18 for details of the Group s bxecutive Comritiee

At least 3 mermbers of the Commuttes are considered to be independent Detatls of the Comrmittee s remit and activibies are set out in this Drrectors Remunetation

Report The Committee has witten terms of reference which are available from the Group Company Secretary ar at the corporate governance section of the Company s
wrbsite al wwwilseq com/about-london-stock-exchange-group/corporate-responsibility/ethics-and-governance

During the financial period ending 31 December 2017 the Committee held 3 scheduled meetings and 3 addiional meetings called nn at shart notice Telating to CEO

sUCCession planming

Here 14 a summary of theitems they discussed

Februzry 2007

detaber D37

Jecemoer I017

February 2014

This mieeting took place dunng
Fv2018 and will be repeated ir
next year s renott

Toassst the Camimttee the tesults of market surves are made avallable Whore appropriale the Comimittec imvites the s iews of the Chief Fxecutree Dfhicer Chief
Finanaal Dfficer Group Head of Human Resources and the Chief Risk Officet via the Risk Committee None of these indraduals nos the Chanman parbicipated in any

Routine _ R

—F¥201€ Perroar anse and S5-nwus anpr s’

—F¥2017 ITIP grart ard antiapated cestirs of
ooV T LS LTI anc DEF srhemes

—Sharecavevesiry and FY2UTT oranis

- Perfzemarce and determor atien Jf TREO anc
Cxpl Jve JoovTittes TTI":'F—Ibl:!H el Merdtion

LneETatle 1 ep it

Tl QniTities Propase

1ol LJJEes

te Markel Dverview
£ 0 e tors Remuneratizn Reporlar
Sharehul o feedhans
7 Fertarmizn,e ans Bonus update
—Fyel.7 JTIF arants and antiopastecvesiimg o
prevwous LTUF 3nd SRT - emes
- Reg liatury update
L CH Rem yneratwon Jammittes upustes
— FY2C17 Remuareration Cormn ttee calendar

— Uelzitte Matket Cwvorvien

— LOVernance upLates

- Fvenl? Directom: Remur 2740 1 Reonr key themcs
FYor17 Perfemaroe snd Bonus Jpddie

— FY2018 8gnus ensideraticrs

— FY2018 LT ®grants ard annic nated vezting »f
oreciads IR and TRF < bermies

In S&Ard ves fw

-1 0H Remgneraton Commrittee Lindate -

- FY2017 Performance and Bonus approvai

— FY2018 LTIP grants and anticipated vesting of
previous LTIP and DBF schemes

- Perfatrnance and determination of former CEO
and Executive Committes members remuneratior

— FYZ017 Directors Remuneration Repart

- LK Rernuneration Committes proposals
Regulatary & governarce updates

discussion relating to thear own remunetation

Annual Report December 2017

Non-Routine
etger r=lated Jteme
ShEreaclTsr cmsL tanon planming
— Cender pay 12w g

— DA Reln g =g jan S_one
—NMEA It
- lender pru repoItiig

El

Addilongt meaarys haid ceiTomg i L g
surtetsirmolinr ng

— 201s Temunetatir Poloy

—MEA T

- anebaobtal apzcte

Sharehorder consultation relatirg to
Rernumeration Policy enhancements

— Gender pay reporting and disciosure

- Treatment of acgu.citions and disposals
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Statement of shareholder voting

The table below sets out the results of the vote on the Directors’ Rermnuneration Report at the 2017 AGH

. Votesfor Votes agamst L Votescast  Votes withheld
o R . o o . Number . % _Number % . L
Reruneraticn Falicy Report - o _f20p1616 L 3880744 s 255 568 6EC 6200579
Annual Report on Remunéeration - 253328323 3t 5E BERErSLIA L&A 26240085 4 762
Advisors
The Remuneration Comrmittee continues to be rmndful of recommendations from  Outside appointments

key stakeholders including institutional investor bodes The Cominittee consults
with mgjor sharehelders on any key decisions taken

Deloitte LLP 15 the prinaipal advisor appointed by the Committee to provide
independent adwvice on executive emuneration policy and practice and reviews
the implementation of our approved pohcy against cunent and emerging
corporate governance best practice Dunng 2015 the Committee undertock

a Lompetitive tender process for the role of Remuneration Committee advisor
and re-appomnted Delotte asits principal advisor with effect from 1 Apnl 2016

During the year Delotte L LP 1ecewed £150,000 (exciuding VAT) based on actual
ume spent far these services Inaddition Deloitte recewved £16 000 (excludng
VATY at the beginmng of the year tor advice related 1o the potennal merger with
Deutsche Botse Separately other parts of Delotte LLP alse adwised the Company
during 2017 wirelation to tax mnternal audit consulting and tansacton support
services Delattte 15 a founder member of the Remuneration Cansultants Group
and as such voluntanly operates under the code of conduct intelation to
executive remuneration consulting in the UK The Committee 15 satishied that

the advice provided by Deloitte LLP 15 mdependent and objective
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Executtve Directars are allowed 1o actepl appointments as Non Executive
Dwrectars of other companes with the proy approval of the Chatman Approval
will anly be green where the appaintment does not represent a confhet of interest
with the Campany s actiines and whete thewider exposure ganed will be
beneficial to the development of the indwidual Executive Directors miay retain
fees to encourage them to seek out the development opportumties and valuable
experlence afforded by these appointments and in recognition of the personal
responstbility Executives assume 1 such roles and we would disclose these tees

At present none of the Executive Directors are inteceipt of additional fees

Mo payrments were made for foss of office durmg the year and no payrrients wete
made to past drrectors

Signed on behalf of the Board of Dueclors

O

Jacques Aigrain
Chairman of the Remuneration Commuittee
2 March 2018
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Directors’ Report

The Directors of the Company are pleased to present ther Annuai
Report to shareholders, together with the financial statements for the
year ended 31 December 2017 with comparatives for the year ended
31 December 2016

The following sections of the Annual Repolt are mcorporated nto thes Directars
Report by reference

— Thenfermiation that futhls the requirements of the Strategic Repart nncluding
the Financial Review' can be found on pages 2-53

- Board of Directars on pages 54-55

Results

The Group made a profit before taxation from continuing operations before
amortisation of purchased intangtble assets and non-underlying iems for the
year of £/50 million (2016 £6:3 rilliony After taking inta account amortisation
of purchased intangible assets and non-undetuing tems the mofu of the Group
before taxation for the year from continuing operations was €564 milhon 12016
2364 illiont Proht after taxation from continuing operations for the year was
£586 mullion 12016 £26 3 mullon

Durng the yedr the Group classified certam of its businesses as discontinuer]
operations The discontinued proht before taxaton before amortisation of
purchased intangible assets and non-underlying tems for the year was £nil

12006 £28 milhony After taking mto account amortisation of purchased ntangible
assets and non-underlying terms the profit of the discontnued operations for the
yodr was £23 rillion 12016 £104 rmilhant Loss after taxaton from discontinied
operations for the year was £25 mihon 12016 £70 mullion loss)

Dividends

The Drectors are recommending 4 final dvidend for the year of 37 2 pence
{2016 31 2 pence per share which 1s oxpected to be pad on 30 May 2018 to
sharehatders on the tegister on 4 May 2015 Together with the interim dividend
of 14 4 pence 12016 12 0 pencel pet shate paid i September 2017 this produces
a total dividend for the penod of 51 € pence {2016 43 2 pencel per share
estimated to amount to £ 179 million 12016 §151 milhon

Share capital

As at 31 December 2617 the fompaniy had 350 531 339 ordnary shares i issue
with a nominal value of 8 pence each 1epresenting 100" of the totat 1ssued
share capital

The Company holds 3 792 585 of 1ts crdinary sharesin Treasury Therefore

the total number of voting nghts inthe company 1= 346 #36 754 The hgure

346 /30 75a may be used by shareholders as the denormmnaten tor the ¢ dlc ulations
by which they will deterrmne 1f they are reguired to notify thew interest in or a
change to therm intetest i the cormpany under the #CA S Disclosure Guwdance

and Transparency Rules

Nunng the year the Company1ssued 224 405 new ardinary shates and transferred
1757 774 ordhinany shares nut of treasury Lo seltle ernployes share schems awards
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Share rights

Thenights and obhgations attached to the Cornpany s ordinary shares are set out
in the Company s Articles of Association copies of which can be ohtained from
Companies House In the UK of by wnting to the Group Lompany Secletary

No shareholder shall be entitled to vote at a yeneral meeting either in persen or
by prewy inrespect of any share held by tim or her unless all momes presently
payable by fam o herinrespect of that share have been pard Inaddition no
shareholder shall be entitled to vote eher in person or by proxy 1f he or she
has been seived with a notice under section 793 of the Companies Act 2006
[concerning interests 1n those shares) and has faed to supply the Company
with the requisite information

Oeher than testnctions considered to be standard for a Uk Iisted company there
are no kmitations on the holding or transfer of ordinary shares inthe Company
both of whach are governed and requlated by the Company s Articles of
Assaciabion and apphcable legislation and regulation The Comipany s not aware
of any agreements between holders of shares that may result in restrictions on
the transfer of shares or onvoting nahts

Corporate Governance Statement

The Lompany s Corpotate Governance Repott and the reports of the Audit
Mominahion and Risk Comrmittees are set out anpages 6—-1and are together
with the mfurmation on share nghts set cut above incorporated mto this
Corporate Governance Staterment by reference

Articles of Association

The Company s Articies of Association may only be amended by special resolution
at a general meeting of the shareholders The Company s Articles of Assotiation
contain provisions 1elating to the appointment and remoal of Directors

Substantial Shareholders

As al 2 March 2018 the Company had been notified of the following interests
amournting 1o mate than 3« nthe 1ssaed share capital of the Companiy in
accordance with DTR 5 of Lhe | CAs Dhsclosure Guidance and Transparency Ruies

Darar Mvestment Authomiiu - - 1031
BlackRock 1o e
TC Fund Manager ent - mited _ 505
« ndsell Trair omited B Lo
Im.esrr, Lt nted 48T

Ver tgs Aoset Marzgement (LE

Authority to Purchase Shares

The autharty far the Compart te purchase in the market up Lo 35 u40 453 of 1its
ordinary shates representing 100, of thessued share capital of the Companiy as
at the latest practicable date befare publu atinn of the Notice of the Companty
last AGM) granted at the Cormpany s last AGK expires on the date of the
forthcorming AGM Thes authonity was used hy the Companty during the year for its
buyback magramme and the Company repurchased o 552 359 of its own shares
dunng the year Shareholders will be asked to give a similar authonby to purc base
shates at the fartheomng AGH

a5



Directors’ Report

Purchase of Company’s shares during the year

The Company has a capital management framework (previously disclosedy that
takes account of balance posihon, investment for growth and distnbutions to
shareholders through ardinary dvidends and other possible returns of capital
Share buybacks are @ means of returning capital when the Board expects to hold
surplus cash for a prolonged perod Accordingly the Company undertock its
buyback programme to return surpius cash to shareholders in a manner that
Increased total earnings per share and net asset value per share

The Company purchased 5,552,353 of its ordinay shares for an agyregate
consideration of £193 milhon fexcluding costs) at an average phoe per share of
£35 ¥4 {excluding costs) These shares were ordinary shares with a narminal value
of 6 79/86 pence each and represented 1 64 of the Company < ordmary shares in
1ssue at the start of the year Of these shares the Company transferred 1754 774
shares {representing 0 5% of the Company s ordinary shares inissue at the start
of the ear) out of beasury to settle employee share scheme awards

Authority to Issue Shares

subject to the provisions of the Companies Act 2006 and without prequdhce to any
nghts attached to any existing shares or class of shares any share may be 1ssued
with such 1ights or restrictions as the Company may by ordinary resolution
deterrmne or subject to and in default of such determnation as the Board

shall determine

Authority to Allot Shares

The authority conferred on the Diectors at last year s AGM to allot sharesin the
Company up 1o @ maximum nominal amount of £8 081 035 frepresenting 13 34
of the 1ssued share capital of the Company as at the latest practicable date before
pubhcation of the Notice of the Companyss last AGMIOT 10 connection with a
pre-emptive offer 1o existing shareholders by way of a nghtsssue uptoa
maximurm nominal amount of £16 162 069 {representing 66 &' of the wwsued
share capital of the Company as at the latest practicable date before publication
of the Notice of the Company s last AGM) expres on the date of the forthcoming
AGM Shareholders will be asked to give a sumilar authonty to allot shares at the
farthcarmng AGM

Directors’ interests

Directors interests in the shares of the Company as at 31 December 2017
according to the register mantained under the Companies Act 2006 are set
out n the Oirectors Remuneration Report on page 91 No company in

the Group was durtng or at the end of the year party to any contract of
sigmihirance in which any Director was materially interested

Directors’ indemnity

Details of qualifying third party indemmty provisions 1as defined by section 2 34
of the Companes &ct 20061 i force duning the course of the year ended 31
Decernber 2017 can be found on page 60 Such quabhying third party imdemmity
provisions remnatrin force as at the date of approving this Directors Report

96

Employees

Inforrmation on the Company s wider responsibilities i relation to employees
ncluding the Company s approach to humarn rights and dwersitiy s given on page
35 and information on the Group's share schemes 15 provided in the Directors'
Remuneration Report on pages 78 85-36 and 8& The Company provides an
induction programme for new employees including traimng employees on health
and safety and arange of developrnent programmes for all employees to develop
ther skills and knowledge The Group gives full consideration to apphcatians

for emplogment from persons with a disabinty where the candidate s particular
aptitudes and abilities are consistent with and adequately meet the requirernents
of the role The Group encourages and assists employees with a disability with
traiming, careet development and promotion opportunities and where existing
employees become disabled ow polcy s to provide continuing ermployment and
traimng wherever possible Where changes 1o working practices or structure affect
staff, staff are consulted and given the appropnate support All ermployees are
provided with information on matters of concern to thermn their wark through
reqular bniefing meetings and internal publications Toantorm ernployees of the
economic and financial factats affecting our business requiar updates are posted
onour ntranet and engagement events are hosted such as 'Tawnhall style
meetings with members of our Executive £ omiittee prowading a briefing of
spectfic areas of the business

Environment

As & QroUp we recognise that we must use resources in ways that deliver the

long term sustainabiity and profitatility of the busmess and have a positive
wmpact on the environment We are taking such factors inte account i developing
products and services that support these ams thiough comparmes listed o our
markets The Group s primary greenhouse gas (GHGE ermssions arise from energy
waste and water in our offices and data centres around the world from staff travel
and ndwectly frorm our supply chain

Duning the reporting pentod we actneved a 31+ reduction in our absolute carbon
ermissiens and a £24% reduction in Carbon Ermissions per Full Tirme Employee
(FTE) accelerating our progress from previcus years This sigriiicant reduction is
primartly attnbuted to our move toover 64% of the Group s electiicity now being
provided by 100 m natw al renewable energy

we are taking an active approach Lo emissions managerment with our global
Ervitonmental Management Group measuring GHG rmpacts across our property
portioto including managed offices where possible we teport beyond the
mandatory reporting guidehnes to include Scope 3 ermssions Performance s
1eported quarterly via our intranet and we annually disclose Lo the Carbon
Drsclosure Project DISI FTSE4Good and on our website www.lseg.com.

InTune 2017 the Finanoial Stability Board s Task Force on Climate related
Financial Disclosures { TLED) released its reporting recommendations The Group
signed the TCFD staternent of support affinming s commitment ta suppost the
recommendations and sees them as an inportant step i drving improved global
consistency mveluntary global reporting standards Asthe Group and FTSE
Russeliin parbicular intends to play a cntical role in enabhng the flow of
formation eavisionead by the TCF D, the recommendations were inc ofpotated
nto FTSE Russell's chimate-related indhcators and i the Group £56 Reporting
Gudance Going forward the Group will continue to review the recommendations
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Global 2017 GHG Emissions
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In addition to monitonng eur environmental Imipact we Nase st emaraonmental
targets fon the next financial year and lung-term science based targets that
nclude eneigy water waste and travel More information un these as well as full
details of ernissions and reporting methodalogy can be found i our CS report

Political Donations and Expenditure
Duning the year the Group did not make any pohtical donatons to EL o non-£u
arganisations of incur any pohincal expenditure

It remains the Cormpany s policy not to make political donations or to e
political expenditire however the application of the relevant provisions of the
Companies Act 200615 potentialiy very broad i nature and as last year the Board
15 seeking shareholder authonty to ensure that the Group does not inadvertently
breach these prostsions as a result of the treadih of s business actiabies
although the Board has no itention of using this authaenty As with previous years
the Board 15 proposing that shareholders pass a resolution at the forthcoming

AGM te authotise the Group to

- make pohitical donations to political parlies and independent clection
candudates not exceeding £100 00010 total

- make poltical donations to political orgamsations other than pohncal parhies not
exceeding £100 000 total and

—newr political expenditure not exceeding T 100000010 totdl

proaaded that inany event the aggregate amount of any such donations and
expenditute made or ncusred by the Group shall not exceed £100 004

Notwithstanding the Companty s policy not tu mdke political donanons we
recagnise the nights of our ernployees to partic mate n the political process: Thear
nghts to de so are governed by the apphe able laws in the countnes inwhich we
operate for example m the Us under the tederal Flection Campaign AL US
emplayecs ¢an establish nion-parhsan politeal action commuttees know as

PAL that encoutage voluntan employee particpation in the paliticat process
PACs are a common feature of the US pohitical system and operate independently
ot ary polineal party or canchdate

Following the divestment of the Russall Investmient Management Business on
1ne 2016 g new PAC was established during the year by one of the Group s
nther Lis entities LoLG LS Hioldeo Ine cansistent with WS Taw LSEG 1S Holdeo
inc pad for the PAC s establishrment and admunstiatie expenses providing sich
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support 1s not considered to be a poliical donation or expenditure under US law
A< the PAL was a new progiamme no palttical contnibutions were made during
the reporting perod  In accordance with the appheable faw the PACwill be funded
entirely by voluntary contributions fromehgible ernployees All decisions on the
amounts and reapents of contributions are directed by a steenng cornmmittee
compnising employees ehgble to contribute to the PAC

All LSEG US Holdeo Ine conttibutions will be reviewed for legal comphance and will
be publiclyreporled in accordance with Us election laws

Significant agreements

The following are significant agreements towhich the Companiy 1< a party that
take effect alter o1 ternunate Lpon a ¢ hange of contral of the Company following
a takeover d

SwapClear

LCH along with @ number of mvestment banks 1s party to an agreerment for the
clearning of OTC interesl rate swaps nelahion to the SwapClear busness Such
anangements contain certain provisions that entitle the banks to terrmnate the
agreement on a change of control of the Company

Facility Agreement

The Lompany has entered into & syndicated commtted revolang factiry
agreements dated @ November 2015 and 11 December 2017 which provide an
aggregate 1 2 bilhon of flexible financing capactty The facilties are parhally
drawn and sized to provide comfortable headroorn to the Group The terms ot
the above agreements ale consistent and appropnate for aninvestment grade
horrower mcluding change of control provisions which if thggered allow the
Faciity Agent uportinstiuctions from the majonity lenders ta cancel the facihty
and declare all outstanding loans under the agreement together with accrued
interest and all other amounts accrued due and payable

— Notes
"he Company has issted to the wholesale fixed 1nicome market £25¢ mdhon of
Sterling notes due n 2719 and under its Eura Medum Ferm Note Programme
ithe value of which the Comnpany incieased from €1 bilhon to €2 bilhon duning
the course of 2017, two £500 rmillon ranches of euo notes due in 2024 and
2029 The notes contamn a redermpton upon change of control provision which
f tnageted hy the combination of 3 change of conttol and within 120 days
thereafter a cedit rating downgrade Lo non-investmenit grade allows note
holders toexercise thew option to require the ( ompany to redeerm the notes
and pay any accrued and unpeaid interest due

Retail Bond Issue

Ihe Commpany hes ssued £330 milhon insterling denorminated retal bonds
under the Lure Medium Term Note Programime referred to above which are due
in 2021 The retail honds contam change of contio) provisionsw ich if thggered
by the combanation of a change of cantiol and within 120 ddys thereatter a
Qedit rating downgrade tannn nvestment grade allow the hiolder of these
honds to bave the eplion toTequuc the Company teepay early or lo puichase
lhe bonds of that holder at thee face value together wath the acorued mterest

Employee Share Plans

The rules of the Comipaniy s employee share plars sel onl the consequences

uf @ change nt control of the ©ompany onemployees Tights under the plans
Gencrally such nghts willvest unoa chanae of control and participants will
recoine entitlad to acguure shares inthe Comparnyg althongh i certan
LICUmIStang os the Remunetation Comin nttee has the discchion to defer vesting
arid e reguire nghits 1o he srchanqed fon equivalent nghte over the acqonng
COTTIRATI € SRANCS
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Events since the balance sheet date

Acquisition

Gn 23 february 2018 the Gruup became committed to acquireig an additional

2 04w nterest 1n LCH Group Holdings Linnted from certawn minority shareholders
This acguisinen will ncrease the Group 5 total stake in LCH Group Holdings Limited
10 6797% The transaction 1$ expected to complete in arly Maich 201§ Further
details are provided in Note 34 to the Financial Statements on page 157

Disposal of business

0On 17 January 2018 the Group completed the sale of Exactpro Systems Limited
and its subsichanies [Exactprol 1he Exactpro business was part of the Technology
Services segment and was contamed within a stand alone cash generating umt
Further details are provided 10 Note 34 to the Financial Staternents on page 157

Employee Benefit Trust

As at 31 Decernber 2017 the trustee of the London Stack Exc hange Emiployee
Benefit Trust which 15 an independent trustee held 944,497 shares under the
terms of the trust for the beneht of employees and former employees of the
Company and its subsichanies The trust s a discretionary trust and the shares
are held to meet employees entitlerments under the Comvpany s share plans
Employees have no veting nights inrelation to the unencumbered shares while
they are held intrust The trustee has full discretion to exercise the voting nights
attaching to the unencumbered shares o1 1o abstain from voting Shares acquired
by employees through the Company s employee shaie plans rank equaliy with
the ordinary shares in issue and have no special nghts

Branches outside the UK
Certain of the Company s subsidaries have estabhshed hranches n a number of
different countries in which they operate

Financial Risk Management

The use of Ainancial nstruments by the Group and the Group s Financial Risk
Management have been specihcally considered by the Directors and relevant
disclosures appear in Principal Risks and Uncertainties an pages 46—53 of this
Annugt Report and in the Notes to the Finandial Statements on pages 115-161
of thes Annual Report and in each case are incorporated by referenco into this
Directols Report

Directors’ statement as to disclosure of information to auditors
in accordance with Section 418{7) of the Companies Act 2006 the Directors
confirm m the case of each Director 1n office at the date the Drectors Report
s approved as hsted an pages 54-55 that

— so far as the Orector » aware, there ts no relevant audit mformation of which
the Company s audilors a1e unaware

- hesshe has taken all the steps that he/she ought to have taken 4. a Drector n
order 1o make himself or hersolf aware of any relevant audit informancn and 1o
establish that the Company's auditors are aware of that information

Financial viability statement

In accordance with provision € 2 2 of the Code the Directors confirm that they
have areasonable expectation that the Group will conbinue to operate and meet
its Labilities. as they fall due for the next 3 years A pernod of 3 years has been
chosen for the purpose of ths viabinty staterment 10 line with the Group s business
plan The Directors assessment has been made with reference to the Group s
current positon and prospects the Group s 3 year business plan the Groups

nsk appetite and the expected impact of a selected group of severe but plausible
downside scenarias

93

The bustness plan makes certain assumptions about the performance of the core
revenue streams and segments using existing product ines as well as
assumptions on take up of new product lines assumptions on appropriate levels
of investmernt to support expected performance known morganc actmaty, the
ahity to refinance debt as required and expected returns to shareholders

The plan1s stress tested using a selected groun of severe but plausible downside
scenarnios as deterrmined relevant by the Group Risk Cornmittee aver the full 3
year plan petiod Impacts an the performance of core revenue streams and
segments are modelled through businessinputs with appropriate mitigating
factaors also considered

The yimpact on the Group s ash-tlows, hquidity headroom and debt covenants
are detatled throughout the 3 year pened ineach scenare No scenano over the
3 year penod leads to a breach in Group covenants or an inahility to meet the
Group s obhgatiens thigugh insuthoent headroom Further, a réverse stress test
has been completed 1o evaluate the financal impacts requued to breach the
Group Risk Commattee s 115k appetite

FURTHER INFORMATION
Stress testing capabiltties are detailed i the Risk
Management oversight section on page 44

Going concem

The Group s business activities together with the factors hikely to atfect its future
development performance and position and its objectives and policies in
managing the finanaial nisks to whicht 1s exposed andats capital are set out nthe
strategic Report on pages 2-53 The Directors statemeant in relation to going
concern 1s set out in the Statement of Directors Responsibilities on page 99

Future developments

The Executive Managemernt team monitors future developmrent and market
trends affec ting the Group and its subsicharies on an ongaing basis Details of
these developments and trends and the potential imphications for the Group can
be found inthe "Market trends and ouwr response section of the Annual Report
(pages 12-15:

Auditors

Avesolution toreappont Ernst & Young LLP as the Company’s auditors wili be
proposed at the AGM

Strategic Report

The Strateqgi Report (pages 2-531 was approved by the Baard on 1 March 2012
and signed on e behalf

By Order of the Board

I Gl

Lisa Condron
Group Company Secretary
2 March 2018
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Statement of Directors’

The Dwrectors are responsible for preparing the Annual Report.
the Directors’ Remuneration Report and the financial statements
in accordance with applicable law and regulations

Cormpany law requires the Directors to prepate financial staterments for each
financial year The Directors have prepated the Group and Company financial
staterments in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards
1IFRSs1 as adopted by the Eutopean Uman and applicable law

Under company law the Duectors must not approve the hinancial statements
unless they are satisfied that they give a true and fan view, of the state of the
affars of the Growp and the Cormpany and of the profit or loss for that year

In preparing those Ainancual statements the Directors are required to

—select suitable accounting polictes n accordance with 1A% & Accounting Policies
Changes in Accounting Estirnates, and E110ts and then apply therm consistently

— present intorrmation ncluding accounting pohcies 1na manner that provides
televant rehable comparable and understandable informatinn

- make judyernents and estimates that are reasonable

provide addibional discloswres when compliance with the specthic Tegquirernents
I IFRS: as adopled by the Furopean Unonis msufficient o enable users to
understand the impact of particular transactions ather events and conditions
un the Group and the Compary s financial position and financial performance

- state whether the Group and the Company financial statements have been
prepared in accordanc e with IFRSS as adopted by the Ewropean Union subyect to
any matenal departures disclosed and explained in the financial statements and

- prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it
15 INappTopTate to presume that the Group and the Comparny will continue
1 business

The Buectars corhrm that they have comphied with the ahnve requirements,
in prepanng the financial statements

The Duectors dre tesponsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are
sufficient to show and explain the Group and the Company s transactions and
disclose with reasonable accuracy at any tme the financial poseion of the
Company and the Group and to enable them to ensure that the financal
statements and the Directors’ Remuneration Report comply with the Companes
Act 2006 uther applcable laws and regulations including the tequirements of the
Listing Rules and the Disclosure Guidance and Transparency Rules and as
regards the Group financial statements Artwle 4 of the 1AS Fequlation The
Duectors are also tesponsible for safequardinig the assets of the Carmpany and the
Group and for taking teasanable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud
and other rrequlantres

The Directors are responsible fur the mamtenance and mtegritg of the cotporate
anrd fian l nformation onthe Company s website

Leguslanoman the Hired Kingdon gocetmng the meparation and disserinanion of
fnancial staterents may differ from lequislatien in ather jutisds tions
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responsibilities

The Group s business actaanes logether with the factors ikely to affect 1ts future
developrnent, performance and position are set outin the Overview and St ategic
Report sechions of the Annual Repott onpages =53 In particular the current
economic conditions continue to pose a number of nisks and uncertantios for
the Group and these are set out in Pnincipal Risks and Uncerlamties on page 46

The Finanaial Risk Management objectives and polices of the Group and the
exposure of the Group to caprtal nisk cred nisk: market risk and hquidity nsk are
discussed on pages 49-50 The Group cantinues to meet Group and indmidual
entity capital requuerments and day-to day hgudity needs through the Group s
cashresources and avallahle credit facilities Committed term funding at 31
Decermber 2017 was 2,638 million which s cormimmtted until Getober 2019 or
beyond (2016 £1903 mulion descnbed further inthe Financial Review on
pages 36-4l

The Directors have reviewed the Group s furecasts and projections taking into
account reasonahly possible changes in trading performance which show that
the Group has sufhcient financial resources Onthe basis of this review and after
making due enguinies the Drectors have a reasonable expectation that the
Company and the Group have adequate resources 1o continue in operahonat
existence for the folesecable futwie Accondingty they continue to adopt Lhe
golng concern hasis i prepanng the Ainancial statements

Fachaf the Drectars whose names and functions are set out on pages 54-55
of this Annual Report confums that to the best of ther knowledge and belief

- the Group and the Company iinancial staternents which have been prepared
rraccordance wath IFRSs as adopted by the FU gve a tiue and (an wiew of the
assets habities financial position and profit or loss of the Company and the
Group taken as a whole

- the report of the Directors contamed inthe Annual Report mcludes a far review
of the developrnent and performance of the business and the position of the
Company and the Group taken as a whale together with a description of the
principal nisks and uncertainties that they face and

— they consider that the Annual Report and Accounts 2617 taken as awhole s
far balanced and understandable and provide the information necessary for
shareholders to assess the Grouprand the Lormpany s performance business
model and strategyy

By hder of the Boaid

D Gl

Lisa Condron
Group Cormpany Secietdary
? March 2nlg
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I‘nciependgwt Auditor’s Report to the members

of London Stock Exchange Group plc

Opinion

In aur opinion

- London Stock Exchange Group ple s (the 'Company  the ' Gloup') consolidated
financial statements and parent cornpany finanaial statements (the "financial
statements”) give a true and far view of the state of the Group s and of the
parent company s affars as at 31 December 2017 and of the Gioup s profit
for the year then ended

— the Group financial staternents have been properly prepdred in accordance
with international Finangial Reporting Standards (1f RS) as adopted by the
European Union {EU)

- the parent company inancial statements have been properly prepared in
accordance with IFRS as adopted by the £EU as apphed in accordance with
the provisions of the Companies Act 2006 and

— the financial statements have been prepared m accordance with the
requuernenits of the Companies Act 2006 and as regards the Group
financial statements Article 4 of the |AS Reguiation

We have audited the inanaal statements of London Stock Exchange Group plo
which complise

Group

Consohdated balance sheet a0 at
31 December 2017

Parept_companu .
Balance sheet gz at 31 Decamper 2005

Comsolidated income siatement for
the year then ended

Consulidated statement of
corrprenensive iNCo e for the

Jear then ended

Cash flow sratement for the year
then ended

Staterment of chanaer n equity for
the yeal then enced

Related Notes 1t 3512 the financial
statements mated nga summarny of
sgmficant acceunting policies

Zonsolidated cash flow staterment
for the uear then ended

Consohdated statemen of changes
N eauity for the year then endec
Relatec Notes 112 35 tu the financial
statements in.luding a summary of
sigrihicant accoanting pohioies

The finanoial reporting flamewark that has been applied in ther prepatation s

apphcable law and IFRS as adopted by the EU and as regards the parent company

financial statements, as applied in accordance with the provisions of the
Lompanes Act 2006

Basis for opinion

we ¢ onducted our duditin accordance with International Standards on Audiing
(UK (I5As (LKY) and applicable law Our responsibilities undet thase standards are
further described in the Auditor s Responsibiities for the Audit of the Financial

Staternents section of our report below We are ndependent of the Group and parent
company in accordance with the ethical regquirements that are relevant to our audit

of the financial staternents in the UK, including the Financial Reporting Counctl s
{FRC) Ethical Standard as applied 10 isted publir iInferest enbties: and we have
fulfilled owr other ethical responsiblities in accordance with these requirernents

We believe that the audet evidence we have obtained 15 sufhoent and appropriate

to provide a basis for our opinion

Use of our report
Thisreport 1s made solely to the Company s members as a body 1n accordance
with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Compames Act 2006 Our audit work has been

undertaken so that we rmght state to Lhe Company s members Lhose matters we
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are required to state to thern in an auditor s report and for no other purpose To the
fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume 1esponsibihty to
anyone other than the Company and the Company s members as a bady for our
audit work for this repott o for the opinions we have formed

Conclusions relating to principal risks, going concem and viability
statement

wie have nothing to report inrespect of the following information in the Annual
Report 1 relation to which the 15As (UK) requie us toreport to pou whether we
have anything matenal ro add or draw attention to

the disclosures in the Annual Report set out on pages 46 1o 57 that describe
the princmpal nisks and explain how they are bewng managed or mitigated

the directors confirmation set out on pages 44 and 98 10 the Annual Report
that they have carned out a robust assessment of the principal nisks facing
rhe entity meluding those thal wauld threaten s busmess model future
performance solvency or hquidity

- the dnectors statement set out on page 9910 the financial staternents about
whether they considered 1t appropriate to adopt the guing concern basts of
accounting in preparing them and ther dentthcation of any matenal
uncertamties 1o the entity's ability to continue to do so over a penod of at
least 12 months from the date of approval of the finannal statements

whether the drectors staternent inrelation Lo going concern required under the
Listing Rules 1n accordance with Listing Rule 9 8 6R13) 15 matenally inconsisten
with our knowledge obtained in the audtt,

- the directors explanation set out on page pages 44 and 98.n the Annual Report
as to how they have assessed the prospects of the entity over what penod they
have done se and why they consider that penod to be appropniate and theu
staternent as to whether they have a reasonalile expectanon that the entity wall
be able tu continue 1N operation and meet 1ts labihties as they fall due over the
penod of ther assessment including any related disclesures drawing attention
to any necessary quakfications or assumplions,

Overview of our audit approach

Key audit matters - R ck that goodw.ll and purchased ntangbre assets
maL Femparrec

- Risk of fraud in recocminior of revenue mn secondary captia
markets trading revertue shigie for Credrery arrangerments
and informatior services revenue accruals

- Risk that the acau s.ien of busmesses was accounted

farincar-ectly,

Risk that the tmpiementatn of the Gracle finance

systern _auld lead 1o esters in data integhiuy

accounting of finaneal reporany

Audit scope - we performed a7 audit of the compiete fimaroiz)
mtormation of 7 components, and audr procedures

o spectfic balanges tor 3 further 18 components

The comipanents where we perfarimed full and spec ho
a.dit pracedures accaunted for approximately 94 of
the Group s revenue pre-tax proht adjusted pre-tax proht
megsdre Jsed s ralculate matenabty ardtotal assets

Materiality — Overall Group materiahty1s L3C 0 mithan which
represents 5% of adjusted pre-tax preft from
cont.nu ne aperations calculated by including the
mpact of the amortisabicn of purchased mtangibie
assets but excludimg cther non-underiging items
ac disclosed in Note 7 of the inancial siatcments

Annual Report December 2017



Key audit matters

Governance Independent Auditor's Report

Key audit matters are those matters that i oun professional judgement were of most significance n our audrt of the financial staternents of the current penod and
include the most sigmificant assessed risks of matenal misstaternent twhether o nat due to fraudi that we identihed These matters included those wch had the
areatest effect en the overal! audit strategy the allocation of tesources i the audit and duecting the efforts of the engagement team These matters were addressed
nthe context of our audit of the hnancal statements as a whole and in our opimon therean and we do not provide a sepaiate opuion on these matters

Risk .-
Risk that goodwitl and purchased
intangible assets may be impared

Baience of Lz O bduon prior year
comporatiee « 3 3 lhon

Tnc Graap holds sigrmacant intanuible
=21z or L talance sheet includ ng
anudwl! customer -c.abitships
brands scftware icenser ang

el tual prape g

wo nave Jeterminea tris L he 2 ke
aLdir matter Jae t2 tne guantum
Athe nvar cicie 2555 a5 at 31
Seoemib o el tne malvement oF
sicnihe antudgerr art b managemant
nenesaisztior of theartangik 2
aeaets g ithe vk ofmes
e1tner due fo trIud L st

on araarial Dasis mandye et e
TeJred 1T FRrarm N Irpdirment
asseceent forgqosdw | oand
asse~= fo indicaters <hirrpa rment
mrespest of e intangiale assete
Where indiasars of i parment of
ctneTintangit @ assets are tdentibed
o ful tmomrment aase amert -
perfarmicd Tnese assessmeant”
nvslve signtacant marageient
Juzger ent m the apr wathien of
callatl moinadals 3707 asLumpions

kT 0 03M50Quence TNETe 1S a ureatel
rskouf nnestatementr thece
bal=nce  w1nercyfaug o error
mcadima the uah tne potennal
cvernide 7f Cortrols b Managermerd

Refer ic the Report of the Audpt
Jomimattee (Gage 980 Accounting
geliciesipage 1170 ana Notes 3
and 14 of the Froaneal siatements
thages 125 and 15« to 135

The ek bas netther novcasscrer
derreoseL e LTran year

__Our response to the risk

we conhrmed ous understand ng of the miparne® assessment
arnges and avaluated the gesign effesrueness of key rortools
conc udirg that & suberantive gadit approcach should be sduptec

Far 7 matena cash generating 1 7e G we exarurad the cashi-low
foten dcts whish sappott maragerent <1 p-rrent assessment 0o
syred cumpliance weth e requirerrent - of 1Az 38 apavrment of
Aseein We gsapssed e reascnzbleness of those frrecastz ard he
ooidence sLppott ng the under'uing 2ssamphions by Soripating b
Saard-appraved oudoetly conaider e pr o per radget & carazy
JOMMEan T g the experie thraes 12 reler S0t markst expeitdansre
and cors cenng r=. ket covelopments meladimg change n
R =

catespest of purchazed nangib @ asaety v te e Mang Jemert -
3 LES-M2 du 1o whethering cators ZHirng ~ment et at thz
b3 ar.e sheet date bucefererceto foot s speims t0 2ar b olzea 2t
ssete Examiples mougel caztormpr remont cnorates with o cmaohe
U mess inss ard tn— grrent ret s mads crantellectua property

We tetted 11 we ghted-auetage vest boagcal o wALD discturt rate
a.5 ced e eack of me 26Uz g well g« *he rnL-tenT growihrates
CTOR wath re erence o oar understarding of the bys e
Compants et ather SImUar JompLnres 3 Frodest tiarket
considarztior

The WAZL discount rates an LTGR app 1ed w "nncachmrea m ent
mede were cnticaliy arsessed oy EV valuahion speoialzts including
campatson Lo evonormc ang mdustg forecdst «wiere appropnate
We < nsidered evidence availaole (o suppe e the WACY J corint ratae
ard . TER Jsed and astersed consiziency w chandimgy fror oonae
areds ofthe gudit

Togetrer with FY wa,aatt e nediabsts we dssessed soeathe paty i
the deteramraton ~f e WAL Ssoount tates inclucirg the nish-tree
1g e equity betaand market e premieh almgowith gear ng and
Lost of Jobt We benchmiatkec the inputs agamst orsened s~ 1ates
Ir the market~ whete *ne Grous op crates

Wwo aleo pocformed sens *ivitL analyst o the cash fow forera toann
ke pute inclug ng WAZD disoount rates R ancoustomer
rerentl norates, 1o theamoarr et moagel foander, and tnemeoact
that e2e Toanly peos bre change too kel acsemptr we uld have o0
the overa! carru e valae o i7e Lo dwali and purchezed ntengifae
as ot a the balancs sneet date

wepert ) torzculat o e amc szt o of paistased
rtang bl assets a1 das.e sec that the am-rtis Sl b
Lestr apprapnictely apF 1ew W a - as-e ed the 1ot ungt2niess
Af thie rerna nng amornsat.on pent oy oG i anas ement -
forocants against -t data

We dls e ded 18 TLASCIEL e s S S e an At e Tt 1
Lalas —omt e Jrogp L pre el fatn vegter

=g

I add trom s she ab we s o ednre s wr serfarme bover - aralyn g
proed e ang Tatnm et tre se firyg v e bedon by o et the
robkot s statetnent are g from m vagenet s et feorgeals

oo e ]l el prrn ST et ke e
AT R AT o S TR VU TP R 1 B S K (RO
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Key observations communicated

_ to the Audit Committee

N mater a 1ssuec were ident hed when
executitg the audit procedures cver the Nk
that guedwill and pus masec (ntangtble assets
mMau e mpaned

We o onzuded that the WATC disonunt tae~
LTGR “uetorer 1eteniion rates and castk flow
core dnts Ul by manager-ontin the
MIPATIrENt 34525 N8l a'e wIth 13 reascnable
range ar at 21 Deterber 2017

o did 0 ot certf ang additerzl s tore that
wed diead toa evis ono® e e artisaty n

wa oo ude, ther ~he oty ravalae f qoodal
ana patsrased rtargule asters L materall

JTTect asat 31 Decerrher J0LF
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Independent Auditor’s Report to the members
of London Stock Exchange Group plc

Risk

Risgk of fraud in recognition

of revenue in secondary capital
markets trading, revenue share
for clearing arrangements,

and information services
revenue accruals

Batance of £6 & billion prior year
comparative £ 5 bithion

Compensanon Ned to the performance
of the entity mau create anrcentive
far management to mampulate resut”

We have deternuned this to be a key
aadit matter having 1dentified 3
revenue streams with heghtenad
risk of ricstatemen.

- Secondary captal markets revenue
for certain bustiess nresimvalves
multiple pricing strugtures based
on prodact tupes customer act vy
& 1d votumes This carmplexity lead:
<ora neightened nish that revenue
mayg not be recogritsed appropnately
ether as g result of fraud orerror

— {entracts relalhing to revende sharnng
in respect of cleanng arrangements
between the Group s centra
crunterpariy ICCPs) and third party
parficipants 1n scme tases nviive
complex calculations to determ ne
the appropriate leve' of tevenue i<
recognise within the Sroup
Information setvices revenue
arcruale (an TeguTe estimaton
furinstan: e based or phio” bilings
or prelirinary Lsage

As g CoNseguence there ts a greater
TWSR of misstatement ininesg
balances either by fraud ot error
including through the potential
overnde of controls by managemert

Refer to the Report of the Audit
Tomitiee (page vs) Accounting
polares ipage 1160 and Note -

of the Frnarnicial statemernts
ipages 125 to 1.7)

The 115k hos netther increasad «icr
decreased m the wurrent y2qar
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Key observations communicated
to the Audit Committee _ .
No material issues were 1dertified from the

sxecutizr of our audit procedures svel the n=k

Qur response to the risk

We confirmed sur urderstanding of the secondary capital markets
trading revenue share Jlear'ng atrangemerts and mformation
SETVICES TRVENUE ACiTdals processas Or the secondary capital of fraad inrecogmtien of Tevenue mserondary
matkets trading process we performed testrg of the cperating capital markets trading revenue share for

effect veness of key controls m 1 full scope compunent and clear.ng arrangements and infermration =evvices
canc Jyded that a sutsiantive audit appipach shuald be aaspted TEVETI e TCTUd.

rratnet compenents that are m <cape We lested the cperating
effectiveness of key cuntrelsinrevende share cleaning arangerent
process We adoplec a substantive audit approach in ralat on

tz the Informarion servic @5 revenue accrdals process

we consluced that the reven e recogn sed raated
ro serongdary capital markets trading revenue
share for cleasing arrangemenrts aiu informa*.on
SETVICES Yevenue af cruals for the year wrded

We  TsIgeras wrether the LTour s revende recogmnegn Lol s 1 Decarmber 2017 1= natenigl'u 2orreut
appropriate and maccorddnce with IFRS as adopted by the U

We performec testng on g sample baais Lo gaimn a<surance that the

se'ected contracts were accounted for naccordance with the ochicy

we performed cverdll analytical procedures and jourmal entry testing
i order o 1dentify, ard test the nisk of mi-statement ansng from
manadtement overnide of contrars

we perfonmed substantive and transactronal testing inclucing the
azsessment of debi halances and Lnusualitems ar 1 trends

We arse perfarimes cut-o0f testing (0 Jaimr dssarance tha* resenue
was recoamsed i the cotrecr renod e st ected *1ar sachions on
a sample bass befere and after the gea enc te test the
apprrepriateness af revenue reczgrtie

Secondary capital markets trading

wencreased aur standara ~ample size for transatticnal tes” ng by
atleast 16 times according to our stabistical samplirg metnodelogy
v respond 1o the nek of fraug we agreed a ranasm =election of
transas tions back to supporting audit evidence such asimvaes and
ragh recoipts Where appropnate we also recalou’atec the fee cnarged
and checked tack 1o the priaing pohcy anc etevant tanff cchedu e

we reconciled trading olatform data te the cereral ledger and tested
maten1al topside adjustments

we alse ased analytical teols toadent 1L outhersain gt ovolumes
of transacticnar data for *ocused follow-up test'ng Theanalyzis
mcluded comparning tne fee ger transactiom 12 valume motinnal
tradec and investigating ang particalarly mah varaes wrich were
cutl ers tc the svarall pupalatior

Revenue share for clearing arrangements

Wwe tested revenae shanng caloalations for all miatenal business line:
on a sample basts and checked for consistency with the under.uing
cortracts

We alsz used analytiza! tnols e the analuss o the relatac revenue
strearme Trvs e luded analysing moentn g rading volu nes and ther
correlation with monthly revenaes recagtnsed aru anomzhes
dentified were mvestigated

Information services revenue accruals

we selected a sample of reveriue accruals using a lawer 1esting
tre<hold when compared to our standard transaction festing
app-uacn For the sejected sample: we obtaned supparting
evidence inctud.ng customer input/censert for accraes ameunts

For revenue based on assets under managerment tAUM we tested the
calcu'ations or @ sample basis and checked back 12 the suppurting
agreements We also vaindated the AUM used . the calvulations to

an independent third party source

For 04 accruale we tested Pre appropnateness of Lsrg 73

infarmatien for purposes of the ycar erd accruals and performed
corraberative tecting

we performed full and soegihie scope aud't precedures over this nsk
ateain 8 romponents which covered 95 3% of the nek amourn
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Governance Independent Auditor’s Report

Risk_
Risk that the acquisiton

of businesses was accounted
for incorrectly

et assets acquired £325 midiion
The Groap underts ok o sigrificant
LU AT T the artent gear

- Memers [7c ang
—The vield buck and Tt Fixel
In" .me Indic et

The azgaired ertities were
crmiachcated nto the Croup s esults
st the date of acquisinion

We haoedetertmir ed thne te he a
key aacit matter due 1o te s.ze ot
“heacgaaition: and “he jadoement
wolvedir determimiginc far
alue “ftheaseer quured znd
liahilre” ass i ea

T

Thore e =rck ferce v

THEAETTSTT dted Gorting for
the asaasitsr.oar clud ng the
cIgmAazant wagerant iyt ivad
nihe cetermmenanion of coodwill
and purchasedirtangible acsets

- “heoomipleter azs anz acouracy of
Ly wsures relaing specihizaly
the transactionrs bat gl resoect
fthearmpact 2f new bu sihes: ne
3rre exstng disclosures and

- "he convarsion of the irancia
petforimance of the components
frorm Jmted S 00 Generaly
A epted ALciunting Frirope”
S CAAF 7 [F2% as adepr-
Fghe =

Eetor to the Reprat of tne Audnn
Jommittee ipage tal ACcouniing
polices ipage 115 arad Nete 30

of the Financiai Statements (pajes
L2t s

Tz anew nsh tnoye-r Lr aud
prrocen anc assessment of <ey
el guadit fo
Tt menrstan”
= 5T D

= a e 1irg

Qurresponse to therisk o -

we confirmed our undestanag Sf e buaress azae T protess
ardacncssec tne aesigr effer hvene-L of key conitrols comcluding
thcl g substantive audit aoprasch shoulc B2 adopted

We lnspestew 118 ~na ugnec wale and surcnzse agreertent: SAVA
and aareed the prchdse s ansiderasian e the SARA and
the wash paymen:s °7 the bark statements

We dssessed tne aocourting of the buzimezs comb natine 1or
corrhde et JFRS 3 Busmess Zomomations

Wwe tested the bnokva ues o zcgaired esset - 2 d lizbul L e 3isumes
perinm ing sabstantw o 2ad' procegares on materel balar -2~ a- al
the acgu se or date

Manggement engagel a twrd party Freata perfarme thentar gible
assets fair value tal Wa wne gnd astcaiated purchase pnee
allzcatior We d-sesyed tae e petency ot tne firm and toaetner
witk Ey rachmical ang valaat oo soecaliss exaruned and challengzd
Koy INDUTS Inte fne MTans Die assets farslue Jal oalathiors and
purctase 0 zeaelation: malua ng oie Jesomad-l 12s value

th =i s N Taes 4zeg
asetul e f hein 2ng Dle 23Tets

we assecaes the

Toaether weh T Latadtt o soeoalist

apCropnater Chthe arn ante e 0gmse T respedt 10 2003w |
ang purshased ntar pble zsset: <Lt as crands anc catomer

telasiorsn ps berohmananc 2 s mular market pattrpan s
[

Togethsrw 2V va'aation ard w3y speaal sis we asizssel wh-tner
the changes srthe Js1as aw th at ocoarred oart of the Tax Cute
ang Jobs Act = 2017 nac an mpact ot theva uat o of arourt:
reczgn sed as aracwill and purigsed intangih @ asset: as at tne
acgu siniondate

Wo asscssed the apprepnateness b tas-relare 3 oormpoeneats fon
the acqusinions spedtfica g over th= Jpemng balan = heet and
nuarchase proce a'locatior:

We tested "he presantal s nard fiec’usutel in the mancial s-atemeni,

We petfarmed ful scope aad - procedares vthe 2 matenal
ar Lt ors s mpletecorn the gex whick covered 1004 < f mhe -pnk
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Key observations communicated

to the Audit Committee

Ny matema ssues were dentified frori the
exe ution ot nur audt procedures aver the
Tsk tna* *he acqu sitian of basinesseswas
auzcunted for 1ncorrecty

We conouded 1nas fae acoountimg and tae
related distiosares ot the acgu anen of Mergent
Inz arc The vield Bosk ond Ot Fived Incorme
Indr. es ate mateialdy correct
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Independent Auditor’s Report to the members
of London Stock Exchange Group plc

Risk -
Risk that the implementation of
the Oracle finance system could
lead to errors in data integrity,
accounting or financial reporting

We have deterruned th.s tc be d vay
aud't matter as the implarmentatinr
of @ new finance systenl courd lead to
2rrorsin data mtegrity & cuunung ar
fianzial reporimg

The generar ledger for LOH Group
wexcluding LCH S Acvwat migrated

1 Oracie .nJanuary 2017 whalst the
genera ledger for LSEG JS Hnldoe In:
was mgrated e May, 2217

Refer to the Report of the Audit
Conmuatiee thage 68

The 1isk haz neither mcreased ror
decregsed im the turrent yean

Qur response to the risk o .
we ronfiemed aur understanding of the implementation of the
Oracle Anance systern incouding cenfirmeng our unaerstanding
of the relevant procasses pre arnd post Jracle implementation

We assessed the fallowing areas ot the rmgration proect

Governance - ver Acanan of approsals at cifferent <tages ot he
profect and meet ng ninute reviews

Data conversian - evaluation of data migraticn and conversion
procedures andwenficat un 3 approvals for data mugration
Migration pracedures — inspection of documentation for Jats
miaration procedutes evaluaton of rmigratior plan and
exerutlon agatnst the plan

System interface — mspection ot decurrentation around the
process flows and urderstandirg the data fiows inta Jracle and
— ACgess roview — Mspection of decumentation confirming

intial lead of users and tesning ¢7 1T general cortvals cvar

oer ddrﬂ nstration nreresses

W perfarmed audit procedures over t1e Mmig-ated data mihe
Aew ~Lstem ta the data e the presicus general ledgers including

— Regenoigtien of FY2017 open ng balances 1o the addted
FY2016 &imeana balances

— Sub-tantive testng of the data whichwas rmigrated it t1e new
generat ledger including recancilation of transactinne hstings frore
the new systerr with those from the previous generaledgers and

~ Testing of manua! adjustrments reated 1o rmgration of the data
Inciuding these related t daphcatien of data and s manua rever-al

We mspedted the chart of o counte ancvandated the magping
from the legacy ledyers tc Jrace os well as Tiom Oracle to the
Group consehgabon teal

we performed audit procedures 'n ¢ full svape companents that
implemented the Cracie system dunng 2017

Key observations communicated
to the Audit Committee

s respect of
certan 1T general contrels, these exceptiors have
peen mitigated by testing relevant compensating
centrols which were crncinded as effective and by
performang additienal substantive audit procedures
Ay artesult we cancluded that we are able to plage
reliance on1the Oracle finange systerr

Qun testing dentified exceptinn

we Loncluaed that there were ne mater al errors,
i the financial staterents as a resudt of he
splementatton of the Oracie “rance sy-tem

i respect of (CH Group exclud rc LEH S &

and LSEG US Haldoo Ine

In the prior year our auditor s report included a key audit matter wnrelation to the nsk that the divestrment of the Russell Investment Management business was
accounted for incotrectly This matter s not relevant i the cutrent year as the dwestment occurred in 2016
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An overview of the scope of our audit

Tailoring the scope

O assessment of audit 1isk, our evaluation of matenality and our dllocation

of performance matenality deterrmine aur audit scope for each entity wathen

the Group laken together these enable us to form an opumon on the Group
financial statements We take inte account the size nisk profle the orgamsation
of the Group and effectiveness of Group-wide tontrols ¢hanges in the business
environmen: and ather factors such as recent Internal Audit findings when
assessing the level of work to be performed at each entity

[n assessing Lhe Tisk of matenal misstatement ta the Group financial statements
and tomake sure we had adequate guantitative coverage of sigmificant accounts
Inthe financial statements of the 88 reporting components of the Group we
selected 25 components covenng entities headguartered within the Umted
Kingdom United States of Amenca Italy France and Sn tarnka, which represent
the prinopal business urits withn the Group

Of the 25 components selected we perfaimed an audit of the complete financial
information of 7 components (full <. ope components; which were selected hased
o thert size o nisk characteristics For the remaining 1e components (speciiic
scape componentst we perfarmed audit procedures on specihc ace ounts watn
each component that we « onsidered had the potential for the greatest impact an
the significant accounts in the inancial statements, either because of e size of
these acrounts or then nsk profile

Governance Independent Auditor’s Report

The temaimng 63 components together represent less than B4 of the Group s
revenuie pre tax profil adjusted pre tax profit and total assets For these
components we performed other procedures including analytical review and
testing of consobdation journals and intercompany eliminations totespond o
any potenbial nsks of matenal misstatement ta the Group finanaial statements,

The charts below llustiate the coverage obtained from the work performed
by our audit teams

Pre-tax profit=*
3%

27%

®rul
Spectfic
Out of Scape

T0%

Adjusted pre-tax profit**

Scope Pracedures performﬂ by _ Number of components
Full Framar teat _ _ B =
“ull Lor ninert “eams_ . . v
Sperific Frarmiary, ted _ R 17
specific Componert earm B o 1
Total 25

Detalls of the 4 components whic b wete audited by component teams are set
out below
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The components where we performed audit procedures accounted for 997

120106 99 ol the Croup s tevenue 5775 {2016 381 1 of the tioup s pre-tas probf
94 412016 99 of the Group s adiusted pre-tax proftt measine wsed re calt ulate

mstenality and 1000 12016 100 1 of the Group s total assets

For the curtent year the full scope compaonents conthibuted 934 2016 92

of the Group stevenue 70 12016 92 1 of the Nroups pre tax profit "2 12016
Al nf the Group s adjusted pro tas profit measure used to caloulate matenabty
and 100 12016 894y of the Group s tolal assets

The specific scop components contiibuted G v 2006 7 aabthi- uroup s Teweniie
SP12010 O of the Groups prestax oht 2226 T o of the Groug &
adisted pre-tax proftimeasure ased to caleulate matenabiy and less than 3
2016 1T s of the Group s total assets The dudid scope nf these components rmany
not have mcluded testing of all sigrificant accounts of the coruponents bt will
have contabuted tethe coverage of sighicant accounts tested frr the Grougs
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I;depe;dgnt ALEitor’s Report totﬁe_ rhembérs

of London Stock Exchange Group plc

Changes from the prior year

In the prior year we identified 7 full scope components As aresult of the
drvestment of the Russell Investment Management business in the pnor year
we separately scoped in LSEG US Holdeo Ine (Index) and LSEG US Holdeo Inc
{Investment Managementt as 2 full scepe components Further LCH Clearnet
Group Lirmited was scoped in as 1 full scope component tn the prior year, in
the current year we separated this into 2 full scope components LCH Limited
which was audited by the EY pnimary team and LCHS A which was jointly
audited by £¥ Pans and BDC Pans

All other full scope components remained consistent Specific scope components
have heen re-assessed as the contrnibunion of these smaller parts of the business
to the Group financial statements vanes each yedl

Involvement with component teams

In establishung our overall approach to the Group audit we deterrmined the type
of work that needed to be undertaken at each of the components by us as the
prmary audi engagermnent team, of by component auditors fromother By globai
network hrms of other fitms operating under our nstruction

Of the 7 full scope components audit prog edures were performed on 4 of
these directly by the pnimary audit team For the 3 full scope and 1 specific
scope componenits whete the work was pertormed by component auditors we
determuned the appropnate level of involvermnent to enable us to determine that
sufficient audit evidence had heen obtained as a basts for ow opimon on the
Group as a whole

The Group audit team continued to follow a prograrnime of planned wisits that has
been designed to make sute that the Sermot Statutory Auditor visits the principal
locations of the Group

During the current year s audit cycle wisits were undertaken by the Senior
statutory Auditor and/or ether serier members of the prirmary audit team Lo
the following locations

Number

Component _Location Scope of visits
Lenden Stock Exchange
Group Hrold‘ngs Ital_L.rS CA Milan ltaly Full 2
LSEG Us Hodoo Ine New Yok

. _ united States ot Amrenca  Full .
R Fans France ful 2
Millenmum Information
Technalogies 1IPTratel
Limited Colombo 5 Larka Specific .

These visits involved discussing the audit appraach with the component team and
anyssues ansing from ther work, as well as meeting with local management 1n
addition we patticipated i plarmng and closing meetings and reviewed selected
key audit working papers The prumary audit tearm interacted regularly with the
component teams where appropnate duning vaneds stages of the audit and wete
responsible for the scope and direchion of the audit process This, together with the
additional procedures performed at Group level, gave us appropniate evidence for
our optruen on the Group financial statements

Our application of materiality

We apply the cancept of matenality in planning and perforrmng the audit n
evaluating the effect of identified rmisstatements on the audit and in forming
our audit opinion

106

Materiahty

The magritude of an omission or rrusstaternent that indwedually or in the
aggregate could reasonably be expected to influence the economuic decisions of
the users of the financial staternents Matenality provides a hasis for determuning
the nature and extent of our audit procedires

We determined overall matenalty for the Group tohe £30 0 million (2016 £23 3
rmlhon} whichis 54412016 5% of adjusted pre-tax profit from continuing
operations calculated by including the impact of the amortisation of purchased
intangible assets but excluding other non-underlying ttems as disclosed in Note 7
of the inancal staterments

we determined overgll materatity for the parent company to be £5 6 mdlion
12016 £4 8 milony whichis based on the allocated performance matenality for
purposes of the Group audt The allocated performance matenalty 13 based on
the relative scale and nisk of the parent corpany to the Greup as @ whole and ow
assessment of the risk of misstaternent at the parent company

we consider the basis of our matenality to be one of the important considerations
for shareholders of the Carmpany in assessing the financtat performance of the
Group Its inked to the key earmings measures discussed when the Group
presents the financial results In addition to nen-underlying items the Group also
excludes armortisation of purchased intangibles to present adjusted opetating
profit this armount 15 not excluded from ow matenahty calculaton

Qur overall matenahty threshoid provided a basis for determiming the natue
trring and extent of sk assessment procedures identifying and assessing the
sk of matenal musstaterment and determimng the nature timing and extent of
further audit procedures Gur evaluation of matenahty requrres professional
judgernent and necessarily takes into account quahtative as well as quanntative
considet ations mnphcit in the definition

Starting basis  — £564 million

- Profit before tax frorm continuing operations

w
Adjustments - £33 million
— Non-underiying items mostly costs related to the
acquisition of Mergent Inc and The Yigld Book and Citi
Fixed Income Indices, and the ongoing restructuring
of LCH and mtegration of the acquired businesses
h 4
Adjusted — £597 miullwn
basis
~ Adjusted profit before tax from continuing operanors, but
ncluding amortisation of purchased intangible assets
v
Materiality - Matenahty of £30 mullion (5% of matenality basis)

During the course of our audit, we reassessed mtal rmatenahty and made
adjustrmients based an the final finanicial performance of the Group
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Performance matenakity

The apphication of matenality ut the indwidual account or balance level It s set
at an amount fo educe to an appropriately fow level the probability that the
aggregate of uncortected and undetected russtalements exceeas materiality

On the basis of ot nisk assessments tagether with our assessment of the Groups
overall control environment our judgement was that petformance materiaht
was 507 12016 50" of our overall mateniality namely €15 0 milhon (2016 €117
milliont We have set performance matenality of this petcentage rwhich s the
lowest i the 1ange) due to rrsstaternents which were identthed in the ponor year
audit Our approach 1s designed to have a reasonatle probability of ensunng that
the total of uncorrocted and undetected misstatements does not exceed ow
overall matenahty of £300 mallion (2016 £23 3 mulliwn for the Group fimannal
statements as a whole

Audit work at component tocations for the purpose of abtaiming audit coverage over
sigrificant financial staternent ace ounts 15 undertaken based on a percentage

of total performance matenality The performance matenality set for each
component 15 based on the relative scale and nisk of the component to the Group
as awhole and o assessment of the nsk of rrisslaterment at that component

Inthe cutrent year the performand e rmatenality allocated to compaonents was
as follows

Allocated performance

Compgnent _ _ _ - _ materiahty
Lomazn Stoc< Excnanae Groug CEmT
Loncer stnl=< Excnanues pic FA
O e T
LCH = A g
L ATEET Sh P A=nge stoug Holdngs Ltaly S_p A rom

LSEC Us Hoidoe Inc
FTsE Imternat onal Limited

All speCfc sCope components

Reporting threshold
An amourii below wiie b identihed misstaternents are considered (o be
clearly trnaal

we agreed with the Audit Comrmittee that we report to them all uncorrecled andit
differences inexcess of ©10 rmfhon 12016 €05 milliont as well as differences below
that threshold that 1 our view warranted reporting on gualitatve grounds 1his s
less than the theshold of 5 of overall mateniahty that we would lypcally use

We e aluate any uncernrected misstatements against both the gquantitative
mieasures of matenaliy discussed above andain ight of nther 1elevant qualitatre
consideratinns fu WITIINY CALF OPUon

Other information

The other infarmation comprises the formation incturded mthe Annual Report
s01 out on pdges 2 to U9 ancluding the strategie Report including Hiahlights
Thawrmans staternent Chief Executives statement what we do - oun business
mode] Nverview of Group activiies Market trends and ouresponse Strategy in
action Segrnental teview DU wader tesponsibility Financial 1eview Fisk
managerient cversight and Principal tiske and une ertainties) Governand e
nfonmation and discloswess ancluding Board of Durectons Corprrate Gove riance
complipng with Lhe provisions of the Code Report of the Normnation Comimittee
Report of the Aucit Corrmmttes Bepert of 1isk Commuttee Directors Rermineration
Feport Directars Report and Staternent of Diectors respoansibilifies: other than
the finanmal staternents and o audior s repan theteon The duector are
wesponsibil foa the othier mforrmation
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Governance Independent Auditor’s Report

Qur opimen on the financial staterments does not cover the other mformation and
except ta the extent othersise exphicitly stated inthis report we do nol express
any forrm of assurance cont lusion thereon

In connection with our audit of the inancial staterments our responsibility 15
toread the gther infurmation and i dong so consider whether the other
information 1s matenally nconsistent with the financial staterments ar our
knowledge obtaned n the audit or cthietwise appears to he matenally risstated
If we dentify siich matenal inconsistencies or apparent matenial rmsstaternents
we are tequired to deterrmne whether there 15 a matenial misstaterment i the
financial staternents ot a matenal misstaternent of the cther information

It hased on the work we have performed we conctude that there s a matenal
misstaternent of the other nformation we are required to report that fact

we have nothing to report in thisregard

Inthis context we also have nothing to report in tegard to oun responsibility to
specihe ally address the tollowing tems 11 the other information and to report as
uncarrected matenal rmsstarements of the other information where we conclude
that those tierms meet the following conditions

— Fan balanced and understandable set wut on page 99 - the statement guwen
by the drectors that they consider the Annual Report and iinancal staterments
taken as a whale s far halanced and understandable and prevides the
informmation necessary for sharehotders te assess the Group s performance
business model and strategy 15 matenaliy inconsistent with cur knowledge
obtained in the audit o

- Audit Committee 1eporting set out on pages 65 to 68 the section describing
the work of the Audit Comrmittee does not appropriately address matters
communicated by us to the Andit Committee o1

— Nirectars statement of compliance with the UK Cot porate Gover nance £ade set
aut on pages 56 62 to 63 and 95 — the parts of the dreclors statement which
are teguned under the Listing Rules 1elating to the (ompany s complhance with
the Uk Corporate Governance Code contaunng prosisions spectfied for review by
the auditor 1 arcardance with Listing Rule 9 8 10R12) de nel properly disclose a
departure frorm a relevant provision of the UK Corporate Governance Code

Opinions on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006
Inour opiman the part of the Drectors Remunetation Repor{ to be auchted
has been properly prepared in accordance with the Companes Act 2006

Inour opiman based on the work undertaken n the course of the audid

- the mfarmation giver i the Strateguc Report and the Directors Report for
the financial year fon which the financiadl statements are prepared 15 consistent
wIth the inanaial staterments and

- the Strategic Report and the Drrectors Report have hednprepared in accordance
with applic able legal tequirernnients

Matters on which we are required to report by exception

Inthe hght of the knowledge and arderstanding of the Group and the parent
company and its ermaronment ofitamed inthe course of the audit we have not
identified miaterial rrisstaternents withe Strateqie Report or the Duectors Repart

W Diave nothing to reportm resr et of the fotlos g matters mirelaton t
alnchthe Comparnies Act Z00fequires Lo toreport togon1fanour spinion

ardeguate doounting records have nl heen kept by the parent cormipany o
returnes adequate for oo audit have not heen recered from branahies not sited
by us m
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Endeygwdén?Auator’s Report to the members

of London Stock Exchange Group plc

~ the parent cormnpany financial statements and the part of the Duectors
Rermuneration Report to be audited are not inagreement with the accounting
records and returns or

~ certain disclosures of dirertors 1emuneration spectfied by law are not made or

- we have not recerved all the information and explanations we require for our audt

Responsihilities of directors

As explained more fuliy n the Statement of Drectors Responsibilities set out
on page 99 the duectors are responsible for the preparation of the financial
staternents and for being satistied that they give a true and fau view and for
such internal contral as the duectors deterrmine 15 necessary to enable the
preparation of financial statemients that are free frorn matenal misstaternent
whether due to fraud o etror

In prepartng the financial statements the diwectors are responsble for assessing
the Group and parent company s ability 1o continue as 2 going concern
disclosing as apphcable matters related to gaing concern and using the going
cancern basis of accounting unless the directors either intend to iquidate the
Group of the parent company o to cease opetdiions of have no reahsne
alternatve but to do so

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectves are 1o abtain reasonable assurance about whether the inancal
statements as a whole are free from matenial rmisstaternent whether due to fraud
ot error and tossue an auditor s teport that includes our apinion Reasonable
dssurance 1s a high level of assurance but 1s not @ guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with 1545 {UK] will always detect a matenal
misstaterment whent exists Misstaterments can anse from fraud or error and are
considered materah f indwidually or in the aggregate they could reasonably be
expected Lo nfluence the economic decisions of users taken on the basts of these
financial staternents

Explanation as to what extent the audit was considered capable

of detecting irregularities, including fraud

The objectives of our audit inrespect 1ofraud are todentify and assess the nsks of
materal misstaternent of the Ainancial staterments due to fraud to obtain suthcent
appropnate audit evidence regarding the assessed nisks of matenal misstatement
due to fraud thiough desigring and implementing appropriate tTespon<es and to
respond appropriately to fiaud or suspected fraud dentified dunng the audit
Howevel the primary responsibility for the prevention and detection of fraud rests
with both those charged with governance of the entity and managament

Qur approach was as follows

- we obtained an understanding of the legal and regulatary framewaorks that are
applicable to the Group hdve a direct impact on the preparation of the financial
statements We deterrmined that the most saigmificant are the UK Companies Act
2006 UK Corpotate Governance Code 2016, The Financiat Conduct Authontys
(FCA) Listing Rules ather relevant FCA rules and regulations and tax legislation
{governed hy HM Revenue and Customns!

— we understood how the Group complies with these legal and regulatory
frameworks by making enguiries of semor management including the Group
General Counsel the Chief Risk Officer, the Head of Compliance and the Group
Head of Internal Audit we alsoteviewed sigmificant correspondence betweern
the Group and requlatary bodies, reviewed minutes of the Board Risk
Commmttee and Executive Committee and gamed an understanding of the
Group s approach to governance dernonstiated by the Board's appraval of the
Group s governance framework and the Board's review of the Group < nsk
management framework and Internal control processes
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— We assessed the susceptibility of the Group s financial statements to matenal
musstaternent including how fraud might occur by considering the cantrols
that the Group has establshed to address risks wdentified by the Group o
that otherwise seek 10 prevent deter or detect fraud we also considered
performance and incentive plan targets and ther potential toanfluence
management 1o manage earmngs or nfluence the perceptions of investors

- Based on this understanding, we designed our audit procedures todentify
non-comphance with such laws and reguiations identified in the paragraphs
above Our procedures involved inquines of semor Management legal counsel
the comphanca officer and internal audit review of significant correspondence
with regulatory bodies and rinutes of meetings of the Board and Board
committees and focused testing as refered to in the Key Audit Matters
section above

- The Group operates in the exchange and CCP industnes which are requlated
environments As such the Semor Statutory Auditor reviewed the expenence
and expertise of the engagement team to ensure that the team had the
appropriate competence and capabiiities whichincluded the use of expents
where approprate

- The FCA has regulatosy oversight over London Stock Exchange ple and certain
other entities within the Group The Bank of England (BOE! supervises {LCPs in the
UK and therefore regulates LCH Limmited In addition local regulatory bodies n
france and ltaiy regulate other subsidiaries of the Group ncluding LEH S A whnch
15 1equlated by LAutonte de Contrale Prudentiel et de Resolution (ACPR; and US
Cormmodity Futures Tracing Commmssicn (CFTC) and Borsa tallana S p A Lassa
Di Compensazicne e Garan2ia S p A (CC&G and Monte Titoh S p A which are all
regulated by Cormmmussione Nazionale per |a Societa e la Borsa and Banca d'litalia

A further descnption of our tesponsibilities for the audit of the financial
statements s located on the FRC s website at https./fiwww.fre.org.uk/
auditorsresponsibilities This description forms part of our auditor s repaort

Other matters we are required to address

- Wewere appuinted by the Cornpanyg on 12 June 2014 to audit the finanaiat
staternents for the 9 months penod ended 31 December 2014 and subsequent
financal periods The penod of total unintenupted engagerment ncluding
previous renewals and reappointments (s 4 years covening the § months
period ended 31 December 7014 to the year ended 31 Decermber 2017

The non-audit services prolibited by the FRC's Ethical Standard were not
provided to the Group of the parent company and we rermain independent
of the Group and the parent company m conducting the audn,

The audit oprman 1 consistent will the additronal report 16 the Audit Camrmittee

Emt A Vw Lt

David Canning-Jones (Senior Statutory Auditor)

for and on behalf of Lrnst & Young LLP Statutory Auditor
London

2 March 2018

1 The mamletiane s aud e qimg gt the Comedaestoeb B banege vaonpgh we bty e the re o hihty
Al ies Pt B werb A At fg e et e e net e o ecn feationned e s matt
anel e admgly the sritor A= spr o resoansbtu booar chatey ol iy b soeean 4
the it el statern=mt anec thag wore gl pees=nte gnth o-bet
- vepsdanieston betirnbed Kangrlarmeas worminep s e paraticn and e st b iieeneal
at-ere nts nau difter Bowalegqislatores whey e it e
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Group financial statements Consolidated income statement

Consolidated income statement

Year ended 31 December 2017 2017 _ 3 2016
Underlying  Non-underlying Total Underlying  Neon-underlysng Total
£m £m im £m £m £m
Notes Re-presented’ Re-presented’ Re-presented’

Continuing operations _ _

Revenue 4 1,768 Z 1,768 y el - 1518

Net treasury income through CCP business 2 162 - 162 12~ - e

Otherincome ‘ 25 - ) it - ..U

Total income I 1955 - 1,955 167 - lecs

oo of sales £ (215) - _215) 1 - R L

Gross profit R 1740 - 1,740 "ag. - L 4a2

Expenses

Operating experses befars depreciaticr amrart atnn

and ~rarrment c7 (816) (&0} (856) VAOE a2 LT

Erofit onodhizpozal st ausirescer h - 7 7 - -

chare o' 1oss after tax of ass3natcs o la 9 - 9) [ 5

Earnings before interest, tax, d@p;ecistidn, T T T S

amortisation and impairment 915 (33} 882 T 1220 rfh

Deprac at or amaitisation and Mpairmen: =7 (103) 153) (256) -EE [Pl RCEY

Operating profit/(ioss) o 7 812__ T (Tsﬁi 626 6af 1255 4e?

Finznce ncome T __8 - 8 T T _7

Flamce cxperae (70} - (o) I - LT

Nt Fngace experse © 7 7? - @ A - S

Profit/(less) before tax from contim;ing-operatmns 750 (186) 564 ) It Had

Taxation - ) (168) 190 22 o el 35 12

Profit/(loss) for the year from continuing T T o

operations o 582 4 586 At CoT 2ES

Discontinued operations S S T S

. tafler mas farthe wear rem Jis ntiened

JpETE o W2 - 25 @ s ser K

Profit/(loss) for the year T  sgz {21) 561 £ 308 151

Equity holders

Frofithlnes =or e year from contmgem ) cperatsns 513 17 530 “3E 1213 el

Lesswrohit fon e gear fram discortinued speretions e - {25 @ _ _ oo arh

Profitiloes o e yed attrbutalls 2 equita hold=r 513 ® 505 el L 15

Non-controlling interests S -

Erivhoedws o1 he year atinbutatlz o ne-conttolling

mterest  frorr cont vonrg op eratiane 69 iy 56 47 i &0

Froft foa the gear artnbuatatle 12 nee-comrradimg

mterest- frarm Jscantnued cperatons . - - - o . - 1

Frofith csstcor thie gear attribintatle t- nen coptralling T ST T o

nterest: 69 a3y 56 e T 4o
] © sz @ 561 S 308 193

Earmings per share attributable to equity holders

bask garmirags per share 11 146.4p R

Tdluted catningl ner share : 143 0p 4, L

AJ ustec DA ealn Lk e SNaE 11 148.7p T

Aductec d'utss edrunge | =t TNaN 1 145.3p [

Earmings pet share for continuing operations

attributable to equity holders

Gazic earmings pel shdi- N 153.6p 62 Ep

Diated rarrin g per ab dte _1 150.1p £25p

Adutted 20 e e Thare 1 148 7p AT

Ad utter d el ~arnag [T NAT 1 145.3p 10 2

Dwidend per share 1n respect of the financial year-

| FITNEI N R TS PR TSI IS T oI DA  aly I R 1 . 14.4p "

Dy e e it e @cd e b gy L 372p 7 oy

Dot bt e 0 b [ O S T IR TR TR A I LT

e s b bl e L T T TR P S R | R U B IS B TN TT IR
KT UL I P PO | TR BT

The notes on pages 115 1o 161 form an integral part of these consolidated hnancal staterments,
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Consolidated staterment of comprehensive income

Year ended 31 December 2017

Profit for the financial year

Other comprehensive income/{loss).

Items that will not be subsequently reclassified to profit or loss
Lefined benefit pensicn scheme rermeasuremnent gainioss

Income tax relaling to these tems

items that may be subsequer;tlg reclassified to pr(;ﬁ:t or loss
Net investment hadges
Avallatle for sale inanoial assets
Net gains from changes in fair value
— Net gains reclassifiea (o the consohdated incoma statemen: on G sposa
£ xrhange lossifgain on translaton of farelgn aperations
Inccme tax relating to these stems

Dthe_r cDr]‘_lPrell_er_\sivs.: gams net t_)f tax_ B
Total comprehensive income for the financial year

Attributable to nani-comrolliong witerests
Atmbgtabletc equity hG\dEI‘o“ . B _
Total comprehensive income for the financial year

The notes an pages 115 to 161 form anantegral part of these consohdated iinanaal staternents
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2017 2018
Notes im £m
561 MR
1 93 Sl

G (25} 15
68 &3
3 A

1 7

@ -

(64) 492
B _2? "

. (66) L2e

2 381

563 B4

81 Gl

482 L7F,

563 574
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Balance sheets

Group financial statements Balance sheets

At 31 December 2017 Group Company
2017 2016 2017 2016
Notes i fm £€m &m £im
Assets |
Non-current assets
Froperty plant and equipment 13 129 108 - -
ITtaraale ansets A 4,590 L1274 - -
Investment ir @ -.0¢ ates 15 5 3 3 b
Investrrent In subsidiartu comparts< 1 - 6.098 ST
Cefarter tax gssets 17 38 b - -
Der s itiee f narcial mstrur et iz &4 - 4 -
Avd lak e for sale azsets 12 86 2 - -
Retrement ber ofit ascet 1o 56 : -
ther nen-urrent recetvables Hes 55 53 _ 37 1e
o o ’ T 4983 4l 6142 5%S
Current assets
lPent s - 3 - -
Trade gnz ooner recenables 1621 688 37 _ 610 [
- Phnancial asset: 673,354 L4 833 - -
T Foaskand castoequnalertaan=ttr e 6L443 53153 _ -
TP e3rag businoss 2ssels .G 734,797 Tk 350 -
Zurrent ax 126 J4 - -
A3l able farsa e 2oomts 3 19 Ty - -
Caskane ca hiegunaaleni: e _ L3 e 4 1
- o 271 FO T 61 s
Azsetshedfosde ) o T - - - -
Total assets ] i 741980 cni7uf 5,756 e
Liabilities
Current liabilites
Trade arl other paaables B 598 [SEN 275 Juk
LOF Cleaning busiress hahilities G 734,981 S5 47 - -
CATrert tax 70 ‘1 - -
Borrow nee - 522 €16 490 Lh
Prowidg e - } o _ hf_ _ 1 L 1 - -
S ' ] o _T38ATZ el _ 765
Non-current hahilities
Borrngnge P 1,431 L7 1,431 R
Demivative inanas instumer t- 15 29 .G 20 14
Leferred tax 1akilitie - 502 05 -
Ret remeant bepeht shhgatnr le 36 7t - -
Jwher pan-cyreent labihities [ 49 65 - -
FTovicrs 20 9 1 - _
C o o 205 el 1,460 560
Total liabilitws i 738,228 w5 1nZ 2,225 Loae
Net assets 3,752 el 4,531 4nlh
Equity
Capital and reserves attributable to the Company's equity holders
i any nare canitzl o7 24, ce 24 D4
share srerum o7 964 GE 964 FL|
Retalt 20 aarimgs 419 JEL 1724 00
OERT receryne 1,820 L8l 1,819 181
Total shareholders' funds 3,227 115 4,531 ST
Non-controlling interests 525 R -
Total equity - 3752 rle 4,531 Lol

The Compaany recorded prafit for the year of L30millinn (2016 £5 31 rolhorn
The notes on pages 113 to 161 form anintegral part of these consolidated imancial statemenits

The fingnaal statermients on pages 109 Lo 161 were dppraved bij the Bnard on L Adre b 2010 and sigied onats behalf by

Yras L

David warren

Inter ¢ bnef Executive 3fheer and © et binancial Ofhees Dhdnt Site
London Stock | xehiange Groslp ple

Reqiatered number 7 0O T0G
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Cash flow statements

Year ended 31 December 2017 Graup_ Company
2017 2016 2017 2016

_ - _ _ Notes _ Em £m £m £
Cash flow from operating activities
Cash genergred from mneraniens Y 852 6.8 17 165
Interest recened ] & 13 .3
Interest paid {66) L] 49) 158
Corparation tax pad (130) 13180 - -
withholging tax paid . . B iy = -
Net cash inflow/{outflow) from operating activities_ _ } ~ 659 241 (19) A1
Cash flow from investing activities
Purchase of property niant and equpmen® 13 (&7) 2 - -
Purchase of intangible assets 14 (143) 112 - -
Proceeds from sale of husiness 7 14 594 - -
Cash disposed as patt of the sale of busresses (5) 11851 -
Costs mrelaticn to sale ot a disposal graap - 12 - -
Acquisition of husinesses 30 (T4 ‘T - -
Cashinflow from acguisinon of Businesse - 3C 4 - -
Investrnent in subuidiaries 1r - - (719) 1471
Investment N das,0c1ates 1% 2 5 - 181
Froceeds from the dispesal of avalable for sale fimancial assets 7 - - -
Investment in government bonds 5 G - -
Onvidends recewved - 1 - =37
Net cash (outfiow)/inflow from investing activities B (821) 223 (719} ]
Cash flow from financing activities
Cridends patd tu sharencldeis 12 (159) 1130i {159} 130
Dwidends pard ts non-contrelhing interests (19) 151 -
Purchase ot treasury shares relating to shawo buuback {201) - {201} -
Rederaption of preferred secunties 157 - - -
Acquisition of non-controlling inierests 11y - -
Proceeds from investment by non-controllne rlerest 12 20 - -
Arrangement fee pard {3) e 3 o
Laans to subsidiaty companies - - (26) AN
Loans from subsidiaru companies - - 25 33¢
Purchase of owr <hares by the empioyer heneht trust (26) 161 - ~
Proreeds from exercise of enpluyee share cptions 4 - 2 ~
Frozeeds fromissue of shdres - 1 - 1
Funds afted tc the emplogee benefir *1ast - - {1) -
Proceeds from the 1ssue of bonds 885 - 885 ~
Eond repayment - 12500 - 1250
Addmenai drawdowns frem bank credit facihities 242 317 215 it
Repauments Mmade towards bank ¢ redit faciities (87) £14 4] 1105
Payments to sharehoalders on exercise of options - 13l - -
Repayments of finance lease . X = 3 - -
Net cash inflow/{outflow) from financing activities B 378 BB 735 R
Increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 216 21 ) -
Cash and cash equivalents at beginring of year 1,151 1176 1 !
Exchange gainan ¢ash and cash eguivalents _ 15 8¢ _ 6 -
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 1,382 115% & !
Cash and cash equwvalents dt end ot year from continuing operati.ng e 1,381 1151 4 1
Cashi and cast equrvalents cassihed as hetd for sale 3 . 1 - o~ -
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year ) ) 1,382 1151 4 1
Cfmetineait e aebile fot o ale Rcwici g wet trasednencec ek dw Pheercuet et i ottt froet g atedn 8 il dearces e Mg ae ot kol an aieg aog arlabil= [a ok e ol

Tl now presente T waklnn e Bies g e gt b oo Thes o1 e bantd asiie pieabeots wt e s el Ve ar s an sult e

ceandves e i tor the purchias of wer Bate bep e =stnpdoges sttt i i the pas g @ Dy nhon e scome L e nkna gt amoseneng

WrtIn ALt T AT e e T T e P Dt Dm0 Tt e ettt A bepagt ong ol Bnne s el teeti e peevne Jteshoo e ane

The notes on pages 115 to 161 form an integral part of these consohdated financial staternents

Group cash flow does not Include ¢ash and cash equivalents held by the Group s Pest Trade operations on behalf of its cleaning members for use in s operation

[N

b

as tnanager of the clearing and guarantee system These balances represent margins and default funds held for counterparties for short pentads in connection

with this operation
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Group financial staterments Statements of changes in equity

Statements of changes in equity

Year ended 31 December 2017 Attributable to equity holders
Total
attnibutable Non-
Ordinary Share Retawned Other to equity controlling
share capital premuum earmings Teserves holders mnterests Total equity
Group _ . R _ R Nates £€m £m _ Em £fm_ _  im £m _ fm
31 Decerrber 2015 ch L] 255 1505 2 Fa4h a5 1766
Frofit far the year - 12 - 42 . 143
Jther comprenenares a5 Lz for tne year - N ERls 324 57 3
l=sue of -har-« 27 - 1 - i - .
Firal divider 3r2lating i the per Sdenaed
i1 December 2015 I - - ok - 1% - 1551
Interdiadend merating 0 the Yedl e00ed
31 Derember 2016 . - - 142 - T - T
D adend payments (0 NG contn ing Dieres S - - — 19, 119
Net contminationsar relate mte e e ontrelling titerest - - 1r .5
Jmplayse shdte o EMe expen e - - ot " - 20
Tar mreld” onte etooleges share schemic £xpenses - — [ I3 — 4
burchace of non contrzlhag titerest withir acguered s abwaoar, - - s - 100 - 10
[ =p<sal »f busingss - - - : 1 134 3T
31 Decarber 201% 4 S0l 291 Lesl 3.0n Rl ol
- - 505 - 505 56 561
Cthet oot prenenst £ noames 12535 forthe gear - - 49 (72) {23) 25 2
legeofshares 2. - 3 - - 3 - 3
=gt Juadend e atr g 2 the gear endec
31 Dersmtber 20 F 1 - - (109) - (109) - (109)
et~ diecend relatmq ta the gear enzed
<1 Oecomber 22, i - - 50 - (50 - (50)
slvidena paLmenic 1o non contrc ng nrerests - - - - - (19) (19
Emp.yee share scReme eApan 5 - - 11 - 11 - 11
Tar relatir 10 emply ee shar- <_Memeg expensec - - 12 - 12 - 12
Purease o non-ontrling mterest within acqu red cubadiacu - - {21) - {21) {89) (110)
2archase bu mor cantrelling interest - - (36) - {36) bdy 8
Share bugback - - {201) - {201) - (201)
D soaa SP o Ness 12 - - - 30 30 - 30
31 December 2017 24 964 419 1,820 3,227 525 3,752
oo T b o dr np Al vplbr baglaame bene b bugba koo IR EUTRITN et cate e Al ke Toap Lo =g oo b sl tea e e
M Tomph o R oo bt ot ol tgth [N B LR AT a1 hian Ny Tovalbe o0 Aoty ot pemablo 4t e Bgh s bpr o 3 ab e e 3 0 o r e g Il
oot gl ade bt ok prgamrre e
The notes an pages 115 to 161 form an integral pant of these consohdated fimanoial staterments
Shares held in the Emploges Benefit Trust to settle exercises on employee share awards wele 944 49512016 376 4564
Fmployee share scheme expenses nicude costs related Lo the 1ssue and purchase of own shares for emplogee share scheme< of S0 million 12016 L9 milhony
subscriptions net of sundry costs receved on the vesting of employee share schemes of £2 million (2016 £2 mullone and eguity settled share scheme espenses
for the year of £ 38 rmilhon 2006 £27 rrdhon)
Purchase of non-controlling interest i the year 1olates to the acguisiion of shatenoldings from non controlhng equity holders incentain of the Grovgrs subsichanes
natably the LOH Growg, Mertato der Titoh di stato S p & and Gatelak 51l
Purchase by non contioling niterest relates tethe purchase of shareholdings by noni-controlling equnty holders in Group subsidianes in the gear principally the Eite
Sp A Groupand LOAS A 1T CH Group s French regulated operating subsichary
Other resen gs comprse the following
= Merger reserve of £1 305 rmilhon 2016 €1 305 million: a 1eserve ansing onconsolidanon when the Compani ssued shares as part of the cotsederation to acquie
subadiany companies
Capitaliedemption reserve ot 314 millon 12016 514 rilharn areser < et gy an g result of a court apposed capital redu tion
Reverse arquisition teserve af £75120 milheon (2006 Cis12omlhont aresetve ansing on consohdation as atesult of the capdal tedur tion  heme
Foreign exc hange translation eeserve of €75 millien (2016 L2080 millonn a reserve roflecting the imnpact of Foreigr cnnmeng g «hanges onthe translation of
foerelgn npeanoe
Hedgmyieserve of SiA0 milhani 216 §67 nullung ateserve iepresenting the cemalative forr vdlue aeljustinent recogirsed 1o s pect ol et e stimsnt arid
cash flow hedges undertaken n s cordanc e with hedge accounting prnciples
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Statements c;‘_changes N equity

Year ended 31 December 2017

Company
31 Decernber 20115

Frofit for the year

I=sue cf shaves

Final dwadend relating to the year ended 31 Decernher 204~
Interim dvidend selating to the yzar ended 31 Decenrber 201€
Employer share scneme €xpenses

31 December 21116

Profit for the year

l=s.ue of shares

Frma, dividend relating tc tne ucar ended 31 Derember 2ULE
interim dundend relating te the year ended 31 December #0./
Emplayee share scheme expenses

Share buyback!

31 December 2017

Notes _

okl

I Duregther woth
te Lol

Topatity s e 1
Teen BUI 10 b fythe o
Snpdep rrang fare oghoe ko wpan i

Wiy Lt L e

et

oo

Far romllnen Soaec begrla b gorrne o ha g !

alal ot

The notes on pages 115 to 161 form an integral part of these Anancial staterments

Attributable to equity holders

Qther reserves

Total

Capital attributable

Ordinary Share Retamned vedemption Merger to equity

share capital premum earmings Teserve Teserve holders

im £m im __ £€m £m fm

b 560 1503 7 514 3ns L3496

- - 53, - - 551

- 1 - - i

_ — e - - -]l

_ - 1421 - 147

18 - 18

2 x1 woiz s 13 asie

- - 36 - - 36

- 3 - - - 3

- - (109) - - (109

- - {50) - - (50)

- - 36 - - 36

- - (201) - - (201)

2% %64 vize | st 1,305 4,531
ey i wwt Lo cteste itk band uboe g nmig braefoe Rl e caae shae N
Lo Hy AT atalin & 1 shate Toagb e proainr wentcd s nallee, Te g g Bbn |

Employee shate scheme expenses of the Company include movernent 1 the fan value of loan balances with the Employee Beneftt Trust of T(1 milion 12016 449
rllion) costs relating to the wssue of own shares for emplogee share schemes of 23 midion 12016 D1 mahon) subscniptions 1ecewed on the vesting of employee
share schermes of €2 milion 12016 €1 mithon) and equuty-settled share scheme expenses for the year of £38 mulion (2016 £27 rrdlon

The merger reserve of £1 305 mullion (2016 £1 305 milhont 1s a potentially distiibutable reserve anging on consolidation when the Company issued shares as part of

the consideration to acquire subsidary companies

The caputal redemption reserve of €514 rillion 2016 €514 ridlioni s & non-distnbutdble reserve set up as a result of a court approved capital reduction
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Group financial statements Notes to the financiatl statements

Notes to the financial statements

1. Basis of preparation and accounting policies

The Group s consolidated and the Compdany s inanaial statements are preparexd
maccardance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS and [FRS
Inter pretations Commuttee (1 RICHinterpretations endorsed by the Lutopean
Union (EUl and with those parts of the Cormpanies Act 2006 apphcabie to
COMmpanmes repot ing under IFRS

The principal accounting policies apphed in the preparation of these finanaal
staterments are set out helow These polinies have been consistently applied to
all the perods presented, unless otherwise stated

The hinancial staterments are prepared under the fustancal cost convention as
modihed by the revaluation of assets and habilities held at fan value and on the
hasis of the Group s accounting policies

The Group uses a columnar format for the presentation of its consolidated income
staterment This enables the Group to aid the reader s understanding of its results
by presenting profit for the year before any non-underlying terns Non
underlying rterns include amartisation of purchased intangible assets and other
INCOMe oF expenses not considered to drive the operating results of the Group
This s the profit measure used tercalculate adjusted eairungs per share Profit
befare non-underlying items 1s reconciled to proht before taxaton on the face

of the Income statement

The Group consolidated income statement includes an additional performanc e
reasure for the year ended 31 Decermber 2017 Earnmgs before interest tax
depreciation and arnortisation (LRI DA s included on the face of the income
staterment to further assist users in understanding the finannat performan e

of the Graup The results for the year ended 31 December 2016 have been
1e-presented accordingly There s no umpdact on the previously reported profit for
the year as a result of this change Addihionally the Group consohdated financial
statements have changed its reporting from 1 decimal place to whole numbers

Consolidation

The consolidated financial staterments cormprise Lhe financial staterments of the
Company and its subsichary compames with all inter cormpany balances and
Lransactions elimimated together with the Group's attnbutable share of the results
of associates The tesults of subsidiary companies sold or acqured inthe penod
are included i the income statement up to o from the date that control passes
Lontrol s gt hieved when the Group s exposed a1 has nghls tovariable returns
from its involvernent with the investee and has the abality to affect those returns
through s powet over the investeo

As permitted by Section 408 of the Companies Act 20106 the Company s ncume
staterment has not been ncluded in these hnancial statements

The acquisttion of subsidiany companies 1s accounted for using the acquision
method The cost of the acquisttion 1 measured at the aggregate of the far
values at the date of exchange of assets qiven habilihes incuned or assumed
and equily nstruments 1ssued by the Group nexchange for control of the
acquiree Upon completion of the Group s fan value exercise comparatives are
tesised up 1o 12 ronths after the acquisition date for the final far value
adjustments Further details are provided in Note 30 Adjustrments to fairvatues
include those made to bring accounmng polces into ine wath those of the Group

The Group applies ¢ policy of teating fransac hons with non-controling mterests
through the economic enfity model Transactions with non-continling nterests
are recngnised 1y eguity Whete Lhe non-controliing mterest has an opflon o
rhspose of ther holding to the Group then the armounts potentially due ares
ecogmised at then fain valie at the balance sheel date

& cisposal group gualifies as a discontinig d operatinmif st is a component of an
entity that enher has beern disposed of o s dassified as held for sale and

A represents @ separate major e of busingss of Geoaraphical diea of
OPETALOTY

boospart of aswigle oo archnared planto dispose of & separate major ine of
husiiess ur ge ngraphic area of operdtiis o

o s subsiriary acguimed eeclusieeny with a ew tutesale
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hscontinued operations are excluded from the results of continuing operations
and are presented as a single amount as proht or knss after tax from discontinued
operationsin the income statemert Cormparatives are also re-presented to
reclassify disposed businesses of held far sale businesses which meet the critena
for discontinued operations

Investments 0 subsidiary compames shares loans and other contnbutions are
recognised at cost These are reviewed for wnpanment when everts indicate the
rarying amount mauy not be recoverable and are accounted for in the Company’'s
financial statements at cost less accumulated impar ment losses

The Companty 15 a public company inegipatated and dormaled 1in England
and Wales The address of its registered office 1 10 Paternaster Square
londen EC4k /LS

Recent accounting developments
The following amendrments were endarsed by the LU dunng the year and have
been adopted in these inancial statements

- amendment to 145 7 Staternent of cash flows on changes in habihlies ansing
from hinancing actmties

- Amendmient te 1AS 12 Incorme taxes on recognition of deferied lax assets for
unrealised losses

The adoption af these standards did not have @ matenalmpart onthe resuits
uf the Group however additional disclosure in relation to cash flows ansing from
Anancing actinnes 15 now provded in Mote 75

The following standards and intet pretations were 1ssued by the 1ASE and IFRIC
but have not been adopted 2ither bac ause they wete not endorsed by the FU at

31 December 2017 o they are not yet mandatory and the Group has chosen not
tocarly adopt The Group plans to adopt these standards and interpretations when
they become effective The impact on the Group s finanaial staterments of the
future standards amendments and imter pretarions 1s still under review and where
appropniate a descnption of the impact of certain standards anid amendments 1s
provided below

International accounting standards and interpretations_ Effective date
Amenarrent to PR 2 Snzre-tazed payment on. ats Acating
dand measurerrent of share-nz.2d paument transdu bt -

1laruarg 2ne
Amendment 12 1FRS 4 . sutance contracts teqdrdog the
irpierieriatior of JFFS S Finanoal cstrament: . aruary T LIE
Amenaments 10 1A AL Trarsfers of srvestment Proverty taruaty 00z
IFRL 22 Foreign Cutren.y Trdn-astions and Ad.anr e

Zon=sideratien 2 Janaatu SUle

[FRS G Fanasemslhmstrumeots ~nogsaf =tnmand
ropasutement and anendmerts rogardim. geneta

hecge azzcunting CJanuare 2018

IFR I& A[:\,fejjugfraw. Tunlte ttoeath fustomers
IFRS 1¢

[FRIC >

3 January 201x

L eases . January "uls

L ertarty over onZome Tax Treat men; . Januaru 201+

IFRS 15 Revenue from confracts with customars intradis es new accounting
pnmiciples for tevenue recongmtion for all fypes of sales of gonds of senvices 111
effortive for the year ending 31 Decomber 2015 and a5 a result the Groug will
adopt IFRS 1510 both the intenim and annual 2016 financual staterments 1FRS 15
pnvides a simgle pmnciples-based 5 step rmodel to be apphied to all sales
Lontracts based unthe transfer of contiol of Goads and servi es to customers
and replaces the separate models for goods seryices and Constructiinn corracts
currently included e LAS 11 Constructionconttacts and 1A% 16 Reveniue

Based orethe G s assessment the ke y dreas of judgerrient expertod nnamtial

adoption of IFRS 15 are i relation to the tinng of resenue recognibion for services
prnaided The Group continues 1o assess the mipact the new standard widl have on
the Groupss fature finanoally repeated positiun and perforrmance

IFRS 9 Futanoal mstruments 15 etfective tor the year ending 31 December 2008
arud will sirmplify the <lasatheation of firanoal assels for meastnoment parmoses
Thermplerrentation of [k 9wl not hawe a signtheant mipact on the resudts of
thi Group



IFRS 16 Leases 15 effecti for the year ending 31 Decernber 2019 and will requure
all leases to be recogised on the balance sheet Currently TAS 17 Leases only
requires leases categorised as inance leases to be recogrised on the balance
sheet with leases cateqorised as operating leases notrecogmsed In broad terms
the impact will be to recognise a lease hability and rorresponding asset for the
operating Jease foMMIMENTs set put 10 Note 31

Accounting policies

Income Statement

Revenue

Revenue 1s measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable
and represents amounts recewable for goods and services provided 1n the noimal
course of business net of discounts, value added tax and other sales related taxes

Revenues recogmsed in the perad when the sevvice or supply 1s provided The
sources of revenue are

a  Mantenance contracts membership and other fees —revenue 15 recogmsed
on a straight line basis over the pernod to which the fee relates

b Admussion fees —revenue s recogmised at the tume of adrmssion to trading

¢ Cleanng fee ncorme and rebates together wath uther fee income and niet
settlernent fees are recognised an g Uansacthion by transaction basis or in
cases where there is a hixed annual fee, monthly i arrears in accordance
with the Group s fee scales

d  Royalhes —revenue is recognised at the date at which they are earned or
rmeasurable with certanty

e AT products —whers there 13 no synificarit service abhaation the revemnue 1s
recogmsed upon delivery and acceptance of the suftware or hardware by the
customer inother crcumstances revenue 1s1ecogrsed on provision of
contracted services

f ITsolutons  where software s <0ld requinng signihcant modification
tntegration or custarmisation the canstderatian s allocated between the
ditferent elements on a faw value basis Revenue s recogmised using &
percentage of completion method The stage of completion 1s deterrmuned by
reference 1o the costs incurred to dale as a proportion of the total estimated
costs o1 the services performed 10 date as a percentage of total services to be
performed

g Software and Licence fees —1evenue 15 recagnised when the performanc e
under the contract has occurred and the reveriue has been earried and

f Other - all sther revenue 15 recogmised 1in the month i which the service 15
provided The Borsa Italiana Gioup defers some of the income recewved from
cashhrating and FTSE MIB futures trading and cleanng Thas deferra! results in
revenues being Tecognised at the average price of transactions forecast for the
full year, as pricing levels teduce during the year when incremental volurme
targets are actieved

Net treasury income

Income recogmsed thiough the CCP cleaning bustness includes net lteasury
income earned on margin and default funds held as part of the nisk management
process, and 1s shown separately from the Group revenues Net treasury 1ncome 1s
the result of interest earned on cash assets lodged with the cleanng house less
nterest pad to the members on ther mtial margn and default fund
connbutions Net hreasury income 1s shown separately on the face of the income
staternent to distimguish this income stream from reveriues ansing from the
Gioup s ather activilies and prowdes the reader with a graater understaridmg of
the operating actwvities of the Group Where negative interest rates apply the
Group rerogises interest paid on cash assets as a nef freasury expense and
Interest recelved on clearnng rember s margin as net treasury income

Cost of sales

Cost of sales comprises data and licence fees, data feed costs expenses incured
nTespect of revenue share anangements and costs incurred in the MillennurnI T
business that are directly attributable to the construction and delwery of
customers geods o1 services and any other costs inked and diwectly ncurred to
generate revenues and provide services Lo customers,

116

Revenue share expenses presented within cost of sales elate to anrangements
with customers where the revenue share payment 15 not lwmited to the amount
of revenues recen able from the speaific customer

Non-underlying items

Items of mcome and expense that are matenal by size andsor nature and are
not considered to be incuried in the normal course of business are classified as
non underlying items on the face of the income statement withwn thew relevant
category The separate reporting of these tems together with amorhisaton of
purchased meangthle assets tielps give an mdicaton of the Group s sustamable
performance Non-underlying items are disclosed in Note 7

Pension costs

The Group opelates defined beneht and defined contnbution pension schemes
For the defined benefit schemes the service cost represenning benehts accruing
to employees 1sincluded as an operating expense The interest cost and expected
return on plan assetsas calculated by appluing the discount rate to the net defined
beneht hablity o asset at the start of each annual reporting penod Actuanal
gams and Ipsses ansing fiom expenence adjustments, changes in actuanal
assurnptions o differences between actual and expected returns on assets are
recagrised at each peniad end net of tax i the staternent of camprehensie
ncome The net asset or habinty recognised on the halance sheet comprises the
difference between the present value of pension abligations and the far vafue of
scherme assets For defined contribution schemes the expense 1s charged te the
ncome statement as incurred

Share-based compensation

The Group operates a number of equity settled share-hased compensation plans
for employees The charge to the income statement 15 determined by the fair
value of the options granted or shares awarded at the date of gtant and recognised
over the relevant vesting penod

Foreign currencies

The consolidated financial statements are presented i Sterhing which 15 the
Cormpany's presentation and functional curiency Foregn currency transactions
are converted nto the functional currency using therate ruling at the date of the
tiansaction Foregn exchange gains o losses resulting from the settiement of
such transactions and from the translation at year-end rates of monetary assets
and habihties denominated in forewgn currencies are recognised in the income
statement Tianslation dhfferences on non-monetary wems such as equities
held at fa value through profit or loss are repotted as part of ther fan vaiue
gain ot loss Exceptions 10 this are whete the non-manetary items form part

of the net investment in a foreign cpetation o1 ate desianated as hedges of a

net vestment or as cash flow hedges such exchange differences areimmally
recognised mequity

The testlts and financial position of all Graup entittes that have g functional
currenicy different from the presentation currency are converted intothe
presentation currency as follows

a  asseis andhabhbies including goodwill purchassd intangible assets and fau
value adjustments are converted at the closing balance sheet tate

b wicome and expenses are translated and recorded in the income statement
at the rate prevaiing at the date of the transaction and

¢ allresulting exchange differences are recognised as a separate cormpanent
of equity

On consolidation exchange differences ansing from the translation of the net
investrment n foreign operations and of borrowing and other currency
instrurmnents designated as hedges of such investrnents, are taken to shareholders
equity When a foreign operanon is parfially disposed of o sold exchange
differences that were recorded n equity are recognised in the income statement
as part of thegain ot loss on sale

Finance income and expense

Finance income and expense comprise intetest earned on cash deposited with
financial counterparties and interest paid on borrowings whichieflect the agreed
market based or contractual rate for sach transaction under taken during the
financial penod and calculated using the effective interest rate method
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Group financial statements Notes to the financial statements

In canditions where negatve interest rates apply the Group recngnises interest
pad on cash deposits as an expense and mterest recetved on lablibies as 1ncome

Recurning fees and charges levied on committed bank facilinies, the cash
management transactions and Lhe payment services provided by the Group's
banks are charged to the income statemernt as accrued Credit facihity
anangement fees are capitalised and then amortised back to the income
staternent aver the term of the facility subject to projected utiisation Fees and
charges are included within other finance coslts

Faun value gains and losses on imancual instruments include the maoverment in the
matket valuations of dernative instruments held as far value hedges

Balance Sheet

Property, plant and equipment

Pigperty plant and equipment are included in the linanoial staternents at cost
less accumulated depreciation and any provision for impaument

Land 15 nat depreciated Freehold buildings fixed plant and plant and equipment
are depreciated toresiduat value on a straight ine basis over the eshimated useful
acanomic hees of the assets which are as follows

a  Freehold builldings = 33 to S0 years
b bxed plant - 310 26 years and

¢ Plant and equiprnent - 3to 15 years

Leasehold properties and improverments are included al cost and depreciated ro
residuat value vver the shorter of the penind of the lease or the usefid econormie life
of the asset

Investment in assaciates

An associdle 1s a company over which the Group has significant mfluence
significant intluence & the power ta participate in the hnancial and operating policy
decisions of the company but1s not control not jont contial over thase policies

The Group s nvestments i associates are accnunted for using the equity method

The Company accounts for its investments 10 assocldtes at cost less any
impairments recogmsed through the income statement

Leases

Leases i which a sigmficant portion of the nisks and rewards of ownershnp are
retained by the lessor are classihied as operating leases Payments made under
operating leases are charged to the incorme statement on a sbaight line basts
Lease incentives are spread over the term of the lease

The Group leases certan plant and equipment and ik ences where the Group has
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownetship These are classthed as inance
leases Finance leases are capitahsed at the lease s commericement at the lower
of the fau value of the leased property and the present value of the rmimumum
lease payments,

Lach lease payment 15 apportioned between the finance ¢ harge and the labihity
50 a5 10 a0 fieve a consLant Intarest rate on the inance balanre outstanding Plant
and equipment ac quued under iinance leases s deprog iated over the sharter of
ther useful ife of Lthe asset and the lease term

Intangible assets

foodw il s imnially measored at cost being the excess of the aggiegate nf the
Lonsideranon tansferted and the amount recognised for non controling
mtetests and any previous miterest held aver the netidentifiable assets acqured
andt labilities assumed [f the fan value of the net assets atquired = excess of
the agaregate consideration transferred the Group re-assesses whiethen it has
contectly dentihed all of the: ansets acquied and all of the labbities a<sume d and
10 1ews the procedures used to measure the amounts 1o be recoqiised at the
acquiatinn date 1 theteassessment shill resulls i an excees of the fam value of
net asscts g guied ovet the aggiegate consideration fransferred then the gamer,
wecagnied inprolit or s
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On the acquisition of 4 business fan values are attributed to the assets and
labilities arquired These matjinclude brand names Lustomer and supplier
relationships software licences and intellectual property all of which are recorded
as intangible assets and held at cost less accumulated amortisation These assets
are amorhised on a straight hne basis over thew useful econormc ives winch are as
foliows

a  Customer and suppher relahonships - 2 1o 25 years (matenal assets are
amottised over a ife oxceeding 15 years)

b Brand names— 10 to £5years {matenal assets are amortised over a ife of
25 years) and

¢ Software icences and intellectual property - 2 to 25 years (the majonty of
matenal assets are amortised over alife not exceeding 5 years

The useful oo onormc Twes are based on management s hest estimdtes such as
attrition 1ates on customer relationships praduct upgrade cycles for software and
technology assets markel participant perspective for brands and pace of change
of requlation far business

Third party software costs fur the development and implementation of systerms
which enhance the setvices provided by the Group are capitalised and arnortised
over ther estimated useful economic Ives of 3 to S years

Internal product development expenditure 1s capntalised 1f the costs can be
rehahly measured the product or processis techmeally and commercially
feasihle futwe economic benehits are probable and the Group has sufficient
respurces to complete the development and to use ot sell the asset The assets are
recorded dt cost ncluding labour, deectly attnibutable costs and any third party
expenses and amottised over their useful economic lves of 310 7 yeats

Intangible assets ae assessed for any indicators of impawrment at each balance
sheet date where indi ators of impairment for a particular intangible asset are
wentthed a fullimpairment assessment 1 performed with any dirminubion n valug
recognised In the come statement For assets with an indefintte useful hfe a full
Imparment assessment 1s performed annually When performing anyg umparment
assessment 1 addition 1o considening matters particular to the relevant Group
business atea managernent evaluates the overall value of the asset from the
perspective of a market participant Accordingly any reduction mvalue recorded
represents the Group s view of the rearket fair value of the intangible asset

Current and non-current classification

Current assets include assets held primarily for ttading purpases cash and cash
equnalents and assets expected to be realised within 1 year from the reporting
date o intended tor trade ot consurmption and realised i1 the course of the
Group s operating cycle All other assets ate classified as non-cunent assets

Current habilhies include labilities held primanily for trading purposes habilities
expected to be settled i the cowrse of the Group: s operating cycle and those
liabihines due within 1 gear from the reporting date Al other habilities are
tlassihied as non-current labuities

Current and deferred taxation

The currentincome tax charge s calculated on the basis of the tax laws enacted
or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date inthe countnes where the
Company and s subsidianes operate and generdte tlaxable tneome

Full provision s made wsng the labiily method for termporary differonces
ansang belween the tax bases of assets and labities and then cartying ameoeunts
i the financial staterments Deferred tasation s determined wsing tax rates that
are substantively enacted at the balance shoet date and are evpected 10 apply
when the acset s realised or hability settled Deferted Lax assets are i ognited Lo
the e tent 1t 15 probable that theg will be recoverable against future ta-able profits

Fianciai assets and llabilihies

Financial assets and liabihities (non-CCP businesses)

The Group dlassifies its financial assets i the following categories at faw value
thiough pyehit or boss asailable for sale on lans and recervables The «<lassification
nf the Grouprs finanal assets depends onthe purpose forwhich the finaneal
assfty were acpred Managernent doetenmnes the classificatinn obaits ingnaal
assets at imtial e Ut]WHf)h
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J Brmimmaal assete at far vatue theaugh paft e bess

Financial assets at faw value through profit ar loss include financial assets held for
Tguidity purposes that are Imbally recogmsed at fan value and any subsequent
changes i fawr value ave recogrised directly Inthe income staternent These
assets are inancial instrurments not designated as hedges

b Availlable fur =ale inancyal assets

Investrments [other than term deposits and interests w jomt vertures associates
and subsidiary cormparmes) are designated as avalable for sale and ate recorded
an trade date at far value plus fransaction costs with subseguent changes in far
value recogmsed in equity Cumulative fan value gans or losses onan asset are
recycied through the mcome staterment when the asset 15 derecognised Assets
such as shares 10 clearng and payment transmission operations and long-term
eguityinvestments that do not qualfy as associates or joint ventures are usually
classified as avalable for <ale

¢ Loans andrecevables

Loans and recevables are non-dervative financial dassets with fixed o
detesrmnable payments that are not quoted i an artive rmarker and comprse
trade and other recetvables and cash and cash equivalents They are includedn
current assets except for those with maturittes greater than 12 months after the
balance sheet date which are classified as non current assets

Financial assets are derecognised whern the night ta receve cash-flows from the
assets has expued or has been transterred, and the Group has transterred
substantially all of the nisks and 1ewards of ownership

d tmnancal babilite,

Financial habilities are classified at imtial tecogmition as etither financial nabiihey
at faw value through profi ar loss or inanoal hatilities at amortised cost Financial
liabilities at faur value thiough profit and loss include CCP financiat labilities (see
below) and ather non current habiibies Financial iabilibies at amorised cost
nclude trade and other payables borrowings and provisions

Subseguent o nimal recognition financial hablines at amortised cost are measwed
using the effective mterest tate method with gains and losses recogised in hnance
ncorne and expense respectively Financial habiihes are derecognised when the
obhgation under the habthty s discharged cancelled or expues

Financial assets and liabilities of the central counterparty (CCP) and
clearing businesses

The Group has adopled the settlerment date as the reference date for recognising
financial assets and habiiities 1in the CCP businesses

o Dernative Or equity Dadmg assels and hatahitie.

These transactions ate imitially recorded at far value and are subseguently
marked to market every day with the movernent recogrised 1 the income
statement Since the asset and hability posttons of the COF @rematched the
samie amount s Tecorded for both the assets and habiitties and na net far value
gans or losses are recognised inthe income statement

o Repulrhase transactions epes) raging 2545ets and hablinee

These balances represent repurehiase transactions (fepos novated by clearing
members to the Group s cleanng and guarantee service They represent the value
of transactions already settled spot and not yet settled at term These hansactions
are all mihally secogrised af fan value and are sither revalued through profit or loss
at fawr value o are subsequently measired at armortised cost depending on the
terms and conditions set out the Rulehaook of the COP business

« Othertecewables iom and payables (o cleanmg members and default funds
These comprise accounts recetvable and payable derwving from the trading
actviiies of clearing members They rmatnly represent amounts to be rec ewed or
paid iniglaton to nitial and vanahon margin calls option premiums secunties as
collateral and default fund contributions and are imtially recorded at fair value
They are generally settled on the next day and accordingly are not discounted
back to current value
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4 2ther imaneia avse te At tan L aloe

These represent bond secunties inwhich the CCPs imvest to hold the sigrificant
asset balances securely These are imbally rerogrised at tan value and are
subsequently marked to market Some bonds are treated as fau value through the
proht ot loss and some are treated as far value through equity The classification
of each hond depends on the vestment mtention when the bond 15 acquired

~ Lashand cash equicalents ve<incteds

These nclude amounts receved from clearing mermbers to cover itial and
variation margmns and default fund contrihutions that dre not mvested n bonds
and are depostied with banks wncludimg central banks Ssuch amounts are imitially
recognised at fan value and are subsequentlyrecogmsed at amortised cost using
the effective interest method

Financial assets and hamhties are offset and the net ameunt reported in the
balance sheet when thereas a legally enforceable nght to offset the recagmised
armourts and thete 15 anntention to settle on a net basts or realise the asset and
settle the habity simuttaneously

Fair value measurement
All assets and habilties far which fair value 1s measured are categornised within the
fanr value hwerarchy which 1s described in detail in Note 19

For assets and habilities that are recogimsed at farr value on a recurning hasis the
Group deterrmines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy
by re assessing categorisation at each balance sheet date

Derivative financial instruments and hedging activities

Denwatives are imprally 1ecogmsed at fau value on the date a dervative contiact 1s
entered into and are subsequently re-rmeasured at thew far value at each balance
sheet date The method of 1ecogrising the resulting gatn or loss depends on
whether o1 not the denvative 1s designated as a hedging instrument andif sothe
nature of the itern being hedged

The Group apphes farr value hedge accounting for hedging interest rate nsk
on borrowings Any gain o koss 15 recogmised in the income statement within
finance expense

The Group designates as cash tiow hedges buth foreagn currency dervatives and
hedges of interest rate mevements, assoniated with ghly probable forecast
transactions Any gain ot less on Lthe hedging tnstrument relating to the effective
portion of the hedge s recogrised in eguity

The Group hedges a praporhion of its net mvestment n1ts ltahan comparies by
designating Eure borrowings as a net investment hedge

lnvorder to qualfy for hedge accounting a transaction mast meet strict critenia
as regards documentabion effectiveness probabinty of cecurrence and rehability
of measurernent The Group documents at thenception of the transaction the
relatonstap between hedging instruments and hedged ttems as well asits

nsk management abjectives and strategy for undertaking varous hedging
transactions Effectiveness testing s conducted at each reporting date and at the
commencement and conclusion of any hedge i order to venify that 1he hedge
continues to satisfy all the rmtena for hedge accounting to be maintained The
neffective portion s tecogmsed 1n the income statement within finance costs

Armounts accumulated in equity are recycled in the income statement in the
perod when the hedged 1tern affects profit or loss (for example when the farecast
transaction that 1s hedged takes place; When a hedging instrument expires or 1
sold o when a hedge no fanger meets the critena for hedge gccounting any
cuimulative gan or loss exishing 1 equity at that fime rernains 0 equity and 1s
recognised when the forecast transaction t ultimately recogrised 1 the income
staternent When a torecast transaction s ng longer expected to ocour the
cumulative gan or 1oss that was teported i equity 15 mmediately Bansferred to
the income staterment
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Group financial statements Notes to the financial statements

Commitments to purchase nen-controlling interests

whete the Group has granted put options (o non-controling mterest shareholders
these are teated as habihties as the Group has no control aver whether Lhese
options are exercsed or not The amounts due are 1ecogsed at far value and are
revalued on each balance sheet date when the habiity s recogmesed imtally the
redemption amount 1s rectassified from non-controling interests The changes in
the fan value of the habihty are recogmsed in the income statement Changes in
the measurernent of the hability that do not change the relative interests in the
subsidiary company that are held by the parent and the non-contralling interest
shareholder and therefare are not equity transactions

Trade and other receivables

Trade recevables are non-interest bearing and are imtially recognised at therr

fam value whic h s usually the onginal invenced amounit less any provisions for
imparment A provision for impar ment of trade recenables s estabhished when
thete 15 abjective evidence that the Group will not be able to collect all amounts
due according to the onginal terms of the recevables Sigrihcant inancial
dithiculties of the debtor probabihity that the debtor will enter bankruptey or will
be subject te @ inancial reorgamsation or default on o be delinquent on 1ts
payment obligations are considered indicators that the trade 1ecenableas
impatred The amount of the provision 1s the differenc e between the asset s
carrying amournt and the present value of the portion deerned recoverable The
carrying amownt of the asset 18 reduced through the use of an allowdanc e account
and the amount of the loss 15 Tecogmssd in the Income slatement. Subseguent
recovenies of amounts previously wiitten off are credited m the incorme staterment
Other recewables are iminally recogrised at far value and subsequently measured
at amortised cost

Cash and cash eguivalents

Cash and rash equivalents compiise cash at bank short tetm depusits and
investmients in maoney market funds and other nstruments and structures that
are readily conver tible to known amounts of cash and dre subyect tonsignicant
risk of changes in value

Assets and liabilities held for sale

Assets and habilties are classifiet] as assets held for sale when then carrying
amaunt 1s to be recavered pnncipally through a sale transaction and a sale 1s
considered hughly probahle They are stated at the lower of carrying amuunl

and fam alue less costs to sell

Bonewings

Botrowings are imtially recorded at the fan value of amoants teceved net of direct
1ss5ue £osts and transaction costs iincluding upfont faciity feesi Subsequently
these abilities are carmed at amortised cost and interest 1< charged to the
income statement over the penod of the borrowings using the etfec tive interest
rate method smilarly direclissue cnsts gnd transachion <osts (includiig upfrent
facility feess are charged to the income staternent over the perind of the
borrowings using the effeclive ntelest rate method

Preference shares

Preference shates or components of preferonc e shares ate classihied an imitial
tecogmtion as a financial labity of equity based on the terms of the contract
They are dassified as a hinancial labihity 1f the ternis impose a contractual
obligation to delver cash

Provisions

A provisunistecogimsed whete there i1 a present chliaation yhether legal or
constructive, as a tesult of a past event for which it 14 probable that a transfer of
eronomic henehts witl be tenured to settle the abligation and a relable estimate
can be made of the amount of the abhgaton

The amount recoumised as a provision shiall be the present valie of the best
estimate of the expenditare tequired Lo seltle the present obhgation at the end of
the Teporting petiod 1e the present yalue of the amount that the Gronpeacald
ratimally pay Uy ettle the nbligation at the balance sheet date or to ansfen it 1o.a
thud party
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Property pravisions are made n the finanaal statements at the lowet of the
cosl of fulfilling lease commiments for property space surpius to business
requirernients after Llaking into account meome from sub-letting and any
compensation o penalties ansing from failure to fulhl the lease commitments

All provisions are discounted where the time value of manely s considered
material when discounting1s used the increase in the provision due to the
passage of time s 1ecognsed as a finance expense

£quity and related itemns

Share capital

The share capital of the € ompany inctudes balances relating to the Company s
ardinary equity shares own shares held by the Lmployee Bencht Trust and
treasury shares held by the Company

when the Company 1saues new shares to the Employes Beneht Trust at par the
shiare capital of the Company 1s increased by the pat value of these own shares
and 4 cortesponding deduction o debits recorded 1o the employee share
scheme reserves wittun retained earmngs

from time te- e the Company may also 1ssue new shares to the Employee
Benefit Trust to satisty vesting of specihe employee share schermes These shares
mayy he 1ssued at o subscription price above par value reflecting the opton cast
payable by the particpant in the employee share scheme I suchinstances the
share capital of the Company 1s mcreased by the pay value of these own shares
and the difference hetween the subscniption price and the par value of the own
share 1s tecorded in share prermum A carresponding deduc tion or debat 15
recogmsed I the emplayee share scheme reseres within retained earmings

Shares reacquired by the Company from the open market as part of share
buyback programimes are referred to as treasury shares and are held by the
Lompany The consideration payable s deducted frorm retained earmings

The par value of the treasury shares 15 then recorded as a transfer from the
Company s widinary equity shares to treasury shares within share capital

Nergain o1 1oss 15 recogmsed by the Company in the incorme statement on the
purchase sale 1ssue o cancellation of the Cornpany s own shares held by the
Employee Beneht Trust and freasury shares

Dividend distributions

Dvidend distnbutions to the Carmpany s equity bolders are recognised as «
hability 10 the Group financial staternents in the period in wihch the deadends are
appioved by the Company s shareholders The Group matntains a sustainabie
mogressive diidend policy The intenim dnadend wall generally be payable each
Lear i September and hinal dvidend wniMay The Group s dinidend policy
deternmnes that the intenim dradend is cale ulated as one-third of the prior full
year deadend
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2. Fi ial risk t

=

The Group seeks to protect ty Anancial performance and the value of 1ts business from exposure ta capital credit, concentration country, hquichty, setilernent custodial
and market (including foretgn exchange cash flow and fair value interast rate) nsks

The Group s inancial nsk ranagerment approachis not speculative and adopts a 3 ines of defence’ model it 1s performed both at a Group level where the treasuy
function identihes evaluates and hedges financial 1isks from a Group perspective and also locally where operating usits manage thelr regulatory and operational nsks
This includes cleaning operations at the Groups CCPs (at LCH Group and CCAG) that adhere to local regulation and operate undet approved 1isk and nvestment policies

The Group Chief Pisk Othcer s team provides assurance that the governance and operational controls are effectve to manage nsks within the Board approved risk
appetite supporting a robust Group nsk management flamewark The Financial Risk Committee a sub-committee of the Group Executive Comimiitee and chaired by
the Chief Financial Officer meets monthly to aversee the consolidated financial nisks of the Group In addition the Treasury Committee a sub-committee of the
Financial Risk Committee iwhichis afso hared by the Crief Financial Officer) meets regulariy to momtor the managerment of and contiots around foreqn exchange,
interest rate credi and concentiation nsks and the investment of excess hquidity i addition ta 1ts oversight of the Group s funding arrangements Both committees
provide the Group ¢ semor managernent with assurance that the treasury and sk operations aie pet formed in accerdarce with Gioup Board approved polcies and
procedures Regular updates on a range of key criiena as well as new developrments are provided through the Enterpnise wide Risk Managernent Framework to the
Group Risk Committee See Risk Management Oversight on pages 42 to 45 for further detatl on the Group's nisk framework

0N 23 June 2016 the UK voted to exit the EU The UK comparies within the Group as members of the EU or European Econormic Atea (EEAL 1ely on a number of nghts
that are avallable to them to conduct business with other £U o1 EEA members This includes wathout hrmitation, the night for UK CCPs to offer clearing services to FU
requlated firms under EMIR and the night for UK triading venues to offer services to members inthe EU of ELA The Group companies have analysed the potential
impacts and considered contingency plans thar they may choose to execute should these nghts not he replaced by rights that peraist putside EU mermber ship

Capitat risk

Risk description .

The Group 1s prohitable and ~trengly cash
generative anc te capita Dase Comprises
ana debt capita

ety

Heowever the Groug recugne-es the risk that t-
eriifles ay Nt mainrain sufficient capatal +
meel their nbligations or thew may make
Irvestments trat fail to generate a positive or
valug enhignoing return

The Grour comprises regdiatet and unrequ'ated
entities 1t conwiders that

—mrreases N ine capital regquitements of its
regulated comparies o1

— negaiive Yields onts investmenty of rasr ot

—a scaruty of debt or equitydmen by 1 own
perfarmance o inandial market condinons

ei1ther separatelu o 'n combimaacr aie the
or1eiral naks 1o Managing its capital
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Risk management approach - - ) ~ _

The Group foouses uponite overall cost of caprtaras it ceexs witha the s ope of 11s nsk appetiie o prioside
supenon returne t s sharer.Aders fulfil 'ty cbngatians to the reievant regulatzry authoriaes and ofher
stakerolders dad ensure that 11 not ~venuy dependent upon shart and medwam terme Jebt that might not be
available at renewal Mainta ming the flex bty tnomvesr fo1 g owthis d kew (amial management
cansaderatian

The Grogp can manaae s capital structure and react trochanges in e onoime corditiors hy vary'ng returas 1o
shateholders 17suing new shares of Ncreasing ¢ r=duaing turrew rgy The board reviews diaaend pulicy ana
funding capacity on a regular basi- and the prramtans comifurtanle lvels ¢ f debt faci'ity headroom A
SUMMaTY of the Groap's canital structure 12 presented below

Book value of capital 11 December 31 December

2017 2016

- - B - _ _ fm _ Em
Group cansclaated equity exzluding non-conraifing mrerest. _3227 R
Grean crnsolidated debt 1,953 L 165

whlst the Company1s anreguiated the regu'ated entities w tim the Groap mismitor comnplignze with the
capital requIrements set pu therr respective comp-etent authontas ard the terms of reference of the & nang al
Risk Comm ttee tncludes oversicht of the Grouf s Tamral Manaoement Fancy The Capital Managerment Pohey
seehs b ensute that camphance wen kgl regulaztians o manairea and that there s a robust esaluatizn
urdertaken Dy the Group's cwvestment $ammmittes 0 the impact of new imvestments atrucs the Groul o0y
capital position Regulated entities within the Sroup have to aate predeminantiy issuea equity ard held cash
e sansfu ther local requlatory capital requiremients

We beheve that capital reld oy Groap ¢ ompdmes s saffiaent to comfortan’y supporf current regalatsry
frameworks The evel 51 amodnis set aside by the Graup “or these purposes remains sub@ct to on-going
teview with regu'ators particularly i Eutape A summary of the Grouf = regulatory and gperanonal  amtal
L~ shown below

Regulatory and operational capital 31 December 31 Decembes

2017 2016

. _ - . - - o Em JEm
Totd' reguilatory ang operational captal _ B 1147 94%
amuunt mcluded o rash and cash egunalents 1,042 Hhs

THe tatal canital @ uriis have mceased ueas on yedr relecting strong cash gereration at regulated entities
and row ticlude cash held by Mame Tiiol as at 31 Decercher 2017 10 response to the new Central Secunties
Cerowtonas Regulabion [ CSDR' regulatoru reguirements

To eairtain the finaninia' strength tc access new capital at reasnabe co<t and sustan an investment

grace credit -ating tne GIOUE MaNEars ts niel leverage rabin wie n s operating net dedt e net deldt after
cxcluding tash and cash equivalents set aside for regulatony and opetational purposes 1¢ proforma aoLsted
EBITOA (Group cunsolrated earnings beto'e et finance charges taxation wmpairment depreciaton and
amortsation foreqgn exchange gams v 1355es and non-underlymgitems prorated far acquisitions or
disposals undertzken m the peticd) against 3 1arget range of 1-2 times The Group s also mindful of perental
Mpacts an tne key metrcs employed by the Iredit rating agencies in considering Mereases 1oits Lorrmwings

As at -1 Decermnber 2017 net leverage was 17 times (2016 1 1 times) but temairs wel' wathin the Group's
target rarge The Group s comfartably tn compliande withits Yank fac ity ratio covenants inet leverage
and interest covery and these measure” go rot rrhibit the Grous s cperanons cr s ANGncng prars
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Credit and concentration nsk

Group financial statements Notes to the financial statements

Risk description

The Group s credit ek telatas oS Tus

and ~nuntarnariies being unahte te e
bl gatiens 1o the Group either part of e fu'l
melading

—customer racekabes
- tepayment of mvested cash and casn
ejdvaents an‘

- zettlement of denvatwe financial instruments

Inthe vyo e as ZOP cucarers to hrannal miat<e
parhizipants he Croup s COPE quarantes Tna
settlemnent ot transart 2ns acting as bu.e”
towards eack seller and 43 se ler tcwards €220
buyer They managé substantial cred t nsks as
part of th2ir operations ime.uding unmatcned
Tk pos ners thar might arse frarm the defaclt
of 3 partu to g cesrad transactien For-nere
nioratsn see Froae pal Ris< amd Jniettairtie -
Dages LE 7 53

Notwitastanaing regllat ons that require ZIPe -
smyest Lrecorminantly mosegared msTrurmen < or

structures 1sLcm as government bonds ard reverse

repos (CHGancthe (CHSrcup CCPs crniae ta
F

beab'e t= mamtar apto L of then toizl deposits

cmmerzial Bank - noan unsecured nasts
araLgh this potentidl fomts coPe o mvest on

anuncecLred bas sias well as oy eerta nothe

reyg tlated ard urrequlatec aperanLs ChtAnIry

(]

agt=e ] nestmen ool g hmits o up sl
ComtLe 10 e g rsk of drdct sz T g
cetenc-atiotiur f2 et ang on e ofars

UAsDEamed T Astrien s terpartia

Coneertranior sk Ay ar se th rough Gros
A tties naving largerdnadaal orcur e el
B [OS e L0 QTOUL s 0F 2OUNtETCArses wh use
kelnzod of defauls iz areen by vommer
dderlying ac otz Tmzisaparticg & frons o
e imeeskent asprcacn at the Groep s COF-
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Risk management approach

Group
Credit TiE< 1% guvertied thiaugn poduies deve nped at a Groap level Units anad thresnclds fer aedir and
ConcEraten risk arc kept under review

Sroup cLImpames make a judgement or tne creutt guality <f thewr cus-omers based Lps nine customer s
financ al posite 1othe terurr ng nature o° pilhing and eol'ect onatrangerrentz and Mstor ca'lly alow
ncigence of defau t Furthermere the Group s exposed taa lage namoer of custrmert ard so come entrar ur
tsk on it recewahles s deemed bu mianagerient as low

Non-CCP entities

Credit sk ot g o ans cash eqanalencs « manaced by lmnting exposure 1o courerpaties w (i credit 1at ng
levels below policy —wmmun thresholds potentially sverlan by a default propathty dfsessment Sxcept
albate wpecific approvalis arranaed to e rease this Irnl for certan carterparies > masamur of £l on
may be mvested for up to 12 rerths weth cognterparties -ated lang tetm AAA war egunvalent tarsugh

1A mgximur, €25 molon cvermaht with counterparties *ated shart term A2 or equivalentt Dervative
sransactont cnd other Sredsuny tecanatle structumes dre Ldertaken o aareel wit wel camtalised
~aumterparties and are autbonsed by poleu to im g tee credit sk Laderiuing these trar-dubions

CCPs

Toaddre « market participant ang latent —artket ri-h the Croup’s CIFS have extabl <hed financiat safequarcs
2Q3rat sinwg e of multiple defaul s Cieanrg membership selecticn s cased dpor sapey oy capital

echricg and sraamsahional cntena kaca rember rrust pay rargirs csmouted and collecten at leas:

darly toocover the oxposares and the wsty al cozte w g the T0P gk meur roorder 1o close sat apen

aon S the evert of the member = detault Margins are zalcu aten .sing ostavasked and mternatnndlly
achnowleaoed psk mode: and are deb ted from partic pants’ accoarts *hraugl certral bank acczanis ardvia
oremereia bdnk ral et syatems Mmoo levers of caen callatera are requued anc nor-cask ccllateral s
ravalued dalu

31 December 31 December

2017 2016

R _ _ . _ Ebn _Fbn

Cleanmg 1metabers margr 1 abiity . (139) Rl
£ atealoeounie S Cast I -
o Eﬁ-rica:% o :66 £Y

Kax miar ggaiegate margin | 3o vy for the year (155) 145,

Clearing members cantt ute o defaclt funds managed B e DRt guataries the et iy of the
marsets M he event o multpe detaulls I exIeTIe Tramet STIurstdm oo Amounts a7e deterr (med on sne
na-1sof the tesaits of perad £ soresz te-ting examinad by one nisk comvmtrees cf the cespaltne L 0B
TurtRerore Bacn o 1ne Grodp s COPC rerforeet dy waptal postiiom 10 mest the ot Cir nnent Telévant

Tenu atory "eguirer Bnte apr icanie 1717 (e ading Nols ng & nimirum amount o7 decic ated ownrescures to
furtner underpir the pratect ve zrag t sk framewerin the event of a sigmificant mar-et <tvels svert o
parugipant fanure Ar i alyse ol the agaregate Cieaning remuer con batiors 1 Zefaant funns across
COPw L shown belaw

He

e

31 December 31 December

Clearing member contributions to default funds

2017 2016

R o o R £bn £bm
Agoregate at yed® £1c o } 16 1z
. 18 12

tdaximam dur g the ue

Investment counterparty .k b COP mrarem anG aefault urae L mMdna, 2a by investing the 7ast element 1
inslrantents o0 strustures deerr ed secLre’ Jythe relesant regul s ry bodies incluzing th mough o
e -timen's 1t mghly rased  requldtory cal fyng” sovere an bt ds and sJpra 1ationa CeDT any
{1 party and hiatesal rpversd repes toion g igh Lty goedTTmInT serltie - 47 colateran and roerta
Lrsdictiong dop w1t ettt the enswa bank 7ae small peosportion of cashthat e nvested arzetuted v placed
farchoart dusations with mghbly, rated ~cunterpashios where <t lunts are 350016d with respecl to oredr

g ldity Joneentrat or ond tenr

mente 1

31 December 31 Decemnber

2017 2016

£bn £bn
I~taltneestrent posrts Lo 87 o
rdaamun portfro sie- Jur ng the uozn 95 &5
Additiona pattfolicmtor e an
Aot te ] vetade mvceted ser el 99% it
Onozrall matunte ndau 74 i,
Ancog ates hgquehte ook 210 cenadersdin the meettowent s Jr 3 g ses furth erbeow
To onddies o moenbas o ek dbenn o gperasrn s dwer thedportt s f b oo alty hoo g cotsnde
APC Lo v om-0 rdnge 2t o shans pan e and st et tbarks and to Thedarg=n 0 Frgraties
T B I T O O B L A I B B B e e I L
ST T RT3 S B DU RN I (N B STR T § VU C I
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Country risk

Risk description
Distress can resdlt from the nisk that certain
coverniments may be unable ar find 't difficult to
service thewr debts This coud have adverse
effects particularly ¢nithe Groups CCPs
roterbaily impat ting deared products margin
collateral tnvestments the clearing membership
and the financial industry as o wrole

Liquidity. settlement and custodial risk

Risk management approach _ )

Specthic - sk frarmewstks manage countru nisk “or btk fixed ncsme clearna anc margin 2o'lateral and al’
cleanng mempers are monitor=d 1eqularly agains' a saite of creraign stress scenanas Ivestment 'mis and
counterparty and ~leanng membership montan-y are senaitve (o changes 1 raings and nther finar. .
market indicators e ensure the Group < COPs arg able to measure momtor and rmt'qate exposyres (o
soverelgn sk ard respord quickly to anlicipatéc changes Ris« Commamtteas mantar 4nongoing w.
thece misks and the asschiated pohicy framewarss (o protect e Group agatnst potentahy severe veahiliiy n
the sovere.gr debt markets

Tae GIoup's soverelgr exposdares of £1 cilhon or more at the end of either af the fnanzal rep otting penuds
SIS below are

Group Aggregate Sovereign Treasury Exposures . 2017 208
Country - i _ i i i _ £bn R £bn
Frarce 21 B
Ush 12 4
Netherlgnds 7 &
Uk 6 4
Italy 3 17
Switzcrland 1 L
Spain . - .

Risk description

The Group's operanons are expooed 10 hawdity
Tisk 10 the extent that they die unable to meet
tneir ddailu payment nbhganiors

addibor the Gicup < CCPs and certanr other
sulISIdIATY COMPAnes are required (o mMdintar
Tevel of hguidity iconsistent with requiatory
reguirerents. t-: gnsure the smontn operatior of
thelr respec tive markets and te maintam
operations inthe gvent of a sinale or multiple
market stress event or member fallure Tris
ncludes the potential tequirement to lauidats the
pusition of a «learing member under ¢ defaull
scenancancluding covenng the assac ated losses
and the settlerment obligatiens of the detaulting
miembes

The Graup i exprsed to the rish thdt a pacment -t
settlernent bank could far' o1 that 1ts systems
encounter gperational ssues creating igudity
pressures and the nisk of possible defau'ts an
paument ot recewable obhgatiors

The Group uses thnd partu custodians 1o hold
secunities and s therefore exposed 1L the
custodian’s msolvencu 1ts neghgence a misuse of
ds&ets or pooy admimsatration

Risk management approach i

The chmbined Croup businesses are prohitable generate vtrong free cash flow and cperations are not
significatly impactsd by ~easoral vanations The Sroup mamtams suffictest hgud resources 1o meet
its fimancial obl gations as they *arl due and to mvest in capita’ expenditere miake ancend pacments
Meet 118 LeNsIUN ¢OMM trents ~Lppart acguuziiions or repal bourrowings With the exception of regulal
Constrants rmpactng certan entities funde can generally be lent acrpss the Group and cash earngs
reriitred throagh d vidand pagments Tiis s a0 mo.rtant JomesreT of the Group Tredsury - 3sn
maraqement policy and appraach

o

Management momrars turecasts 0f the Grrups cash flow and meerlays sensitoaiiest
reflect assumptioms ab st mote dithcult market fondiions o1 Stress ovents

theae forezastc i

Tregsury policy reduute . tnat tne Grouf mdintame aceguate credit facmves provided 2y s diversifed lend'ng
group to cover ity expecied funcing requireents and ensyre @ it mur leve! af headrnorm for at least the
next 2. manths The financial strengtk of lenders t¢ the GroLp 12 memtored regularl, Dunng the year engea
31 Decamnber 2217 tne . Ok Growp €200 milaon Freforred Secunties were redeermed i Full utihsing tne Grauy <
comrmitted rredit tacihties 1ogether with avalable cash ard cash equwalerts inaddinin the Group put e
plazeanew S year £600 nudhor comnitted revolving credit fac Lty to replace a matunng facloy of

the same amaunt and seued €1 itlrom of sericr notes gue ¢ 20724 amd 2079 materially extending its cebt
maturtt g prafiie 1t has alsc recently estaniisned a ©1 oillion eurg commercidl paper programme tc turtrer
broaden ity saarces of | guidity the proaramme was unutilied at the end of the financial year AL 3°
December «0.7 €675 mullior 12016 €723 miolhomn of the Group's facihbies were ununibsed

The Group s COP: migintan sufficient cash and cash eqaivalents and ncentam jubsd'ctions have access
*ocentral bank refirancing or cotmmential bank Lgaidite, suprott credit Lnes 1o meet the cash regquirerrents
of the cledring and serrlement cycle Revesed regulations reouire JCPs 10 ersure thel appropniale evels o
back up hguidity date e place tu underpin the dynarmics of a largely <ecured cashnvestment requirernent
ensunng that the maxamuar patential o atflow under extteme market conditians 1s covared faee Credit and
concentration Yisk sestion abhovel The Group o CCPS monitet thar liguiditu needs datly under norma’ ansd
streqsed market condihions

whete possible the Group employs guararteed deiivery versus paurment <ettlerent techmgaes and manage
CCP margin and defauls fand finws through tentral bans or long-=s1ahlizned bespoke commercie| bank
settlernent mer hamsims Moeries due fremr aeaning membe' 2 "ematn the cieanng memhers habihtyf the
aapment agent 1= anable to effect rhe apprepnate trarsfer Inadditior certar Graup cor pames e uding
the ( CFs -naintair operancna, facities wek corrmercial banks o manage ntraday and overmight quidity

Custedians are subject to mnmmum ehgitility requirement s ongarg credit assessment robust contractual
arrangements and ate required tr; have approgniate hack-up contingency arrangements in place

The table below ana.yses the Group s financial nabiities inte televant maturity groupings based o1 the
remaiming penind from the nalance sheet dale to the cumtractual mastunitu date The amounts disclosed nithe
table reflect *he cortrartual undisccunted cash fiows The bormowings [ine includes future imterest on debt
that 1= not accrued form relatinr t bonds which are not get due

At 31 December 2017

Borrowings
Trade and ather payables

CCP habinties

Denvative inanoial nsttument <
Sther non curtent labiities

122

Less than Between 1 Between 2 Over
1 year and 2 years and 5 years 5 years Total
B L gm _ fm Em fm
556 299 364 951 2,170
471 - - - 471
734,981 - - - 734,981
- 29 - - 29
- . A o 3 4
736,008 362 376 954 737,700
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Group financial statements Notes to the financial statements

Ligudity. settlement and custodial nisk v mntiniaed

At 31 December 2016

Bormewing:

ltad- and oiner paganles

TCF hat es

Dennative anancalinstrumenrs
Other ron current lLabilities

Less than Between 1 Between 2 Over
1 year and 2 years and 5 years S years Total
£m £m £m _ _Em £m
T gss D (28 14 1345
274 — - _ 474
G55 4Th - - - 553 470
- 14 - 14
- 4t o1z 2 fb
) - sso 61l 41 6ES 2% 560 385

Market nsk — Foreign Exchange

Risk description
The Ctoap eperates promanly i the LK Eurons
ardsorth Amei 0z bt alsc has growirg and

“steguat yurpartant businesses imAs.a and

lz2 principa CJrrencies 3 nperatien ave Sterting
euzand LS De'lars

Woerthe exoeptinn of Kllenn uml™1a St oarkar

RLpee rentiting e 1'we winck invalzes 2 matenal

prooothon 2° 1S rever wes nls Sollars anc
certaim cporatiine of the Lrong 4 Eum
repo g sebsid 2tu wmich gerarate materiai
fevefues 1 otet’ g ard JT U lars anc e
tisteral s ostsar Sterl s Croup companies
LETETd M 1 E Pey2hu@s MLUT eXxPEnsCe and
purc Ather = oestne lozal
IATTCTOES A D TEsUN T T ghiex harae Tisk
arices mair g from thetrantati ;o the ateup s
FLPRIGT CATTENTL 2371 0t atsErs and 13 nte-
o Lorepor ng cartengy Stethne ang froe
bighvaias 1ntragroup trarsactiony

i
CoLdsIg

satragn g anderd. and tne cuttency dest
mser= caligatisns of the Company mau create
short e ran~3. tional FX exposures but pay
taer part v oantralliag e bl of ranslzhicnal
Froxoosuresthe Groupfaze-

1Mt Grogp may be exposed from time ) time =
F¥riska orared win ftratcgro tnvestimrent
Crodvestroent e 7 gperaticrs deromingtes e
LJdTrencics atker thgn ~terling

Annual Report December 2017

otheramances ang raestim 2nts a0moss the glsbe

Risk management approach ) ]
The Gradp teehs tomatch the currenry ufit- dent hamihit'es o the run=miy of 2 earmrgs and cash flows
ahchitear extent balances t1e curtency o0 t- assets witn 1ts habmties 11 ordet tomtigate e mpact ~f
L@ o arabe curreney SarNangs Moverents ShednIngs aNs et g5sem s non-3terhing cash edrinngs are
centralised and apihi=J to mats g corrence debt and nterest magmenry and whete relevant interest
padments an stero g debt re-Lenurminiaten "N O LEN The Loe af crmss-currer. 4 swars

A avopariar of the Groap s debt s hela nor cwapned men Eatoana L Tl ar”

Currency of debt 31 December 31 December

2017 2016

[ . - oo fEm_ £&m
Furnaenom nated drawn deb: o 921 152
Furndenemmated crogs CLrTant gy tarest rate swap- . - (35%) 25€
Us Dl ar Jenom nated drawr deot ) = 100
LS Telargenor mat-d  tem D el enIy imEtest Tale swoape 622 -

ssrev ngars Eurs Feed aeht TneEaTs ANz US
Sty e abadge agein-t e Shoup s st

The =aas CJiTen L irterest 1ate swips are directly ke
Dalar denar nated i&ht noluding the oo TN ST
Investmen: e ~an gn Js Lolar cer2m o mated entihie”

Ax al 21 December 2017 the Groops demgnatea nedges of 2 net e mer b were culle effectee

Whlst rransactioral 12726 exThange exl oslie ~ L mcres 17 Grlap Fedgss mat=Tid transaci ons v
Fourtdaniew N CraLp Treat aru proog whioh reguureT e astr awl of rraretngns omil onoor 2quinalent per
Znmum s be heagen aun appronnate dervatine natruoaene o by saithrg cutrenoy pauatles o recenable
witFIr @ shart tiret-dre Where appropnate hedge aroowning derroatnes iz considerel inardarts
reugate matenal levels of e sme staternert wolabihtu

I adant om s rraechirg atd e 1z Ysiigats earnings ang deot profile by catreney ne Group 2w ew .
sensitivit 82 b movements It exchange rates whi b are anprapnaiz tromarke” condeons The Treun has
sonsideres mowemertor e Ear anc the LS Tollar wver the gear enged 21 December <500 and wear erded
2, Tecember 20.f and macel onactus matket Tnsetuations betw2en (L Or NOIpEl CLiteny | airs has
sencludes that - 100 movemen b nrates £ areasoncale — e talliustrate the mewcto the Sroup Theampact

s pes tax oroft ang edgutu b the year. ended AL Decemoen 1= et cutmthe tab e tdlow
2017 o 2016 3
Post tax Post tax
profit Equity profit Equity
_ R . _ R £m €m ~ _ Em _&m
Eure Sletlng waeaeer 4 21 ] 34
slerlmg Strengthen (3) {19} . 2 g
LS Lollar slell Ny weaner . (39} < =
Cterl ng -trengihen LC) 35 R [
This em e 4 2@ exChI Mz Ge - stra et of Buns and US Delar l-neetingtca rade
recan thles oue pagabley fra atranm vau= it ugh proft oriossmcloding Beveard L-lar

Aemicmnmated casboan ., ot w37

Thetn za tor e GTouf < operate on bt bt e yean el e an crasan ot pan g =d taagenle 3oeces
aG rin-nelosg eerr e of @ U Farcert aned L s T s eenien e Sterling Fune and
Sterl g s Doar rater eepost 2y cur v ceen el u

2017 2016
£m £m
ELmn B R R TNl 25 i
Ttetl g strer gthen (21) T
b Tollar RO T e 26 B
Al Ty ttier ginen (22) [
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Market sk Cash Flow and Farr Value Interest Rate Risk

Risk description

The GroLp < interest rate risk arscs trcagh ine
inpact of thangesin rarket rates on . ash flows
assoaated with cast and cach egaivalents,
mvestments 11 fingncal asséts and bortowings
field at fluaning rates

The Group, < CCPs face interest rate exposure
thiough the impa.t of changes 1in the referen.e
rates used to calculate member hab'| ties ver=as
the Jgields actieved thraugh tne.a predommantiy
secdred investment activities

124

Risk management approach N . . B
GroLp interest rate maragement policy focases or protecting the Group s credit ating ard maimtaming
compnance with hank covenant requitements To susporl this coject e 3 MR m U covelage of interest
expense by EBITDA of 7 imes ard a maximum haating rate con panert of 50% =f total dect ave targeted
This appreach reflects

U dfocus onthe Groan s cost of gross debt ratner than 1ts net debt given the tratenal cash ars cash
equiva'ents set as,de far regulatory purposes

o the short daration allowed For investments of cash and cash equna'erts neld for regulatory purposes
which by their nature generate low imvestrrent yields

m o aview that already low market yie'as are wnlikely 1o move matenally lower and

v the broad natural hedge of floating rate barrow.ngs provided by the ssgnificant balarces of casnand ca-n
egunalents held etfectively at flogting rates of interest

Az at 31 December 2017 consoldaten net itmerest expense cover Dy EBITDA was measure. over the 17 month
periad @t 15 F tirmes 12016 132 times: and the floatmg rate component of 1otal debt war 27% 12076 40%

Inthe Group s COPy interest beanng assets are acnerally invested in secured instruments or structures and
for @ Innger termm than INteres” bearnng Ldbihties whose tierest rate 1 reset gany This makes myestmert
revenue vulnerable 1o volatiity in overmaht rates and shifts in cpreads betwecr overmgh® ana term rates
Interest vate pxposyres 1and the nsk to CCF capita'y are managed withon defined risk appetite narameters
ayamst which sensitiities are momtared daily

Imife teview of the sersttimties (0 pelentia’ movernents nintertest rates the GrouT has ¢ nadered iInturast
rate volatiity over the last year and prospects f2r rates over 1he next 12 marthe ano has ronciudled that a

1 Dercentaue O upward movement iwith g imited prospect ot matena! downward movernent refiects

a reasonabie jevel of nisk to current rates At 51 December 2007 at the Group 'eve, b interest raies on
sterling cenommated Turn denominated and US Dullar dencminat28 fask and borrowang: had been ]
percentage poins fiugher with all other var ables helg . anstar? prost-tas profit =1 the geds we ald ndase been
Lo millsn fagher 2616 €5 milluen highet mam 4 as a result of mgher imterest incoms on flzating 1ate ca-h
ana cash eguivalents narhiatly otfset by hgnernntersst expense nr floating rate harowings

At 31 Decernber 2077 at the CCPaevel nnaggregate f interest rates #n the comrmoninterest hearny
member habilty benchmarke of Corma Fed Fund< and Samiz fer Eure US Dollar and Sterling nab bies
respectvely had been o percentage point higher witk all ather vananles neld constant the datly mpaast
o1 post-tax prefit for the Group weuld have been Eo rllion lowey (2016 £2 mnllicr iawens This deficit e
expected 1o be recovered as imvestmen: uields increase a- the pertfolio matures anc s remnvested
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Group financial statements Notes to the financial statements

3. Significant judgements and estimates
Judgerments and estimates are tegularty evaluated based on histoncal oxpenence ¢ urrent cucumstances and expectations af future events

Estimates
For the year ended 31 Decermnber 201/ the following areas require the Lse of estimates

Intangible assets acquired as part of a business combination — valued on acquisiiion using appropriate methodologies and amaortised over their estimated usetul
economic ives These valuations and lves are based on management s best estimates of future performance and penods over which value from the intangible assets

are realised Intangible assets acquited s part of a business combination are provided n Note 14

Impairment of purchased intangible assets, goodwill and investment in subsidiaries - tested for impairment annually The recoverable amounts of relevant cash
generating units are based on vakue i use calculations using managernent s best estimate of tuture performance and estimates of the teturn required by nvestors to

determine an appropriate discount 1ate Details are provided in Note 14 and

Defined benefit pension asset or liability - determimed based on the present value of future pension obligations using assurnptions determined by the Groupwt
advice from armindependent qualthed actuary sensitivity analysis s priovided i Note 15

Judgements
In prepanng the financial staterents for the year ended 31 December 2017 the follewing judgement has been made

CCP trading assets and trading liabilities — 1he Gioup uses its jJudgement to carry out the offsetting within cleanng member balances The carrying vaiues of the

hi

balances are offset at what the Group considers, an appropniate level to anve at the net baland es reported in the balance sheet The Group has an ahgned approach for it

CCP subswdianes to ensure the principles are applied are consistent across sirlal assets and labilities The approac hois reviewed on a timely hasis to ensure the
approach used s the most appropniate Details of armounts of fsetl are provided in Note 20

4, Segmental Information
The Group 1S organtsed intao aperating units trased o its senvice ines and has 6 reportable segments [nformation Senices Post Trade Services - | CH Past Trade
services - LLaG and Morite toh Capitat Matkets Technolagy Services and Other These segments generate reveriue i the foflowing areas

Information Services — Subscrniption and licence fees for data and index seraces provided

- Post Trade Services — LCH - Fecs based on (P and cieanng services provided non-cash collateral management and net interest earned on cash held for margun
and default funds

- Post Trade Services — CC&G and Monte Titoli — (learing fees based on trades and contracts cleared net interest earned oncash secunties held for margin
and default funds and fees from settlernent and custody services

- Capital Markets — Admission fees from initial hsting and further capital raises annual fees charged for securities traded on the Group s markets: and fees from
our secondary market services

Technology Services — Capital markets sattware heences and related LT infrastructure: network connection and server hosting setvices and

- Other - Includes svents and media services

The Executive Committee monlors the operatma results of 1ts husiness umts separately for the purpose of making decisions about resource allocation and
performance assessmert

Annual Repatt December 2017
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sales between segments are carred out at anm s length and are elrmminated on consohidation

Segmental disclosures for the year ended 31 Dacamber 2017 are as follows

Post Trade
Post Trade Services ~
Information Services — CChG and Capital Technology
Services LCH Mante Titoh Markets Services Other  Elirmnations Group

o . R _ _ £m__ _&m _ Em E£m . sm fm  _ EWM_ _ Em
Revenue from external customers 736 432 109 391 91 9 - 1,768
Inter segmental 1evenue _ _ _ .- - L S T - -2 |
Revenue 136 432 110 391 111 9 21 1,768
Net treasury income through CCP business - 120 42 - - - - 162
Other income I _ . - w0 - _ - - .5 - 2
Total income 736 562 152 391 111 24 jral) 1,955
Costof sales L _ Y (- T -/ S .t/ O ¢ S - S <) N S C)
Grossprofit G4 44 135 375 & o2 @) 1740
Share of loss after tax of atsociates - — - - - 9) ~ {9)
Earnings before interest, tax, depreciation,
amortisatior and imparment 406 245 82 194 5 1 1z 915
Depreciation non-acquisiion software armortisatinn
ana mpairment _ ,_ . _ B € T Y I e € - I R,
Operating profit/{less) before non-underlying
items 383 194 71 180 2 (5) [C)) B12
Amoihisation of purthased inteng.tle 3s-ets {153)
Non-underlying items - o - - . . . I
Operating profit 626
Net fnance expense B B - o L . __ __ h _ - I )
Profit before taxation from continuing
operations 564

Revenue from external customers principally compnises fees for services tendeted of £1.668 mmllon (2016 €1 423 muthon) and Techinolegy Senaces of £31 mitlon
12016 £88 milhon

Net treasuny income through CCP businesses of 162 mullon (2016 €125 milion] comphses grass mrerest ncorme of T813 milhen 2016 £407 mithory less gross trigest
expense of £651 milhion 12016 £372 millon] Dunng the year the Gloup tecogmised a total of £74 mllion (2016 £140 rmillonl of net treasury income on financial assets
and Labilities held at amortised cost compnising of £559 miton (2016 £357 rmillom gross treasury meome and £485 million (2016 £217 million) qross treasury expense
and £38 milion net gain (2016 £15 million net 1oss) on assets held at fai value comprising of £254 millon {2016 £140 rilhon faw value gain and €166 rmudlon {2016
€155 mithon) tar value loss

Presented within revenue are net settlement expenses from the CCPbusimess of £1 millon 12016 £5 million expense) which comprise gross settlerent income of
£22 rmillion (2016 £16 milhont less gross sertlerment expense of £23 milion 12016 £21 rmilliony
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Segmental disrlosures for the year ended 31 December 2016 are as follows

Post Trade
Post Trade Services —
Information Services — CC&G and Capital Technology
Services LCH Monte Tatoh Markets Services Other Elimunations Greup
_ _ _ . _ £m _ £m £m _ fm _ Em Em £&m _ £m
Revenue from external customers £ya Bt 104 1E8 R 4 - 1-.E
ter-segmertal reverye - - - - e - o -
Revenue } sge R S sés 104 3 16 1e15
Net treasury income through CCP business 0 43 - - - - 10
Other income - o _ - 8 _ 7
Total income ) ’ cos vy 147 T s 1 e 1057
Chstofegles B4 HE 13 N ok 1 - 11751
Gross profit ) h 5] Y i C3an 7L 1 | 5 Lot
Share 571355 af*er tax f guauriater - - - - I 13
Earnings before interest,
tax, depreciation and amortisation gl 139 71 log e N 1% 77,
Depred 3ton non-d7gu s tor software amorosatinn
and impanrient 14 (1) NET et G [ B R 185
Operating profit/{loss) before non-underlying
itemns 377 led 53 - 1: = 110 £46
AMmTization 37 putihases i tang bie aisets 1157
Nar ancerlumg et [
Operating profit B - 7 7 - - 47
Net finaie Sxpense B t-BJ
Profit before taxation from c&-ntmuing )
operations i
Geographicat disclasures
2017 2016
- _ _ _ _ _ _ £m - £m
Revenue from external customers 7 -
Lk 999 olfF
ltaly 316 kNS
France 106 37
(Y- 276 e
et 2 ) B
Total - o o ) " 1768 1518
2017 2016
— — £_m EEn
Total assets i -7 B ’ B
[BEN 366,608 159954
aly 118,082 7050
France 254,645 BRIV
LS4 2,428 Ry
Cother B } 217 it
Total o T 741,980 feqn
2017 2016
fm m
Non-current operating assets
L= 1,107 T
aly 1,284 y
Frunce 58 547
Wiyt 2,120 L 0sF
ctrer 155 e
Total o 4,724 4ot

WO CUtTent AR ATng assots conmstof properfy plant and equipment ntdngibic sssets anc rivest it (10 anseic @tes
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5. Expenses by nature
Lxpenses comprise the tollowing

2017 2016
o o o _ . L Notes _ fm ___Em
Employgee ¢ sts L 497 421
1T costs 120 17
Jther costs o . i o i . . 1989 o
Operating expenses before depreciation, non-acquisition softwar_é_a-mortisatlon, and impairment 816 70€
Depreciation nign-acquisition sofiware amortisation and impa rment - . . B 103 __ gt
Total operating expenses 919 /51
Gther costs include foreign exchange losses of £17 mllion (2016 €3 mllion gaimt
6. Employee costs
Ermployee costs comprise the followng
2012 2016
. _ __ Note £m £m
Salanies ard arher benefis o ’ 368 175
o0 al secunity costs 64 £l
Pensior costs .2 27 2l
Share-based compensatior . _ _ 1§ 3
Total ) R ) 497 20
staff costs mclude the costs of contract staff who are not on the payroll but fulh) a similas role to employees
Ihe average number of employees inthe Group from total operations was
B o o L 2017 _2016
LK ) 1,532 1352
lta'y 573 Shh
France 165 17e
SreLankd 1,094 )
LS A 626 250
Jiher _ _ i - R
Total 4,741

Average staff numbers are calculated fram the date of acguisition for subsidiary companes acquired in the year and up to the date of disposal for businesses disposed
tn the year

The Compamy had no emplayees in the year (2016 ml)
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7. Non-underlying items

2017 2016
— Nctes £m £m
Amartisst cnes pun based ntangib'e 3_55(;15 7 7 la 153 =
Trarsactiznrgats 25 HE
Restructunmg gists 7 14
Irtegrabion « (mts 8 3
Proftan ¢ spasal of busireszes . - 1 -
Total affecting operating profit 7 ) o 186 253
Tax effect on 1tems affecting profit before tax
Deferred “ax or amartatian »° purchased ntangible sssets (184} [E3
Carrent 1ax wnamat ~atian 2" parchaseg mtangitie a-sef s (2) et
Toxebtect amoataer tens affecting profit befiore tax _ R - (’L) “
Total tax effect on items affecting proﬁt before tax 190) 1331
Tatal {credit)/charge to continuing operations income statement ) - W 22l
Lose 37ertax frem dsconnnued cpetaran, - ac 25 84
Total charge to income statement h o ) B 21 )

Transaction asts cornprise charges ncurred for ongaing setvices relating to potential merger and acguistion transachions

Restructuring and integration costs in the current year prnapally 1eldte o the restructuning of LOH Group and the nteqration of the Mergent and Yield Book businesses
inthe pner year the Groupincurred Yestruc tunng costs nislanon tothe LOH Group and integration and restructnng costs mielahion to the Frank Russell Company

The £7 mullion profit on disposal camprises £5 milhen profitin relation to the sale of Informanaon Seraces Professional Solutions (15Ps) a business ine of Blt Market
Setvices Sp A for acash consideration of €9 million The net assets disposed contaned brands inteliectual property and capitaised research and development
nvestmients used for carrying out the 1SPS busimess along with identified agreement< with suppliers and chents and emplaoyment retationships The remaining L2
millon profit an disposdl relates to the sgle of the Millenmum Enter prise Systerns Integration business a business that formed part of the Techinology Services segment
and the tillenniumlT cash generating urnt for cash consideration of §5 muihon

Loss after taxon discontinued aperatiorns relates to the disposal of Russell Investment Management business See Note 170 for further details

Further details on the recognition of deferied tax inrelanon 1o the amartisation of purchased intangible assets are provided in Note &

8. Net finance expense

2017 2016
_ . __ Notes __Em £m
Finance income ) o i
Expected rerurroor denned mengfit ferziz- sohame ganets i - 1
Bark dep =it and atker ntevostirsome 3 1
e finance mceme 5 B
h B T B o - B 8 - n

Finance expense B B N - i
dtetesl pagable i 2@k 2hd 1T 900 T g 63) 105
Detried Lonefil pencion schoms Interesy st b {2) 2
Jher Iance expenscs . & 7

_ - - o @
Net finance expense i {62) 103

interest payable ncludes armaunts whete the Graup earns negative interest anits cash deposits
Dunng the yean the Group tecognised a total of 160 rmdhon i2el6 £67 mllont of net interest expense on financial assets and labililes held at amortised cost

compnsing of €23 nthon 2016 £0 nillGry gross finance income and L6a million (2616 €68 million gress findnee expense Presented wihim fingnee income and finance
evpense aTe amounts telation 1o defined beneht schomes which are mieasured at tar valle
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9. Taxation
The standard UK corporation tax rate was 19 254, (2024 for the year ended 31 December 2016)

Taxation charged to the income statement 2017 2016
o Nate _Em Em
Current tax - o T o 7
U< courporation tax “ar the year 76 46
Overseas tax for the gear 95 1)
Adjustment< i respect of provous yoars o ~ B . ag 2
161 131
Deferred tax 17
Deferred tax for the year 9) 7
Adyustments an raspect of previous years 10 4
Deferred tax hability on amortisation of purchasad intangible assets _ o (184) 141
Taxation {credit)/charge o ) (22) 191
The adjustments in respect of previous years corporation tax are manly 1n respect of tax returns submitted to relevant tax authorties
2017 2016
Taxation on items not credited/(charged) to income statement L ._Em £m
Current tax credit
Tax allowance on share optiois/award:r excess of expense iecogmsed . L 8 11
8 11
Deferred tas charge /credit
Tax ~n defined benefil pensian scheme remeasdrement 25) Ha
Tax allowdn.e «n share opt ons/awaras \n excess of expense reLugmesed & 17
Tax on movementr value of available for sale firarzial assets .z i
{11) 15
Factors affecting the tax charge for the year
The income statement tax charge for the year differs from the standaid rate of corporation tax mthe UK of 15 25 {2016 20%, as explaned below
2017 2016
. £m £m
Profit before taxation from continuing aperatior: 564 IF4
reasspraft before taxation from discantinued operat, ng 23 - 1e
- 541 458
Prafit multiphed by standarz rate of corporation taxn the Uk 104 YL
Expensas nit deductible 9 1
Adustrent ansing from @ hange i tas -ate . 2 2
Cverseas earmings taxed at mgher 1ate 10 w7
Adjustments 1 respect o° previaus years - 1
Adiustment ansing “rom changes 10 tas rates ¢ amortisatisn of purchased Niangible assets 147) 15¢
Deferred tax previgusly net recognised o . o i 2 L
L o , , ) - - @)
Income tax fram continying uperaﬁéﬂs - i - ’ T (22) 1n.
Income tax attributable to discontinued operations 2 172

The UK Finance Bill 2015 was enacted in November 2015 reducing the standard rate of corporation tax frorm 20% to 194 effective frem 1 apnl 2017 and the UK Finance Bill
2016 was enacted in Septermber 2016 1educing the standard rate of corporation tax further to 179%. effectve from 1 2pril 2020 Accordingly the UK deferred tax balances at
Decernber 2017 have been stated at 19 or 17'% dependenit on when the temporary differenc es are expertad to 1everse The Group recogrised a one off deferred tax credit of
i taz millorn redating to the reductton i the deferred tax liabiity which anses from consolidaton of US acquisitions and reflects the lowet Federal tax 1ate of 217,
substantively enacted following US tax reform signed into law 1 December 2017 The deferied tax balances inother countries are 1ecognised at the substantively enacted
rates at the balance sheet date

Uncertatn tax positions

Anamount of £2 mithon (2016 £1 million) has been provided for in1espect of uncertain tax positions n relation to uncertainty arsing from the introduc tion of UK
Diverted Profits Tax Inthe prior year an additional uncertamn tax position of £3 millien was provided for, reflecting ongaing discussions wath the tax authorities
regarding the tax effect of certan changes in acceunting policy for imangible assets The Group nalonger considers this amount to be uncertan fallowing further
discussions with the tax authonties during the year

Judgements

The Group 1s monitoring developments in relation to LU State Aid investigation into the UK s Contralled | oreign Company regime  The Group does not cuntently consider
that any provision 1s requred nrelation to U State Ald
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10. Discontinued operations and assets and liabilities held for sale
Inthe pnor year the Group completed the sale of the Russelt Investment Management Dusiness te TA Associates and Reverence Capital Partriers for USEL 150 muthun
(€7 % mulhon: total consderation

The Group incurred a nor-underlging loss of US$2% mdlion (€273 millwniin the year (2006 £76 rmilion gary relating Lo the disposal of the Russell Investment
Managerment business

Duning the year the Group recogrsed US$18 mithon (£13 rullioni current tax and ather recelvable in retanion to the dispased business Subsequently the Grouprecorded
a Us$21 milhon {£17 million) adjustment to the disposal balance sheet relating to tax balances dat the disposal date and a US$a rilhon (€6 mullion) reduction to the net
proceeds recaved on disposal as a result of the hnalisatwn of the completion statement, which resulted in a Us$2 milion {£2 rilion) cash pagment by the Group

The disposal accounting and final tax positon will be finalised on complesion of the relevant tax returns

Ihe results of the Russell Investment Managerment business for the 5 month penod to 31 May 2016 are included in the comparatives as discontinued operations in the
Group s consolidated iIncome staternent

The 1esults of discontinued aperations are presenteed below

2017 2016

R o R _ Note £m £m
Rewanus B ) - 160
Cthermcome _ - - B - = 1
Total income ) 7 B - 361
Toct of sales ) B = 12500
Gross profit o - B N B B - 7.
Expenses
Expenses nefore amorninat on ot puno1a-- Dintangily - 2236t 2ncnae urderion g rere - i
Nar Lngerlyirg iteim- N _ . @3 B
Operating (loss)/profit B B ) ' 23) td
Net finance income B . - - _ 1
{Loss)/profit before tax from discontinued operations B - 23 104
Tesat o1 or ooftpefore amortngin of e hased 1 angible assets ana o -ader g iLerr: - i Bl
Tawal.or or amoTtsaton c parct 00 Mangiale gx30t8 and ran Jnl-rumg tems . Iré
Taxation B R | (A
Loss after tax from discontinued operations j - j (25} W
Attributable to-
Eqaity bogers (25) 71
Non controlling ntere-te B - 1
B ’ ’ B B {25) o

There were no cash flows generated or incunied by discontinued operations trom operating investing or inancmg ar tvities in the year ended 31 December 2017 1Inthe
priot year the net cashinflow from discontinued operations armounted to €71 rlhen which comprised of £38 milhion cash inflow from operating activities £8 mullion
outflow frormanvesting activities and £ 20 milhor inflow from financing actvites

Dunng the year the Group classihed Exactpro Systerns Limited and its subsichanies (Exac tpror as o disposal group held for sale a business that formes part of Lhe
lechnology Services segmaont

Asat 31 December 2017, a tatal of Cu omlion of Exactpre assets have been classiied as held or sale on the Gioup s halance sheet and comprise goodwilt property plant
andequipment trade recewvgbles and rash and rash equr alents

The Graup completed the digposal of the Fractpro business un 1 January #00s Farther details are prosided in Nnte 34
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11, Eamnings per share

Earmngs per share s presented on 4 bases basic earmngs per share dilluted earnings pet share adwsted basic earnings per share and adjusted dilited earmings per
share Basic earmings per share 1sin respect of all activities and diluted earnings per shaie takes inite account the dilution effects which would arise oh conversion or
vesling of all outstandhng shiare options and share awarels under the Employee Share Ownership Plan (E50P) Adjusted basie earnings per share and adjusted diluted

earnings per share exclude amortisation of purchased intangible assets and non underlying iterns (o enable a better companson of the underlying sarnings of the

business with pnior pertods

2017 2016
o o . C uut-mumg Dlsc‘éﬁﬁ'\ied . 7__ Total Cantmu_;__g-__ Dlscor{!}t_t_ued Total
Basic earnings per share 153.6p 72p 146.4p asap 120 301 435p
Diluted earnings per share 150.1p {7.1p) 143.0p 624 1159p: 426p
Adjusted basic earnings per share 148.7p - 148.7p lea7p S0p 257p
Adjusted diluted earnings per share 145 3p - 145.3p Lo 3p 4 9L 2712p
Profit and adjusted profit for the financial year attnibutable ta the Company » equity holders
2017 2016
Continuing  Discontinued ToTal- Continuing Dl_sc_al:nmued T;t_a_'l
o o . _Em __fm . fm £m _im &m
Frofit for the inancial y=ar attnbutabee to the Tompany's equa ty no ders 530 {25) 505 222 7 52
Adjustments.
Non-underlying items:
Amaortesation of purchased mtargis € assets 153 - 153 157 - 57
Trarsact on custs 25 - 25 &5 - 85
Rectructuiing costs 7 - 7 4 - 14
Integration costs -3 - 8 2 4
Profit on dispesal of busineszes {7} 23 16 - 75 T
Other adjusting items:
Tax effect of amertisatior o purchased intangible asset- and ner
underlymg iterns {190) 2 (188) 133 JReEN 125
Amartisation of purchased titangble assets non-underlumg item: and
taxaticn atmbu'.ar_:ll_e_t_;- non-corttoliing nterests (l:!) I L!._:i) Vi - 17
Adjusted profit for the financial year attributable
to the Company's equity holders 513 - 513 43r W 451
Weighted average number of shares — million 345 14U
E‘fictiof dilutve share omlofﬁaﬁd awards — rmllion . - o 8 7
Diluted weighted average number of shares ~ million 353 356
The weighted average number of shares excludes those held in the Employee Benefit Trust and treasury shares held by the Group
12. Dividends
2017 2016
. . . . . _fm £m
Final duwnaend for 31 December 2017 pad 1 June 2016 25 Ipoper Ordinary share - B
Intenim d videns far 31 December 201€ pard <0 September Mu16 12 Op per Drdinary snare - 42
Finat dividend for 21 December 2016 paid 31 May 2017 31 2 per drdinary share 109 -
Interimn dividend far 31 Decerrber 2017 pard 19 September 2017 1o ap pe: Ordinary snave - B o o 50 -
159 130

Dradends ate only pavd out of available distnibutable reserves

The Board has proposed a final dnadend in1espect of the year ended 31 Decernber 2017 of 37 21 per shaie winghis estimated to amount to £179 mihion to be pad

May 2018 Thisis not 1eflected in the inancial statements
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13. Property, plant and equipment

_Land & Bunldings Fixed plant,
ather plant
and
Freehold Leasehold equipment Total
Cost: B B . £m £m . £m o £m
31 Decarnber Z01° 50 L 147 24
Aca tiens 3 i 34
T spesa’s - s 11 1z
Transfers 11 kS L) £
corelgnexit dnge _ _ 1 1 th . 5
i1 December T o 51 5 170 K]
Acd toms - - 47 47
Acquitttien o subaigaries - - 2 2
Cispcsals 1) - - [11]
S aasIness - - {3) {3)
Rer assificall 1 toassate heln for -ale - - {1) m
Transters 2 2 (3) 1
Foreigr excrange . _ {1 - R 2 1
31 December 2017 - . o El 52 216 319
Accurnulated depreciation and impairment: -
3] Lerembeer 1115 _2: ’ 3z A 146
Disp cals - 1 ih 1z1
Jharge for 'he uear 1 Z1 o2
Trarziers - [kl k]
Foiegiies Narue - 2 1.
¢ Tevernt or 2 14 ' ) . o 16
Diepssal ¥ blsiies: - - @ @
Charge ortnc Lear - 3 23 26
Impa "mert _ . . . - - 1
31 December 2017 | 29 37 124 190
Net book values:
31 December 2017 B B -~ _ . 22 15 92 129
31 Secemrer TLIG ) IR £ 00 e

Asat 31 December 201+ the Sroup held no items of equpment under finance leases (2016 il
Transfers relate to 1e classtheation of property plant and eguipment to ather asset classes and re allocations between propet ty plant and equipment tgpes

The Carmpany has no property plant and equiprnent 12016 b
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14. Intangible assets

Purchased mtranglhlerafgms

Software,
licences and
Customer mtellectual Software and

Goodwill  relationships Brands property other Total
Cost . €m £m £m_ £m £m _&m
31 December 2015 ' ) L 823 1517 ey w22 iz, s
Additicns 1 - - - 113 L4
L ~posals - - - - 131 ]
Foreign ext hange 273 Ms 11g 12 5 675
i1 December 2016 a T cose 1737 a7 434 502 S
Azausition of subsidianes 289 151 s7 168 11 676
Audhitions - - - - 143 143
Disposal nf blsiness 1 - - - 8 (9
Dispcsals - 1s) ) 12 @) (39)
Reclassihication o assets held fra sale 3 - - - - (6)]
Transfer of 95set - - - - m st
Foreigr exc hange o @ (20) 65) - % (81
31 December 2017 2,378 1,848 960 584 652 65,422
Accumulated amortisation and impairment i
31 December 2015 ’ T 49 349 . 239 143 1251
Impavment - - b‘ H
Armoprtisation charge for the year - 33 41 31 55 21
Dispcsals - - - 161 i
Farelgn excharge 91 A 10 7 3 147
31 December 2015 sac 082 122 277 231 1212
Amortisation  harge for the year - 9C 38 25 76 229
Disposal of business - - - - ®) ()
Oisposals - (15} {3) (12} {9 (39)
Fureign exchange a1 9 {6 1 1 __ 36
31 Decemnber 2017 521 566 151 291 303 1,832
Net book values:
31 December 2017 1,857 1282 809 293 349 4,590
31 December 2016 1 5G7 1250 549 157 71 4124

Transfers in the year relate to re classiicabon of softwale intangibles to property plant and equiprment

During the year the Group acguired the entire share capital of the Mergent and Yield Book businesses which resulted in anincrease of £289 rmillien in goodwall
Further details are provided in Note 30

Dunng the year the Group disposed of the Millenmum Enterprise Systems Integration business which resulted n areduction of £1 mllion n goodwil

During the year the Group classified Exactpro as a disposal group held for sale which resulted in £3 milhon of goodwiil being reclassified as an asset held for sate
Further details are provided in Note 10

The goodwill ansing an consohdation represents the growth potennal and assembled workforces of the ltalian Group LCH Group FTSE Group MillenmumiT the US
Intormatien Services Group and Turguose The Company has no intangible asscts (2016 nonel

Purchased intangible assets

The fap valugs of the purchased intangible assets were principdally valued using discounted cash flow methodalogies und sie being amor ised over ther useful econorme

lives, which do not normaily exceed 25 years The Group s purchased intangible assets include

Customner relationships

These dssets have been recognised on acquestion of major subsichary cormpanies by the Group The amortisation perod remainmg on these assefs dte between 10 to

25 years

Brands

Brands have beertecogiised i a number of majer acquisitions, including FTSE LOH Russell and vield Book Included withun brands are trade narmies relating to the

acquisttion of Frank Russell Group of £574 miilion (2016 £638 millilen) The remaring amortisation period on these assets are between 20 to 25 years

Software, licences and intellectual property
These assels have been recognised on acquisttion of subsidiary companies and have « rernaiming amortisation penod of 5 to 20 years

There are no othel indwidual purchased intangible assets with a carrying value that 1 considered matenal 1o each asset class
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Software and other
The cost of self developed software includes £94 pmlion (2016 £67 mullions 1epresenting assets not yet brought into use Mo amortisanon has been charged on these
assets and instead they are tested for nmparment annually

Following a review of software assets across the Group no impaument was recegnised during the geal 12016 £a rilon:

Other armounts represent the iter nalty built and developed trading systerns within the vanous business nes In general these assets have a useful economic life of
5 years

Dunng the year addibions rélating to internally generated software amounted to £143 rrflion (2016 £113 milhon;
The carrying value of licences hield under irance leases at 31 December 2017 was €7 mallion 12016 il

Impawrment tests for goodwill
Goodwill has been allocated for imparment festing parposes to 11 cash generating units (CGUs)

The reroverable amounts of these CGUS have been deterrmned based on value in use calculations usmg discounted cash flow forecasts based on business plans
prepared by management for & 3 gear peniod ending 31 Decernber 2020 and then projected for afurther 2 years Lo 31 December 2022 Cash flows beyond this period
are extrapofated using the estirnated long term growth rates and applyng the pre-tax discount tates referred to below

The amount of Lthe net book value of goodwill allocated to each CGU 1S set nut below

__ Net book value of goodwill
Pre-tax discount rate used
n value in use calculations

Reclassified
31 December  Acquusition of Disposal of  to assets held Foreign 31 December
2016 subsidiaries business for sale exchange 2017
_ _Em _ £m €m £m £&m £m 2017 _ 2016
Italian Group
Caprial Markets 4T - - - 10 257 12.6% ey
IELTITAloT Servler iy - - - 6 142 12.7% 123
Te.mulogy Setvires . - - - 1 23 11.4% BN
Fioel Trade Serazes 412 - - - 18 437 13 4% io
MillenniumIT N - ) - - 1 20.7% a2t
Turquoise 5 - - - - 9 9 7% ERAN
FTSE Group S - - -~ & 191 10.1% SE%
LCH Group 121 - - - 5 126 10.4% EREN
US Information Services Graup
Frans Russe L Graep 4458 - — - {46) 399 11 9% 111,
Yiels Briok - 215 - - (10) 205 9.5% NA
Aergent 74 - - ¢]] 67 14.0% MR
Exactpro ) = - @ - - NA La
1,597 289 (1) {3) (25) 1,857

Management has based s value i use calculations for each LG onkey assumptions about short and medam term revenue and cost growth long term econone
growthrales (used to detenmine terminal values and pre-tax discount rates

The values assianed Lo short and mechurm term revenue and cost growth assumptions are based onthe 2018 budget and the Group s approved business plan Tho
as5UMpons are derwed rom an gusessment of current rends anticpated market and reqgulatory developments discussions with customers and supphers and
rmanagerment s experience These tactors are considered in comunction wath the Groups s Iong terrm strategic ubjectives to detetmine appropnate short and medrm
growth assumpions

Lung-termgrowthates assumed to be 16 for each of the Ttalian CGUs 12016 17 1 940 for MillenmumIT 12006 10 1 38 tor each of the US [nformanion Services
CGUs 2086 4 1 aand 37 for the other CGUs 17016 37 Lateptesent managenient s internal forec asts hased on external estimates of GDP and inflation analysis for the
T year penod 1 January 2013 1o 31 Trecermbor 2027 and do not eveeod the long Levm average growthrates for the countries invwhict the CGUs operate

Prevtax discount tates are hased on a number of factars meluding the nske froe rates m Haly France sn Lanka USA and the UK A qppropnate the Group s estunated
rarket nsk premruum and o prermium toretlect the inherent sk of each of the CGUS

Based on the resudts of the mpairment tests pettormic d managertient bebieves there s nownpatment of the carmqing vabie of the goadw il ang 061

value tnuse caleulattors fo edch 06U are sensilive Lo chanages wshiort and mednna tenn tessnue aned cost grosth assurpnons long tetongrowthorates and pre tax
discount rates Management boleves, gooclwidl altorated to each Cls unlikely to be matenally unpared undet teasonabie changes tnkey assumptions: The oo cess of
caluen use aver varting value 1 determuned by reference Lo the niet book value as at 31 Decembern 2007 Revenue andoost sersitaties a6 ume o 5 changen

Tevenues o costs for eact ol the S gears n the value in use calcalations
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15. Investment in associates

Group
- o - o _ £m
31 December 2015 o
Acguiation of associates g
Share uf loss after tax . __ - 15
31 December 2015 o 3
ACQUISITIONS NG IMvestments 11
share of lase after tax ©
Impairmeant o B o - o o o -
31 December 2017 o ) 5

Company
fm

¢

In the priat year the Company acquired a 26 equity interest n Curve Global Limited (Curve Global) aninterest rate denwatives company also owned by major dealer

banks and the Chicago Board Options Exchange

Duning the current year the Company increased its equity interest in Curve Global to 43 38+ through a non-cash contribution of £9 mudlion Durng the year Elite Club
Deal Lirmted, a subsidiary of the Group acquired a 27 354 equity interest 1n The Hub Exchange Limitted, a provider of enterprise-grade platforms for investment

networks for £2 rmilhon cash consideration

16. Investment in subsidiary companies

Company Shares Other Total
. ,, ~ = _ m __fm _Em
31 Cecember 2015 sl 1acs 483
avestment M LSEGH L uxembourg: Ltd 410 - 470
(' heT movernents B 12 [
31 December 2016 ’ o 2362 1002 & 367
Tvestrnent 1in LSt Group Holdings ttaiy Lenited 94 - 94
livestment 1n LSEG JS Holder ine 297 - 297
tnvestment (n LSEGH rLuxembourd L1g 328 - 328
Gther movements X B ~ - o iy __ 14 _ 14
31 December 2017 5,081 1,017 6,098
Other includes amounts tnvested 0 subsidary cormpanties by way of capttal contnbutions and awards granted under the Group s share schemes
Country of %
Country of pringipal equity and
Principal subsidiaries: . Principal activity . . _ incorpovation  operations _votes held
Held directly by the Company:
Lendon Stock Exchange plc Redognised myestment exchange £nglany Erglana 1t
and Wales dang Waies
Held indirectly by the Company
BANQUE CENTRALF DE COMPENSATION ILTH S A CCP cleanng services France France 56 fic
Borsa ltalana S A Recsgmised investment exchange italy Italu 99 69
Cassa di Compensazione e Garanzia - p A CUF cleanng semyices itdly ftaly 95 69
EteSp A Business *upphart programme Italy Italy 75
Frank Russel' Companuy Matket indexas provider LISA USA 10c
FTSE Internatienal Ltd tMarket indexes provider nglang Englam? 100
and watec ana wales
LI Lirnited CP clegning services England England ERREN]
anc Wales and Wales
mMergent Inc Business dnc Ananuial informatior, pioider JSA ISk 100
Monte Titoh o 1 A Pre settlermnent wettlemnent and centransad «uctody ltatn Ita 94 &7
Millenmium Infermation Technologies Sottware @ 14 IT salutions provider Sr1tanka S Lanka 100
wMercate det Titah di Slatz S p A Wholesale fixed income bonus [taly 1raly 6255
The Yield Boak Inc Fixed inceme indexe~ and analutice USA LSA 100
Turguoise Global Hnldings Ltd Mutti-lateral trading facility England £rylana £] 36

and Wales and Wales

under Regulation 7 of The Partnerships (Accounts) Regulations 2008 the Group elected not Lo prepare partnership accounts for its indirect partnershup interest in

London Stock Exchange Connectiity Solutiens LP as Its results are contained in the consolidated group accounts

A full hst of subsidaries is provided in Note 3%
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LCH Group s the anly subsidiary that has matenial non-controlling interests within the Group Financial information relating 1o this subsitiary 1s provided below

Summarised staterment of comprehensive income 2(;1"7‘ 2(11':
Accamulated balances of matenial ron-cor ticll ng neerests, ’ | 421 L3¢
Profitfar the gear a'tributable to —steria on-comtrelling i terests 49 9
Oracend pand fonon-contre bng interests i1 Lol
iotglcomprehensve ircome attnbutable to - atemal men central ngoantetests 77 71
Summarised statement of financial posthion 2017 2016
. _ - -~ - £m_ ; ftm
Nar-current alscts T T 7 7 7 N 7 542 sz
CLrrant 3ssats 621,814 3571 dus
Current habilities {621,125) 390 Y M
Nor-cuttent habilites B89 S
Total equity ) T ) - 1,142 955
Attributable to:
Igu it e ders of the cemoing 721 fof
Num-Centiol ing mnterest L o 421 ~00
Net increase m cash and cash e;uiv;lent_s - 62 172

Accumulated balances in the above analysts mcludes gondwill purchased intangible assets and associated amortisation and imparrments attributable to non-
contiolhing interests

The summarnsed total cuomprehensive income of the LUH Group s prosided below This iformation ¢ based on amounts excluding goodwill purchased intangible assets
and assoriated amortisation and rnpan ments attributable to non contraling mterests

Summarnised statement of total comprehensive income 20{” 2(;16
m m
Folwere o T o R
for t1c yaar 7 - N ) 139 fa
Sther comprelens wF MUdMzd (255 0 Ul 13 exlnards S tianslater o foreiqn aperaten - 38 g
Total comprehensive income éxcla;:lingéxc_hi-ang_e translation of foreign oiper;IiDﬁS Y a3
S ar trarslatiom of furergn speratiors o o 3 -2
Total comprehensive im:o;ne before eliminations - 212 s
Elrrinat <n. o S @ e
Total comprehensive income - ) ) 209 17
Attributable to-
Eygaity hulders of the comrang 124 i
Nor-canrralling 1nterests 85 Ti

LCH Group was acguired on 1 May 2013 Then resulls hawe heenincorporated from that date

subsuhanes exempt from audit
The following UK subsidiaries will take advantage of the audit exermption sel out within section 2784 of the Compamies Act 2006 for the year ended 31 Decernber 2017

Company Name Registration number
Lendon ook Fx hdfige Do, A2 congs Lireed T - o (79536,
| ondar =tock Exchianae Glous Ho d nge RS ite 7innhat

Lendnn s _kevchanae ' ommited 1943997
condon st ek Eachange Seg Hald ng Lire=d LTSI
L ondnn Steck caonanac Grognosen eyt Limited 4413535
o2l M- marorg amted 5

FUIEAaztrand Ll AIASZ T
FTSE IrterationaniFrane- fimre FRAEEI
750 I ternationd, Halu ©orite d Qe lk?z
T alenan mtald (SR
CsTG Emnl o grment sevy et Liet oo Gl e
< aba Busiiie @t 0 Lt ted TR

TG Tecints gL v Tesanes
Catelan mted] o . . brddrar
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17. Deferved tax

The mavements in deferred tax assets and hablities during the year are shown below

Group L e o

31 December 2015

Rerlassificatior from assets hela for sale

Transfer to cutrent tax

Tax credited/Ichargedi to the iIncome Staterment

Tax tredited/A harged: to other comprehens ve incume

- defned peneht scheme temeasarement boss

— mowvernent inyalue of available tur sale finarcial assets
— ‘orewgn exchange

Allowance on share :1p;.cn5raward£— TO eGulty

31 Decamber 2046 o

Transfer betweegr cateaories

Deferred tax recogrised an acquisitian of businesses
Tax trediedsicharged tothe income statement

Tax ichargedi/creditel to ather comiprehensive 1nLome

— Jefined benefit scherme remeasurement gam

— movernent in value of avalatie for saie financial assets
- fotaign exchange

Allowance on share cpliunsiawards — tC equity

Disposal of business

31December 2017 B

Assets at 31 December 2017

Liabilities at 31 Decernber 2017

Net assets/(liabilities) at 31 December 2017

Acsets at 31 Decernber 201€

Liatuhities at =1 Decernber 2016

Net assetsihabilitie s at 31 December (N1E

Accelerated

tax

depreciation

£m
)

O N -

0

Acquisition Provisions
deferred and other
tax and temporary
amartisation differences
im £Em

1514 .5

- 1%

47 11

- 1%

[N

15% -

— _ 7‘

€71 28

(23) 4
184 (4}

- 25

- 2

26 -

- 4
 @es) 11
- 29

W84y (18

(1089) _ 11

- &0

6 134

71 26

@)
38

_ (502)

_l64)

ety
705
n37

The deferred tax assets are recoverable against future taxable profits and are due after more than 1 year

The net deferred tax asset of £11 million (2016 £26 miliont inrespect of provisions and other temporary differences rainly relates to share based payments of
£14 mithon {2016 £7 miilionl 1etirement benefits habity of €415 mullion (2016 £10 milhon) trading losses of £5 midhon (2016 £24 millon; withholding tax on
distnibutable veserves of subsidiary companies of £i5) million 12016 £15 rmilhom and other provisions and tempotary ditferences of £12 mlhon (2016 T10) rllion

The purchased intangible assets of the acquired subsidianes create a deferred tax habiity due to the difference between their accounting and tax treatment This habiiity

15 amortised at the same 1ate as the purchased intangible assets

The Group has unrecogmised deferred tax assets in respect of losses of €18 midlion (2016 £21 milhonwithin certain Group subsidianes The assets would be recogmsed
inthe future only if suitable taxable income werte ta anse within the Group

Thete was no deferred Lax in the Company (2016 ni)
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Group financial statements Notes to the financiat statements

18, Retirement benefit obligations
The Group operates separate defined beneht and defined conttibution schemes, The assets of the defined benefit and defined contribution schemes are held separately
liom these of the Group

Inthe UK the defined benefit scherme (s administered by trustees with the assets primarily betng managed by BMO Global Asset Management | egal & Genetal
Investment Managerment Linited PIMCO Europe Lumited Schroder [nvestment Management Lirmted and a buyin msurance asset with Pension Insurance
Corporation

0n 5 September 2016 the London Stock Exchange Retirernent Plart 1 LSERP } and the | CH Pension Scherme in the UK ©LCH UK’ underwent a sectionalised merger nto a
new London Stock Exchange Gloup Pension Scheme | LSEGPS' ] The scheme maintains separale LCH and LSE Sections

The assets of the LSEGPS ate held by the trustees who are responsible for the scherme s governance The schemes are invested ina wide range of assets in the UK and
overseas which seek to balance nisk and investment return through investment managers appomted by the scheme s Liustees The plan assets do not include any of
the Group s own Ananciahinstruments, nor any property occupted by or other assets used by the Group

The (ther plans relate to the severance and leaviny indemnity scherne Trattamento di Fine Rapporto ( TFR ) opetated by the [talian group in accordance with Ttakan law
the employee benefit and retuement plan eperated by tillenmumiT and other pensicn comrmtmients of the | CH Group outside of the Uk

The only schermes operated by FTSE fiternational and LS entihes ate defined contnbution schermes recorded in Other plans
all schemnes are governed by the loc al regulatory framework and ernployment taws in the countryin which they oporate
The Company has no retuement beneht abhigations

Defined benefit schemes

United Kingdom

The LSE section of LSFGPS was a non conitributory defined benefit scherne that closed 1o new members in 1995 With eftect fram 31 March 2012 the LSERP also
closed to accrual of futwe benehits far actie members and 1 has been agreed that the benehts alieady accrued for affected members will remain inked to thew
salary with the Group

The LCH section of LSEGPS was Closed to new membets from 30 Sepiember 2009 1t was closed to further employee contributions and accrual of future benefits from
31 March 2013 with the defined contribution section remaining open until Apnl 2017 when the Legal & General mastertrust was provided to all UK employees

Pension scheme obligations and costs are detet mined by an independent qualified actuary on a reguiar basis using the projected urt aedit method The obligations
are measuied by discounting the best estimate of future cash flows to be pard out by the scherne and are reflected in the Group balance sheet

Overseas

LCH Group also operates aretuerment indernnity and long setvice award schemesin Pans for which the scheme obligations are calculated by an independent gualified
actuary They also operate an independent defined beneht scheme i Porta assurred w2006 Updated valuations of these funds are carned out ey anindependent
quatihed actuary

The TFR operated by the (tahan group s classified as an unfunded defined beneht scheme for funds accumulated prior to 1 July 2007 The service cost 1epresenting
defened salanes accruing to ermployees was included as an operating expense and was determined by law at 6914 of salary payments subject to centam adjustrments
The scheme obligation camprises accumulated service costs and 1 Tevalued by law at arate equal to 754 of natiwnal ife pricendex +1 54 by anindependent quahhed
actuary Stnce 1 July 2007 the Groupretains no nbligation as contnbtions are made dwectly inte ltahan state funds i the manner of a defined contnibunon scheme

The ernployee beneht and retrement plan operated by Millenmumi 1 s classihied as an unfunded defined benefit plan The net vbhigation nrespect of this plar 1
the amaunt of future benefit that eniployees have earned in teturn for thet service in the cartent and prior penods Once an employee 18 continuousty employed
for more than > years he ar she 1 entitled to a pagment equivalent to half a maonthis gross salary multiphed by the number of years n service at Millenmumi T

The principal risks towhich the defined benefit sehiemes expose the Group anses flom an increase n pension Lability

The pension habilities could increase in the following Qroumstances

Fincreases i the plan hatilities are not arcormpamed by conresponding meteases m the plan assets
I investment refurns are lowet than assumed in assessing the adeanacy of plare
if the salanies of active mermbers inerease more rapudly than assumed increasing habilities
- ahinflauens mgher than expecled increasing habilites through indesing of pension papments. dnd
1he sk that membors e lungen than expected moreasing the length of time for which pensione have to be paid potenually due to a medie al breaktough
Such anine redase e pension ahtlities could lsad te an mcease i pension deficit: Defined benefit s hemes aie normally tevdabued buy actuarnies every $geaes

whete any matenal tunding gap s identified by this prosess the Trusters wilk agree a <chedule of s ontnibutions with the spansar comparty Such contnbutions
woukd teslt i Bman b mpact o the Group

Inadchtion withegard tathe L SERP the Grongis e poese d to the credit of the buy nmsurance prosder Aailure of the buon annmsurance prowaden would reduce
the penann asset < and could thus glsolead te a penson dehotm aindrease nnpenstan defiar and the need for contbations fron the Growg,
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Defined contribution schemes

In the UK the only pension scherme open to employees 1s a dehned contribution scherme provided by Legal & General Following a pension consultation, from Apnl
20117 all UK employess are egible to paricipate 1in the same pension scheme & core contnibulon of 8+ of basic sdlary 15 pad by the Group whe will also match

ernployee contnbutions up to 44 of basic salary

Amounts teccgmsed i the income statemment from continuing operations are as follows

o 2017 . 2016 B
LSERP LCH UK Other plans Total LSERP LCH UK Other plans Total
o . o Notes £m _Em __Em e tm £m €m0 £m __Em
Defined contnbuiian sciemes (5) (4} )] {18) ] 15 I 14
Defined benefit scheme — current service
TD5t ang expenses [8Y] 1) {7} (9) 1L 1 5 ]
Total pension charge mcluaed in
emaluyee costs 3] (6} (5} (16) 2n L 1) R el
het finance |expenselincome 8 @ - - @ 1 1 1 b
Total recogmsed in '
the income statement (&) (5) (16) (29) 151 151 Bl 22
Defined beneht assets/ioblgations) for penston schemes
2017 2016
T LCHUK  Otherplans " Total LSERP LCHUK  Other plans Total
o R __ fm £Em . Em £m_ £&m B £€m £ im
Faur value of assets )
Equities wqueted — 114 - 114 - 164 - 14
Bond< 1guoted. 163 148 1 312 13 145 1 3%
Froperty 5 - - 5 o - - &
Cash 4 2 - -] 1 < - S
Pensioner huy ir policy 184 - - 184 ) 122 B - W92
Total fair value of assets 356 264 1 621 250 <55 I €0C
Present value of funded obligations _ {376) {208  an (601 LD N A E 16 €75
(Deficit)/surplus {20) 56 (16) 20 100 2 L5 T

&< at 31 December 201/ the Group has tecogmsed a net defined benefit asset of £56 milhion 12016 £2 mullion assethinrelation tothe | CH UK sch

eme onthe basis that

the Group has access 1o the supiusn the event of wind up of the scheme and therefore nu asset celing has been applied to the net surplus recogmsed Further no

rnimum funding commitments are assocated with the plan

UK pension plan actuanal assumptions are set out below

2017
_____ o . 7;”7I:§ERP LCHI.IE
Inflation vate — RFI 3.1% 3.2%
Inflation rate — CFL 1.9% 2.0%
Rate of increase in salares 3.1% n/a
Rate gl incredse i pensians in 33y ment 3.6% 2.2%
Discount rate 2.7% 2.8%
tite expectancy from age 60 1years:
~ Non-retirad male member 28.3 28.2
~ Nan-retired female member 306 305
~ Retued mate member 273 276
~ Retted female member 294 293

2016
LSERP LCH UK
3 s
S s3r
Ay Nz
3E% 2 3%
2w T
28 29l
o 322
274 bl
Pk 304

The mortality assumptions are based on 52PA tables published by the [nstitute and Faculty of Actuanes adjusted to take account of projected future improvernentsin
life expectancy from the Self Admuustered Pension Scheme (SAPSI mortality survey which was published in 2008 We have used an allowance for CMI 2016 projections

and applied a 1 25% far male and fernale long term trend rate inrespect of future mortality inprovements

Sensttivities
The sensitivines regarding the princpal assampnons used to measdre the LSERP and LOH UK scheme obligations are

Assumption 2817 2016

__Change in assumption Impact on scheme obligations Impact on scheme oblgations
— - - I LA — L . . _LSERP __LCHUK
Inflation rate 1P ang salary increase Inceaseby05% Increase by £7m Increase by £6m Increase by £3m [ncrease by £12m
Rate of InCrease n pensisns paymment o 4 Increase by £24m  Increaseby £13m Increase by C